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This document contains management’s discussion and analysis of the fi nancial 

condition, financial performance and cash flows of Power Corporation of 

Canada (the Corporation) for the three months and six months ended June 30, 

2022 and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated fi nancial statements 

of the Corporation as at and for the three months and six months ended 

June 30, 2022. This document has been fi led with the securities regulatory authorities 

in each of the provinces and territories of Canada and is available under the 

Corporation’s profi le on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

AUGUST 5, 2022 
ALL TABULAR AMOUNTS ARE IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 

The following presents Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the financial condition and financial performance 
of Power Corporation of Canada (Power Corporation or the Corporation) (TSX: POW; POW.PR.E), a public corporation, for the 
six-month and three-month periods ended June 30, 2022. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the unaudited 
interim condensed consolidated financial statements of Power Corporation and notes thereto for the six-month and three-
month periods ended June 30, 2022 (the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements), the MD&A for the year ended 
December 31, 2021 (the 2021 Annual MD&A), and the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for  
the year ended December 31, 2021 (the 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements). Additional information relating  
to Power Corporation, including its Annual Information Form, may be found on the Corporation’s website at 
www.powercorporation.com and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS › Certain statements in this MD&A, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements based on certain 
assumptions and reflect the Corporation’s current expectations, or with respect to disclosure regarding the Corporation’s public subsidiaries, reflect such 
subsidiaries’ current expectations as disclosed in their respective MD&A. Forward-looking statements are provided for the purposes of assisting the reader in 
understanding the Corporation’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows as at and for the periods ended on certain dates and to present 
information about management’s current expectations and plans relating to the future and the reader is cautioned that such statements may not be appropriate 
for other purposes. These statements may include, without limitation, statements regarding the operations, business, financial condition, expected financial results, 
performance, prospects, opportunities, priorities, targets, goals, ongoing objectives, strategies and outlook of the Corporation and its subsidiaries including the 
fintech strategy, the expected impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Corporation and its subsidiaries’ operations, results and dividends, as well as the outlook 
for North American and international economies for the current fiscal year and subsequent periods, the Corporation’s NCIB (as defined herein) commenced in 
2022, the Corporation’s sale of its interest in ChinaAMC (as defined herein) to IGM, and IGM’s sale of a portion of its interest in Lifeco, and related impacts and 
timing thereof, statements concerning deferred taxes, statements concerning the expected impact of IFRS 17 on shareholders’ equity, management of standalone 
businesses to realize value over time, fundraising activities by investment platforms, capital commitments by the Power group and third parties, the intended 
acquisition opportunity of Portage Fintech Acquisition Corporation, the objective to maintain a minimum level of cash and cash equivalents relative to fixed 
charges, and the Corporation’s subsidiaries’ disclosed expectations, including the expectations as a result of the acquisitions of the Prudential full-service 
retirement business (as defined herein), the retirement services business of MassMutual (as defined herein) and Personal Capital (as defined herein) and related 
synergies, impacts and timing thereof as well as the impacts of the acquisitions of Affidea (as defined herein) and Sanoptis (as defined herein). Forward-looking 
statements include statements that are predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, 
“plans”, “believes”, “estimates”, “seeks”, “intends”, “targets”, “projects”, “forecasts” or negative versions thereof and other similar expressions, or future or conditional 
verbs such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “would” and “could”.  

By its nature, this information is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties that may be general or specific and which give rise to the possibility that expectations, 
forecasts, predictions, projections or conclusions will not prove to be accurate, that assumptions may not be correct and that objectives, strategic goals and 
priorities will not be achieved. A variety of factors, many of which are beyond the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ control, affect the operations, performance and 
results of the Corporation and its subsidiaries and their businesses, and could cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations of estimated or 
anticipated events or results. These factors include, but are not limited to: the impact or unanticipated impact of general economic, political and market factors 
in North America and internationally, fluctuations in interest rates, inflation and foreign exchange rates, monetary policies, business investment and the health of 
local and global equity and capital markets, management of market liquidity and funding risks, risks related to investments in private companies and illiquid 
securities, risks associated with financial instruments, changes in accounting policies and methods used to report financial condition (including uncertainties 
associated with significant judgments, estimates and assumptions), the effect of applying future accounting changes, business competition, operational and 
reputational risks, technological changes, cybersecurity risks, changes in government regulation and legislation, changes in tax laws, unexpected judicial or 
regulatory proceedings, catastrophic events, man-made disasters, terrorist attacks, wars and other conflicts (such as the invasion of Ukraine), or an outbreak of a 
public health pandemic or other public health crises (such as COVID-19), the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ ability to complete strategic transactions, integrate 
acquisitions and implement other growth strategies, the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ success in anticipating and managing the foregoing factors and with 
respect to forward-looking statements of the Corporation’s subsidiaries disclosed in this MD&A, the factors identified by such subsidiaries in their respective MD&A. 

The reader is cautioned to consider these and other factors, uncertainties and potential events carefully and not to put undue reliance on forward-looking 
statements. Information contained in forward-looking statements is based upon certain material assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or 
making a forecast or projection, including management’s perceptions of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, that any required 
approvals (including regulatory approvals) for strategic transactions, acquisitions, divestitures or other growth or optimization strategies will be received when and 
on such terms as are expected, as well as other considerations that are believed to be appropriate in the circumstances, including the availability of cash to 
complete purchases under the NCIB, that the list of risks and uncertainties in the previous paragraph, collectively, are not expected to have a material impact on 
the Corporation and its subsidiaries and with respect to forward-looking statements of the Corporation’s subsidiaries disclosed in this MD&A, the risks identified 
by such subsidiaries in their respective MD&A and Annual Information Form most recently filed with the securities regulatory authorities in Canada and available 
at www.sedar.com. While the Corporation considers these assumptions to be reasonable based on information currently available to management, they may 
prove to be incorrect. 

Other than as specifically required by applicable Canadian law, the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect 
events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or results, or otherwise. 

Additional information about the risks and uncertainties of the Corporation’s business and material factors or assumptions on which information contained in 
forward looking statements is based is provided in its disclosure materials, including this MD&A and its most recent Annual Information Form, filed with the 
securities regulatory authorities in Canada and available at www.sedar.com. 

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES › This MD&A contains financial measures (including ratios) that do not have a standard meaning under International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). Terms by which non-IFRS financial measures are identified include, but are not limited to, “adjusted net earnings”, “adjusted net 
earnings per share”, “adjusted net asset value”, “adjusted net asset value per share”, “consolidated assets and assets under management” and “consolidated assets 
and assets under administration”. Management uses these financial measures in its presentation and analysis of the financial performance, financial condition 
and cash flows of Power Corporation, and believes that they provide additional meaningful information to readers in their analysis of the results of the Corporation. 
These non-IFRS financial measures may not be comparable to similar measures used by other entities. Refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial Measures” in this 
MD&A for the appropriate reconciliations of these non-IFRS financial measures to measures prescribed by IFRS as well as additional details on each measure. 
Reconciliations of the adjusted net asset value and the holding company balance sheet are included in the section “Adjusted Net Asset Value”.  

This MD&A also includes other measures used to discuss activities of the Corporation’s consolidated publicly traded operating companies and alternative asset 
investment platforms including, but not limited to, “assets under management”, “assets under administration”, “assets under management and advisement”, “book 
value per participating share”, “carried interest”, “fee-bearing capital”, “market capitalization”, “net asset value”, “net carried interest” and “unfunded commitments”. As 
well, a non-consolidated basis of presentation is used to present and analyze the financial position and cash flows of Power Corporation as a holding company. 
Refer to the section “Other Measures” in this MD&A for a definition of each measure.  
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The following abbreviations are used throughout this report: 
Acofi 
adidas 
Affidea  
AIM 
Alternative asset investment 

platforms or Investment 
platforms 

Canada Life 
Canyon 
ChinaAMC 
EBITDA 
 
EBR 
Empower 

 
 

EPA  
European private equity 
 
EverWest 
 
GBL 
GEA 
Grayhawk 
Holcim 
IFRS 
IGM or IGM Financial 
IG Wealth Management 
Imerys 
Investment Planning  

Counsel or IPC 
Irish Life 
Koho 
Lifeco 
Lion or Lion Electric 
LMPG 
Mackenzie or  

Mackenzie Investments 
MassMutual 
MOWI  
Nautilus or Nautilus Solar 
NCREIF 
  

Acofi Gestion 
adidas AG 
Affidea Group B.V.  
AIM sub-market of the London Stock Exchange 
Alternative Asset Investment Platforms 
 
 
The Canada Life Assurance Company 
Canyon Bicycles GmbH 
China Asset Management Co., Ltd. 
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation  

and amortization 
Euronext Brussels 
Empower Insurance Company of America 

(formerly Great-West Life & Annuity  
Insurance Company) 

Euronext Paris 
Sagard Europe II, Sagard Europe 3,  

Sagard Europe 4 and Sagard NewGen 
EverWest Real Estate Investors, LLC and 

EverWest Advisors, LLC 
Groupe Bruxelles Lambert 
GEA Group AG  
Grayhawk Investment Strategies Inc. 
Holcim Ltd.  
International Financial Reporting Standards 
IGM Financial Inc. 
Investors Group Inc. 
Imerys SA 
Investment Planning Counsel Inc. 
 
Irish Life Group Limited  
KOHO Financial Inc. 
Great-West Lifeco Inc. 
The Lion Electric Company 
LMPG Inc. 
Mackenzie Financial Corporation  
 
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company  
Mowi ASA  
Nautilus Solar Energy, LLC  
National Council of Real Estate Investment 

Fiduciaries 

Northleaf 
NYSE  
Ontex 
OSE 
PanAgora 
Pargesa 
Parjointco  
Parques or Parques Reunidos 
Peak 
Pernod Ricard 
Personal Capital 
PFTA 
Portage I or Portage I LP 
Portage II or Portage II LP 
Portage III or Portage III LP 
Potentia or Potentia Renewables
Power Financial 
Power Sustainable 
Power Sustainable China  
Power Sustainable Energy 
Power Sustainable Lios 
Prudential 
PSEIP 

 
Putnam 
Sagard  
Sagard Credit I 
Sagard Credit II 
Sagard Healthcare 
Sagard Holdings Management  

or SHMI 
Sanoptis  
SGS 
Sienna 
SIX 
SPEC 
TotalEnergies 
TSX 
Umicore 
USPF 
Wealthsimple 
Webhelp 
XETR 

Northleaf Capital Group Ltd.
New York Stock Exchange  
Ontex Group NV 
Oslo Stock Exchange 
PanAgora Asset Management, Inc. 
Pargesa Holding SA or Pargesa SA 
Parjointco SA 
Parques Reunidos Servicios Centrales, S.A. 
Peak Achievement Athletics Inc. 
Pernod Ricard SA 
Personal Capital Corporation 
Portage Fintech Acquisition Corporation 
Portag3 Ventures Limited Partnership 
Portag3 Ventures II Limited Partnership 
Portage Ventures III Limited Partnership 
Potentia Renewables Inc. 
Power Financial Corporation 
Power Sustainable Capital Inc. 
Power Sustainable Investment Management Inc. 
Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure  
Power Sustainable Lios Inc.  
Prudential Financial, Inc. 
Power Sustainable Energy  

Infrastructure Partnership 
Putnam Investments, LLC 
Sagard Holdings Inc. 
Sagard Credit Partners, LP 
Sagard Credit Partners II, LP 
Sagard Healthcare Royalty Partners, LP 
Sagard Holdings Management Inc. 
 
Sanoptis AG  
SGS SA  
Sienna Capital and Sienna Investment Managers 
Swiss Stock Exchange 
Sagard Private Equity Canada LP 
TotalEnergies SA 
Toronto Stock Exchange 
Umicore, NV/SA 
GWL U.S. Property Fund L.P. 
Wealthsimple Financial Corp. 
Webhelp Group 
XETRA Stock Exchange 
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Overview 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA 
Incorporated in 1925, Power Corporation (TSX: POW; POW.PR.E) is an international management and holding company that 
focuses on financial services in North America, Europe and Asia. Its core holdings are leading insurance, retirement, wealth 
management and investment businesses, including a portfolio of alternative asset investment platforms. Through Power 
Financial, it controls Lifeco and IGM and in recent years has implemented an active fintech strategy. It also holds, jointly with 
the Frère Group of Belgium, a controlling interest in GBL. 

Power Corporation conducts its investment activities, built upon a network of deep and long-standing relationships, to 
provide superior returns. Investment activities include investments in alternative asset managers and investment funds, 
including Sagard and Power Sustainable, and interests in China resulting from more than 40 years of engagement. The 
Corporation aims to act like an owner with a long-term perspective and a strategic vision anchored in strong core values.  

Power Corporation adheres to four overriding investing principles to pursue its objective of achieving sustainable long-term 
value creation in the best interests of the Corporation: 

Long-term perspective 
Leading franchises with attractive growth profiles 
Strong governance oversight 
Prudent approach to risk management 

Power Corporation’s value creation strategy is focused on financial services, designed to generate long-term sustainable 
growth in earnings and dividends, and is based upon three key levers:  

Operating company organic levers: organic growth strategies at the publicly traded operating companies; 
Operating company inorganic levers: deployment and redeployment of capital; and 
Holding company levers: actions that can be taken at the Corporation and between the Corporation and its publicly 
traded operating companies and investments. 

Power Corporation, through its alternative asset investment platforms, is developing alternative asset management 
businesses which build upon the investment capabilities that have been created over many years in several high-growth 
asset classes. The alternative asset investment platforms are focused on growing their asset management businesses 
through raising third-party capital and the Corporation intends to continue to provide seed capital to the different 
investment products managed by each of the alternative asset investment platforms: 

Sagard, since its inception in 2005, has evolved into a multi-strategy alternative asset manager. Sagard looks to 
generate attractive returns by matching investment opportunities with flexible capital solutions and pairing 
entrepreneurs with teams that have deep industry knowledge. Sagard invests across five asset classes: private credit, 
healthcare royalties, venture capital, private equity and real estate, and also offers wealth management services. 
Sagard also sponsored a special purpose acquisition company, which is listed on the Nasdaq exchange. 
Power Sustainable is a sustainability-led global alternative asset manager with a long-term investment approach. 
Power Sustainable aims to create long-term value by actively investing in entrepreneurial management teams, 
companies and projects with sustainable business models. Power Sustainable currently manages three main platforms: 

Power Sustainable China selects a high-conviction portfolio based on fundamental research and takes an active 
approach to investing in China’s public equity markets, selecting companies and business models that have 
significant alignment with the following goals: innovation and technology, decarbonization and quality growth.  
Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure invests in the development, construction, and operation of renewable 
energy infrastructure assets across North America. 
Power Sustainable Lios will invest in mid-market companies across the food value chain in North America that 
support the sustainability transformation occurring within the food system. 

The alternative asset investment platforms also have significant influence and controlling interests in several standalone 
businesses, which are managed to create and realize value over time. 

The Corporation’s multi-generational relationships have been foundational in creating investment opportunities in China. 
ChinaAMC, one of the largest asset managers in China, diversifies the Corporation’s interests by creating strategic 
opportunities with other asset managers within the Power group of companies. 
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ORGANIZATION OF THE MD&A 
The Corporation’s MD&A consists of three parts:  

Part A – Power Corporation, presented on a consolidated and non-consolidated basis;  
Part B – Lifeco’s interim MD&A, as prepared and disclosed by Lifeco in accordance with applicable securities  
legislation, and which is also available either directly from SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or from Lifeco’s website 
(www.greatwestlifeco.com); 
Part C – IGM’s interim MD&A, as prepared and disclosed by IGM in accordance with applicable securities legislation, 
and which is also available either directly from SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or from IGM’s website 
(www.igmfinancial.com).  

Lifeco (TSX: GWO) and IGM (TSX: IGM) are public companies listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange. GBL is a public  
company listed on the Brussels Stock Exchange (EBR: GBLB). Market capitalizations reported in the following sections are 
at June 30, 2022 (refer to the section “Other Measures”). 

The following chart reflects the economic interests held by the Corporation at June 30, 2022, which include the operating 
subsidiaries (Lifeco and IGM) and its interest in GBL, held through Power Financial, interests held through the Corporation’s 
alternative asset investment platforms, and an interest in ChinaAMC.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

In bold: Publicly listed holdings 

[ ]  Lifeco, through Canada Life, holds a 3.9% interest in IGM, and IGM holds a 4.0% interest in Lifeco. 
[ ] IGM also holds a 13.9% interest in ChinaAMC. On January 5, 2022, the Corporation and IGM entered into an agreement under which the interest in ChinaAMC will 

be consolidated at IGM. In a separate agreement, IGM will sell approximately 15.2 million common shares of Lifeco, representing a 1. % interest in Lifeco, to Power 
Financial. Refer to the section “ChinaAMC”. 

[ ] Represents a 49.9% non-controlling voting interest. The interest in Northleaf is held through an acquisition vehicle in which IGM holds an 0% equity interest and 
Lifeco holds a 20% equity interest. 

[ ] Held through Parjointco, a jointly controlled corporation (50%). Parjointco has a 44.3% voting interest in GBL. Refer to the section “GBL” for a list of investments. 
[ ] Includes a controlling interest in Portage I, Portage II, Portage III and Wealthsimple, held through Power Financial, Lifeco and IGM. 
[6] Refer to the section “Alternative Asset Investment Platforms” for a list of investments held by each investment platform. 
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PUBLICLY TRADED OPERATING COMPANIES 
The Corporation holds controlling interests, through Power Financial, in Lifeco and IGM. It also has significant holdings in a 
portfolio of European-based global companies through its investment in GBL. 

Lifeco 
Great-West Lifeco Inc. (TSX: GWO), market capitalization of $29.3 billion at June 30, 2022, is an international financial services 
holding company with interests in life insurance, health insurance, retirement and investment services, asset management 
and reinsurance businesses. Lifeco operates in Canada, the United States and Europe under the brands Canada Life, 
Empower, Putnam Investments and Irish Life. For reporting purposes, Lifeco has five reportable segments: Canada, the 
United States, Europe, Capital and Risk Solutions, and Corporate, which reflect geographic lines as well as the management 
and corporate structure of the companies. 

The Canada segment is operated by Canada Life primarily through the Individual Customer and Group Customer business 
units. Through the Individual Customer business unit, Lifeco provides life, disability and critical illness insurance products as 
well as wealth savings and income products to individual clients. Through the Group Customer business unit, Lifeco provides 
life, accidental death and dismemberment, disability, critical illness, health and dental protection, creditor insurance as well 
as retirement savings and income and annuity products and other specialty products to group clients in Canada. 

The United States segment operates two primary business units, Financial Services and Asset Management. The Financial 
Services business unit, and specifically the Empower brand, provides an array of financial security products, including 
employer-sponsored defined contribution plans, administrative and record-keeping services, individual retirement 
accounts, fund management as well as investment and advisory services. Financial Services also includes a retained block 
of life insurance, predominately participating policies, which are now administered by Protective Life Insurance Company 
(Protective Life), as well as a closed retrocession block of life insurance. Empower’s products and services are marketed 
nationwide through its sales force, brokers, consultants, advisors, third-party administrators and financial institutions. The 
Asset Management business unit, and specifically the Putnam brand, provides investment management services and 
related administrative functions and distribution services through a broad range of investment products, including the 
Putnam funds, its own family of mutual funds which are offered to individual and institutional investors. PanAgora, a Putnam 
subsidiary, offers a broad range of investment solutions using sophisticated quantitative techniques. 

As a result of the acquisition of Personal Capital in the third quarter of 2020, Lifeco expects to incur total integration expenses 
of US$57 million pre-tax, of which US$35 million pre-tax have been incurred as of June 30, 2022. The integration is expected 
to be completed in the second half of 2022.  

At June 30, 2022, US$  million of pre-tax run-rate cost synergies have been achieved related to Lifeco’s acquisition of 
MassMutual’s retirement services business on December 31, 2020. Lifeco remains on track to achieve run-rate cost synergies 
of US$1 0 million pre-tax at the end of integration in 2022 and to achieve run-rate revenue synergies of US$30 million in 
2023 and continue to grow beyond 2023. Lifeco expects to incur restructuring and integration expenses of US$125 million 
pre-tax related to the MassMutual transaction, of which US$91 million pre-tax have been incurred at June 30, 2022. The 
integration remains on track to be completed in the second half of 2022. 

On April 1, 2022, Empower completed the previously announced acquisition of the full-service retirement business of 
Prudential. With the completion of the acquisition, Empower’s reach in the U.S. has expanded to more than 17.4 million 
retirement plan participants and assets under administration to US$1.3 trillion on behalf of approximately 71,000 workplace 
savings plans as of June 30, 2022. Lifeco funded the total transaction value of US$3,4 0 million with US$1,193 million of 
Limited Recourse Capital Notes (LRCN Series 1) and US$ 23 million of short-term debt, in addition to its existing resources. 

Lifeco anticipates realizing cost synergies through the migration of Prudential’s retirement services business onto Empower’s 
record-keeping platform. Estimated run-rate cost synergies are expected to be US$1 0 million and to be phased in  
over 24 months primarily when systems migrations are completed. At June 30, 2022, US$25 million of pre-tax run-rate cost 
synergies have been achieved. Revenue synergies of US$20 million are expected by Lifeco on a run-rate basis by the end of 
2024 and Lifeco expects them to grow to US$50 million by 202 . Lifeco expects to incur one-time integration and 
restructuring expenses of US$170 million pre-tax, of which US$35 million pre-tax have been incurred at June 30, 2022. Lifeco 
expects the integration to be completed in the first half of 2024. 
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The Europe segment is comprised of three distinct business units serving customers in the United Kingdom (U.K.), Ireland 
and Germany. The U.K. and Germany business units operate under the Canada Life brand and the Ireland business unit 
operates under the Irish Life brand. The core products offered by the U.K. business unit are bulk and individual payout 
annuities, equity-release mortgages, investments (including life bonds, retirement drawdown and pension), individual 
protection and group insurance. The core products offered by the Ireland business unit are savings and investments, 
individual and group life insurance, health insurance and pension products. Irish Life Investment Managers (ILIM) is one of 
Lifeco’s fund management operations in Ireland. In addition to managing assets on behalf of companies in the Lifeco group, 
ILIM also manages assets for a wide range of institutional clients across Europe and North America. The core products offered 
by the Germany business unit are individual and group pensions and life insurance products. 

The Capital and Risk Solutions segment includes the operating results of the Reinsurance business unit which operates 
primarily in the U.S., Barbados, Bermuda and Ireland. 

At June 30, 2022, Power Financial and IGM held interests of . % and 4.0%, respectively, in Lifeco’s common shares, 
representing approximately 5% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Lifeco voting shares. The Insurance 
Companies Act limits voting rights in life insurance companies to 5%. On January 5, 2022, the Corporation and IGM entered 
into an agreement under which IGM will sell approximately 15.2 million common shares of Lifeco, representing a 1. % 
interest in Lifeco, to Power Financial. Refer to the section “ChinaAMC”. 

See Part B of this MD&A for additional information on Lifeco. 

IGM Financial 
IGM Financial Inc. (TSX: IGM), market capitalization of $ .2 billion at June 30, 2022, is a leading wealth and asset management 
company supporting financial advisors and the clients they serve in Canada, and institutional investors throughout North 
America, Europe and Asia. IGM’s principal operating subsidiaries are wealth manager IG Wealth Management and asset 
manager Mackenzie Investments and IGM also holds a number of strategic investments that provide benefits to the 
operating subsidiaries while furthering IGM’s growth prospects. IGM has three reportable segments: Wealth Management, 
Asset Management, and Strategic Investments and Other. 

The Wealth Management segment reflects the activities of operating companies that are principally focused on providing 
financial planning and related services to Canadian households and represents the activities of IG Wealth Management and 
Investment Planning Counsel. These firms are retail distribution organizations that serve Canadian households through their 
securities dealers, mutual fund dealers and other subsidiaries licensed to distribute financial products and services. The 
Wealth Management segment provides a comprehensive planning approach through IG Wealth Management and IPC 
advisors by offering a broad range of financial products and services including a broad selection of mutual funds, managed 
portfolios, advisory accounts and unique portfolio management programs as well as insurance products and mortgage and 
banking solutions. IG Wealth Management distinguishes itself from its competition by offering comprehensive planning to 
its clients within the context of long-term relationships. Investment Planning Counsel is an independent distributor of 
financial products, services and advice in Canada. 

The Asset Management segment reflects the activities of operating companies primarily focused on providing investment 
management services, and represents the operations of Mackenzie Investments. Investment management services are 
provided to a suite of investment funds that are distributed through third-party dealers and financial advisors, and through 
institutional advisory mandates to financial institutions, pensions and other institutional investors. Mackenzie Investments is 
a diversified asset management solutions provider and provides investment management and related services with a wide 
range of investment mandates through a boutique structure and uses multiple distribution channels. Mackenzie seeks to 
be Canada’s preferred global asset management solutions provider and business partner. 

The Strategic Investments and Other segment primarily represents the key strategic investments made by IGM, including 
ChinaAMC (refer to the section “ChinaAMC”), Lifeco, Northleaf, Wealthsimple, and the Portage Ventures funds (refer to the 
section “Alternative Asset Investment Platforms”), as well as unallocated capital.  

On January 5, 2022, IGM entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 13.9% interest in ChinaAMC for cash 
consideration of $1.15 billion from the Corporation, which will increase IGM’s equity interest in ChinaAMC from 13.9% to 
27. %. To partially fund the transaction, IGM will sell approximately 15.2 million common shares of Lifeco to the Corporation 
for cash consideration of $575 million, which will reduce IGM’s equity interest in Lifeco from 4.0% to 2.4%. Refer to the 
section “ChinaAMC”. 

At June 30, 2022, Power Financial and Canada Life, a subsidiary of Lifeco, held interests of 2.2% and 3.9%, respectively, in 
IGM’s common shares. 

See Part C of this MD&A for additional information on IGM.  
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GBL 
Power Financial Europe SA, a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Financial, and the Frère Group each hold a 50% interest in 
Parjointco. At June 30, 2022, Parjointco held a 29. % indirect (44.3% of the voting rights) controlling interest in GBL, a Belgian 
holding company listed on the Brussels Stock Exchange. 

GBL (EBR: GBLB), market capitalization of €12.2 billion at June 30, 2022, is one of the largest listed holding companies in 
Europe. Focused on long-term value creation, GBL relies on a stable and supportive family shareholder base. GBL strives to 
maintain a diversified high-quality portfolio composed of global industrial and services companies, leaders in their sectors, 
in which GBL can contribute to value creation by being an active professional investor. 

At June 30, 2022, GBL’s portfolio was mainly comprised of investments in the following:  

PUBLICLY LISTED  

Imerys (EPA: NK) – mineral-based specialty solutions for 
industry 
SGS (SIX: SGSN) – inspection, verification, testing and 
certification solutions 
adidas (XETR: ADS) – design, development, production and 
distribution of sporting goods 
Pernod Ricard (EPA: RI) – wines and spirits 
Holcim (SIX: HOLN and EPA: HOLN) – construction materials 
and solutions including cement, aggregates and concrete 

Umicore (EBR: UMI) – materials technology and recycling of 
precious metals  
GEA (XETR: G1A) – supplier of equipment and project 
management for a wide range of processing industries  
primarily in the food and beverage sectors 
Ontex (EBR: ONTEX) – personal hygiene solutions provider 
MOWI (OSE: MOWI) – producer of Atlantic salmon  

 

PRIVATELY HELD  

Webhelp – business process outsourcer, specializing in 
customer experience, sales and marketing services and 
payment services 
Canyon – direct-to-consumer distributor of premium bicycles

Voodoo – developer and publisher of mobile games
Parques Reunidos – operator of regional leisure parks 

In addition, through Sienna, GBL is developing an alternative investment portfolio including private equity, debt and 
thematic funds and is expanding its activities into alternative asset management. In 2021, Sienna Investment Managers 
acquired L’Etoile Properties (now Sienna Real Estate), a pan-European real estate investment manager, marking the launch 
of Sienna Investment Managers’ third-party asset management platform. In March 2022, Sienna Investment Managers 
completed its previously announced acquisitions of a majority interest in Malakoff Humanis and Acofi Gestion, which have 
been rebranded as Sienna Gestion and Sienna Private Credit, respectively. 
On July 1, 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, GBL completed its previously announced acquisition of a majority stake in 
Sanoptis, a leading network of ophthalmology clinics across Germany and Switzerland, its first private investment in the 
healthcare sector in 2022. GBL invested €72  million of equity in Sanoptis. As part of the transaction, the incumbent 
management increased its stake in the company through a significant reinvestment. GBL and Sanoptis management plan 
to continue Sanoptis’ growth organically and through acquisitions in both Sanoptis’ current markets and in attractive new 
European countries. 
On July 22, 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, GBL completed its previously announced acquisition of a majority stake in 
Affidea, a leading European provider of healthcare diagnostic services, with 320 centres operating in 15 countries. GBL 
invested €1.0 billion of equity into the transaction alongside management of Affidea. Together with Affidea management, 
GBL will work to accelerate organic growth, external growth transactions and digital health programs. 
During the second quarter of 2022, GBL reduced its holdings in MOWI from 7.0% at the end of 2021 to 3.5% at June 30, 
2022, generating proceeds of €3  million. This sale generated a gain for GBL of €  million.  
During the first and second quarters of 2022, GBL repurchased €37  million of its own capital. In May 2022, GBL’s Board of 
Directors approved a fifth allocation of €500 million, in which GBL has started to execute in June 2022. During the second 
quarter of 2022, GBL cancelled 3.4 million of its treasury shares. 
On July 29, 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, Imerys announced that it has entered into exclusive negotiations with the 
Platinum Equity investment firm, to dispose of its High Temperature Solution Business, for an amount of approximately 
€930 million. The transaction, which is subject to the fulfillment of customary closing conditions, including the information 
and consultation of works councils and other regulatory approvals, is expected to be completed by the end of 2022. 
GBL reported a net asset value (refer to the section “Other Measures”) at June 30, 2022 of €17, 2  million, compared with 
€22,501 million at December 31, 2021. 
GBL’s financial results and other disclosures are derived from publicly disclosed information, as issued by GBL in its half-year 
report at June 30, 2022. Further information on GBL’s results is available on its website (www.gbl.be).

A 8  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A8PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A8 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TIO
N

 O
F C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

 

ALTERNATIVE ASSET INVESTMENT PLATFORMS 
Since the launch of the first Sagard fund in Europe in 2002, Power Corporation has continued to develop alternative asset 
investment platforms (investment platforms) that manage portfolios on behalf of the Corporation and third-party investors 
in several alternative asset classes in three principal geographies: Europe, North America, and China. The investment 
platforms Sagard and Power Sustainable are managed locally by experienced investment professionals who have an in-
depth knowledge of the local markets and benefit from collaboration within the Power group of companies. Power 
Corporation’s investment platforms seek to generate attractive returns for their investors by: (i) attracting experienced 
investment teams to execute on investment strategies where the investment platforms’ ecosystem gives them a competitive 
advantage; (ii) leveraging the global network created over decades by the Power group to drive the commercial success of 
their investment strategies and underlying investments; and (iii) providing flexible capital solutions to solve a range of 
business and financing needs. 

The investment platforms comprise asset management and investing activities. Earnings from asset management activities 
include income earned from management fees and carried interest, net of investment platform expenses. Earnings from 
investing activities comprise income earned on the capital invested by the Corporation (proprietary capital) in the 
investment funds managed by each platform and the share of earnings (losses) of controlled and consolidated subsidiaries 
held within the investment platforms.  

Power Corporation invests proprietary capital in the strategies of its investment platforms to support their growth and 
development as asset managers. The investment platforms’ growth strategy is focused primarily on raising third-party 
capital, and the Corporation expects that its proprietary capital will represent an increasingly smaller proportion of future 
funds. The Corporation seeks to earn attractive returns on its proprietary capital investments commensurate with the risk 
profile of the underlying investments in each strategy. Returns are expected to be realized over differing time horizons: 

Income-related strategies such as Private Credit, Healthcare Royalties and Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 
Partnership are expected to generate returns on a regular basis; and 
Capital appreciation strategies such as Private Equity, Venture Capital and Power Sustainable China are expected to 
generate returns as investments are monetized. 

Sagard 
Sagard was founded as a complement to the Corporation’s global investment activities. Today, Sagard is a multi-strategy 
alternative asset manager with professionals principally located in Canada, the U.S. and Europe. Sagard seeks to generate 
attractive returns by matching investment opportunities with flexible capital solutions and pairing entrepreneurs with teams 
that have deep industry knowledge. Sagard develops long-term partnerships and empowers the growth of its investments 
through a unique global network of portfolio companies, limited partners, advisors and other valued relationships.  

The operations of Sagard are comprised of asset management and investing activities. 

ASSET MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
At June 30, 2022, Sagard had US$13.9 billion of assets under management (US$14.0 billion at December 31, 2021), including 
unfunded commitments (refer to the section “Other Measures”), across five asset classes: private credit, healthcare royalties, 
venture capital, private equity and real estate, including US$0.9 billion through its wealth management business 
(US$1.0 billion at December 31, 2021). Assets under management includes US$147 million related to equity interests in 
standalone businesses (US$1 4 million at December 31, 2021) (refer to the section “Standalone Businesses”). 

Assets under management, excluding equity interests of standalone businesses, are as follows: 

(In billions of U.S. dollars) 
June , December ,

Funds 8. .
Separately managed agreements and co-investment vehicles .8 .
Real estate – separate accounts . .
Other [ ] . .
Assets under management . .8

Fee-bearing capital [ , ] . 8.

[ ] Includes assets managed through its wealth management business. 

[ ] Refer to the section “Other Measures”. 
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The following table summarizes the funds managed by Sagard and the Corporation’s interests in each of the funds: 

June ,   Interest held Manager compensation

(in millions; except as  
otherwise noted) Currency Vintage 

Capital 
commitment

Power 
Corporation

Associated 
companies [ ] Third parties Fees [ ] 

Carried 
interest

  ($) (%) (%) (%) (%)   (%)

Private Credit     

Sagard Credit I  US$ 8. . 8 . .   Invested capital .

Sagard Credit II  US$ , 6 . . . .   Invested capital .

Healthcare Royalties  
 

 
Sagard Healthcare  US$ 6 . . 8 . .   Committed capital .

Venture Capital  
 

 
Portage I [ , ] C$ 6 8. 6 . .   Invested capital .

Portage II [3, 5] C$ 8 . 6.8 .8 .   Invested capital .

Portage III  US$ 6 . . 8 . .   Committed capital .

Private Equity   
 

 
Sagard Europe II [5] € 6 8 . 8. . .   Invested capital .

Sagard Europe 3 [ ] € . 6. . .   Invested capital .

Sagard Europe 4  € 8 . 6. . .   Committed capital .

Sagard NewGen [6] € 6 .6 . 6. .   Committed capital .

Sagard Private Equity 
Canada [ ] C$ 6 .8 .6 8 .6 .  

 
Committed capital .

Real Estate   
 

 
USPF [ ] US$ , 8 .8 . . . 8  Net asset value

[ ] Associated companies includes commitments from management as well as commitments from Lifeco (US$50 million in Sagard Credit Partners II, $33 million 
in Portage II, US$59 million in Portage III, $50 million in SPEC, €50 million in Sagard Europe 4, and US$25  million in USPF), IGM ($33 million in Portage II 
and US$2  million in Portage III), Pargesa (€33 million in Sagard Europe II), and GBL (€102 million in Sagard Europe II, €192 million in Sagard Europe 3, 
€150 million in Sagard Europe 4 and €50 million in Sagard NewGen). Lifeco and IGM have invested $2  million and $255 million, respectively, in Portage I. 

[ ] Represents the base management fees of each fund. 

[ ] Includes an interest in Portage I and Portage II of 3 .0% and 7.7%, respectively, held through Power Financial. 

[ ] Includes investments held by Portage I, Power Financial and IGM, through limited partnerships controlled by Power Financial, in Wealthsimple. 

[ ] During the investment period, management fees were based on committed capital. Since the close of the investment period, management fees are based 
on invested capital, which may include a reserve for follow-on investments. 

[6] Fundraising activities continue for Sagard NewGen and SPEC. 

[ ] USPF is managed by EverWest through a management service agreement. USPF is an open-end real estate fund and generally invests all committed capital; 
as such the capital commitment of the fund is representative of the net asset value (refer to the section “Other Measures”). 
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The following table summarizes the activities of each of the funds managed by Sagard: 

June ,   Commitment

(in millions; except as otherwise noted) Currency Total funded Unfunded Unfunded 
Distributions 

to date [ ] NAV [ ]

  ($) ($) (%) ($) ($)

Private Credit   
Sagard Credit I [ ] US$ 6 6. 8
Sagard Credit II  US$ , 8 8 .8 6

Healthcare Royalties  
Sagard Healthcare [ ]  US$ .

Venture Capital  
Portage I [ ] C$ 6 ,
Portage II  C$ 6 . 8 8
Portage III  US$ 8 6.

Private Equity   
Sagard Europe II [ ] € 6 . , 6 6
Sagard Europe 3  € 66 68 . 8
Sagard Europe 4  € 8 .
Sagard NewGen  € 8 8. 6
Sagard Private Equity Canada C$ 6 .

[ ]  Excludes distributions which have been recalled by the fund for reinvestment, as well as distributions made by the fund due to rebalancing from increases 
in fund size.  

[ ] Net asset value (NAV) of the fund represents the fair value of investments held within the fund, net of any liabilities, and includes the controlled and 
consolidated investments held through the fund presented at fair value. Refer to the section “Adjusted Net Asset Value” for a description of the Corporation’s 
fair value adjustments to controlled and consolidated investments. 

[ ] Total funded commitment represents the net cash funded for portfolio investments and fund expenses since inception, excluding amounts that have been 
recalled by the fund. The unfunded commitment of Sagard Credit I includes amounts distributed of $272 million which are recallable by the fund. 

[ ] Includes investments held by Portage I, Power Financial and IGM, through limited partnerships controlled by Power Financial, in Wealthsimple, which 
represents a fair value of $0.9 billion at June 30, 2022 ($2.1 billion at December 31, 2021).  

[ ] On April 21, 2022, Sagard Europe II disposed of its last investment. 

Private Credit  
Sagard Credit Partners had assets under management of US$1.  billion, including unfunded commitments, at 
June 30, 2022 (US$1.9 billion at December 31, 2021).  
Sagard Credit I, a fund launched in 2017, provides credit capital directly to public and private middle-market 
companies across the U.S. and Canada. Sagard Credit I has total capital commitments of US$557 million, of which 
Sagard has committed US$100 million. Sagard Credit I closed its investment period in December 2021. 
Sagard Credit II is a successor fund to Sagard Credit I, deploying the same strategy, and was launched in 2020. At 
June 30, 2022, Sagard Credit II had commitments totalling US$1,1 7 million, of which Sagard and Lifeco have each 
committed US$50 million.  
Sagard also manages, through a separately managed agreement with Lifeco, an additional investment of up to 
US$200 million.  
In October 2021, Sagard Credit Partners announced the launch of a new senior loans fund, Sagard Senior Loan 
Partners, which will focus on first-lien lending to non-sponsor-owned North American companies with $50 million or 
less in EBITDA. Sagard commenced external fundraising efforts in the first quarter of 2022.  

Healthcare Royalties  
Sagard Healthcare Partners had assets under management of US$90  million, including unfunded commitments 
and assets managed on behalf of a co-investor, at June 30, 2022 (US$ 23 million at December 31, 2021). Sagard 
Healthcare had total capital commitments of US$72  million, of which Sagard has committed US$75 million. Sagard 
Healthcare, a fund launched in 2019, invests in the life sciences sector with a focus on investments in approved and 
commercialized biopharmaceuticals, diagnostics, and medical devices that are protected by strong intellectual 
property. Sagard Healthcare invests in various structures, including traditional healthcare royalties, royalty 
securitizations and royalty-related credit.  
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Venture Capital (Fintech Investments)   
Portage Ventures, the venture capital arm of Sagard, had assets under management of US$2.2 billion (C$2.  billion) 
at June 30, 2022 (US$3.3 billion (C$4.2 billion) at December 31, 2021), including unfunded commitments and an 
investment in Wealthsimple, a consolidated subsidiary. The Corporation, through investments held by Power Financial, 
together with Lifeco, IGM and Sagard, are anchor investors in the Portage I, Portage II and Portage III funds. 
Portage Ventures is a global fintech investor that aims to support the world’s most innovative financial technology 
companies through their growth evolution. Its global focus enables the leveraging of market insights from one region 
to another. Through its funds, Portage Ventures has invested in more than 0 fintech companies and investment funds.  
Portage I held investments of $127 million at June 30, 2022 ($1 4 million at December 31, 2021), excluding the 
investment in Wealthsimple, a consolidated subsidiary discussed below.  
Portage II had total capital commitments of $427 million at June 30, 2022, of which Sagard has committed 
$20 million and Power Financial, Lifeco and IGM have each committed $33 million, for a total of $119 million. At 
June 30, 2022, the fair value of Portage II’s investment portfolio was $ 13 million ($ 74 million at December 31, 2021). 
Portage III, Portage Ventures’ third fintech venture fund is focused on early-stage investments in the global financial 
technology sector. At June 30, 2022, total capital commitments amounted to US$ 55 million, of which Sagard 
committed US$1  million and Lifeco and IGM have committed US$59 million and US$2  million, respectively. At 
June 30, 2022, the fair value of Portage III’s investment portfolio was $194 million (US$150 million), ($137 million 
(US$10  million) at December 31, 2021). 
In July 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, Portage Ventures announced the launch of a late-stage fintech-focused fund, 
Portage Capital Solutions, which will focus on structured opportunities in fintech and financial services companies 
globally and target investments over $50 million. Portage Ventures will commence fundraising efforts in the second 
half of 2022. 

Private Equity  

S A G A R D  E U R O P E  
Sagard, through its subsidiary Sagard SAS, a French management company headquartered in Paris, had assets under 
management of US$2.1 billion (€2.0 billion), including unfunded commitments, at June 30, 2022 (US$2.3 billion 
(€2.0 billion) at December 31, 2021). Sagard SAS manages investment funds dedicated to investing in small and 
middle market opportunities focused on transformational growth companies in Europe. Sagard SAS currently has 
four private equity funds including Sagard Europe II, Sagard Europe 3, Sagard Europe 4 and Sagard NewGen.  
Sagard Europe 3, a fund launched in 2013, had total committed capital of €729 million at June 30, 2022. 
In March 2022, Sagard SAS established a special purpose co-investment vehicle, Sagard Minority Extended 
Participation Fund 1 S.L.P. (Sagard MEP). At June 30, 2022, Sagard MEP has total commitments of €207 million and is 
a continuation fund which has invested in certain portfolio companies, alongside new financial investors, formerly 
held by Sagard 3.  
Sagard Europe 4, a fund launched in 2020, had total committed capital of €7 1 million at June 30, 2022, of which the 
Corporation and Lifeco have committed an amount of €150 million and €50 million, respectively.  
Sagard NewGen, a fund launched in 2020, is a European small cap fund focused on the healthcare and technology 
sectors; it invests in majority and minority holdings with deal sizes typically between €10 million and €50 million. 
Sagard NewGen seeks to invest in companies aiming to become leaders in their respective market that share a 
commitment to innovation and sustainability. At June 30, 2022, Sagard NewGen had total committed capital of 
€1 1 million, of which the Corporation has committed an amount of € 0 million. At June 30, 2022, the fair value of 
Sagard NewGen’s investment portfolio, excluding an investment in a controlled subsidiary, was $1 0 million 
(€133 million), ($139 million (€97 million) at December 31, 2021). 
In July 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, Sagard NewGen completed an additional close, raising capital of €25 million. 
Total commitments of the fund increased to €1  million.   
Sagard SAS continues its fundraising activities for Sagard NewGen. 

C A N A D I A N  P R I V A T E  E Q U I T Y  
In January 2021, Sagard announced the launch of its Canadian Private Equity platform, SPEC, a strategy focused on 
Canadian mid-market opportunities to help companies and their management teams accelerate their growth 
trajectory. At June 30, 2022, SPEC had total capital commitments of $39  million, of which Sagard and Lifeco have 
committed $15 million and $50 million, respectively. At June 30, 2022, the fair value of investments held by SPEC was 
$40 million ($25 million at December 31, 2021). 
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Real Estate  
In November 2021, Sagard completed the acquisition of EverWest, a vertically integrated, full-service real estate 
investment advisor with capabilities in investment management, development, and property management. EverWest 
is based in Denver, Colorado and has four regional investment offices as well as four additional property management 
offices across the United States. EverWest manages assets with a fair value at June 30, 2022 of US$5.5 billion 
(US$4.3 billion at December 31, 2021), representing more than 110 properties. 
EverWest offers a variety of investment strategies including separate accounts and funds. EverWest manages, through 
its separate account segment, real estate assets with a fair value at June 30, 2022 of US$3.  billion, which includes 
US$1.2 billion of assets managed on behalf of Lifeco (US$2.9 billion and US$ 00 million, respectively, at December 31, 
2021). EverWest’s flagship fund, USPF, is a core open-end real estate investment fund, and is included in the NCREIF 
Fund Index – Open-End Diversified Core Equity Index (NFI-ODCE). At June 30, 2022, USPF managed assets with a fair 
value of US$1.  billion (US$1.4 billion at December 31, 2021).  

Wealth Management  
Sagard holds a 4.2% controlling interest in Grayhawk, a registered portfolio manager, investment manager and 
exempt market dealer for high-net-worth Canadian families. Grayhawk had $1.2 billion in assets under management 
at June 30, 2022 ($1.3 billion at December 31, 2021).  

Portage Fintech Acquisition Corporation  
In the second quarter of 2021, Sagard launched Portage Fintech Acquisition Corporation (PFTA), a newly organized 
U.S. “blank check company” sponsored by PFTA I LP, an affiliate of Sagard. On July 21, 2021, PFTA successfully 
completed an initial public offering of 25.9 million units at a price of US$10.00 per unit, raising gross proceeds of 
US$259 million, including the exercise of the over-allotment option granted to underwriters of the offering. Since 
July 21, 2021, the units have been listed on the Nasdaq exchange and trade under the ticker symbol “PFTAU”. Each 
unit consists of one Class A ordinary share of PFTA and one-third of one redeemable warrant. The offering closed on 
July 23, 2021 and the over-allotment was completed on August 5, 2021. 
Sagard, through PFTA I LP, holds a % economic interest in PFTA through Class B shares and private warrants. Sagard 
has determined that it has significant influence over PFTA through PFTA I LP, and accounts for its interest as an 
associate using the equity method.  
PFTA intends to focus on an acquisition opportunity in industries that complement the platform’s industry knowledge 
and capitalize on its ability to source and acquire a business in the fintech or financial services ecosystem.   
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
The Corporation holds the following investments in funds, including the investments held through Power Financial, which 
are managed by Sagard:  
 June ,  December ,

 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Investments
to date [ ]

Share of 
distributions

to date [ ]
Fair value of 

the investment
Investments 

to date [ ] 

Share of 
distributions 

to date [ ]
Fair value of 

the investment

Private Credit      
Sagard Credit I  8   
Sagard Credit II 6   

Healthcare Royalties   
Sagard Healthcare  86   

Venture Capital   
Portage I [ ] 88 8  8
Portage II  8   
Portage III    

Private Equity    
Sagard Europe II [ ] 6   8
Sagard Europe 3    6 6
Sagard Europe 4  6 6   6
Sagard NewGen  8   
Sagard Canadian Private Equity   

Real Estate   
USPF   

[ ] Includes distributions which have been recalled by the fund and distributions due to rebalancing. 
[ ] Includes investment in the controlled and consolidated subsidiary, Wealthsimple, at fair value. 
[ ] In the second quarter, Sagard Europe II completed the sale of its last investment, and the Corporation received its share of proceeds of $41 million (€30 million) 

which excludes a deferred payment as part of the sale agreement. 

Fintech Investments  
Fintech investments are comprised of the Corporation’s investments, primarily held through Power Financial, in the 
Portage I, Portage II and Portage III funds and Wealthsimple. 

W E A L T H S I M P L E   
At June 30, 2022, Portage I, Power Financial and IGM collectively held, through a limited partnership controlled by Power 
Financial, an undiluted equity interest in Wealthsimple of 54.5% (54. % at December 31, 2021), representing a voting interest 
of 5 .5% and a fully diluted equity interest of 42.5%. Wealthsimple is one of Canada’s leading financial technology 
companies, and operates one of the country’s largest and fastest-growing digital investing platforms.  

Wealthsimple offers a suite of investment and savings products, which include Wealthsimple Cash, Wealthsimple Crypto, 
Wealthsimple Invest, Wealthsimple Save, Wealthsimple Trade and Wealthsimple Work. At June 30, 2022, Wealthsimple had 
1.7 million clients, excluding tax clients, across the Canadian market with assets under administration of $1 .9 billion, 
compared with $14.9 billion (excluding the assets under administration of U.S. and U.K. clients) at June 30, 2021, representing 
a year-over-year growth of 14%.  

In the first quarter of 2022, Wealthsimple completed the sale of its U.K. book of business and the transfer of the U.K.-based 
customer accounts. This disposal is in line with Wealthsimple’s strategy to focus on the Canadian market. 

The fair value of the Power group’s interest in Wealthsimple was $0.9 billion at June 30, 2022, compared with a fair value of 
$2.1 billion at December 31, 2021. The fair value of the Power group’s interest decreased in the first and second quarters of 
2022 by $0.4 billion and $0.  billion, respectively. The change in fair value is consistent with the continued decline in stock 
markets and public market peer valuations, and Wealthsimple focusing on its core business lines and revising revenue 
expectations. The fair value of the Corporation’s 15.9% equity interest in Wealthsimple, including its indirect interest held 
through Portage I, on a fully diluted basis, was $333 million at June 30, 2022 ($79  million at December 31, 2021). 

At June 30, 2022, the Power group had invested $315 million in Wealthsimple (same as at December 31, 2021). 
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Power Sustainable  
Power Sustainable is a pure-play sustainable investment manager with offices in Canada, China, and the U.S. Power 
Sustainable invests in companies and projects that contribute to decarbonization, social progress and quality growth which 
are priorities shared by its global network of clients, asset owners, partners and employees. Power Sustainable is currently 
comprised of three platforms: Power Sustainable China, Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure and Power Sustainable Lios. 

ASSET MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
At June 30, 2022, Power Sustainable had $3.5 billion of assets under management ($4.2 billion at December 31, 2021), 
including unfunded commitments, of which $0.  billion relates to equity interests in standalone businesses ($1.3 billion at 
December 31, 2021) (refer to the section “Standalone Businesses”). Assets under management reflects the fair value of assets, 
net of liabilities and project debt, and includes unfunded commitments. 

Assets under management, excluding equity interests of standalone businesses, are as follows: 

(in millions) 
June , December ,

Power Sustainable China 

Funds 6

Separate investment management agreements 6 , 6

Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 

Funds , ,

Direct Investments 6

Power Sustainable Lios 

Funds 

Assets under management , 8 ,

Fee-bearing capital [ , ] , 6 ,

[ ] Refer to the section “Other Measures”. 

[2] Includes NAV of direct investments in energy assets as of the second quarter of 2022. 

The following table summarizes the platforms managed by Power Sustainable and the Corporation’s interests in each of 
the platforms: 
June 0, 2022 Commitments Interest held

(in millions; except as otherwise noted) Currency Vintage
Total 

commitments
Total

funded
Power 

Corporation
Associated 

companies [ ] Third parties NAV
  ($) ($) (%) (%) (%) ($)

Power Sustainable China [ ] C$ , n.a. . .6 ,

Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure  

Energy Infrastructure Partnership [ , ] C$ , 8 . . . 6 8

Power Sustainable Lios [ ] C$ 8. 8 .
   

[ ]  Associated companies includes commitments from management as well as commitments from Lifeco of $150 million in PSEIP and $19 million in Power 
Sustainable Lios. 

[ ] Power Sustainable China manages open-end funds and assets on behalf of clients through separate investment management agreements; as such, the capital 
commitment is representative of the NAV. 

[ ] NAV of the fund represents the fair value of investments held within the fund, net of any liabilities and project debt, and includes the controlled and 
consolidated investments held through the fund presented at fair value. Refer to the section “Adjusted Net Asset Value” for a description of the Corporation’s 
fair value adjustments to controlled and consolidated investments. 

[ ] Excludes direct investments in energy assets, which have a net asset value of $410 million. 

[ ] Fund commitments of up to $210 million, of which $115 million is currently callable. 
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Power Sustainable China  
Power Sustainable China invests in mainland China’s public equity markets and is focused on providing returns with low 
levels of volatility. Power Sustainable China selects a high-conviction portfolio based on fundamental research and seeks to 
invest in well-led, high-quality companies that have a competitive edge versus their peers and are aligned with sustainable, 
long-term trends. 

Power Sustainable China manages China-based equity investment funds and holds a Private Fund Manager (PFM) licence 
for domestic Chinese investors. At June 30, 2022, Power Sustainable China had $1.1 billion of assets under management 
($1.4 billion at December 31, 2021), of which $0.3 billion of assets under management are on behalf of third-party investors 
($0.4 billion at December 31, 2021). Power Sustainable China continues fundraising activities across all investment vehicles. 
Power Sustainable China also manages the Corporation’s capital which is invested in mainland China’s public equity 
markets through a Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (QFII) licence as well as through the Hong Kong Stock Connect 
program.  

Power Sustainable China earns management fees ranging between 0.75% to 1.50% which are charged on the net asset 
value of funds and investments managed, as well as fees associated with meeting investor objectives on an absolute or 
relative, to the MSCI China Index, basis of 15% to 20%. 

Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure  
At June 30, 2022, Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure (Power Sustainable Energy) had $1,544 million of assets under 
management ($1,592 million at December 31, 2021), including unfunded commitments and direct energy infrastructure 
investments, and operated a leading North American-focused renewable energy platform with 1.7 GW of utility-scale and 
distributed energy assets, including 309 MW of assets under construction, and 42 MW of assets in advanced development 
projects. Through its wholly owned operating companies, Nautilus Solar and Potentia Renewables, Power Sustainable Energy 
has a dedicated team of over 100 in-house professionals to oversee the development, construction, financing and operation 
of renewable energy assets across North America.  

Potentia Renewables: Power Sustainable holds a 100% interest in Potentia, a renewable energy generation company, 
which is a fully integrated developer, operator and manager of solar and wind energy assets, active in North America. 
Nautilus Solar: Power Sustainable holds a 100% interest in Nautilus, a company headquartered in New Jersey, U.S. that 
acquires, develops, finances and manages distributed solar projects across community, municipal/utility-scale, 
commercial and industrial markets. 

Power Sustainable Energy actively manages investments through PSEIP and through direct investments. Power Sustainable 
Energy earns management fees of 0. 5% to 1.00% charged on the net asset value of PSEIP as well as a carried interest of 15%. 

P O W E R  S U S T A I N A B L E  E N E R G Y  I N F R A S T R U C T U R E  P A R T N E R S H I P   
At June 30, 2022, PSEIP had $1.1 billion of assets under management (same as at December 31, 2021), including unfunded 
commitments, throughout North America. PSEIP is a partnership with committed capital of $1.0 billion dedicated to the 
renewable energy sector and includes a commitment of $400 million from Power Sustainable and $150 million from Lifeco.  

In the first and second quarters of 2022, PSEIP invested $  million in multiple solar and wind portfolios and distributed 
$5 million. At June 30, 2022, the NAV of PSEIP was $ 1  million.  

On March 31, 2022, a wind project in construction representing approximately 200 MW, Golden South Wind Project, reached 
commercial operation. In August 2022, subsequent to quarter-end, the project was transferred from Potentia to PSEIP in 
exchange for a total consideration in cash and units in the fund of $92 million.   

D I R E C T  E N E R G Y  I N F R A S T R U C T U R E  I N V E S T M E N T S  
Power Sustainable Energy had $410 million of assets under management through direct investments in projects under 
development and in operation in North America at June 30, 2022 ($4 1 million at December 31, 2021). These direct 
investments have a combined 793 MW of solar and wind energy assets, which includes 425 MW of assets in advanced 
development projects.  

In the second quarter of 2022, Potentia disposed of its interest in a solar project, representing approximately 32 MW, in the 
Dominican Republic. The Corporation recognized a net gain on the disposition of $17 million. The revenues and net earnings 
of the project were not significant to the results of the Corporation.  

At June 30, 2022, the total assets on a consolidated basis of PSEIP and direct investments were $2.9 billion ($2.5 billion at 
December 31, 2021). 
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Power Sustainable Lios 
On March 30, 2022, Power Sustainable announced the launch of its North American agri-food private equity platform, Power 
Sustainable Lios, and its inaugural Lios Fund I. Power Sustainable Lios is a specialized agri-food private equity investment 
platform supporting the sustainability transformation occurring within our food system. Lios Fund I will invest in growth-
oriented, mid-market companies across the food value chain in North America to drive positive and sustainable change. At 
June 30, 2022, Lios Fund I had total capital commitments of up to $210 million, of which $115 million is currently callable by 
the fund and includes a commitment from Lifeco of $19 million. 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
The Corporation holds the following investments in each of the platforms managed by Power Sustainable: 

 June 0, 2022 December 1, 2021

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
Investments

to date 

Share of 
distributions

to date
Fair value of

the investment
Investments

to date

Share of 
distributions 

to date
Fair value of 

the investment

Power Sustainable China [ , ] 8 6 66 8 6

Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 

PSEIP [ ] 6

Direct investments [ ] 88 8 6
 

[ ] The fair value of the investments at June 30, 2022 includes $101 million held in cash ($227 million at December 31, 2021) and the portfolio has unrealized gains 
of $37 million (unrealized gains of $57 million at December 31, 2021). As well, the fair value of the investments excludes the Corporation’s performance fee 
payable of $21 million ($3  million at December 31, 2021). In the first quarter of 2022, the Corporation received distributions of $1  million.  

[ ] Investments to date includes $143 million invested in the Power Sustainable China platform since 2005 to fund expenses ($129 million at December 31, 2021). 

[ ] Includes the Corporation’s share of investments in controlled and consolidated subsidiaries held through PSEIP at fair value. Investments to date include 
amounts previously held through direct investments which were transferred to PSEIP in 2021. 

[ ] Includes the direct energy infrastructure investments at fair value. Investments to date include funding related to the acquisitions of Potentia and Nautilus 
and related platform expenses prior to the establishment of Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure.  

Standalone Businesses 
The Corporation also has the following equity investments in standalone businesses which are managed to create and 
realize value over time: 

SAGARD  
Peak: Sagard held a 42. % equity interest and a 50% voting interest in Peak at June 30, 2022. Peak designs, develops 
and commercializes sports equipment and apparel for ice hockey and lacrosse under iconic brands including Bauer. 
The Corporation’s investment is accounted for using the equity method. 

POWER SUSTAINABLE  
LMPG: Power Sustainable, through Power Sustainable Energy, held a controlling interest of 54.4% at June 30, 2022 
(same as at December 31, 2021) in LMPG, an internationally recognized designer, developer, and manufacturer of a 
wide range of high-performance and sustainable specification-grade LED solutions for commercial, institutional, and 
urban environments. 

Lion Electric (NYSE: LEV) (TSX: LEV): Power Sustainable, through Power Sustainable Energy, held a 35.4% equity interest 
at June 30, 2022 (same as at December 31, 2021) in Lion Electric. An innovative manufacturer of zero-emission vehicles, 
Lion Electric creates, designs and manufactures all-electric Class 5 to Class  commercial urban trucks and all-electric 
buses and minibuses for the school, paratransit and mass transit segments. Lion is a North American leader in electric 
transportation and designs, builds and assembles many of its vehicles’ components, including chassis, battery packs, 
truck cabins and bus bodies. 

Power Sustainable also holds call rights to acquire up to 2,270, 95 shares from certain existing shareholders of Lion. 
The fair value of the call rights was estimated to be nil at June 30, 2022 ($  million at December 31, 2021). In the first 
and second quarters of 2022, the Corporation recognized a loss on revaluation of the call rights of $3 million and 
$5 million, respectively, recorded in net investment income on the consolidated statement of earnings. 
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CHINAAMC 
Founded in 199  as one of the first fund management companies in China, ChinaAMC has developed and maintained its 
position among the market leaders in China’s asset management industry. ChinaAMC’s total assets under management, 
excluding subsidiary assets under management, were RMB¥1,740 billion (C$335 billion) at June 30, 2022. 

The Corporation and IGM each hold interests of 13.9% in ChinaAMC, representing a combined 27. % interest. Together they 
have significant influence and account for their respective interests as an associate using the equity method.  

On January 5, 2022, the Corporation announced its intention to consolidate the group’s interest in ChinaAMC under IGM. 
Under the agreement, the Corporation will sell its 13.9% interest to Mackenzie, a wholly owned subsidiary of IGM, for 
aggregate consideration of $1.15 billion in cash. The Corporation’s shareholders will continue to participate in ChinaAMC 
through the Corporation’s interest in IGM.  

To partially fund the transaction, IGM has agreed to sell approximately 15.2 million Lifeco common shares to Power Financial, 
for aggregate consideration of $575 million, representing a price of $37. 3 per share which is equivalent to the 5-day volume-
weighted average price of the Lifeco common shares as at the close of business on January 5, 2022 (Lifeco Share Transfer).  

The Corporation expects to return a portion of the net cash proceeds from the transaction to its shareholders, after factoring 
in the purchase of Lifeco common shares, through share repurchases over time pursuant to a normal course issuer bid. The 
transaction is expected to be accretive to the Corporation’s adjusted net asset value. 

On closing of the Lifeco Share Transfer, Power Financial will acquire an additional interest of approximately 1. %, increasing 
its total interest to approximately .2%. The Lifeco Share Transfer will not impact Power Financial’s aggregate beneficial 
ownership of Lifeco common shares, which will remain at 70. % of the issued and outstanding Lifeco common shares 
(including indirect beneficial ownership through its controlling interest in IGM). Power Financial’s economic interest will 
increase to 9.7%. Power Financial and its subsidiaries will continue to own, in the aggregate, voting securities representing 
approximately 5% of the votes attached to all voting securities of Lifeco.  

The transactions are expected to close in 2022. The closing of the sale of the ChinaAMC shares is subject to the approval of 
the China Securities Regulatory Commission and of certain other Chinese regulatory authorities. The acquisition by the 
Corporation of Lifeco’s common shares is conditional on the closing of the sale of the ChinaAMC shares. The transactions 
were reviewed and approved by the relevant related party and conduct review committees and will not have a significant 
impact on the statements of earnings and balance sheets. 

The investment in ChinaAMC leverages the group’s global experience in wealth management and distribution. The Power 
group of companies benefits from the strategic relationship with ChinaAMC which provides opportunities to work together, 
developing products and subadvisory relationships.  
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Basis of Presentation 

IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES AND PRESENTATION  
The Interim Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with International 
Accounting Standard 34  Interim Financial Reporting (IAS 34) and are presented in Canadian dollars. 

Consolidated financial statements present, as a single economic entity, the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash 
flows of the parent company and its subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements present the financial results of Power 
Corporation (parent) and its subsidiaries after the elimination of intercompany balances and transactions. 

The financial statements of the Corporation include the consolidated results of Power Financial which include the results of 
Lifeco, IGM, Wealthsimple and the Portage I, Portage II and Portage III funds, which are controlled by Power Financial.  

Power Financial’s investment in GBL is held through Parjointco. Parjointco is a holding company jointly controlled by Power 
Financial and the Frère Group, and is accounted for using the equity method.  

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter for changes in the share of 
net earnings (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). The investment is reduced by the amount of dividends received. 

The investment platforms manage and operate alternative asset investment funds in which third-party investors, the 
Corporation and associated companies can participate. The Corporation controls a fund when it is exposed, or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the fund and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the 
relevant activities of the fund.  

The following table summarizes the accounting presentation for the Corporation’s holdings: 

Control  AAccounting Method 
Earnings and Other
comprehensive Income Impairment Testing  IImpairment Reversal

Controlling interest  
in the entity  

 Consolidation Consolidated with non-
controlling interests 

Goodwill and indefinite 
life intangible assets are 
tested at least annually 
for impairment 

 Impairment of goodwill 
cannot be reversed 
Impairment of intangible 
assets is reversed if there 
is evidence of recovery  
of value 

Significant influence  
or joint control 

 Equity method  Corporation’s share of 
earnings and other 
comprehensive income 

Entire investment is 
tested for impairment  

 Reversed if there is 
evidence the investment 
has recovered its value 

Investment 
 

 Available for sale (AFS) Earnings consist of 
dividends received and 
gains or losses on 
disposals 
The investments are 
marked to market 
through other 
comprehensive income 
Earnings are reduced by 
impairment charges,  
if any 

Impairment testing is 
done at the individual 
investment level 
A significant or 
prolonged decline in 
the value of the 
investment results in an 
impairment charge 
A share price decrease 
subsequent to an 
impairment charge 
leads to a further 
impairment 

 A subsequent recovery of 
value does not result in a 
reversal 
 

  Fair value through profit 
or loss (FVPL) 

Investments are marked 
to market through 
earnings and earnings 
include dividends 
received  

n.a.  n.a. 
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At June 30, 2022, the Corporation’s main holdings were as follows:  

Holdings  
% economic 

interest Nature of investment Accounting method  

Publicly traded operating companies [ ]   

Lifeco [ ] 66.6 Controlling interest Consolidation 

IGM [ ] 6 . Controlling interest Consolidation 

GBL [ ] . Joint control Equity method  

ChinaAMC [ ] . Significant influence Equity method 

Alternative asset investment platforms  

Sagard . Controlling interest Consolidation 

SHMI [6] 8 . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Wealthsimple [ , ] .6 Controlling interest Consolidation 

Portage I [ , 8] 6 . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Portage II [ , ] . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Portage III [ ] . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Sagard Credit I 8. Investment Fair value through profit or loss

Sagard Credit II [ ] . Investment Fair value through profit or loss

Sagard Healthcare  . Investment Fair value through profit or loss

Sagard Canadian Private Equity [ ] .8 Controlling interest Consolidation 

Sagard Europe II . Investment Available for sale

Sagard Europe 4 [ ] . Investment Available for sale

Sagard NewGen .6 Controlling interest Consolidation 

Power Sustainable  . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Power Sustainable Investment Management Inc. . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Investments < . Investment Available for sale

Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 
Partnership [ ]  . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Potentia  . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Nautilus . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Standalone businesses  

Peak  .6 Joint control Equity method  

LMPG . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Lion . Significant influence Equity method 
  

[ ] Investments held by the Corporation through Power Financial. 

[ ] IGM also holds a 4.0% interest in Lifeco. 

[ ] Canada Life also holds a 3.9% interest in IGM. 

[ ] Held through Parjointco, a jointly controlled corporation (50%). Parjointco holds a controlling interest in GBL. 

[ ] IGM, through Mackenzie, also holds an interest of 13.9% in ChinaAMC. 

[6] During the second quarter of 2022, management of Sagard made an additional investment in SHMI and acquired an interest of 3.0%. At June 30, 2022, 
management of Sagard held a 9.9% interest in SHMI. Lifeco also holds a 7.0% interest in SHMI. 

[ ] Portage I and IGM also hold interests of 10. % and 30.1%, respectively, in Wealthsimple (see also the section “Wealthsimple”). 

[8] Lifeco and IGM also hold equal interests of 1 .5% in Portage I. 

[ ]  Power Financial holds a 7.7% interest, Sagard holds a 4.7% interest, and Lifeco and IGM also hold equal interests of 7.7% in Portage II. 

[ ] Lifeco and IGM also hold interests of 9.0% and 4.0%, respectively, in Portage III. 

[ ] Lifeco also holds a . % interest in Sagard Credit II. 

[ ] Lifeco also holds a 12. % interest in Sagard Canadian Private Equity. 

[ ] Lifeco also holds a .4% interest in Sagard Europe 4. 

[ ] Lifeco also holds a 15.0% interest in PSEIP. 
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At June 30, 2022, Parjointco’s main holdings were as follows:   

Holdings  
% economic

interest Nature of investment Accounting method  

GBL .8 Controlling interest Consolidation 

Publicly listed  

Imerys .6 Controlling interest Consolidation 

Pernod Ricard .6 Investment Available for sale

adidas . Investment Available for sale

SGS . Investment Available for sale

Umicore . Investment Available for sale

MOWI . Investment Available for sale

Holcim . Investment Available for sale

GEA 6. Investment Available for sale

Ontex . Investment Available for sale

Other investments < . Investment Available for sale

Privately held  

Sienna Investment Managers . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Sienna Capital [ ] . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Webhelp 6 . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Canyon . Controlling interest Consolidation 

Voodoo 6. Investment Available for sale

Parques Reunidos . Significant influence Equity method 

[ ] Sienna Capital holds a portfolio of investments in alternative assets.  

The following table summarizes the classification of the investments held by the controlled and consolidated funds 
managed by the investment platforms:  

Investment Fund  Classification of Investments held by the fund Measurement   

Portage I LP [ ] Available for sale Fair value 

Portage II LP Fair value through profit or loss Fair value 

Portage III LP Fair value through profit or loss Fair value 

Sagard NewGen [ ] Fair value through profit or loss Fair value 

Sagard Canadian Private Equity Fair value through profit or loss Fair value 

[ ] Excludes investment in Wealthsimple which is controlled and consolidated by the Corporation. 

[ ] Excludes an investment in a controlled and consolidated subsidiary. 

 

This basis of presentation should be read in conjunction with the following notes to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated 
Financial Statements:  

Basis of presentation and summary of significant accounting policies (Note 2);  
Investments (Note 5);  
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates (Note 7);  
Goodwill and intangible assets (Note 10); and 
Non-controlling interests (Note 20). 
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Results of Power Corporation  

This section presents: 

The “Consolidated Statements of Earnings in accordance with IFRS”; and 
A discussion of the contributions to Power Corporation of its operating subsidiaries (Lifeco and IGM) and GBL, which 
are held through Power Financial, and the contribution of the Corporation’s alternative and other investments and 
ChinaAMC to the net earnings and adjusted net earnings of Power Corporation.  

Adjusted net earnings is a non-IFRS financial measure. Refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial Measures” for a description 
and reconciliation of IFRS and non-IFRS financial measures. 

PRESENTATION OF HOLDING COMPANY ACTIVITIES  
The Corporation’s reportable segments include Lifeco, IGM Financial and GBL, which represent the Corporation’s 
investments in publicly traded operating companies. These reportable segments, in addition to the asset management and 
holding company activities, reflect Power Corporation’s management structure and internal financial reporting. The 
Corporation evaluates its performance based on the operating segment’s contribution to earnings. 

The holding company activities comprise the corporate activities of the Corporation and Power Financial, on a combined 
basis, and present the investment activities of the Corporation as a holding company. The investment activities of the holding 
company, including the investments in Lifeco, IGM and controlled entities within the alternative asset investment platforms, 
are presented using the equity method. The holding company activities also present the corporate assets and liabilities 
managed, including the cash and non-participating shares. The discussions included in the sections “Financial Position” and 
“Cash Flows” present the segmented balance sheet and cash flow statement of the holding company; these non-
consolidated statements are presented in Note 19 of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, and reconciliations of 
these statements are provided throughout this MD&A.. 

DEFERRAL OF IFRS 9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (IFRS 9) 
In May 2017, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which will replace 
IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts and will be applied retrospectively. In June 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 17, which 
include an amendment to the effective date of the standard to January 1, 2023. In addition, the IASB extended to January 1, 
2023 the exemption for insurers to apply the financial instruments standard, IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, keeping the 
alignment of the effective dates for IFRS 9 and IFRS 17. 

IGM, a subsidiary, and GBL, held through Parjointco, a jointly controlled corporation, do not qualify for the exemption and 
adopted IFRS 9 on January 1, 201 . The Corporation, in accordance with the amendment of IFRS 4 to defer the adoption of 
IFRS 9, is permitted but not required to retain the accounting policies applied by an associate or a jointly controlled 
corporation which is accounted for using the equity method. The Corporation decided to continue applying accounting 
policies in accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to GBL’s results. On 
consolidation, the Corporation has adjusted the results of both IGM and GBL to be in accordance with IAS 39. Refer to the 
specific discussion included in the IGM and GBL sections “Contribution to net earnings and adjusted net earnings”. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS 
Power Corporation’s consolidated statements of earnings for the six months and three months ended June 30, 2022 are 
presented below. The Corporation’s reportable operating segments include Lifeco, IGM and GBL. These tables reflect the 
contributions to the net earnings attributable to Power Corporation’s participating shareholders from its reportable 
operating segments and the Corporation’s alternative and other investments including its investment platforms, which 
include controlled and consolidated investment funds and investments, and its investment in ChinaAMC.  

Consolidated net earnings – Six months ended 

 

Lifeco IGM [ ] GBL [ ]

Investment 
Platforms and 

Other [ ]
Holding 

company
Effect of

consolidation [ ] 
Power Corporation 

Consolidated net earnings

  
June , June ,

Revenues   

Total net premiums , 6 ( ) , ,8

Net investment income (loss) ( ,8 ) ( ) ( )  ( , 8 ) , 6

Fee income  ,  , (86) , ,

Other revenues    

Total revenues 8, 86 , 8 (8 ) , ,

Expenses   

Total paid or credited to 
policyholders , 6   , 6 ,

Commissions  ,  66 ( ) , ,
Operating and administrative 

expenses  , 6 (6 ) , 6 , 6

Financing charges 86 6  8

Total expenses 6, 6 , 6 8 (8 ) 8, 86 , 6
Earnings before investments in 

jointly controlled corporations 
and associates, and income 
taxes ,66  ( 8 ) (6 ) (6) ,8 ,

Share of earnings (losses) of 
investments in jointly controlled 
corporations and associates   8 ( ) 8 ( 8) 

Earnings before income taxes  ,6  ( ) ( ) ( ) (8 ) , , 8

Income taxes   8

Net earnings , 8  8 ( ) ( ) ( ) (8 ) , 6 ,

Attributable to   

Non-controlling interests  6  ( ) 6 (8 ) 6 8

Non-participating shareholders   6  6 6

Participating shareholders of 
Power Corporation [ ] 86 8 ( ) ( 6) ( )  , ,

 , 8  8 ( ) ( ) ( ) (8 ) , 6 ,

[ ] Results reported by IGM are in accordance with IFRS 9. As the Corporation has not adopted IFRS 9, adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 have been 
recognized on consolidation by the Corporation and included in “Effect of consolidation”.  

[ ] Results reported by GBL are in accordance with IFRS . The Corporation’s share of earnings of GBL includes adjustments in accordance with IAS . 

[ ] “Investment Platforms and Other” is comprised of the Corporation’s alternative and other investments including its investment platforms, which include 
consolidated investment funds, standalone businesses, as well as the investment activities held through Power Financial including Portage I, Portage II and 
Wealthsimple. 

[ ] The results presented for Lifeco and IGM are as reported by each. The Effect of consolidation includes the elimination of intercompany transactions, the 
application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments under common control, and reflects adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 for IGM. The 
contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and Investment Platforms and Other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the Corporation includes 
the effect of consolidation. 

 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022  A 23

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A23PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A23 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

 

Consolidated net earnings – Three months ended 

 

Lifeco IGM [ ] GBL [ ]

Investment 
Platforms 

and Other [ ]
Holding 

company
Effect of 

consolidation [ ]
Power Corporation 

Consolidated net earnings

  
June , 

 
March ,

 
June ,

Revenues     
Total net premiums 6,   (6) 6,   , 6 , 6
Net investment income (loss) ( , ) ( ) (6 ) 8 ( , 86 ) (6,8 6) ,
Fee income  ,  8  68 ( ) , 8   , 6 ,6
Other revenues      
Total revenues , 6  8  6 ( ) ,   , , 8
Expenses    
Total paid or credited to 

policyholders , 6  , 6 , 6 ,
Commissions  6   ( ) 6  , 8
Operating and administrative 

expenses  ,  8  ( ) ,6  , 6 ,
Financing charges 6 8 8  
Total expenses 8,  6  ( ) ,  , 6 ,86
Earnings before investments 

in jointly controlled 
corporations and 
associates, and income 
taxes 86  ( ) ( )  , 8

Share of earnings (losses) of 
investments in jointly 
controlled corporations 
and associates    ( ) ( )  

Earnings before  
income taxes  8  6  ( ) ( ) ( 8) 68 66 ,

Income taxes   ( ) 8 6
Net earnings 6  8 ( ) ( 8) 8 ( ) 8  8 6 ,

Attributable to    
Non-controlling interests  8  6  ( ) ( )  6
Non-participating 

shareholders     
Participating shareholders 

of Power Corporation [ ] 8  ( ) ( ) ( )  8
 6  8 ( ) ( 8) 8 ( ) 8  8 6 ,

[ ] Results reported by IGM are in accordance with IFRS 9. As the Corporation has not adopted IFRS 9, adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 have been 
recognized on consolidation by the Corporation and included in “Effect of consolidation”.  

[ ] Results reported by GBL are in accordance with IFRS . The Corporation’s share of earnings of GBL includes adjustments in accordance with IAS . 

[ ] “Investment Platforms and Other” is comprised of the Corporation’s alternative and other investments including its investment platforms, which include 
consolidated investment funds, standalone businesses, as well as the investment activities held through Power Financial including Portage I, Portage II and 
Wealthsimple. 

[ ] The results presented for Lifeco and IGM are as reported by each. The Effect of consolidation includes the elimination of intercompany transactions, the 
application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments under common control, and reflects adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 for IGM. The 
contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and Investment Platforms and Other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the Corporation includes 
the effect of consolidation. 

As a holding company, the Corporation evaluates the performance of each segment based on its contribution to net 
earnings and adjusted net earnings. A discussion of the results of Lifeco, IGM and GBL is provided in the section “Contribution 
to net earnings and adjusted net earnings” below.  
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CONTRIBUTION TO NET EARNINGS AND ADJUSTED NET EARNINGS 
This section details the contribution to the net earnings and adjusted net earnings attributable to Power Corporation’s 
participating shareholders from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and the Corporation’s alternative and other investments including its 
investment platforms, which includes the contribution from controlled and consolidated investments, and ChinaAMC. The 
corporate operations from Power Corporation and Power Financial are presented on a combined basis. 

Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings [ ]  

Lifeco [ ] , ,  

IGM [ ] 6  8

GBL [ ] ( ) ( ) ( )

Effect of consolidation [ ] 6 8  

 , 8 , 6  686 8

Alternative and other investments [ ] (8 ) ( ) (8 )

ChinaAMC 8 8  

Corporate operating and other expenses (8 ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( 8)

Dividends on non-participating and  
perpetual preferred shares ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( )

 , ,8 6 8  ,

Adjustments [ ]  

Lifeco [ ] (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( 8)

Effect of consolidation  ( ) 6 ( )

 (8 ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( 6)

Alternative and other investments ( ) ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( 6)

Net earnings [ ]  

Lifeco [ ] , 6 8  

IGM [ ] 6  8

GBL [ ] ( ) ( ) ( )

Effect of consolidation  6 ( )  

 , ,  6 8

Alternative and other investments [4] ( ) ( ) ( )

ChinaAMC 8 8  

Corporate operations and other expenses (8 ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( 8)

Dividends on non-participating and  
perpetual preferred shares ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( )

 , ,  8

[ ] Adjusted net earnings is a non-IFRS financial measure. Refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial Measures”. For a reconciliation of Lifeco, IGM, and Alternative 
and other investments’ non-IFRS adjusted net earnings to their net earnings, refer to the sections “Lifeco”, “IGM Financial”, and “Alternative and Other 
Investments” below which detail the contribution to net earnings and adjusted net earnings of each. 

[ ] As reported by Lifeco, IGM and GBL.  

[ ] See table below for details on Effect of consolidation. 

[ ] Includes earnings of the Corporation’s investment platforms including investments held through Power Financial and earnings (losses) from standalone 
businesses. 

[ ] See “Adjustments” section below, including details on Effect of consolidation. 

[6] Attributable to participating shareholders. 
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Contribution to adjusted and net earnings per share 
 Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings per share – basic [ ]  

Lifeco [ ] .6 . .8  .8 .8

IGM [ ] . . .  . .

GBL [ ] ( . ) . ( . ) ( . ) .

Effect of consolidation [3] . . .  . .

 . . . 8 . .

Alternative and other investments [ ] ( . ) . ( . ) ( . ) .

ChinaAMC . . .  . .

Corporate operating and other expenses and dividends on  
non-participating and perpetual preferred shares ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

 .6 .6 .8  . 6 .

Adjustments [ ]  

Lifeco  ( . ) ( . 8) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

Effect of consolidation  . ( . ) .  .

 ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

Alternative and other investments ( . ) ( . )  ( . )

 ( . ) ( . 8) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

Net earnings per share - basic [6]  

Lifeco [ ] . 8 . 6 .  . 6 . 6

IGM [ ] . . .  . .

GBL [ ] ( . ) . ( . ) ( . ) .

Effect of consolidation . ( . ) .  . .

 .86 . .8  . . 6

Alternative and other investments [ ] ( . ) .6 ( . ) ( . ) .

ChinaAMC . . .  . .

Corporate operating and other expenses and dividends on  
non-participating and perpetual preferred shares ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

 . . . 8 . .

[ ] For a reconciliation of Lifeco, IGM, and Alternative and other investments’ non-IFRS adjusted net earnings to their net earnings, refer to the sections below 
which detail the contribution to net earnings and adjusted net earnings of each. Adjusted net earnings per share is a non-IFRS ratio, refer to the section “Non-
IFRS Financial Measures”. 

[ ] As reported by Lifeco, IGM and GBL.  

[ ] See table below for details on Effect of consolidation. 

[ ] Includes earnings of the Corporation’s investment platforms including investments held through Power Financial and earnings (losses) from standalone 
businesses. 

[ ] See “Adjustments” section below, including details on Effect of consolidation. 

[6] Attributable to participating shareholders. 
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Effect of consolidation reflects: 
The elimination of intercompany transactions; 
The application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments under common control to the reported net 
earnings of the publicly traded operating companies, which include:  

i) An adjustment related to Lifeco’s investment in PSEIP; and  
ii) An allocation of the results of the fintech portfolio, including Wealthsimple, Portage I, Portage II and Portage III, 

to the contributions from Lifeco and IGM based on their respective interest; and  
Adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 for IGM and GBL.  

The following table summarizes the effect of consolidation on adjusted net earnings by nature for Lifeco, IGM and GBL: 
 Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June , 

  
March , June ,

Lifeco    

Application of the Corporation’s accounting method on  
investments under common control and other ( 6) ( ) (  ) ( ) ( )

IGM   

Application of the Corporation’s accounting method on  
investments under common control 8 ( 8)   (8)

Adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 and other 6   

 ( )   ( )

GBL   

Adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 and other 6   

 6 8   

Per share . . .   . .

 

Year-to-date  vs.  Q   vs. Q   and Q   

Net earnings  
$1,005 million or $1.49 per share, compared with $1,550 million or 
$2.29 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease  
of 34.9% on a per share basis. 

$527 million or $0.7 per share, compared with $994 million or 
$1.47 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease of 
4 .9% on a per share basis, and $47  million or $0.71 per share in 
the first quarter of 2022. 

Adjusted net earnings 
$1,099 million or $1. 3 per share, compared with $1, 0 million or 
$2. 7 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease  
of 39.0% on a per share basis. 

$5 4 million or $0. 7 per share, compared with $1,020 million or 
$1.51 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease of 
42.4% on a per share basis, and $515 million or $0.7  per share in 
the first quarter of 2022. 

Contribution to net earnings and adjusted net earnings from Lifeco, IGM and GBL
Contribution to net earnings of $1,254 million, compared with 
$1,314 million in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease  
of 4. %. 

Contribution to adjusted net earnings of $1,33  million, compared 
with $1,470 million in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease 
of 9.0%. 

Contribution to net earnings of $595 million, compared with 
$7 9 million in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease  
of 24. %, and $ 59 million in the first quarter of 2022. 

Contribution to adjusted net earnings of $ 52 million, compared 
with $ 15 million in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease 
of 20.0%, and $  million in the first quarter of 2022. 

 

The reportable operating segments of Power Corporation are Lifeco, IGM and GBL. A discussion of the results of the 
Corporation is provided in the sections “Lifeco”, “IGM Financial”, “GBL”, “Alternative and other investments”, “ChinaAMC”, 
“Corporate operations”, and “Adjustments” below. 
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LIFECO 

Contribution to Power Corporation 
Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Contribution to Power Corporation’s [ ]:  

Adjusted net earnings  

As reported by Lifeco , ,  

Effect of consolidation [ ] ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

 , ,  

Adjustments  

As reported by Lifeco (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( 8)

Effect of consolidation [ ] (8)  

 (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( )

Net earnings 86 8 8 6

[ ] Power Financial’s average direct ownership in Lifeco was . % for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 ( . % in the corresponding period in 2021). 

[ ] The Effect of consolidation includes the elimination of intercompany transactions and the application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments 
under common control including an adjustment for Lifeco’s investment in PSEIP and an allocation of the results of the fintech portfolio. 

[ ] Refer to the section “Adjustments” below for details of Effect of consolidation.  

Adjusted and net earnings per share as reported by Lifeco 

Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings per share [ , ] . 6 .68 .8  .86 .88

Adjustments [ ] ( . 6) ( . 8 ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . )

Net earnings per share [ ] .6 6 .6 . 8  .8 .8

[ ] Attributable to Lifeco common shareholders. 

[ ] Defined as “base earnings per common share” by Lifeco, a non-IFRS ratio; refer to Part B of this MD&A. 

[ ] See “Adjustments” section below. 
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Contribution to adjusted and net earnings by segments as reported by Lifeco 

Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings [ , ]  

Canada 68 6 

United States 6  

Europe 8 8 8

Capital and Risk Solutions  

Lifeco Corporate  

 ,6 , 6 8  8 8 6

Adjustments [ , ]  

Actuarial assumption changes and  
other management actions [ ]  ( )

Market-related impacts on liabilities [ ] ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Transaction costs related to acquisitions  (6 ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Restructuring and integration costs ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Tax legislative changes impact on liabilities ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Net earnings [ ]  

Canada 6  88

United States  

Europe 8 8  8

Capital and Risk Solutions 6 6  6

Lifeco Corporate  

Net eearnings [ ] , ,  8

[ ] Attributable to Lifeco common shareholders. 

[ ] Defined as “base earnings” by Lifeco, a non-IFRS financial measure; refer to Part B of this MD&A for additional details including a definition and reconciliation 
by segment. 

[ ] Described as “items excluded from base earnings” by Lifeco; refer to Part B of this MD&A. 

[ ] See “Adjustments” section below. 

[ ] Refer to Part B of this MD&A for more details including a definition of these Adjustments. 

Year-to-date  vs.  Q   vs. Q   and Q   

Net earnings  
$1,505 million or $1. 1  per share, compared with $1,491 million or 
$1. 05 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, an increase 
of 0.7% on a per share basis. 

$735 million or $0.7 9 per share, compared with $7 4 million or 
$0. 44 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease 
of .5% on a per share basis, and $770 million or $0. 27 per share 
in the first quarter of 2022. 

Adjusted net earnings 
$1, 39 million or $1.7 2 per share, compared with $1,5 5 million or 
$1. 5 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, an increase 
of 4. % on a per share basis. 

$ 30 million or $0. 93 per share, compared with $ 2 million or 
$0. 9 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, an increase 
of 0.4% on a per share basis, and $ 09 million or $0. 9 per share 
in the first quarter of 2022.  
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CANADA  
Net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $1 million to $57  million, compared with the 
corresponding period in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $5  million, a 
decrease of $23 million compared with the corresponding period in 2021, primarily due to: 

Lower fee income, unfavourable impacts of new business and experience in Individual Customer, and lower surplus 
investment income on seed money.  
Partially offset by higher investment experience in Group Customer.  

Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of positive $  million, compared 
with Adjustments of negative $1  million in the corresponding period in 2021. Actuarial assumption changes and other 
management actions were positive $1 million, compared with negative $19 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 
Market-related impacts were positive $7 million, compared with positive $3 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

Net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $13 million to $301 million, compared with the 
corresponding quarter in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $29  million, 
an increase of $3 million compared with the corresponding quarter in 2021, primarily due to favourable morbidity and 
investment experience in Group Customer, partially offset by lower fee income and unfavourable experience in Individual 
Customer.  

Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of positive $5 million, 
compared with Adjustments of negative $5 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021. Actuarial assumption changes and 
other management actions were positive $1 million, compared with negative $  million in the corresponding quarter in 2021. 
Market-related impacts were positive $4 million, compared with positive $1 million for the corresponding quarter in 2021. 

UNITED STATES  
Net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 decreased by US$ 7 million (C$105 million) to US$105 million 
(C$134 million), compared with the corresponding period in 2021. Adjusted net earnings were US$20  million (C$2 3 million) 
in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, a decrease of US$2  million (C$31 million) compared with the corresponding 
period in 2021, primarily due to: 

A decrease of US$27 million in Putnam, primarily due to lower asset-based fee revenue and lower net investment 
income, partially offset by lower expenses. 
Partially offset by an increase of US$  million in Financial Services, primarily due to adjusted net earnings of 
US$35 million related to the Prudential acquisition, as well as higher contributions from investment experience, 
partially offset by lower Empower net fee income, as well as higher operating expenses to support participant growth. 

Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of negative US$103 million 
(C$129 million), compared with negative US$44 million (C$55 million) in the corresponding period in 2021. The increase in 
Adjustments was primarily due to market volatility resulting in hedge ineffectiveness related to Prudential guaranteed 
lifetime withdrawal benefit products, and higher restructuring and integration costs as well as transaction costs related to 
the Prudential acquisition. 

Net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 decreased by US$99 million (C$121 million) to US$23 million 
(C$29 million), compared with the corresponding quarter in 2021. Adjusted net earnings were US$113 million (C$143 million) in 
the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, a decrease of US$42 million (C$47 million) compared with the corresponding 
quarter in 2021, primarily due to: 

A decrease of US$2  million in Putnam for the same reasons discussed in the six-month period above; and 
A decrease of US$1  million in Financial Services, primarily due to lower Empower net fee income and higher 
operating expenses to support participant growth, partially offset by adjusted net earnings of US$35 million related 
to the Prudential acquisition, as well as higher contributions from investment experience. 

Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of negative US$90 million 
(C$114 million), compared with negative US$33 million (C$40 million) in the corresponding quarter in 2021. The increase in 
Adjustments was primarily due to the same reasons discussed in the six-month period above. 
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EUROPE  
Net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $  million to $44  million, compared with the 
corresponding period in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $453 million, an 
increase of $  million compared with the corresponding period in 2021, primarily due to: 

Higher fee income and favourable morbidity experience in Ireland, favourable investment experience in the U.K., as 
well as favourable mortality experience in Ireland and the U.K. 
Partially offset by less favourable annuitant experience in the U.K. and the impact of currency movement. In addition, 
Lifeco had a revaluation of deferred taxes resulting in an increase in taxes in the six-months ended June 30, 2021; there 
was no revaluation in 2022.  

Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of negative $5 million, 
comparable to the corresponding period in 2021, primarily as less unfavourable market-related impacts on liabilities, 
transaction costs and contingent consideration provisions related to recent acquisitions in Ireland, as well as unfavourable 
U.K. tax legislative changes in the second quarter of 2021, were offset by lower actuarial assumption changes. 

Net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $44 million to $229 million, compared with the 
corresponding quarter in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $20  million, 
an increase of $24 million compared with the corresponding quarter in 2021, primarily due to: 

Favourable investment experience in the U.K., favourable morbidity experience in Ireland, as well as favourable 
mortality experience in the U.K. and Ireland. 
Partially offset by the impact of currency movement. The second quarter of 2021 included a revaluation of deferred 
taxes discussed in the six-month period above.  

Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of positive $21 million, 
compared with positive $1 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021. The increase in Adjustments of $20 million was 
primarily due to favourable market-related impacts driven by property cash flows in the U.K. in the second quarter of 2022 
and unfavourable U.K. tax legislative changes in the second quarter of 2021. The increase was partially offset by lower 
actuarial assumption changes, as well as transaction costs related to the joint venture agreement with Allied Irish Banks plc 
in Ireland. 

CAPITAL AND RISK SOLUTIONS  
Net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $39 million to $33  million, compared with the 
corresponding period in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $344 million, an 
increase of $49 million compared with the corresponding period in 2021, primarily due to:  

Growth in business in-force; and 
Favourable claims experience in the U.S. life business and the commutation of a reinsurance treaty. 
Partially offset by the impact of currency movement. 

Adjusted net earnings in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of negative $  million, 
compared with Adjustments of positive $2 million in the corresponding period in 2021. The six-month period of 2022 
included an increase in actuarial liabilities on a legacy block of business with investment performance guarantees, reflecting 
negative market-related experience during the period. 

Net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 increased by $15 million to $1 7 million, compared with the 
corresponding quarter in 2021. Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 were $174 million, an 
increase of $24 million compared with the corresponding quarter in 2021, primarily due to the same reasons discussed in 
the six-month period above. 

Adjusted net earnings in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022 excluded Adjustments of negative $7 million, 
compared with Adjustments of positive $2 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021, primarily due to the same reasons 
discussed in the six-month period above. 
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ADJUSTMENTS  
Adjustments are items excluded from net earnings in the determination of adjusted net earnings by Lifeco’s management. 
Refer to the further discussion above in each of Lifeco’s operating segments. 

In the first and second quarters of 2022, Adjustments with a negative earnings impact of $134 million after tax consist of: 
In the second quarter of 2022, Adjustments were a net negative earnings impact of $95 million, which consisted of a 
positive earnings impact of $21 million after tax ($24 million pre-tax) relating to actuarial assumption changes and 
other management actions, offset by negative market-related impacts on liabilities of $15 million after tax ($19 million 
pre-tax), transaction costs of $57 million after tax ($71 million pre-tax) related to the acquisitions of the full-service 
retirement business of Prudential, as well as recent acquisitions in the Europe segment, and restructuring and 
integration costs of $44 million after tax ($ 0 million pre-tax) in the United States segment. 
In the first quarter of 2022, Adjustments were a negative earnings impact of $39 million which consisted of a negative 
earnings impact of $9 million after tax ($9 million pre-tax) relating to actuarial assumption changes and other 
management actions, negative market-related impacts on liabilities of $11 million after tax ($14 million pre-tax), 
restructuring and integration costs of $12 million after tax ($17 million pre-tax) in the United States segment, and 
transaction costs of $7 million after tax ($  million pre-tax) related to the acquisitions of the full-service retirement 
business of Prudential, as well as acquisitions in the Europe segment. 

In the first and second quarters of 2021, Adjustments with a negative earnings impact of $74 million after tax consisted of: 
In the second quarter of 2021, Adjustments were a negative earnings impact of $42 million which consisted of a positive 
earnings impact of $37 million after tax ($42 million pre-tax) relating to actuarial assumption changes and other 
management actions, offset by negative market-related impacts on liabilities of $19 million after tax ($14 million pre-
tax), U.K. tax legislative changes impact on liabilities of $21 million, transaction costs related to the acquisitions of 
Personal Capital and MassMutual of $24 million after tax ($25 million pre-tax) and restructuring and integration costs 
of $15 million after tax ($21 million pre-tax).  
In the first quarter of 2021, Adjustments were a negative earnings impact of $32 million which consisted of a positive 
earnings impact of $5 million after tax ($4 million pre-tax) relating to actuarial assumption changes and other 
management actions, offset by negative market-related impacts on liabilities of $24 million after tax ($25 million pre-
tax), restructuring and integration costs of $12 million after tax ($1  million pre-tax), and transaction costs related to the 
acquisitions of Personal Capital and MassMutual of $1 million after tax ($2 million pre-tax). 

The information above has been derived from Lifeco’s interim and most recent Annual MD&A; see Part B of this MD&A for 
additional information on Lifeco’s interim results. Lifeco’s interim and most recent Annual MD&A are available under its 
profile on SEDAR (www.sedar.com).  
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IGM FINANCIAL 

Contribution to Power Corporation 
Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June , March , June ,

Contribution to Power Corporation’s [ ]:  

Adjusted net earnings  

As reported by IGM 6  8

Effect of consolidation [ ] ( )  ( )

 6 8 8

Adjustments  

Effect of consolidation [ ] ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

Net earnings 8  

[ ] Power Financial’s average direct ownership in IGM was 1.9% for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 ( 2.0% in the corresponding period in 2021). 

[ ] The Effect of consolidation includes the elimination of intercompany transactions, the application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments 
under common control including an allocation of the results of the fintech portfolio and reflects adjustments in accordance with IAS 39. 

[ ]  Refer to the section “Adjustments” below for details of Effect of consolidation.  

Adjusted and net earnings per share as reported by IGM (in accordance with IFRS 9)  

Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Net earnings per share [ ] . 8 .8 .8  . .

[ ] Available to IGM common shareholders. 

Contribution to adjusted net earnings by segments and net earnings as reported by IGM (in accordance with IFRS 9)  

Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Wealth Management [ ]  

Asset Management [ ]  

Strategic Investments and Other [ ] 86  6

Net earnings [ ] 6  8

[ ] Debt and interest expense is allocated to each segment based on IGM’s assessment of: i) capacity to service the debt, and ii) where the debt is being serviced. 

[ ] Available to IGM common shareholders. 

Year-to-date  vs.  Q   vs. Q   and Q   

Net earnings  
$42  million or $1.7  per share, compared with $440 million or 
$1. 4 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease of 
3.3% on a per share basis. 

$207 million or $0. 7 per share, compared with $23 million or 
$0.99 per share in the corresponding period in 2021, a decrease of 
12.1% on a per share basis, and $219 million or $0.91 per share in 
the first quarter of 2022. 

On January 1, 201 , IGM adopted IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. Power Financial has deferred the adoption of IFRS 9 and 
continues to apply IAS 39. The contribution to Power Financial includes adjustments to reverse the impact of the application 
of IFRS 9 by IGM. During the second quarter of 2022, IGM disposed of corporate investments classified as fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI), which the Corporation classified as available for sale (AFS) under IAS 39. The gain on 
disposal has been recognized in net earnings by the Corporation and is included as an Adjustment in “Effect of 
consolidation”. 
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IGM did not report Adjustments in the first and second quarters of 2022 and in the corresponding quarters in 2021. The 
following is a summary of each segment’s net earnings:  

WEALTH MANAGEMENT 
Net earnings decreased by $19 million to $230 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with the 
corresponding period in 2021. The decrease in net earnings is mainly related to a decrease in net earnings of IG Wealth 
Management of $1  million, primarily due to: 

An increase in advisory and business development expenses of $37 million to $447 million in the six-month period 
which includes compensation paid to advisors, the majority of which varies directly with assets or sales levels. Asset-
based compensation increased by $2  million to $2 2 million, primarily due to rate increases due to asset mix and 
increased average assets under advisement. Sales-based compensation is based on the level of new assets contributed 
to client accounts and is capitalized and amortized as they reflect incremental costs to obtain a client contract. Sales-
based compensation increased by $11 million to $3  million, due to additional sales-based commission being 
capitalized and amortized throughout 2021 and 2022; 
A decrease in other financial planning revenues of $11 million to $71 million, due to lower earnings from the mortgage 
banking operations;  
A decrease in net investment income and other of $4 million to a loss of $2 million. Net investment income and other 
primarily consists of unrealized losses on investments in proprietary funds in the six-month period of 2022 offset by 
investment income earned on cash and cash equivalents and securities and other income not related to IG Wealth 
Management’s core business. It also includes a charge from the Strategic Investments and Other segment for the use of 
unallocated capital;  
A decrease in redemption fees of $4 million to $3 million; and 
An increase in sub-advisory expenses of $2 million to $ 7 million, primarily due to higher assets under management. 

Partially offset by: 
An increase in income from advisory fees of $21 million to $577 million, primarily due to the increase in average assets 
under advisement of 5.5%, offset by a decrease in the advisory fee rate. The average advisory fee rate for the six-month 
period was 102.5 basis points of average assets under advisement, compared with 104.2 basis points in 2021, reflecting 
changes in product and client mix; 
An increase in income from product and program fees of $14 million to $44  million, primarily due to the increase in 
average assets under management of 3.2%. The average product and program fee rate for the six-month period was 

.1 basis points of average assets under management, compared with .0 basis points in 2021, reflecting changes 
in product mix; and 
A decrease in income taxes of $  million to $ 2 million. 

Net earnings decreased by $25 million to $109 million in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with the 
corresponding quarter in 2021. The decrease in net earnings is mainly related to a decrease in net earnings of IG Wealth 
Management of $25 million, primarily due to: 

An increase in advisory and business development expenses of $17 million to $222 million in the three-month period. 
Asset-based compensation increased by $7 million to $13  million, and sales-based compensation increased by 
$5 million to $19 million. The increase in asset and sales-based compensation in the three-month period was due to 
the same reasons explained in the six-month period above. Other advisory and business development expenses 
increased by $5 million to $ 5 million; 
A decrease in other financial planning revenues of $9 million to $31 million, primarily due to the same reasons 
explained in the six-month period above;  
A decrease in income from product and program fees of $3 million to $219 million, primarily due to the decrease in 
average assets under management of 1.2%. The average product and program fee rate for the three-month period 
was .1 basis points of average assets under management, compared with .0 basis points in 2021, reflecting 
changes in product mix;  
An increase in operations and support expenses of $2 million to $103 million, which includes costs that support wealth 
management and other general and administrative functions such as product management, technology and 
operations, as well as other functional business units and corporate expenses; and 
A decrease in net investment income and other of $2 million to a loss of $1 million. 

Partially offset by: 
A decrease in income taxes of $9 million to $39 million. 
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ASSET MANAGEMENT 
The Asset Management segment includes the fees received from IGM’s mutual funds, Wealth Management segment and 
third parties for investment management services. 

Net earnings decreased by $2 million to $103 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with the 
corresponding period in 2021, primarily due to: 

An increase in expenses of $13 million to $22  million, primarily due to an increase in operations and support expenses 
of $1  million in the six-month period. Operations and support expenses includes costs associated with business 
operations, including technology and business processes, in-house investment management and product shelf 
management, corporate management and support functions. These expenses primarily reflect compensation, 
technology and other service provider expenses. The increase in operations and support expenses was partially offset by 
a decrease in advisory and business development expenses of $4 million and sub-advisory expenses of $1 million; and 
A decrease in net investment income and other of $  million to a loss of $4 million. Net investment income and other 
primarily includes investment returns related to Mackenzie’s investments in proprietary funds, which are generally 
made in the process of launching a fund and are sold as third-party investors subscribe. 

Partially offset by: 
An increase in net asset management fees, which is asset management fees offset by dealer compensation expenses, 
of $1  million to $3 1 million, mainly due to an increase in net asset management fees – third party of $1  million, due 
to a 5.1% increase in average assets under management. Mackenzie’s net asset management fee rate was 53.  basis 
points for the six months ended June 30, 2022, comparable with 2021. Management fees – Wealth Management 
increased by $2 million to $57 million.  

Net earnings decreased by $  million to $51 million in the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with the 
corresponding quarter in 2021, primarily due to: 

An increase in expenses of $4 million to $111 million, primarily due to an increase in operations and support expenses 
of $  million in the three-month period partially offset by a decrease in advisory and business development expenses 
of $4 million and sub-advisory expenses of $1 million;  
A decrease in net investment income and other of $2 million to a loss of $1 million; and 
A decrease in net asset management fees, which is asset management fees offset by dealer compensation expenses, 
of $1 million to $1  million, mainly due to a decrease in net asset management fees – third party of $1 million, due to 
a 0.7% decrease in average assets under management and a decline in the net asset management fee rate. 
Mackenzie’s net asset management fee rate was 54.0 basis points for the three months ended June 30, 2022, 
compared with 54.1 basis points in 2021. 
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ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND ADVISEMENT 
Assets under advisement (AUA) are a key performance indicator for the Wealth Management segment. 

Assets under management (AUM) are the key driver of the Asset Management segment and a secondary driver of revenues 
and expenses within the Wealth Management segment in relation to its investment management activities. Refer to the 
section “Other Measures” for a definition of AUM and AUA. 

Total assets under management and advisement were as follows: 

(In billions of dollars) 
June , March , June ,

 
March ,

Wealth Management   

Assets under management . . .  6.

Other assets under advisement . .6 .6 .8

Assets under advisement . 8. .  6.

Asset Management   

Assets under management excluding sub-advisory  
to Wealth Management . . .  .

Sub-advisory to Wealth Management .8 8 .8 8.8 6.

Assets under management 8 . . .  .6

Consolidated [ ]  

Assets under management . . .6 .6

Other assets under advisement [ ] . . 8.  6.

Total assets under management and advisement [ ] . 68. 6 .  8.

[ ] Represents the consolidated assets under management and advisement of IGM. In the Wealth Management segment, assets under management is a 
component part of assets under advisement. All instances where the Asset Management segment is providing investment management services or 
distributing its products through the Wealth Management segment are eliminated in IGM reporting such that there is no double counting of the same client 
savings held at IGM operating companies. 

[ ] Includes adjustment representing the elimination of double counting where business is reflected within multiple segments. 

Total average assets under management and advisement were as follows: 

(In billions of dollars) Q Q Q Q Q Q

Wealth Management 

Assets under advisement . 8. . 6. . .

Assets under management 6. . . . 8. .

Asset Management  

Assets under management excluding sub-advisory  
to Wealth Management 8. . 6.8 . . .

Total assets under management . . . . 6.6 8 .

Consolidated [ ] 

Assets under management . 8. . 8. .8 .6

Assets under management and advisement [ ] . 6 . . 6 . . .

[ ] Represents the consolidated assets under management and advisement of IGM. All instances where the Asset Management segment is providing investment 
management services or distributing its products through the Wealth Management segment are eliminated in IGM reporting such that there is no double 
counting of the same client savings held at IGM operating companies. 

[ ] Includes adjustment representing the elimination of double counting where business is reflected within multiple segments. 

ADJUSTMENTS  
Adjustments are items excluded from net earnings in the determination of adjusted net earnings by IGM’s management. 

There were no Adjustments reported by IGM in the first and second quarters of 2022 and in the corresponding quarters in 2021. 

The information above has been derived from IGM’s interim and most recent Annual MD&A; see Part C of this MD&A for 
more information on IGM’s interim results. IGM’s interim and most recent Annual MD&A are available under its profile on 
SEDAR (www.sedar.com).  
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GBL 

Contribution to Power Corporation 
 Six months ended  Three months ended
 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

June , June , June ,
 

March , June ,

Contribution to Power Corporation’s net earnings [ ]:  

As reported by GBL  ( ) ( ) ( )

Effect of consolidation [ ] 6  

Net earnings (loss) ( ) ( ) 

[ ] In the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, Power Financial’s average indirect ownership in GBL was 14. % (14.1% in the corresponding period in 2021). 

[ ] The Corporation has not adopted IFRS 9. The contribution to the Corporation includes an adjustment to account for GBL under IAS 39 as described below. 

Contribution to adjusted and net earnings (loss) as reported by GBL (in accordance with IFRS 9)  

 Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Share of earnings (loss) of associates and consolidated 
operating companies of:  

Imerys 8 6  

Webhelp (6) 

Parques Reunidos/Piolin II ( ) ( 8)  ( ) ( )

Canyon ( )  8 8

Sienna  ( ) 8 ( ) 

 8 88

Net dividends from investments:  

SGS  

adidas  

Pernod Ricard  

Holcim 8 6 8 6

Umicore  

MOWI  

GEA  

Other [ ]  

 6 8 

Interest income (expenses) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Other financial income (expenses) ( 6) ( ) ( 8) ( 8) (6 )

Other operating income (expenses) ( ) ( ) ( 8) (86) ( )
Gains (losses) from disposals, impairments and  

reversals of non-current assets ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Taxes ( ) ( ) 

Net earnings (loss) [ , ] ( ) ( ) ( 6)

[ ] In 2021, mainly consists of a reimbursement of withholding taxes received and to be received from the French tax authorities relating to dividends received 
from TotalEnergies in 200  and 2019.  

[ ] Described as “IFRS consolidated net result” in GBL’s publicly disclosed information. 
[ ] Attributable to GBL shareholders. 

 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022  A 37

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A37PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A37 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

 

Year-to-date  vs.  Q   vs. Q   and Q   

Net earnings (loss) 
A net loss of €330 million, compared with net earnings of 
€335 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

A net loss of €204 million, compared with net earnings of 
€110 million in the corresponding period in 2021, and a net loss of 
€12  million in the first quarter of 2022. 

IAS 39 adjustments to the contribution of GBL  
On January 1, 201 , GBL adopted IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The majority of its investments in public entities are classified 
as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), an elective classification for equity instruments in which all fair 
value changes remain permanently in OCI. 

The investments in private equity and other investment funds, including co-investments, are classified as fair value through 
profit or loss (FVPL). The transition requirements of IFRS 9 required that all unrealized gains and losses at January 1, 201  on 
investments previously classified as available for sale remain permanently in equity. Starting January 1, 201 , subsequent 
changes in fair value are recorded in earnings. 

Power Corporation has deferred the adoption of IFRS 9 and continues to apply IAS 39. The following table presents 
adjustments to the contribution of GBL to Power Corporation’s earnings in accordance with IAS 39: 
 Six months ended  Three months ended
 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

June , June , June , 
 

March , June ,

Partial disposal of interest in MOWI [ ]   

Partial disposal of interest in Holcim [2]   8

Partial disposal of interest in Umicore [3]   

Partial disposal of interest in GEA [4]   

Impairment charges on listed investments [5] ( ) (8) (  ) ( )

Impairment charges on private equity funds and  
co-investments [ ] (8 ) (8  ) 

Disposal of private equity funds and other [7]    6

Reversal of unrealized (gains) losses on private equity 
funds and other [ ] ( 8)   ( 8)

Total 6   

[ ] During the second quarter of 2022, a portion of the investment in MOWI was disposed of, resulting in a gain. The gain was not reflected in GBL’s earnings as 
the investment is classified as FVOCI. Power Corporation’s share was $22 million. 

[ ] During the first and second quarters of 2021, a portion of the investment in Holcim was disposed of, resulting in a recovery from the reversal of previous 
impairments. The recovery was not reflected in GBL’s earnings as the investment is classified as FVOCI. Power Corporation’s share was $35 million in the first 
quarter and $ 7 million in the second quarter. 

[ ] During the second quarter of 2021, a portion of the investment in Umicore was disposed of, resulting in a gain. The gain was not reflected in GBL’s earnings as 
the investment is classified as FVOCI. Power Corporation’s share was $33 million. 

[ ] During the second quarter of 2021, a portion of the investment in GEA was disposed of, resulting in a recovery from the reversal of previous impairments. The 
recovery was not reflected in GBL’s earnings as the investment is classified as FVOCI. Power Corporation’s share was $9 million. 

[ ] Under IFRS 9, GBL classifies the majority of its investments in public entities as FVOCI, and as a result impairment charges are not recognized in earnings. 
Power Corporation recognized impairment charges on the following investments: 

Ontex – The investment in Ontex has been previously impaired, resulting in an adjusted cost of € .99 per share. During the first quarter of 2022, the share 
price decreased to € . 3, resulting in an impairment charge. The Corporation’s share was $1 million. During the first quarter of 2021, the Corporation 
recorded its share of an impairment charge of $  million. 
Other investments – During the second quarter of 2022, Power Corporation’s share of impairment charges on other investments was $2 million. 

[6] GBL classifies private equity investments at FVPL in accordance with IFRS 9, and recognizes unrealized changes in fair value in earnings. Power Corporation 
continues to classify these private equity investments as available for sale in accordance with IAS 39. During the second quarter of 2022, the value of certain 
private equity investments, primarily in GBL’s digital portfolio, was reduced below their cost resulting in impairment charges. The Corporation’s share of the 
impairment charges was $ 4 million. 

[ ] During the first and second quarters of 2022, investments held through private equity funds and other investments, classified as FVPL in accordance with 
IFRS 9, were disposed of, resulting in realized gains. Power Corporation’s share of the realized gains in accordance with IAS 39 was $11 million in the first quarter 
and $22 million in the second quarter of 2022 ($7 million in the first quarter and $  million in the second quarter of 2021). 

[8] GBL classifies private equity investments at FVPL in accordance with IFRS 9, and recognizes unrealized changes in fair value in earnings. Power Corporation does 
not recognize these unrealized fair value changes in earnings as it continues to classify these private equity investments as available for sale in accordance with 
IAS 39. 
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Other than the share of earnings of Imerys, Webhelp, Canyon, Parques and Sienna, a significant portion of GBL’s net earnings 
is composed of dividends from its non-consolidated investments, which are usually declared as follows: 

Holcim (second quarter) 

SGS (first quarter) 

adidas (second quarter) 

Umicore (second and third quarters)   

Pernod Ricard (second and fourth quarters) 

GEA (second quarter) 

MOWI (quarterly) 

RESULTS  
For the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, the net loss was €330 million compared with net earnings of €335 million in 
the corresponding period in 2021. The decrease in net earnings was mainly due to: 

An increase in other financial expenses of €349 million to €40  million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, 
compared with financial expenses of €57 million in the same period in 2021. Other financial expenses in the six-month 
period of 2022 includes a gain of €13  million on marking to market derivatives, offset by a negative impact of 
€143 million related to the increase in the liability to Webhelp’s minority shareholders, including the effect of 
discounting. As well, GBL recognized a net decrease in the fair value of Sienna Capital’s private equity investments not 
consolidated or accounted for using the equity method of €425 million. In the six-month period ended June 30, 2021, 
GBL recognized a negative impact of €1 5 million related to the increase in the liability to Webhelp’s minority 
shareholders, partially offset by an increase in fair value of €1  million for Sienna Capital’s private equity investments 
not consolidated or accounted for using the equity method; 

A negative contribution from gains (losses) from disposals, impairments and reversals of non-current assets of 
€115 million, compared with a positive contribution of €117 million in the corresponding period in 2021. In the six-
month period ended June 30, 2022, GBL recognized an impairment on an investment held by Sienna Capital of 
€101 million. In the six-month period ended June 30, 2021, GBL recognized net gains on the sale of two investments 
held by Sienna Capital; 

A decrease in the contribution from Sienna of € 3 million to a negative contribution to GBL of €15 million, compared 
with a contribution of €4  million for the six-month period of 2021. The contribution from Sienna includes the results 
of investments which are consolidated or accounted for using the equity method; 

A decrease in dividends of €53 million to €253 million, mainly due to a decrease in dividends received from Holcim 
and other dividends of €37 million and €3  million, respectively. The decrease in the dividend received from Holcim 
is due to a decrease in the interest held by GBL. In the six-month period ended June 30, 2021, other dividends primarily 
included €37 million related to the reimbursement of withholding taxes received from the French tax authorities 
relating to dividends received from TotalEnergies in 200  and 2019; and 

A decrease in GBL’s share in the net result of Webhelp of €15 million, to a contribution to GBL of €7 million. 

Partially offset by: 
An increase in the contribution from Imerys to net earnings of €27 million to a contribution to GBL of €105 million; 

A decrease in other operating expenses of €1  million to €134 million, which include the increase in liabilities recorded 
under Webhelp’s employee incentive plan of € 5 million in the period, including the effect of discounting and vesting, 
compared with an increase in liabilities of €102 million in the corresponding period in 2021; 

An increase in the contribution from Canyon to net earnings of €10 million to a contribution to GBL of €9 million. 
Canyon was acquired in the first quarter of 2021 and GBL recognized related transaction costs in 2021; and 

A decrease in the negative contribution from Piolin II S.à.r.l. to GBL’s net earnings of €4 million to a negative 
contribution to GBL of €14 million, compared with a negative contribution of €1  million for the six-month period of 2021. 
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For the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, the net loss was €204 million compared with net earnings of €110 million in 
the corresponding quarter in 2021. The decrease in net earnings was mainly due to: 

An increase in other financial expenses of €14  million to €20  million in the three-month period ended June 30, 
2022, compared with financial expenses of € 2 million in the same period in 2021. Other financial expenses in the 
second quarter of 2022 include a gain of € 4 million on marking to market derivatives, partially offset by a negative 
impact of €9 million related to the increase in the liability to Webhelp’s minority shareholders, including the effect of 
discounting, compared with a negative impact of €177 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021. As well, in the 
three-month period ended June 30, 2022, GBL recognized a net decrease in the fair value of Sienna Capital’s private 
equity investments not consolidated or accounted for using the equity method of €272 million, compared with an 
increase in fair value of €121 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021; 

A negative contribution from gains (losses) from disposals, impairments and reversals of non-current assets of 
€110 million, compared with a negative contribution of €1 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021, mainly due to 
the same reasons explained in the six-month period; 

A decrease in dividends of € 3 million to €13  million, mainly due to a decrease in dividends received from Holcim 
and other dividends of €37 million and €3  million, respectively, as explained in the six-month period above; 

A decrease in the contribution from Sienna of € 2 million to a negative contribution to GBL of €25 million, compared 
with a contribution of €37 million for the three-month period of 2021; 

A decrease in GBL’s share in the net result of Webhelp of €17 million, to a negative contribution to GBL of €  million; and 

A decrease in the contribution from Canyon to net earnings of €7 million to a contribution to GBL of €1 million. 

Partially offset by: 
A decrease in other operating expenses of € 3 million to €4  million, which include the increase in liabilities recorded 
under Webhelp’s employee incentive plan of €22 million in the quarter, including the effect of discounting and 
vesting, compared with an increase in liabilities of €73 million in the corresponding quarter in 2021; 

An increase in the contribution from Imerys to GBL’s net earnings of €2  million to a contribution to GBL of 
€ 5 million, compared with a contribution of €39 million for the corresponding quarter in 2021; and  

An increase in the contribution from Piolin II S.à.r.l. to GBL’s net earnings of €10 million to a contribution to GBL of 
€3 million, compared with a negative contribution of €7 million for the three-month period of 2021. 

AVERAGE EXCHANGE RATES 
The average exchange rates for the six-month and three-month periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were as follows: 

Six months ended Three months ended
June , June ,

Change %
June , June ,

Change %

Euro/CAD . 8 . ( .6) . . 8 (8. )

The information above has been derived from GBL’s publicly disclosed financial information, as issued by GBL in its half-year 
report at June 30, 2022. Further information on GBL’s results is available on its website (www.gbl.be). 
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ALTERNATIVE AND OTHER INVESTMENTS 
Alternative and other investments are comprised of the results of the investment platforms, which includes income earned 
from asset management and investing activities. Asset management activities includes management fees and carried 
interest net of investment platform expenses. Investing activities comprises income earned on the capital invested by the 
Corporation (proprietary capital) in the investment funds managed by each platform and the share of earnings (losses) of 
controlled and consolidated subsidiaries held within the investment platforms. Other includes the share of earnings (losses) 
of standalone businesses and the Corporation’s investments in investment and hedge funds. 

Income earned from investing activities (proprietary capital) and earnings from other investments are volatile in nature as 
they depend on many factors, including and primarily related to the timing of realizations. 

Contribution to Power Corporation 
Summary of Adjusted and net earnings (loss) from the Corporation’s alternative and other investments: 
 Six months ended   Three months ended
 
 

June , June , June , 
  

March , June ,

Contribution to Power Corporation’s:   

Adjusted net earnings (loss)   

Asset management activities   

Sagard ( ) 6 ( 6 ) ( )

Power Sustainable [ ] ( ) ( ) (  ) ( ) ( )

Investing activities (proprietary capital)   

Sagard   6

Power Sustainable [ ] ( ) 66 ( 8 ) (6 )

Standalone businesses   

Investment and hedge funds and Other [ ]   ( )

 (8 ) (  ) (8 )

Adjustments   

Sagard ( )   

Power Sustainable ( )   ( )

Net earnings (loss) ( ) (  ) ( )

[ ] In the second quarter of 2022, the presentation of Power Sustainable’s asset management activities has been modified to separate certain activities provided 
by Potentia and Nautilus on behalf of PSEIP from its management activities. As well, an allocation of certain expenses has been included in the Corporation's 
other investing activities. The comparative information has been restated to reflect these changes. 
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ASSET MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES  
Summary of the composition of net earnings (loss) from asset management activities: 

Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Sagard  

Management fees [ ]  8

Investment platform expenses ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 8) ( )

 ( )  ( ) (6)

Net carried interest [ , ] ( ) 8 ( ) ( )

Other (6) ( ) ( )

 ( ) 66 ( ) ( )

Loss from private wealth platform and  
other asset management activities [ ] ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Non-controlling interests [ ] 8 ( )  

 ( ) 6 ( 6) ( )

Power Sustainable  

Management fees [ ] 6 

Investment platform expenses ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( ) (8)

 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Net performance fees and carried interest [2]  ( )

Other [6]  ( ) ( )

 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Net earnings (loss) (6 ) ( ) ( 6) ( )

[ ] Includes management fees charged by the investment platform on proprietary capital. Management fees paid by the Corporation are deducted from income 
from investing activities. 

[ ] Net carried interest is comprised of carried interest earned, net of employee costs which are recognized over the vesting period. Carried interest is recognized 
based on changes in fair value of investments held within each consolidated fund, and based on carried interest earned when it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal will not occur with respect to unconsolidated funds.  

[ ] The first and second quarters of 2022 include a reversal of net carried interest of $13 million and $42 million, respectively, mainly due to a decrease in the fair 
value of Wealthsimple and investments held in Portage II in the period. 

[ ] Includes the Corporation’s share of earnings (losses) from Sagard’s private wealth platform and other asset management activities. 

[ ] Non-controlling interests include equity interests held in SHMI by Lifeco and management of Sagard.  

[ ] Other includes development and asset management activities provided by Potentia and Nautilus on behalf of PSEIP. 
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Summary of adjusted and net earnings (loss) from investing activities (proprietary capital): 
 Six months ended  Three months ended

 
June , June , June ,

 
March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings (loss)  

Sagard  

Private equity and other strategies 66  

Venture capital (fintech investments) [ ] ( )  (6)

Power Sustainable  

Public equity [ ] ( ) (6 ) ( )

Energy infrastructure [ ] ( )  

Standalone businesses [ ]  

Other  

Investment and hedge funds  8 6 

Other [ ] 6 ( )

 ( ) 8  ( 6)

Adjustments  

Remeasurements of Wealthsimple’s put right liability ( )  

Impairment charges on direct energy infrastructure 
investments ( )  ( )

Net earnings (loss) ( ) 8  (66)

[ ] Includes the Corporation’s share of earnings (losses) of Wealthsimple. The first and second quarters of 2022 include a reversal of carried interest payable of 
$13 million and $25 million, respectively, mainly due to a decrease in the fair value of Wealthsimple and investments held in Portage II in the period. The first 
quarter of 2021 included a charge of $52 million related to the Corporation’s share of the carried interest payable due to increases in fair value of investments 
held in the Portage Funds and Wealthsimple, as well as it excluded a charge of $100 million related to the remeasurement of the put right liability held by 
certain of the non-controlling interests in Wealthsimple to fair value which has been included in Adjustments (see “Adjustments” section below). The net 
decrease in fair value of the Corporation’s investment, including its investment held through Power Financial, in Portage I, Portage II, Portage III, Koho and 
Wealthsimple was $42  million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with an increase of $ 09 million in fair value in the corresponding 
period in 2021.  

[ ] Mainly comprised of gains (losses) realized on the disposal of investments and dividends received. In the first and second quarters of 2022, the Corporation 
realized a loss of $54 million and $70 million, respectively, on the disposal of investments in Power Sustainable China and $13 million in impairments 
recognized in the first quarter of 2022 due to a decline in Chinese equity markets (realized gains of $229 million and $54 million in the first and second quarters 
of 2021, respectively).  

[ ] Includes a gain on disposal of a portfolio of solar assets of $17 million in the second quarter of 2022, and unrealized gains on derivative contracts hedging 
energy infrastructure projects of $1  million in each of the first and second quarters of 2022. 

[ ] The second quarter of 2022 includes a contribution of $2  million related to the investment in Lion which includes remeasurements attributable to the decline 
in market value of Lion in the quarter and is comprised of i) share of earnings of $17 million which includes a recovery related to the revaluation of its warrants, 
ii) a recovery of $1  million related to the decrease in amounts payable by Power Sustainable to its management for long-term incentive plans, and iii) a loss 
of $5 million related to the revaluation of call rights held by Power Sustainable. In the second quarter of 2021, the Corporation recorded a net gain of 
$153 million related to its investment in Lion which was comprised of i) a gain of $ 2 million related to the effect of the change in ownership as a result of the 
completion of the merger transaction between Lion and Northern Genesis, ii) a gain of $147 million related to the revaluation of call rights held by Power 
Sustainable, a portion of which were exercised during the quarter, and iii) an expense of $5  million related to the increase in amounts payable for long-term 
incentive plans and deferred taxes. The Corporation also recorded a reversal of a previously recognized impairment on its investment in GP Strategies of 
$33 million in the second quarter of 2021. Includes the Corporation’s share of earnings (losses) of Lion, LMPG, Peak, and GP Strategies (up to the date of disposal in 
the fourth quarter of 2021). 

[ ] Consists mainly of foreign exchange gains or losses and interest on cash and cash equivalents. The second quarter of 2022 includes a gain on disposal of a 
property by the Corporation of $7 million. 
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Adjustments (excluded from adjusted net earnings)  

S A G A R D   
On May 3, 2021, Wealthsimple announced that it had signed a $750 million equity offering. As a result, in the first quarter of 
2021, the fair value increase in Wealthsimple resulted in a charge related to the remeasurement of the put right liability of 
certain of the non-controlling interests in Wealthsimple to fair value. The Adjustments of the alternative asset investment 
platform (Sagard) reflects the Corporation’s share of the charge, based on its respective interest, of $100 million ($100 million 
pre-tax). At the close of the transaction, the existing put rights held by non-controlling interests and option holders of 
Wealthsimple were extinguished. 

P O W E R  S U S T A I N A B L E  
During the first quarter of 2022, Power Sustainable recognized an impairment of $10 million on projects under construction 
which are included in direct energy infrastructure investments within the Power Sustainable platform. 

CHINAAMC 
For the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, income from ChinaAMC was $2  million, same as in the corresponding 
period in 2021. 

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2022, income from ChinaAMC was $15 million, same as in the corresponding 
quarter in 2021. 

CORPORATE OPERATIONS 
Corporate operations include operating expenses, financing charges, depreciation and income taxes. 

Operating and other expenses  
Summary of corporate operating and other expenses of the Corporation and Power Financial shown on a combined basis: 

Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June , March , June ,

Operating expenses [ ]  8 6

Financing charges [ ]  

Depreciation  

Income taxes  ( ) ( 6)

 8  6 8

[ ] During the second quarter of 2022, the Corporation attached tandem share appreciation rights to certain options, which were reclassified as cash-settled 
share-based payments. The Corporation has entered into a total return swap agreement to manage exposure to the volatility of a portion of its cash-settled 
share-based payments and related liability. The second quarter of 2022 includes a net gain of $17 million arising from the change in fair value of the liability, 
net of the loss on the remeasurement to fair value of the derivative instrument. 

[ ] Financing charges related to Power Financial were $9 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, same as in 2021. 

INCOME TAXES 
In the second quarter of 2022, a deferred tax expense was recognized through other comprehensive income in relation to 
unrealized gains in other comprehensive income. The Corporation had sufficient deductible temporary differences and tax 
attributes to offset these gains. The income tax recovery of $4 million in the second quarter of 2022 included a deferred tax 
recovery recognized through earnings as these deductible temporary differences and tax attributes were related to items 
recorded in the statement of earnings. 

In the second quarter of 2021, the income tax recovery mainly related to the recognition of tax attributes to offset the realized 
gain on the secondary sale of Wealthsimple; the realized gain and the related income tax expense were recognized through 
the statement of changes in equity. 

In the first quarter of 2021, the Corporation had an income tax expense of $3  million, primarily related to the deferred tax 
expense resulting from the realization of gains recorded in earnings on the sale of investments, and was a reclassification of 
the income tax previously recorded in other comprehensive income at December 31, 2020.  
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ADJUSTMENTS (EXCLUDED FROM ADJUSTED NET EARNINGS) 

The following table presents the Corporation’s share of Adjustments: 
Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June , March , June ,

Lifeco [ ]  

Actuarial assumption changes and  
other management actions  8  (6)

Market-related impacts on liabilities  ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Transaction costs related to acquisitions  ( ) ( ) ( 8) ( ) ( 6)

Restructuring and integration charges  ( ) ( 8) ( ) (8) ( )

Tax legislative changes impact on liabilities ( )  ( )

 (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( 8)

Effect of consolidation [ ] (8)  

 (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( )

IGM [ ]  

Effect of consolidation [ ] ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

 ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

Alternative and other investments  

Remeasurements of Wealthsimple’s put right liability ( )  

Impairment charges on direct energy  
infrastructure investments ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( 6)

[ ] As reported by Lifeco and IGM. 

[ ] The Effect of consolidation reflects (i) the elimination of intercompany transactions, (ii) the application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments 
under common control to the Adjustments reported by Lifeco and IGM, which includes an allocation of the Adjustments related to the fintech portfolio based 
on their respective interest, (iii) IGM’s share of Lifeco’s Adjustments, in accordance with the Corporation’s definition of Adjusted net earnings, and (iv) 
adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 for IGM. 

Effect of consolidation 
The Effect of consolidation in the six-month period ended June 30, 2021 mainly relates to the remeasurements of the put 
right liability of certain of the non-controlling interests in Wealthsimple to fair value.  

On May 3, 2021, Wealthsimple announced that it had signed a $750 million equity offering. As a result, in the first 
quarter of 2021, the fair value increase in Wealthsimple resulted in a charge related to the remeasurement of the put 
right liability to fair value. The Corporation’s share of the charge on the remeasurement of the put right liability was 
$20  million ($20  million pre-tax) and is included as an Adjustment. The charge has been reflected in the 
Adjustments of the alternative asset investment platforms, Lifeco and IGM, based on their respective interest in the 
Effect of consolidation, of $100 million, $11 million and $97 million, respectively. At the close of the transaction, the 
existing put rights held by non-controlling interests and option holders of Wealthsimple were extinguished. 

 
For additional information on each of Lifeco, IGM and Alternative and Other investments, refer to their respective 
“Adjustments” sections above. Also refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial Measures” in this MD&A. 
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Financial Position 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONDENSED) 
The condensed balance sheets of Lifeco, IGM and the investment platforms and other, as well as Power Corporation’s and 
Power Financial’s combined non-consolidated balance sheet (“holding company”), are presented below. These tables 
reconcile the holding company balance sheet with the condensed consolidated balance sheets of the Corporation at June 30, 
2022 and December 31, 2021. These non-consolidated balance sheets are included in Note 19 of the Interim Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

 June , 

Lifeco IGM

Investment 
Platforms and 

Other [ ]
Holding 

company 
Effect of 

consolidation 

Power
Corporation

Consolidated
balance sheet

Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents , 6 6 ,  ( ) ,6
Investments ,866 , 8 ,8  ,
Investments in publicly traded operating 

companies, investment platforms and other:   
Lifeco and IGM , ,  ( ,6 6)
GBL [2] , 6 , 6
Other  8 ,  ( ,6 )

Investments in jointly controlled  
corporations and associates 8 , , 8 8 ( ) ,

Funds held by ceding insurers , 8  , 8
Reinsurance assets ,66  ,66
Other assets 6,6 , , 6  ( ) ,
Intangible assets [3] 6, , 6  ( ) 8,
Goodwill [3] , ,8  6 , 8
Investments on account of  

segregated fund policyholders ,  ,
Total assets 6 , , 8 , ,  ( , ) ,

Liabilities   
Insurance and investment  

contract liabilities , 8  , 8
Obligations to securitization entities ,66  ,66
Power Corporation’s debentures and  

other debt instruments 6  6
Non-recourse debentures and  

other debt instruments [4] , 66 , ,  (88) , 8
Other liabilities  , , 88 , 6 ,  ( ) , 6
Insurance and investment contracts on account 

of segregated fund policyholders ,  ,
Total liabilities 6 , , , ,  ( ) 6 8, 8
Equity   
Limited recourse capital notes ,  ( , )
Perpetual preferred shares ,8  ( ,8 )
Non-participating shares ,  ( , )
Participating shareholders’ equity  , , 8 , , 6 ( , ) , 6
Non-controlling interests [5, ]  , 8 6  ,8 ,
Total equity , 6, , , 6 ( ,6 ) ,
Total liabilities and equity 6 , , 8 , ,  ( , ) ,

[ ] Includes consolidated investment funds and their controlled investments, Wealthsimple and standalone businesses. 
[ ] Indirectly held through Parjointco. 
[ ] The assets of Lifeco and IGM exclude the corporate allocation of goodwill and intangible assets. 
[ ] The debentures and other debt instruments of controlled and consolidated investments are secured by their assets which are non-recourse to the Corporation. 
[ ] Lifeco’s non-controlling interests include the Participating Account surplus in subsidiaries. 
[6] Non-controlling interests in Effect of consolidation represent non-controlling interests in the equity of Lifeco, IGM and controlled and consolidated 

investments.  
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 December , 

Lifeco IGM

Investment 
Platforms and 

Other [ ]
Holding 

company 
Effect of 

consolidation 

Power
Corporation

Consolidated
balance sheet

Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 6, , ,6   ( ) ,
Investments 8,8 8 , 88 , 6 6   8 6,6
Investments in publicly traded operating 

companies, investment platforms and other:   
Lifeco and IGM 66 , 8,   ( , )
GBL [2] , 8  , 8
Other  6 , 6 , 8  ( , )

Investments in jointly controlled  
corporations and associates , 8 , 66  ( ) , 6

Funds held by ceding insurers ,   ,
Reinsurance assets , 8   , 8
Other assets , 8 , ,8   ( ) ,
Intangible assets [3] , , 68   ( ) ,6
Goodwill [3] , 8 ,8   6 , 68
Investments on account of  

segregated fund policyholders ,   ,
Total assets 6 , 88 ,66 , , 6  ( ,6 ) 66 ,6

Liabilities   
Insurance and investment  

contract liabilities ,8   ,8
Obligations to securitization entities , 8   , 8
Power Corporation’s debentures and  

other debt instruments 6   6
Non-recourse debentures and  

other debt instruments [4] 8,8 , , 6   (88) ,
Other liabilities  , , ,8 ,   ( 8 ) ,
Insurance and investment contracts on account 

of segregated fund policyholders ,   ,
Total liabilities 6 , , 6 , , 8   ( 68) 6 ,
Equity   
Limited recourse capital notes ,   ( , )
Perpetual preferred shares ,8   ( ,8 )
Non-participating shares ,   ( , )
Participating shareholders’ equity  , 6 6, , , 8   ( ,8 6) , 8
Non-controlling interests [5, ]  , 6 8   , , 8
Total equity , 8 6, ,6 8 , 6   ( , ) , 8
Total liabilities and equity 6 , 88 ,66 , , 6  ( ,6 ) 66 ,6

[ ] Includes consolidated investment funds and their controlled investments, Wealthsimple and standalone businesses. 

[ ] Indirectly held through Parjointco. 

[ ] The assets of Lifeco and IGM exclude the corporate allocation of goodwill and intangible assets. 

[ ] The debentures and other debt instruments of controlled and consolidated investments are secured by their assets which are non-recourse to the Corporation. 

[ ] Lifeco’s non-controlling interests include the Participating Account surplus in subsidiaries. 

[6] Non-controlling interests in Effect of consolidation represent non-controlling interests in the equity of Lifeco, IGM and controlled and consolidated investments. 
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Total assets of the Corporation increased to $700.5 billion at June 30, 2022, compared with $ 1.  billion at December 31, 
2021, primarily due to the Prudential acquisition during the second quarter of 2022, partially offset by the impacts of market 
and currency movements. The acquisition of the full-service retirement business of Prudential added $11  billion in total 
assets as at June 30, 2022. 

Liabilities increased to $ 5 .0 billion at June 30, 2022, compared with $ 17.9 billion at December 31, 2021, mainly due to the 
following, as disclosed by Lifeco:  

Insurance and investment contract liabilities increased by $23.4 billion. The increase was primarily due to $44.3 billion 
acquired through the Prudential acquisition, partially offset by fair value adjustments.  
Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders increased by $14.1 billion, primarily 
due to the segregated fund policyholders acquired through the Prudential acquisition of $79.5 billion. The increase 
was partially offset by net market value declines of $ 1.9 billion, negative impacts of currency movement of $5.1 billion 
and net withdrawals (net of policyholder deposits) of $3.0 billion. 

Parts B and C of this MD&A include a discussion of the consolidated balance sheets of Lifeco and IGM, respectively. 
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HOLDING COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS 
In the holding company balance sheets shown below, Power Corporation and Power Financial are shown on a combined 
basis; investments in subsidiaries are presented using the equity method. These non-consolidated balance sheets isolate 
the holding company balance sheets which are included in Note 19 of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements. This 
presentation assists the reader by identifying changes in the combined non-consolidated balance sheet of Power 
Corporation and Power Financial, and presents the investment activities of the holding company as well as the corporate 
assets and liabilities managed, including the cash and non-participating shares.   

June , 
 

December ,

Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents [ ] ,   ,6

Investment in:   

Lifeco ,66   , 6

IGM ,   ,

GBL [ ] , 6  , 8

Alternative and other investments [ ] , 6  , 8

ChinaAMC 8  66

Other assets [4]   

Total assets ,   , 6

Liabilities   

Debentures and other debt instruments [5] 8   8

Other liabilities  ,   ,

Total liabilities ,   , 8

Equity   

Perpetual preferred shares [6] ,8   ,8

Non-participating shares   

Participating shareholders’ equity , 6  , 8

Total equity , 6  , 6

Total liabilities and equity ,   , 6

[ ] Cash equivalents include $472 million ($4 0 million at December 31, 2021) of fixed income securities with maturities of more than three months. In accordance 
with IFRS, these are classified as investments in the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements.  

[ ] Indirectly held through Parjointco. 

[ ] Includes Power Financial’s investments in Portage I, Portage II and Wealthsimple, presented using the equity method. 

[ ] Includes $ 3 million of dividends declared in the second quarter by IGM (same as at December 31, 2021) and received by Power Financial on July 29, 2022. 

[ ] Includes Power Financial’s debentures of $250 million at June 30, 2022 (same as at December 31, 2021). 

[6] Perpetual preferred shares issued by Power Financial. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents held by the Corporation and Power Financial amounted to $1,492 million at June 30, 2022, 
compared with $1, 35 million at the end of December 2021 (see “Holding Company Statements of Cash Flows” below for 
details).  

The cash and cash equivalents held by Sagard and Power Sustainable including Power Sustainable China amounted to 
$259 million at June 30, 2022 ($441 million at December 31, 2021) and are included in the carrying amount of the investment 
platforms. 
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Investments 

INVESTMENTS IN LIFECO, IGM AND GBL (AT EQUITY)  
The table below presents a continuity of the investments in Lifeco, IGM and GBL (held through Parjointco), which are 
presented using the equity method for the purposes of the non-consolidated presentation. The carrying value of the 
investments in Lifeco, IGM and GBL, accounted for using the equity method, decreased to $22,435 million at June 30, 2022, 
compared with $23,20  million at December 31, 2021: 

 Lifeco IGM GBL [ ] Total

Carrying value, at the beginning of the year , 6 , , 8 , 8

Contribution from adjusted net earnings (loss) , 6 ( ) , 8

Contribution from adjustments (8 )  (8 )

Share of other comprehensive income (loss) [ ] ( ) ( , ) ( , )

Dividends (6 8) ( 66) (8 ) (8 8)

Effect of changes in ownership and other  8 ( 6) 8 8

Carrying value, at June ,  ,66 , , 6 ,

[ ] Indirectly held through Parjointco. 

[ ] GBL’s share of other comprehensive income (loss) includes $7 1 million of unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments and $237 million of unrealized 
losses on foreign currency translation. 

ALTERNATIVE AND OTHER INVESTMENTS 
The table below presents the components of the alternative and other investments. The asset management companies, 
controlled and consolidated investments held through the investment platforms and certain controlled standalone 
businesses are presented using the equity method for the purposes of the non-consolidated presentation. 

Alternative and other investments are comprised of the following investments: 

Carrying value, as at 
June , December ,

Asset management companies  

Sagard 6

Power Sustainable  8

Investing activities 

Sagard [ ] 6 6

Power Sustainable , 6 , 68

Other 

Standalone businesses 6

Other [ ] 8 6

 , 6 , 8

[ ] Includes Power Financial’s investments in Portage I, Portage II and Wealthsimple. 

[ ] Includes portfolio investments in private investment funds and a select number of hedge funds. These investments are classified as available for sale and are 
carried at fair value. At June 30, 2022, the Corporation had outstanding commitments to make future capital contributions to these funds for an aggregate 
amount of $25 million. 

INVESTMENT IN CHINAAMC  
The carrying value of Power Corporation’s investment in ChinaAMC was $73  million at June 30, 2022, compared with 
$7  million at December 31, 2021. 

Carrying value, at the beginning of the year 66

Dividends ( )

Share of net earnings  8

Share of other comprehensive income (loss) ( )

Carrying value, at June ,  8

ChinaAMC’s total assets under management, excluding subsidiary assets under management, were RMB¥1,740 billion 
(C$335 billion) at June 30, 2022, compared with RMB¥1, 2 billion (C$331 billion) at December 31, 2021. 
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EQUITY 

Non-participating shares 
Non-participating (preferred) shares of the Corporation consist of five series of First Preferred Shares with an aggregate stated 
capital of $950 million at June 30, 2022 ($954 million at December 31, 2021), all of which are non-cumulative. All series are 
perpetual preferred shares and are redeemable in whole or in part solely at the Corporation’s option from specified dates. 

On January 15, 2022, the Corporation redeemed all ,100 of its outstanding cumulative redeemable First Preferred Shares 
19  Series for $50.00 per share. 

The terms and conditions of the outstanding First Preferred Shares are described in Note 1  of the Corporation’s 2021 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Participating shareholders’ equity 
Participating shareholders’ equity was $22,21  million at June 30, 2022, compared with $23,3 5 million at December 31, 2021: 

Six months ended June   

Participating shareholders’ equity, at the beginning of the year , 8  ,

Changes in participating shares  
Purchase for cancellation of subordinate voting shares under NCIB ( ) ( )

Issuance of subordinate voting shares (1, 77,27  shares in 2022 and 2, 07,07  shares in 2021)  
under the Corporation’s Executive Stock Option Plans  

 (8 )

Changes in retained earnings  

Net earnings before dividends on non-participating shares ,  , 6

Dividends declared (6 ) (6 )

Purchase for cancellation of subordinate voting shares under NCIB and other [ ] ( ) ( )

Reclassification of options as cash-settled share-based payments [ ] ( )

Effects of changes in capital and ownership of subsidiaries, and other [ ]  68

 6  ,

Changes in reserves  

Other comprehensive income (loss)  

Foreign currency translation adjustments ( ) ( 6)

Investment revaluation and cash flow hedges ( ) ( 8)

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit plans   

Share of Parjointco and other jointly controlled corporations and associates ( , )

Share-based compensation, including the effect of subsidiaries ( 6)

 ( , ) ( )

Participating shareholders’ equity, at June  , 6 ,6

[ ] Includes the impact of the purchase obligation under the automatic share purchase plan at June 30, 2022. 

[ ] During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Corporation attached tandem share appreciation rights to 13, 21, 0  options and reclassified the options as 
cash-settled share-based payments. See Note 11 to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 

[ ] Includes the effect of the change in ownership of Wealthsimple recognized in the participating shareholders’ equity in the second quarter of 2021. 

 

The book value per participating share (refer to the section “Other Measures”) of the Corporation was $33.1  at June 30, 2022, 
compared with $34.5  at the end of 2021. 
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Outstanding number of participating shares 
At the date of this MD&A, there were 5 , 0,  participating preferred shares of the Corporation outstanding (same as at 
December 31, 2021), and 13,9 7,  subordinate voting shares of the Corporation outstanding, compared with 21,75 ,0  
at December 31, 2021. 

At the date of this MD&A, options were outstanding to purchase up to an aggregate of 25,57 ,573 subordinate voting shares 
of the Corporation, which includes 10,902,593 subordinate voting shares issuable pursuant to Replacement Options, under 
the Corporation’s Executive Stock Option Plan and the Power Financial Employee Stock Option Plan. 

Normal Course Issuer Bids  
The Corporation’s Normal Course Issuer Bid (NCIB) that commenced on February 25, 2021 expired on February 2 , 2022. The 
Corporation purchased 703,700 Subordinate Voting Shares pursuant to this bid in the first quarter of 2022, for a total of 
$29 million (3,325,100 Subordinate Voting Shares for a total of $121 million during the first and second quarters of 2021).  

On February 2 , 2022, the Corporation commenced a new NCIB which is effective until the earlier of February 27, 2023 and 
the date on which the Corporation has purchased the maximum permitted number of Subordinate Voting Shares. Pursuant 
to this bid, the Corporation may purchase up to 30 million of its Subordinate Voting Shares outstanding (representing 
approximately 5.3% of the public float of Subordinate Voting Shares outstanding at February 1 , 2022) at market prices. At 
June 30, 2022, the Corporation had repurchased ,052, 00 Subordinate Voting Shares for a total of $305 million. 

The Corporation has entered into an automatic share purchase plan (ASPP) with a designated broker to allow for the 
purchase of Subordinate Voting Shares under the NCIB at times when the Corporation would ordinarily not be permitted 
to purchase shares due to regulatory restrictions or self-imposed blackout periods. Outside of these predetermined blackout 
periods, purchases under the Corporation’s NCIB will be completed at management’s discretion. The ASPP has been 
effective since February 2 , 2022, the commencement date of the NCIB.   

S U B S E Q U E N T  E V E N T  
Subsequent to quarter-end, the Corporation purchased, as of August 5, 2022, an additional 709,000 Subordinate Voting 
Shares pursuant to its current NCIB, for a total of $2  million. 

Adjusted Net Asset Value 

Adjusted net asset value is presented for Power Corporation and represents management’s estimate of the fair value of the 
participating shareholders’ equity of the Corporation. Adjusted net asset value is the fair value of the assets of the combined 
Power Corporation and Power Financial holding company balance sheet less their net debt and preferred shares. In 
determining the fair value of assets, investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled corporations and associates are adjusted 
to fair value as follows:  

Investments in publicly traded companies are valued at their market value, measured as the closing share price on
the reporting date; 
Investments in private entities are valued at fair value based on management’s estimate using consistently applied
valuation models either based on a valuation multiple or discounted cash flows. Certain valuations are prepared by 
external valuators or subject to review by external valuators. Market-comparable transactions are generally used to 
corroborate the estimated fair value. The value of investments in private entities is presented net of any management 
incentives; 
Investments in investment funds are valued at the fair value reported by the fund which is net of carried interest or
other incentives. 

The presentation of the investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled corporations and associates at fair value is not in 
accordance with IFRS; adjusted net asset value is a non-IFRS financial measure. Refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial 
Measures”.
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The Corporation’s adjusted net asset value is presented on a look-through basis. The combined holding company balance 
sheets of Power Corporation and Power Financial include the investments held in public entities through Power Financial 
(Lifeco, IGM and GBL), and the net debt and preferred shares of Power Financial. The adjusted net asset value per share, a non-
IFRS ratio, was $41.49 at June 30, 2022, compared with $52. 0 at December 31, 2021, representing a decrease of 21.1%. The 
Corporation’s book value per participating share (refer to the section “Other Measures”) was $33.1  at June 30, 2022, 
compared with $34.5  at December 31, 2021, representing a decrease of 4.0%. 

 June , December , 
 Holding

company
balance sheet

Fair value
adjustment

Adjusted net 
asset value

Holding 
company

balance sheet
Fair value 

adjustment
Adjusted net 

asset value

Assets 
Investments 

Power Financial 
Lifeco ,66 ,8 , , 6 8, ,
IGM , , , , , 6,
GBL [ ] , 6 (8 ) , 8 , 8 ( , ) ,

Alternative and other investments
Asset management companies [ ]  

Sagard 6 6
Power Sustainable 8 8

Investing activities 
Sagard [ ] 6 8 6 6 6 ,
Power Sustainable , 6 8 , , 68 6 ,6
Other  

Standalone businesses [4] 6 6 6 ,
Other 8 8 6 6

ChinaAMC 8 , 66 8 ,
Cash and cash equivalents  , , ,6 ,6
Other assets  
Total assets , ,6 , , 6 , ,

Liabilities and  
non-participating shares 

Debentures and other debt instruments 8 8 8 8
Other liabilities [ , 6]  , , 68 , ,
Non-participating shares and  

perpetual preferred shares , 8 , 8 , 8 , 8
Total liabilities and  

non-participating shares , , , ,8

Net value 
Participating shareholders’  

equity / Adjusted net asset value , 6 , 6 , 8 , 8 , , 8

Per share . 8 . . 6 .6

[ ] The Corporation’s share of GBL’s reported net asset value was $3.  billion (€2.7 billion) at June 30, 2022 ($4.7 billion (€3.3 billion) at December 31, 2021). 
[ ] The management companies of the investment funds are presented at their carrying value and are primarily composed of cash and net carried interest receivable. 
[ ] Includes the Corporation’s investments in Portage I, Portage II and Wealthsimple, held by Power Financial. 
[4] An additional deferred tax liability of $1  million has been included in the adjusted net asset value at June 30, 2022 ($ 0 million at December 31, 2021) with 

respect to the investments in standalone businesses at fair value, without taking into account possible tax planning strategies. The Corporation has tax 
attributes (not otherwise recognized on the balance sheet) that could be available to minimize the tax if the Corporation were to dispose of its interests held 
in the standalone businesses. 

[ ] In accordance with IAS 12, Income Taxes, no deferred tax liability is recognized with respect to temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and jointly controlled corporations as the Corporation is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable 
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. If the Corporation were to dispose of an investment in a subsidiary or a jointly controlled 
corporation, income taxes payable on such disposition would be minimized through careful and prudent tax planning and structuring, as well as with the use 
of available tax attributes not otherwise recognized on the balance sheet, including tax losses, tax basis, safe income and foreign tax surplus associated with 
the subsidiary or jointly controlled corporation. 

[6] At June 30, 2022, an additional deferred tax liability of $41 million ($39 million at December 31, 2021) has been included in the adjusted net asset value related 
to the investment in ChinaAMC at fair value. 

Investments measured at market value and cash represent 9.3% of the total assets at fair value at June 30, 2022  
( 9.7% at December 31, 2021). A 10% change in the market value of publicly traded investments would result in a change in 
the Corporation’s adjusted net asset value of $2, 1  million or $4.21 per share.  
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Cash Flows 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONDENSED)  
The condensed cash flows of Lifeco, IGM and the Corporation’s investment platforms, as well as the holding company cash 
flows of Power Corporation and Power Financial on a combined basis, are presented below. These tables reconcile the non-
consolidated statement of cash flows to the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows of the Corporation for the  
six-month periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. These non-consolidated statements of cash flows are included in Note 19 
of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements. This presentation assists the reader in assessing the cash flows of the 
holding company.  

Six months ended June   

 Lifeco IGM

Investment 
Platforms and 

Other [ ]
Holding 

company 
Effect of 

consolidation 

Power 
Corporation

Consolidated

Cash flows from:   

Operating activities , 8 8   ( ) ,

Financing activities ( 8 ) ( ,  ) 8 ( 6 )

Investing activities ( , ) 6 (686)   ( ) ( , )

Effect of changes in exchange rates  
on cash and cash equivalents (6 ) ( )   ( ) ( )

Increase (decrease) in cash and  
cash equivalents  ,8 ( ) ( ) (  ) ( ) ,

Cash and cash equivalents, at the  
beginning of the year 6, , ,6   ( ) ,

Cash and cash equivalents, at June  , 6 6 ,   ( ) ,6

[ ] Includes consolidated investment funds and their controlled investments, Wealthsimple and standalone businesses. 

 

Six months ended June  

 Lifeco IGM

Investment 
Platforms and 

Other [ ]
Holding 

company
Effect of 

consolidation 

Power 
Corporation

Consolidated

Cash flows from:  

Operating activities ,8 8 ( ) 6  ( ) ,

Financing activities ( , 6) (8 ) 8 (8 ) , ( )

Investing activities ( , )  ( , ) ( , 6 )

Effect of changes in exchange rates  
on cash and cash equivalents ( ) ( 8)  ( )

Increase (decrease) in cash and  
cash equivalents  ( , 8)  ( )

Cash and cash equivalents, at the  
beginning of the year , 6 , 6 ( ) ,

Cash and cash equivalents, at June  6, 8 6 ,  ( 6) ,6 8

[ ] Includes consolidated investment funds and their controlled investments, Wealthsimple and standalone businesses. 

Consolidated cash and cash equivalents increased by $1,130 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared 
with a decrease of $412 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

Operating activities produced a net inflow of $4,105 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with a 
net inflow of $3,072 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 
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Cash flows from financing activities, which include the issuance and repayment of capital instruments, the issuance and 
repurchase of participating and preferred shares, issuance of common shares and limited-life fund and redeemable units 
by subsidiaries, dividends paid on the participating and non-participating shares of the Corporation, and dividends paid by 
subsidiaries to non-controlling interests and increases and repayments of obligations to securitization entities by IGM, 
represented a net outflow of $4 3 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with a net outflow of 
$594 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

Cash flows from investing activities resulted in a net outflow of $2,439 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, 
compared with a net outflow of $2,7 0 million in the corresponding period in 2021.  

Parts B and C of this MD&A include a discussion of the cash flows of Lifeco and IGM, respectively. 

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
As Power Corporation is a holding company, corporate cash flows are primarily comprised of dividends received, income 
from investments and income (loss) from cash and cash equivalents, less operating expenses, financing charges, income 
taxes, and non-participating and participating share dividends. 

The following combined holding company statements of cash flows of Power Corporation and Power Financial, included in 
Note 19 of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements, present the cash flows of the holding company on a non-
consolidated basis. This presentation has been prepared to assist the reader as it isolates the cash flows of the activities of 
the holding company.  

Six months ended June   

Operating activities  

Dividends   

Lifeco 6 8 

IGM 66 66

GBL 8  8

ChinaAMC  

Corporate operations, net of non-cash items [ ] ( ) ( 8)

  6

Financing activities  

Dividends paid on:   

Non-participating shares ( 6) ( 6)

Participating shares (668) (6 6)

Perpetual preferred shares (6 ) (68)

Issuance of subordinate voting shares  

Repurchase of subordinate voting shares ( ) ( )

Repurchase of non-participating shares ( ) ( )

Changes in other debt instruments  ( )

Other ( ) 

 ( , ) (8 )

Investing activities  

Distributions and proceeds from disposal of investments  

Purchase of investments ( ) ( )

Other [ ]  

  

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( ) 

Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the year ,6  , 6

Cash and cash equivalents, at June  ,  ,

[ ] Includes changes in short-term receivables from, and payables to, investment platforms. 

[ ] Includes proceeds received from the sale of a property by the Corporation. 
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Cash and cash equivalents of the Corporation and Power Financial decreased by $143 million in the six-month period ended 
June 30, 2022, compared with an increase of $144 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

Operating activities resulted in a net inflow of $770 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with a 
net inflow of $ 79 million in the corresponding period in 2021. Dividends paid by the publicly traded operating companies 
include: 

Six months ended June , June , 

(in millions of Canadian dollars; except as otherwise noted) 
Dividend 
per share

Total dividend 
received

Dividend 
per share 

Total dividend 
received

Lifeco . 8 6 8 .8 6  

IGM . 66 .  66

Total dividend received from Parjointco was $ 4 million (€ 2 million) for the period ended June 30, 2022, compared 
with $ 1 million (€55 million) for the period ended June 30, 2021. 

The Corporation’s financing activities during the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 resulted in a net outflow of 
$1,053 million, compared with a net outflow of $ 27 million in the corresponding period in 2021, and included: 

Dividends paid on non-participating and participating shares by the Corporation of $ 94 million, compared with 
$ 32 million in the corresponding period in 2021. In the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, dividends paid on the 
Corporation’s participating shares were $0.9900 per share, compared with $0. 950 per share in the corresponding 
period in 2021. 
Dividends paid on preferred shares by Power Financial of $ 7 million, compared with $  million in the corresponding 
period in 2021. 
Repurchase of subordinate voting shares of $334 million, as part of the NCIB, in the six-month period ended June 30, 
2022, compared with repurchase for an amount of $121 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 
Repurchase of non-participating shares of $4 million, compared with repurchase for an amount of $2 million in the 
corresponding period in 2021. 
No change in other debt instruments, compared with a decrease of $75 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 
Issuance of subordinate voting shares of the Corporation for $47 million pursuant to the Corporation’s Executive Stock 
Option Plan and the Power Financial Employee Stock Option Plan, compared with issuance for an amount of 
$71 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

The Corporation’s investing activities during the six-month period ended June 30, 2022 resulted in a net inflow of 
$140 million, compared with a net inflow of $292 million in the corresponding period in 2021. 

Proceeds from disposal of investments and purchase of investments are comprised of investment activities of the 
Corporation and in its investment platforms. 

The Corporation decreased its level of fixed income securities with maturities of more than three months, resulting in a net 
inflow of $  million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, compared with a net outflow of $32 million in the 
corresponding period in 2021. 
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Capital Management 

As a holding company, Power Corporation’s objectives in managing its capital are to: 
provide attractive long-term returns to shareholders of the Corporation; 
provide sufficient financial flexibility to pursue its growth strategy to invest on a timely basis in its operating companies 
and other investments as opportunities arise; 
maintain a capital structure that matches the long-term nature of its investments by maximizing the use of 
permanent capital;  
maintain an appropriate credit rating to ensure stable access to the capital markets; and 
maintain cash and cash equivalents at a minimum of two times fixed charges.  

The Corporation manages its capital taking into consideration the risk characteristics and liquidity of its holdings. In order 
to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue capital. 

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is responsible for capital management. Management of the Corporation is 
responsible for establishing capital management procedures and for implementing and monitoring its capital plans. The 
Board of Directors of the Corporation reviews and approves capital transactions such as the issuance, redemption and 
repurchase of participating shares, non-participating shares and debentures. The boards of directors of the Corporation’s 
subsidiaries, as well as those of Parjointco and GBL, oversee and have the responsibility for their respective company’s capital 
management.  

With the exception of debentures and other debt instruments, the Corporation’s capital is permanent, matching the long-
term nature of its investments. The capital structure of the Corporation consists of: debentures, non-participating shares, 
participating shareholders’ equity, and non-controlling interests. The Corporation views non-participating shares as a cost-
effective source of permanent capital. 

The Corporation’s consolidated capitalization includes the debentures, preferred shares and other equity instruments, and 
other debt instruments issued by its consolidated subsidiaries. Debentures and other debt instruments issued by Power 
Financial, Lifeco, IGM and controlled investments are non-recourse to the Corporation. The Corporation does not guarantee 
debt issued by its subsidiaries. Non-participating shares and total equity accounted for 75% of consolidated capitalization at 
June 30, 2022. 
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June , December ,

Debentures and other debt instruments  
Power Corporation 6  6
Power Financial  
Lifeco , 66 8,8
IGM ,  ,
Other [ ] ,  , 6
Effect of consolidation (88) (88)
 , 8 ,
 ,  , 8
Non-participating shares and other equity instruments  
Power Corporation  
Power Financial ,8  ,8
Lifeco ,  ,
 ,  ,
 8,  8,
Equity  
Participating shareholders’ equity , 6 , 8
Non-controlling interests [ ] ,  ,
 ,  ,
 6,888 6, 8

[ ] Includes other debt instruments of controlled and consolidated investments and standalone businesses; consists of $119 million ($72 million in 2021) of debt 
under revolving credit facilities held by the investment funds and other debt held by controlled investees, $1,55  million ($1,301 million in 2021) of project-
related debt held within the Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure platform, and $95 million ($94 million in 2021) of other debt held by standalone 
businesses. The other debt instruments are secured by the assets of the controlled investments which are non-recourse to the Corporation. See Note 9B to 
the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.  

[ ] Represents the non-controlling equity interests of the Corporation’s subsidiaries excluding Power Financial and Lifeco’s preferred shares and limited recourse 
capital notes, which are shown in this table as non-participating shares. 

Power Corporation 
The Corporation filed a short-form base shelf prospectus dated November 23, 2020, pursuant to which, for a period of 
25 months thereafter, the Corporation may issue up to an aggregate of $5 billion of First Preferred Shares, subordinate 
voting shares, subscription receipts and unsecured debt securities, or any combination thereof. This filing provides the 
Corporation with the flexibility to access debt and equity markets on a timely basis.  
On January 15, 2022, the Corporation redeemed all ,100 of its outstanding Cumulative Redeemable First Preferred 
Shares, 19  Series for $50.00 per share. 
The Corporation commenced a NCIB on February 2 , 2022 which is effective until the earlier of February 27, 2023 and 
the date on which the Corporation has purchased the maximum permitted number of subordinate voting shares. 
Refer to the section “Participating Shareholders’ Equity” for more information.  

Power Financial 
Power Financial filed a short-form base shelf prospectus dated November 23, 2020, pursuant to which, for a period of 
25 months thereafter, Power Financial may issue up to an aggregate of $3 billion of First Preferred Shares and 
unsecured debt securities, or any combination thereof. This filing provides the Corporation with the flexibility to access 
debt and equity markets on a timely basis through Power Financial.  

Lifeco 
On March 30, 2022, Great-West Lifeco U.S. LLC, a subsidiary of Lifeco, established a 2-year US$500 million non-revolving 
credit facility. The facility is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Lifeco. At June 30, 2022, the $ 45 million 
(US$500 million) facility was fully drawn, along with $41  million (US$323 million) from an existing revolving credit 
facility of Lifeco to finance a portion of the Prudential retirement services business acquisition. On July 1, 2022, 
subsequent to quarter-end, Great-West Lifeco U.S. LLC made a payment of US$150 million on its revolving credit 
facility. 

The Corporation itself is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements; however, Lifeco and certain of its 
main subsidiaries, IGM’s subsidiaries and certain of the Corporation’s other subsidiaries are subject to regulatory capital 
requirements. Parts B and C of this MD&A further describe the capital management activities of Lifeco and IGM, respectively. 
See Note 21 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 
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RATINGS  
The current rating by Standard & Poor’s (S&P) of the Corporation’s debentures is “A+” with a stable outlook. Dominion Bond 
Rating Service’s (DBRS) current rating on the Corporation’s debentures is “A” with a stable rating trend.  

Credit ratings are intended to provide investors with an independent measure of the credit quality of the securities of a 
corporation and are indicators of the likelihood of payment and the capacity of a corporation to meet its obligations in 
accordance with the terms of each obligation. Descriptions of the rating categories for each of the agencies set forth below 
have been obtained from the respective rating agencies’ websites. These ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or 
hold the securities of a corporation and do not address market price or other factors that might determine suitability of a 
specific security for a particular investor. The ratings also may not reflect the potential impact of all risks on the value of 
securities and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating organization. 

The “A+” rating assigned to the Corporation’s debentures by S&P is the fifth highest of the 22 ratings used for long-term debt. 
A long-term debenture rated “A+” is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and 
economic conditions than obligations in higher-rated categories; however, the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial 
commitment on the obligation is still strong. 

The “A” rating assigned to the Corporation’s debentures by DBRS is the sixth highest of the 2  ratings used for long-term 
debt. A long-term debenture rated “A” implies that the capacity for repayment is substantial, but of lesser credit quality than 
AA, and may be vulnerable to future events, although qualifying negative factors are considered manageable.  

The current rating by S&P of Power Financial’s debentures is “A+” with a stable outlook. DBRS’ current rating on Power 
Financial’s debentures is “A (High)” with a stable trend. 

Parts B and C of this MD&A provide information on the ratings of the debentures of Lifeco and IGM, respectively. 
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Risk Management 

Power Corporation is an international management and holding company that focuses on financial services in North 
America, Europe and Asia. Its core holdings are leading insurance, retirement, wealth management and investment 
businesses including a portfolio of alternative asset investment platforms. The Corporation, through Power Financial, holds 
a controlling interest in Lifeco and IGM and also holds a joint controlling interest in Parjointco, which itself holds a controlling 
interest in GBL. As a result, the Corporation bears the risks associated with being a significant shareholder of these operating 
companies. A complete description of these risks is presented in their public disclosures. The respective boards of directors 
of Lifeco, IGM and GBL are responsible for the risk oversight function at their respective companies. The risk committees of 
the boards of directors of Lifeco and IGM are responsible for their risk oversight. Certain officers of the Corporation are 
members of these boards and committees of these boards, including the risk committees, and, consequently, in their role 
as directors, they participate in the risk oversight function at the operating companies. Parts B and C of this MD&A further 
describe risks related to Lifeco and IGM, respectively.  

RISK OVERSIGHT  
The Corporation believes that a prudent approach to risk is achieved through a governance model that focuses on the active 
oversight of its investments. The Board of Directors and executive officers of the Corporation have overall oversight and 
responsibility for risk management associated with the investment activities and operations of the holding company and 
maintain a comprehensive and appropriate set of policies and controls.  

The Board of Directors provides oversight and carries out its risk management mandate and addresses operational risks 
primarily through the following committees: 

The Audit Committee addresses risks related to financial reporting and cybersecurity. 
The Human Resources Committee considers risks associated with the Corporation’s compensation policies and 
practices. 
The Governance and Nominating Committee oversees the Corporation’s approach to appropriately address potential 
risks related to governance matters. 
The Related Party and Conduct Review Committee reviews and considers for approval transactions with related 
parties of the Corporation.  

There are certain risks inherent in an investment in the securities of the Corporation and in the activities of the Corporation, 
which investors should carefully consider before investing in securities of the Corporation. The 2021 Annual MD&A reviews 
certain risks that could impact the financial condition and financial performance, and the value of the equity of the 
Corporation. This description of risks does not include all possible risks, and there may be other risks of which the Corporation 
is not currently aware.  

During the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, there were no changes to the Corporation’s risk oversight approach, and 
the identification and management of the specific risks, including the risks related to the COVID-19 pandemic and 
geopolitical tensions, as described in the 2021 Annual MD&A.  
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COVID-19 
Governments worldwide have enacted emergency measures to combat the spread of COVID-19. These measures, which 
include the implementation of travel bans, imposing restrictions on certain non-essential businesses, self-imposed 
quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused significant volatility in global equity markets and material disruption 
to businesses globally. Governments and central banks have responded with significant monetary and fiscal interventions 
designed to stabilize economic conditions.  

The distribution of vaccines has resulted in the easing of restrictions in many economies, though the COVID-19 pandemic 
continues to cause material disruption to businesses globally, resulting in continued economic pressures. While the 
conditions have become more stable, many factors continue to extend economic uncertainty, including the rollout and 
efficacy of vaccines, emergence of new COVID-19 variants and the durability and effectiveness of government and central 
bank interventions.  

Geopolitical Tensions 
Hostilities involving the Russian Federation and Ukraine, in which Russia launched a full-scale invasion of Ukraine on 
February 24, 2022, continue and significant measures have been announced by governments worldwide in response to the 
hostilities. These include declarations of political support, humanitarian and military assistance, broadly based limitation or 
outright prohibition of trading in goods and access to services, payment and settlement networks, as well as seizures of 
assets and other sanctions. Many foreign companies operating in Russia have announced the cessation of operations in-
country and in some cases the sale of their interests. The situation has exacerbated broader geopolitical tensions, including 
existing U.S.-China relations, and complicated ongoing efforts by central banks to normalize the monetary environment and 
counter inflation pressures already present. Ongoing hostilities have created additional supply chain pressure and price 
inflation in key commodities, including oil, industrial metals and foodstuffs, contributing to elevated financial market 
volatility and a deteriorating global economic outlook with potential for high and sustained inflation. Governments and 
central banks acknowledge the complex macroeconomic situation and are considering the interventions needed to 
stabilize economic conditions. 

The duration and full impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and the geopolitical tensions are still unknown at this time. It is 
not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of these developments and the impact on the financial results and 
condition of the Corporation and its operating subsidiaries in future periods. Refer to the section “Risk Management” in the 
2021 Annual MD&A for a summary of how the Corporation is managing the risks related to COVID-19 and geopolitical 
tensions and to the section “Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments” in the 2021 Annual MD&A, to Note 2 
of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 2 of the 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements for additional 
disclosure of the impact on the Corporation’s significant judgments, estimates and assumptions. Refer to Parts B and C of 
this MD&A for a further discussion on risk management, measurement uncertainty and the potential exposures at Lifeco 
and IGM. 
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Financial Instruments and Other Instruments 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
At June 30, 2022, there have been changes to the carrying amounts and fair value of the Corporation and its subsidiaries’ 
assets and liabilities recorded at fair value since December 31, 2021. These changes did not have a material impact on the 
financial condition of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. See Note 1  to the Corporation’s Interim Consolidated Financial 
Statements for additional disclosure of the Corporation’s fair value measurement. 

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
In the course of their activities, the Corporation and its subsidiaries use derivative financial instruments. When using such 
derivatives, they only act as limited end-users and not as market makers in such derivatives.  

The use of derivatives is monitored and reviewed on a regular basis by senior management of the Corporation and by senior 
management of its subsidiaries. The Corporation and its subsidiaries have each established operating policies, guidelines 
and procedures relating to the use of derivative financial instruments, which in particular focus on:  

prohibiting the use of derivative instruments for speculative purposes; 
documenting transactions and ensuring their consistency with risk management policies; 
demonstrating the effectiveness of the hedging relationships; and 
monitoring the hedging relationships. 

There were no major changes to the Corporation and its subsidiaries’ policies and procedures with respect to the use of 
derivative instruments in the six-month period ended June 30, 2022. The following table provides a summary of the 
Corporation and its subsidiaries’ derivatives portfolio:  

During the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, there was an increase of $9.  billion in the notional amount of derivatives 
outstanding, primarily due to increases to cross-currency swaps related to the acquisition of the full-service retirement 
services business of Prudential and regular hedging activities by Lifeco. As well, the Corporation entered into a total return 
swap to hedge the volatility of a portion of its liability related to its cash-settled share-based payments. The Corporation and 
its subsidiaries’ exposure to derivative counterparty risk (which represents the market value of instruments in a gain position) 
increased to $1,715 million at June 30, 2022 from $1,049 million at December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily driven by 
the impact of the U.S. dollar strengthening against the British pound and euro on cross-currency swaps that pay British 
pounds and euros and receive U.S. dollars. 

Parts B and C of this MD&A provide information on the types of derivative financial instruments used by Lifeco and IGM, 
respectively. 

See Note 2  to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 

 

June , December , 

Notional
Maximum
credit risk

Total 
fair value Notional

Maximum 
credit risk

Total 
fair value

Power Corporation ( )

Power Financial 6 6

Lifeco ,66 , 6 6, 6 (6 )

IGM , ( ) ,8

Other subsidiaries ,6 8 8 , 6 6

 , , , , ( 6)

 ,6 , , , ( )
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

GUARANTEES 
In the normal course of their operations, the Corporation and its subsidiaries may enter into certain agreements, the nature 
of which precludes the possibility of making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount the Corporation or 
subsidiary could be required to pay third parties, as some of these agreements do not specify a maximum amount and the 
amounts are dependent on the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be 
determined. See also Note 32 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

LETTERS OF CREDIT 
In the normal course of its reinsurance business, Lifeco provides letters of credit to other parties or beneficiaries. A beneficiary 
will typically hold a letter of credit as collateral to secure statutory credit for insurance and investment contract liabilities 
ceded to or amounts due from Lifeco. Lifeco may be required to seek collateral alternatives if it is unable to renew existing 
letters of credit on maturity. See also Part B of this MD&A and Note 32 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.   

Contingent Liabilities 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to legal actions, including arbitrations and class actions, 
arising in the normal course of business. It is inherently difficult to predict the outcome of any of these proceedings with 
certainty, and it is possible that an adverse resolution could have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial 
position of the Corporation. However, based on information presently known, it is not expected that any of the existing legal 
actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of 
the Corporation. See also Parts B and C of this MD&A and Note 31 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Commitments and Contractual Obligations 

At June 30, 2022, there have been no material changes in the contractual obligations of the Corporation and its subsidiaries 
from those reported in the 2021 Annual MD&A. 

Income Taxes   

The non-capital losses of the holding company, at June 30, 2022, were $1,097 million ($1,0 3 million for which the benefits 
have not been recognized) and are available to reduce future taxable income (including capital gains). These losses expire 
from 202  to 2042.  

The capital losses of the holding company, at June 30, 2022, were $142 million ($50 million for which the benefits have not 
been recognized) and can be used indefinitely to offset capital gains. 
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Transactions with Related Parties 

Power Corporation has a Related Party and Conduct Review Committee composed entirely of Directors who are 
independent of management and independent of the Corporation’s controlling shareholder. The mandate of this 
Committee is to review proposed transactions with related parties of the Corporation, including its controlling shareholder, 
and to approve only those transactions that it deems appropriate and that are done at market terms and conditions.  

In the normal course of business, Power Corporation and its subsidiaries enter into various transactions which include capital 
commitments to investment funds, performance and base management fees paid to subsidiaries of the group, employee 
ownership participations and loans to employees. Such transactions are at market terms and conditions and are reviewed 
by the appropriate related party and conduct review committee. 

In the normal course of business, Canada Life and Putnam enter into various transactions with related companies which 
include providing group insurance benefits and sub-advisory services, respectively, to other companies within the Power 
Corporation group of companies. Such transactions are at market terms and conditions. These transactions are reviewed by 
the appropriate related party and conduct review committee. 

Lifeco provides asset management and administrative services for employee benefit plans relating to pension and other 
post-employment benefits for employees of Power Corporation, Power Financial, and Lifeco and its subsidiaries. These 
transactions are at market terms and conditions and are reviewed by the appropriate related party and conduct review 
committee. 

IGM enters into transactions with subsidiaries of Lifeco. These transactions are in the normal course of operations and include 
(i) providing certain administrative services, (ii) distributing insurance products and (iii) the sale of residential mortgages to 
Canada Life. These transactions are at market terms and conditions and are reviewed by the appropriate related party and 
conduct review committee. 

On January 5, 2022, the Corporation and IGM announced an agreement in which IGM will acquire the Corporation’s 13.9% 
interest held in ChinaAMC. In a separate transaction, IGM will sell a 1. % interest held in Lifeco to the Corporation. Refer to 
the section “ChinaAMC”. 

See Note 30 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 

 

A 64  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A64PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A64 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TIO
N

 O
F C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

 

Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

In the preparation of the financial statements, management of the Corporation and the managements of its subsidiaries 
are required to make significant judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
net earnings, comprehensive income and related disclosures. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and areas where 
significant judgments are made by the management of the Corporation and the managements of its subsidiaries include: 
the entities to be consolidated or accounted for using the equity method, insurance and investment contract liabilities, fair 
value measurements, investment impairment, goodwill and intangible assets, income taxes and employee future benefits. 
These are described in the Corporation’s 2021 Annual MD&A and the notes to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  

IMPACT OF COVID-19 AND THE CONFLICT BETWEEN RUSSIA AND UKRAINE ON SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS   
The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to result in uncertainty in global financial markets and the economic environment 
in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries operate. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic continues to be 
unknown at this time, as is the efficacy of the associated fiscal and monetary interventions by governments and central 
banks. 

Global financial markets continued to be volatile during 2022, in part due to Russia’s military invasion of Ukraine and the 
related sanctions and economic fallout. The Corporation and its subsidiaries continue to monitor potential impacts of the 
conflict, including financial impacts, heightened cyber risks, and risks related to the global supply chain. 

The results of the Corporation reflect the judgments of the managements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries regarding 
the impact of prevailing market conditions related to global credit, equities, investment properties and foreign exchange 
and inflation, as well as, with respect to Lifeco, prevailing health and mortality experience market conditions. 

The provision for future credit losses within Lifeco’s insurance contract liabilities relies upon investment credit ratings. In 
addition to its own credit assessments, Lifeco’s practice is to use third-party independent credit ratings where available. 
Management judgment is required when setting credit ratings for instruments that do not have a third-party credit rating. 
Given rapid market changes, third-party credit rating changes may lag developments in the current environment.  

The fair value of investments (Note 1  of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements), the valuation of goodwill and other 
intangible assets, the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and the recoverability of deferred tax asset carrying values 
reflect the judgments of the managements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. 

Given the uncertainty surrounding the current environment, the actual financial results could differ from the estimates made 
in the preparation of the Corporation’s Interim Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Changes in Accounting Policies 

There were no changes to the Corporation’s accounting policies from those reported at December 31, 2021, except for: 

On January 1, 2022, the Corporation adopted the amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and 
Contingent Assets, which specify which costs should be included when assessing whether a contract will be loss-
making. The adoption of these amendments did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

The Corporation actively monitors changes in IFRS, both proposed and released, by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) for potential impact on the Corporation.  
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Future Accounting Changes 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries continuously monitor the potential changes proposed by the IASB and analyze the 
effect that changes in the standards may have on the consolidated financial statements when they become effective. See 
Note 2 to the Corporation’s 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements. The following sets out significant standards that will be 
adopted on January 1, 2023:  

Standard Summary of future changes

IFRS 17 – 
Insurance Contracts 

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts will replace IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts effective January 1, 2023.
The adoption of IFRS 17 is a significant initiative for Lifeco supported by a formal governance framework and 
project plan, for which substantial resources are being dedicated. Lifeco continues to make progress in 
implementing its project plan, and will be compliant with the standard effective January 1, 2023. 

IFRS 17 sets out the requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of 
insurance contracts a company issues and reinsurance contracts it holds. 

The future profit for providing insurance coverage (including impacts of new business) is reflected on the 
initial recognition of insurance contract liabilities and then recognized in profit or loss over time as the 
insurance services are provided. As a result of the new valuation methodologies required under IFRS 17, Lifeco 
expects its insurance contract liabilities, including the contractual service margin, to increase upon adoption. 
The shareholders’ equity of the Corporation on January 1, 2022 is expected to decrease by % to 12% on the 
retroactive application of IFRS 17 on January 1, 2023, primarily due to the establishment of the contractual 
service margin. 

IFRS 17 will affect how Lifeco accounts for its insurance contracts and how the financial performance is 
reported in the statements of earnings, in particular the timing of earnings recognition for insurance 
contracts. The adoption of IFRS 17 will also have a significant impact on how insurance contract results are 
presented and disclosed in the financial statements and on regulatory and tax regimes that are dependent 
upon IFRS accounting values. Lifeco is also actively monitoring potential impacts on regulatory capital and 
the associated ratios and disclosures. OSFI has stated that it intends to maintain capital frameworks 
consistent with current capital policies and minimize potential industry-wide capital impacts. Lifeco 
continues to assess all these impacts through its global implementation plan; however, the change will not 
impact the economics of the affected businesses or Lifeco’s business model. See also Part B of this MD&A. 

 

IFRS 9 –  
Financial Instruments  
 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments will replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
effective January 1, 2023. The standard provides changes to financial instruments accounting for the 
following: 

classification and measurement of financial instruments based on a business model approach for
managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; 
impairment based on an expected loss model; and 
hedge accounting that incorporates the risk management practices of an entity. 

The disclosure for the measurement and classification of the Corporation’s investments provides most of the 
information required by IFRS 9. Upon adoption of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2023, the Corporation and its 
subsidiaries do not expect a material change in the level of investments. The Corporation and its subsidiaries 
anticipate electing the option of presenting comparative information about a financial asset as if the 
classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 had been applied to that financial asset in the 
comparative period, as permitted by an amendment to IFRS 17. The Corporation and its subsidiaries continue 
to evaluate the impact of the adoption of this standard with the adoption of IFRS 17. 
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

The Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and that the preparation of financial statements for external purposes is in accordance with 
IFRS. The Corporation’s management, under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. All internal control systems 
have inherent limitations and may become ineffective because of changes in conditions. Therefore, even those systems 
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and 
presentation.  

As a management and holding company, the Corporation’s business activities are carried out through its investments in 
businesses, each of which has its own management team. Accordingly, the Corporation’s management relies on the 
certifications filed by management of Lifeco and IGM pursuant to National Instrument 52-109 – Certification of Disclosure 
in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings, as well as a sub-certification process by management at its other significant 
subsidiaries and investees in order to make determinations regarding the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures 
and internal control over financial reporting.  

There have been no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting during the three-month period 
ended June 30, 2022 which have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 

LIMITATION ON DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES & INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
As permitted by securities legislation, for the period ended June 30, 2022, Lifeco’s management has limited the scope of its 
design of Lifeco’s disclosure controls and procedures and Lifeco’s internal control over financial reporting to exclude controls, 
policies and procedures of the Prudential full-service retirement services business, which Lifeco acquired on April 1, 2022.  

For the three months ended June 30, 2022, the acquired Prudential retirement services business had revenue of 
$9 2 million, net earnings of $  million post-tax including negative market-related impact on liabilities of $1  million and 
integration costs of $21 million post-tax, and other comprehensive loss of $27 million. The initial amounts assigned to the 
assets acquired, goodwill and intangible assets on April 1, 2022 and reported as at June 30, 2022 were $12 , 49 million. The 
initial amounts assigned to the liabilities assumed on April 1, 2022 and reported as at June 30, 2022 were $124,105 million, 
with the final valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed expected to occur by the end of the first quarter of 
2023. 

Power Financial Corporation 

Power Financial relies on certain of the continuous disclosure documents filed by Power Corporation of Canada pursuant to 
an exemption from the requirements of National Instrument 51-102 – Continuous Disclosure Obligations (NI 51-102) pursuant 
to Section 13.1 of NI 51-102 and as provided in the decision of the Autorité des marchés financiers and the Ontario Securities 
Commission, dated January 19, 2021, regarding Power Financial and Power Corporation. The following disclosure is provided 
further to the requirements of such decision: 

At June ,  Lifeco IGM
Corporate
and other[ ]

Effect of 
consolidation

Total 
Power Financial

Total 
Power Corporation

Total assets 6 , , 8 , ( , ) 6 ,  ,

Total liabilities 6 , , , ( ) 6 ,  6 8, 8

  

For the three months ending June ,  Power Financial Power Corporation

Cash flows from operations , 88 ,8

[ ] Includes Power Financial’s investment activities including its investment in Portage I, Portage II, and Wealthsimple. 
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Non-IFRS Financial Measures  

NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES  
This MD&A presents and discusses financial measures which are not in accordance with IFRS. Management uses these 
financial measures in its presentation and analysis of the financial performance of Power Corporation, and believes that they 
provide additional meaningful information to readers in their analysis of the results of the Corporation. The non-IFRS 
financial measures and non-IFRS ratios used in this MD&A are defined as follows: 

Non-IFRS financial measure  Definition Purpose

Adjusted net earnings 

 

Net earnings excluding Adjustments. Assists in the comparison of the current period’s 
underlying operating performance to that of 
previous periods as it reflects management’s 
view of the operating performance of the 
Corporation and its subsidiaries, excluding 
items that are not considered to be part of the 
underlying business results. 

As a holding company, management reviews 
and assesses the performance of each 
operating company’s contribution to net 
earnings and adjusted net earnings. 

Adjustments 

 

After-tax impact of any item that in
management’s judgment, including those 
identified by management of its publicly traded 
operating companies, would make the period-
over-period comparison of results from 
operations less meaningful. 

Includes the Corporation’s share of Lifeco’s 
impact of actuarial assumption changes and 
other management actions, direct equity and 
interest rate market impacts on insurance and 
investment contract liabilities net of hedging, 
and related deferred tax liabilities, as well as 
items that management believes are not 
indicative of the underlying business results 
which include those identified by a subsidiary 
or a jointly controlled corporation. Items that 
management and management of its 
subsidiaries believe are not indicative of the 
underlying business results include 
restructuring or reorganization costs, 
integration costs related to business 
acquisitions, material legal settlements, 
material impairment charges, impact of 
substantially enacted income tax rate changes 
and other tax impairments, certain non-
recurring material items, and net gains, losses or 
costs related to the disposition or acquisition of 
a business. 

Identifies items that are not considered part of 
operating performance by management, 
including items identified by management of its 
publicly traded operating companies.  

Adjusted net asset value 

 

Adjusted net asset value is the fair value of the 
assets of the combined Power Corporation and 
Power Financial holding company balance 
sheet less their net debt and preferred shares.  

The investments held in public entities 
(including Lifeco, IGM and GBL) are measured 
at their market value and investments in private 
entities and investment funds are measured at 
management’s estimate of fair value.  

Presents the fair value of the net assets of the 
holding company and is used to assist in 
assessing value. 

This measure may be used by investors and 
analysts in determining or comparing the fair 
value of investments held by the holding 
company or its overall fair value. 
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Non-IFRS financial measure  Definition Purpose

Consolidated assets and assets 
under management and 
Consolidated assets and assets 
under administration  

 

 

Consolidated assets and assets under 
management includes total assets per the 
financial statements as well as assets managed 
on behalf of clients which are beneficially 
owned by clients and are not recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements including: 

Internally and externally managed funds, 
including proprietary mutual funds, where the 
Corporation’s publicly traded operating 
subsidiaries and alternative asset investment 
platforms have oversight of the investment 
policies; and 
The fair value of assets managed on behalf of 
the clients by asset managers controlled 
within the investment platforms, including 
assets managed through a separately 
managed agreement. 

Services provided in respect of assets under 
management include the selection of 
investments, the provision of investment advice 
and discretionary portfolio management on 
behalf of clients. 

Consolidated assets and assets under 
administration includes consolidated assets 
under management and other assets under 
administration. Other assets under 
administration includes assets where the 
Corporation’s consolidated publicly traded 
operating subsidiaries and investment 
management services businesses only provide 
administration services for which they earn fees 
and other income. These assets are beneficially 
owned by the clients and the Corporation’s 
operating subsidiaries do not direct the 
investing activities. Services provided relating to 
assets under administration include record 
keeping, safekeeping, collecting investment 
income, settling of transactions or other 
administrative services. 

Consolidated assets and assets under 
management and Consolidated assets and 
assets under administration provide an 
indicator of the size and volume of the 
Corporation’s consolidated businesses, 
including the publicly traded operating 
companies and alternative asset investment 
platforms. 

Consolidated assets and assets under 
administration includes assets in which the 
Corporation’s consolidated publicly traded 
operating subsidiaries and investment 
management services businesses only provide 
administration services, which are an important 
aspect of the overall business and should be 
considered when comparing volumes, size and 
trends. 

 

 

 
 
 
Non-IFRS ratio  Definition Purpose

Adjusted net earnings per share 

 

Earnings per share calculated using adjusted 
net earnings. 

Adjusted net earnings divided by the weighted 
average number of participating shares 
outstanding. 

Assists in comparing adjusted net earnings on a 
per share basis, refer to “Adjusted net earnings” 
definition above. 

Adjusted net asset value per 
share 

 

Adjusted net asset value calculated on a 
per share basis. 

Adjusted net asset value divided by the number 
of participating shares outstanding.  

Assists the reader in comparing the adjusted 
net asset value on a per share basis, refer to 
“Adjusted net asset value” definition above. 

These non-IFRS financial measures do not have a standard meaning and may not be comparable to similar measures used 
by other entities. Reconciliations of the adjusted net asset value and the holding company balance sheet are included in 
this MD&A.  
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RECONCILIATIONS OF IFRS AND NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES  

Adjusted Net Earnings 
The following table presents a reconciliation of adjusted net earnings, a non-IFRS financial measure, to net earnings reported 
in accordance with IFRS. Adjusted net earnings is presented in the section “Contribution to Net Earnings and Adjusted Net 
Earnings”:  

Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June , March , June ,

Adjusted net earnings – Non-IFRS financial measure [ ] , ,8 6 8  ,

Share of Adjustments [2], net of tax  

Lifeco (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( )

IGM ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

Alternative and other investments ( ) ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( 6)

Net earnings – IFRS financial measure [ ] , ,  8

[ ] Attributable to participating shareholders of Power Corporation. 
[ ] Refer to the section “Adjustments” for more detail on Adjustments from Lifeco, IGM and alternative and other investments. 
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Adjustments (Excluded from Adjusted Net Earnings) 

The following table presents the Corporation’s share of Adjustments on a pre- and post-tax basis: 
Six months ended Three months ended

 
June , June , June , March , June ,

Lifeco [ ]  
Actuarial assumption changes and other management 

actions (pre-tax) 6 (6)

Income tax (expense) benefit ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Market-related impacts on liabilities (pre-tax) ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( )

Income tax (expense) benefit ( )  ( )

Transaction costs related to acquisitions (pre-tax)  ( ) ( 8) ( ) (6) ( 6)

Income tax (expense) benefit 6 

Restructuring and integration charges (pre-tax) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

Income tax (expense) benefit  

Tax legislative changes impact on liabilities ( )  ( )

 (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( 8)

Effect of consolidation (pre-tax) [ ] (8)  

Income tax (expense) benefit  

 (8 ) ( ) (6 ) ( 6) ( )

IGM [ ]  

Effect of consolidation (pre-tax) [ ] ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

Income tax (expense) benefit  

 ( ) 6 ( ) ( )

Alternative and other investments  

Remeasurements of Wealthsimple’s put right liability ( )  

Impairment charges on direct energy infrastructure 
investments (pre-tax) ( )  ( )

Income tax (expense) benefit  

 ( ) ( )  ( )

 ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( ) ( 6)

[ ] As reported by Lifeco and IGM. 

[ ] The Effect of consolidation reflects (i) the elimination of intercompany transactions, (ii) the application of the Corporation’s accounting method for investments 
under common control to the Adjustments reported by Lifeco and IGM, which includes an allocation of the Adjustments related to the fintech portfolio based 
on their respective interest, (iii) IGM’s share of Lifeco’s Adjustments, in accordance with the Corporation’s definition of Adjusted net earnings, and (iv) 
adjustments in accordance with IAS 39 for IGM. 

Consolidated Assets and Assets Under Management and Consolidated Assets and Assets Under Administration 
     2020

(In billions of dollars) Q Q Q Q Q Q   Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Total consolidated assets per financial statements 6 66 6 6 6   6  8 6

Other assets under management    8

Total consolidated assets and assets under management , , 6 , , 8 , ,   ,  8

Other assets under administration , , , , , , 66  ,  8 8

Total consolidated assets and assets under administration , 8 , , , , ,   ,  ,86 ,8 ,6
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OTHER MEASURES 
This MD&A also includes other measures, which include: 

Term  Definition 

Assets under management and 
administration 
 

 

Operating asset management and investment management services businesses within the Power 
Group, including IGM, alternative asset managers and Wealthsimple, present the total value of assets 
managed or administered which are beneficially owned by clients and are not recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements. The composition of the assets under management and 
administration is relative to the activities of the asset managers and are further defined as follows: 

Assets under management 
and advisement of IGM  

 

Assets under management are client assets where IGM provides investment management services, 
and include investment funds where IGM is the fund manager, investment advisory mandates to 
institutions, and other client accounts where IGM has discretionary portfolio management 
responsibilities. 
Assets under advisement represents savings and investment products, including assets under 
management where IGM provides investment management services, held within client accounts of 
IGM’s Wealth Management segment’s operating companies. 

Assets under management 
of alternative asset 
investment platforms  

 

 

Assets under management of investment platforms include:
Net asset value of the investment funds and co-investment vehicles managed, including unfunded 
commitments and unused permanent leverage; 
Gross asset value of investment funds managed within the real estate platform; 
Fair value of assets managed on behalf of the Corporation and clients by asset managers controlled 
within the investment platforms, including assets managed through a separately managed 
agreement; and 
Fair value of equity interests in standalone businesses. 

Assets under administration 
of Wealthsimple 

 Assets under administration includes the total value of assets held on behalf of clients and includes 
client assets in which investment management services are provided. 

Book value per participating 
share  

Represents Power Corporation’s participating shareholders’ equity divided by the number of 
participating shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 

Carried interest  

 

Carried interest is earned through a contractual arrangement between alternative asset managers 
and the funds managed in which the asset manager earns a fixed percentage of investment returns 
over a predetermined hurdle return. 

Fee-bearing capital 

 

Fee-bearing capital includes:
Total capital commitments of private equity, venture capital, and healthcare royalty funds during 
the investment period; 
Net invested capital of private credit funds and funds which have completed their investment 
period; 
Net asset value of Power Sustainable China, Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure including 
direct investments in energy assets, and funds within the real estate platform;  
Invested capital or gross asset value of assets managed through separate accounts within the real 
estate platform; and 
Fair value of assets managed on behalf of clients by the wealth management platform. 

Market capitalization 
  

Represents the aggregate market value of a company. Market capitalization is determined at a point 
in time and represents the number of outstanding shares multiplied by the closing share price. 

Net asset value reported by GBL 

 

On a quarterly basis, GBL reports its net asset value as it represents an important criterion used in 
assessing its performance. GBL's net asset value represents the fair value of its investment portfolio, 
its gross cash and treasury shares, less its gross debt.  
GBL’s investments held in listed entities are measured at their market value and its investments in 
private entities are measured using the recommendations of the International Private Equity and 
Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which represents GBL management’s best estimate. Sienna’s 
portfolio of investments is measured by adding all investments at fair value provided by the fund 
managers with Sienna’s net cash, less its net debt.  
For more information on GBL's net asset value and valuation principles, refer to its website 
(www.gbl.be). 

Net asset value of investment 
funds  

Net asset value of investment funds represents the fair value of the investments held within the fund, 
net of any liabilities. 

Net carried interest 
 

Represents carried interest earned, net of direct employee costs which are usually recognized over 
the vesting period. 

Unfunded commitments 
 

Represents the capital that has been committed by limited partners, but not called by the fund. In 
some cases, unfunded commitments include distributions, which are recallable by the fund. 
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Summary of Quarterly Results 

 
Q  Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q

Total revenues ,  , , 8, 8 , 8 , 8 ,  ,68  ,6 ,

Consolidated assets and assets under 
management [in billions] [ ] ,  , 6 , , 8 , , ,   8

Consolidated assets and assets under 
administration [in billions] [ ] , 8  , , , , , ,  ,86  ,8 ,6

Net earnings (attributable to 
participating shareholders)  8 6 6 6 6   666

per share – basic  . 8 . . . . .8 .  .  . . 6

per share – diluted  . 6 . . . 8 . 6 .8 .  .  . . 6

Adjusted net earnings (attributable 
to participating shareholders) [ ] 8  6 6 8 , 86 6  8  

per share – basic [ ] .8  . 6 . . . . 6 .  .  . .6

Adjustments [ , ] ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( )  ( )

per share – basic [ ]  ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) ( . ) .  . ( . 6)

[ ] Consolidated assets and assets under management, consolidated assets and assets under administration, adjusted net earnings attributable to participating 
shareholders and adjusted net earnings per share, and adjustments and adjustments per share are non-IFRS financial measures. For a definition of these non-
IFRS financial measures, please refer to the section “Non-IFRS Financial Measures” in this MD&A. 

[ ] The Corporation’s share of Lifeco, IGM, GBL and the Alternative and other investments’ Adjustments, including the effect of consolidation, and Adjustments of 
the Corporation are as follows:   

   
Q  Q Q Q Q Q Q  Q  Q Q

 Lifeco    

 Pre-tax (8 ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 8) ( )  ( )

 Tax effect  6 ( 8) 6 8   ( 8) 6

  (6 ) ( 6) ( 8) 6 ( ) ( )   ( )

 IGM    

 Pre-tax 6 ( ) ( ) ( ) (8) ( ) ( )

 Tax effect  ( ) ( )  8 

  6 ( ) ( ) ( 8) ( ) ( ) ( )

 GBL [ ]   ( ) ( ) ( )

 Alternative and other investments    

 Pre-tax  ( ) ( ) ( )  ( ) 

 Tax effect    

   ( ) ( ) ( )  ( ) 

 Corporate operations    

 Pre-tax  ( ) (8)  

 Tax effect    

   ( ) (8)  

 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( 6) ( ) ( )  ( )

[ ] As previously reported by Pargesa. 
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars] 

June , 
 

December 1,
1

Assets 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 1 ,6 9 9, 9
Investments [Note ]  

Bonds 1 6, 9  1 ,9
Mortgage and other loans ,9  , 66
Shares 1 ,996 1 , 1
Investment properties ,  , 6
Loans to policyholders , 96 , 19

 1,  6,6
Funds held by ceding insurers 1 , 9 1 ,19
Reinsurance assets [Note ] 1 ,66  1,1
Derivative financial instruments  1, 1  1, 9
Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates [Note ] 6, 6  ,
Owner-occupied properties and capital assets  , 69 ,6 6
Other assets  1 ,1  1 ,
Deferred tax assets  1,1  1,1 1
Intangible assets  , 1 ,6
Goodwill  1 ,19  1 ,96
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders [Note 6] 1,  , 19
Total assets , 91 661,6

Liabilities 
 

Insurance contract liabilities [Note ] 1,  ,
Investment contract liabilities [Note ] 1 , 6  1 ,
Obligations to securitization entities  ,661 ,
Power Corporation’s debentures and other debt instruments [Note ] 6  6
Non-recourse debentures and other debt instruments [Note 9] 1 , 9  1 ,
Derivative financial instruments  1,61  1, 6
Other liabilities  , 1 1 , 9
Deferred tax liabilities  1,  1, 9
Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders [Note 6] 1,  , 19
Total liabilities 6 ,  61 ,9

Equity 
 

Stated capital [Note 1 ]  

Non-participating shares 9  9
Participating shares 9,  9,6

Retained earnings 1 ,  1 ,
Reserves  1,  ,9
Total shareholders’ equity ,166 , 9
Non-controlling interests  19,  19, 9
Total equity ,  ,
Total liabilities and equity , 91 661,6
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings 

(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts] 

Three months ended June , Six months ended June ,

1 1

Revenues  
Premium income   

Gross premiums written  1 , 1 , 6 , ,19
Ceded premiums ( 1) (1, 6 ) (1,9 ) ( , 99)

Total net premiums 16, 99 11, 6 , , 9
Net investment income   

Regular net investment income ,1 1,9  ,69 ,
Change in fair value through profit or loss (11, ) ,  (19,6 ) ( ,69 )

Net investment income (loss) (9, 6) , 1 (1 ,9 ) 1, 6
  
Fee income , ,69  , , 1
Other revenues 1 1  
Total revenues 1 ,1 19, 1  ,1 1,
  
Expenses  
Policyholder benefits   

Gross  1 , 1 , 6  , ,19
Ceded (6 6) ( 19) (1, 6 ) (1, )

Total net policyholder benefits 1 , 1 11, 6 , 1 , 9
Changes in insurance and investment contract liabilities  

Gross (11, ) ,1  (19, 6 ) ( ,616)
Ceded 1, 9 , 9 1,

Total net changes in insurance and investment contract liabilities (9, ) ,1 9 (16, 1 ) ( ,1 9)
Policyholder dividends and experience refunds 9 16 6
Total paid or credited to policyholders , 6 1 , 1 11, 6 1,9
Commissions 96 9  1,9 1,91
Operating and administrative expenses  ,6 , 1  ,96 , 6
Financing charges  1 9 1 9 9 9
Total expenses 9, 19 1 , 6  1 , 6 9,16
Earnings before investments in jointly controlled corporations 

and associates, and income taxes 9 1,  1, ,
Share of earnings of investments in jointly controlled corporations 

and associates [Note ]  
Earnings before income taxes  96 1,  1,9 ,
Income taxes [Note 1 ] 11 1 6 
Net earnings  1,  1, 6 ,
  
Attributable to   

Non-controlling interests  1  6 9
Non-participating shareholders 1 1  6 6
Participating shareholders 99  1, 1,

 1,  1, 6 ,
  
Earnings per participating share [Note 1 ]   

Net earnings attributable to participating shareholders  
– Basic . 1.  1. 9 . 9
– Diluted . 6 1. 6 1. 6 .
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars] 

Three months ended June , Six months ended June ,
1 1

  
Net earnings  1,   1, 6 ,
   
Other comprehensive income (loss)   

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net earnings   
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale investments   

Unrealized gains (losses) ( ) 1   ( 9) (1 )
Income tax (expense) benefit 6 (19 ) 1
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings 6 (11  ) 11 ( )
Income tax expense (benefit) (6)   (1 )

 (19 )   ( 9 ) ( )
Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges   

Unrealized gains (losses) ( )   (1 )
Income tax (expense) benefit 1 (  ) (1 )
Realized (gains) losses transferred to net earnings 1 (1  ) 6 ( 6)
Income tax expense (benefit) ( )   ( )

 (1)   (1) 19
Net unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation 

of foreign operations   
Unrealized gains (losses) on translation  (1) (196 ) (6 ) ( 6 )
Income tax (expense) benefit 1  
Unrealized gains (losses) on euro debt designated as hedge of net 

investments in foreign operations 91 ( 6 ) 1
Income tax (expense) benefit (1 ) ( ) (1 )
 99 (  ) ( ) ( )

Share of other comprehensive income (losses) of investments 
in jointly controlled corporations and associates ( 6 ) 9  (1, ) 19

Income tax (expense) benefit –  
 ( 6 ) 9  (1, 6 )

Total – items that may be reclassified (66 )   ( , ) (9 )
   

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to net earnings   
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit plans [Note 1 ] 1 1  16 91
Income tax (expense) benefit ( ) (6 ) (1 6) ( )
Share of other comprehensive income (losses) of investments 

in jointly controlled corporations and associates   
Total – items that will not be reclassified 1 6   6 696

   
Other comprehensive income (loss) ( ) 1   (1, ) ( 1 )
   
Comprehensive income  6 1,6 1  1 , 1
   
   
Attributable to   

Non-controlling interests 16  
Non-participating shareholders 1 1   6 6
Participating shareholders 11 1,1   (16 ) 1, 6

 6 1,6 1  1 , 1
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

 Stated capital Reserves  
Six months ended  
June ,   
(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars] 

Non-
participating 

shares  
Participating 

shares 
Retained 
earnings 

Share-based 
compensation

Other 
comprehensive 

income 
[Note 16] Total  

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity
     
Balance, beginning of year 9   9,6 1 , 96 , 9 ,9   19, 9 ,
Net earnings –  – 1, 1 – – –  6 1, 6
Other comprehensive loss –  – – – (1,16 ) (1,16  ) ( 6 ) (1, )
Comprehensive income (loss) –  – 1, 1 – (1,16 ) (1,16  ) 1
     

Subordinate voting shares  
purchased and cancelled  
under Normal Course  
Issuer Bid and other [Note 1 ] –  (1 ) ( ) – – –  – ( )

Repurchase of shares of the 
Corporation for cancellation (  ) – – – – –  – ( )

Dividends to shareholders     
Non-participating shares –  – ( 6) – – –  – ( 6)
Participating shares –  – (66 ) – – –  – (66 )

Dividends to non-controlling 
interests –  – – – – –  ( 9 ) ( 9 )

Expense for share-based 
compensation [Note 11] –  – – –   1 6

Stock options exercised –  – ( ) – (  ) 
Reclassification of options as cash-

settled share-based payments 
[Note 11] –  – ( ) ( 9) – ( 9 ) – (9 )

Effects of changes in  
capital and ownership of  
subsidiaries, and other –  – 19 1 1   ( ) ( )

Balance, end of period 9   9, 1 , 6 1, 6 1,   19, ,
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (continued) 

 Stated capital Reserves  
Six months ended  
June , 1  
(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars] 

Non-
participating 

shares  
Participating 

shares 
Retained 
earnings 

Share-based 
compensation

Other 
comprehensive 

income 
[Note 16] Total  

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity
     
Balance, beginning of year 9 6  9, ,6 1 9 , ,   16, 6 ,
Net earnings –  – 1, 6 – – –  9 ,
Other comprehensive loss –  – – – (1 ) (1  ) ( 9) ( 1 )
Comprehensive income (loss) –  – 1, 6 – (1 ) (1  ) , 1
     
Subordinate voting shares  

purchased and cancelled  
under Normal Course  
Issuer Bid [Note 1 ] –  ( ) ( 1) – – –  – (1 1)

Repurchase of shares of the 
Corporation for cancellation (1 ) – – – – –  – (1)

Dividends to shareholders     
Non-participating shares –  – ( 6) – – –  – ( 6)
Participating shares –  – (6 6) – – –  – (6 6)

Dividends to non-controlling 
interests –  – – – – –  ( 6 ) ( 6 )

Expense for share-based  
compensation [Note 11] –  – – –   1

Stock options exercised –  9 – ( ) – (  ) 6 1
Effects of changes in ownership 

and capital on interest in 
Wealthsimple  –  – 9 119 – 119  6 1,

Other effects of changes in  
capital and ownership of  
subsidiaries, and other –  – ( ) –   1 9 6

Balance, end of period 9   9, 6 1 , 9 , 6 ,9   1 , 1 1, 1
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(unaudited) 
[in millions of Canadian dollars] 

Six months ended June ,
1

Operating activities   
Earnings before income taxes  1,9  ,
Income tax paid, net of refunds  ( 9 ) ( 9)
Adjusting items  

Change in insurance and investment contract liabilities (19, 9) ( , 6)
Change in funds held by ceding insurers ( ) 96
Change in reinsurance assets , 9  1, 1
Change in fair value through profit or loss 19,6  ,69
Other ( 9) ( )
 ,1  ,

Financing activities   
Dividends paid  

Subsidiaries to non-controlling interests ( 9 ) ( 6 )
Non-participating shares ( 6) ( 6)
Participating shares (66 ) (6 6)
 (1,1 ) (1, 96)

Issue of equity  
Corporation’s subordinate voting shares [Note 1 ]  1
Subsidiaries’ common and preferred shares  9  

Issuance of investment funds’ limited-life and redeemable units 66 
Repurchase or redemption of equity  

Corporation’s subordinate voting shares for cancellation under normal course issuer bid [Note 1 ] ( ) (1 1)
Corporation’s non-participating shares  ( ) ( )
Subsidiaries’ common shares (116) –

Redemption of investment funds’ limited-life and redeemable units (6) (169)
Disposition of equity interests in a subsidiary  – 
Corporation’s decrease in other debt instruments [Note ] – ( )
Non-recourse debentures and other debt instruments [Note 9]  

Increase in other debt instruments 1,  
Decrease in other debt instruments (1 ) ( )

Repayment of lease liabilities ( 9) ( )
Increase in obligations to securitization entities  
Repayments of obligations to securitization entities and other ( 66) (1, 1 )
 ( 6 ) ( 9 )
Investment activities   
Dispositions, repayments or maturities  

Bonds 16,9 9 1 ,1 9
Mortgage and other loans ,6  ,
Shares , 1  ,
Investment properties  1

Change in loans to policyholders (9 )
Acquisitions or investments  

Bonds (1 , 1 ) (16, 9 )
Mortgage and other loans ( , ) ( , )
Shares ( , 1) ( ,6 )
Jointly controlled corporations and associates  (9 ) (1 )
Investment properties ( ) ( )

Business acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired [Note ] ( ,19 ) (1 )
Acquisition of capital assets and other ( 6) ( 1)
 ( , 9) ( , 6 )
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ( ) (1 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,1  ( 1 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 9, 9 1 ,
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  1 ,6 9 9,6

Net cash from operating activities includes  
Interest and dividends received ,  , 6
Interest paid  6  1
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) 

(ALL TABULAR AMOUNTS ARE IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.) 

Note 1 Corporate Information  

Note  Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant 
 Accounting Policies 1 

Note  Business Acquisitions  

Note  Investments  

Note  Investments in Jointly Controlled Corporations  
 and Associates  

Note 6 Segregated Funds 9 

Note  Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities 9  

Note  Power Corporation’s Debentures and  
 Other Debt Instruments 91 

Note 9 Non-Recourse Debentures and 
 Other Debt Instruments 9  

 Note 1  Stated Capital 9  

Note 11 Share-Based Compensation 9  

Note 1  Capital Management 99 

Note 1  Risk Management 1 1 

Note 1  Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits 1 6 

Note 1  Income Taxes 1  

Note 16 Other Comprehensive Income 1  

Note 1  Earnings Per Share 1  

Note 1  Fair Value Measurement 1 9 

Note 19 Segmented Information 11  

 

The following abbreviations are used in these Consolidated Financial Statements:  

CALM Canadian Asset Liability Method

Canada Life  The Canada Life Assurance Company 

ChinaAMC China Asset Management Co., Ltd. 

GBL Groupe Bruxelles Lambert 

Great-West Life & Annuity Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

IGM or IGM Financial IGM Financial Inc. 

IG Wealth Management Investors Group Inc. 

Irish Life Irish Life Group Limited 

Lifeco Great-West Lifeco Inc. 

Lion The Lion Electric Co. 

Mackenzie or Mackenzie Financial Corporation 
Mackenzie Investments 

MassMutual Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company 

Northleaf Northleaf Capital Group Ltd. 

OSFI Office of the Superintendent of Financial 
  Institutions 

Parjointco Parjointco SA 

Personal Capital Personal Capital Corporation 

Portage I Portag  Ventures Limited Partnership 

Portage II Portag  Ventures II Limited Partnership  

Portage III Portage Ventures III Limited Partnership 

Power Corporation or Power Corporation of Canada 
the Corporation 

Power Financial Power Financial Corporation  

Power Sustainable  Power Sustainable Capital Inc. 

Power Sustainable Energy Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 
Infrastructure  Partnership 

Prudential Prudential Financial, Inc. 

Sagard Sagard Holdings Inc. 

TSX Toronto Stock Exchange 

Wealthsimple Wealthsimple Financial Corp. 

NOTE 1 Corporate Information 

Power Corporation of Canada is a publicly listed company (TSX: POW; POW.PR.E) incorporated and domiciled in Canada 
and located at 75  Victoria Square, Montréal, Québec, Canada, H2Y 2J3. 

Power Corporation is an international management and holding company that focuses on financial services in North 
America, Europe and Asia. Its core holdings are leading insurance, retirement, wealth management and investment 
businesses, including a portfolio of alternative asset investment platforms. 

The unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (financial statements) of Power Corporation as at and 
for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2022 were approved by its Board of Directors on August 5, 2022.  
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NOTE 2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

B A S I S  O F  P R E S E N T A T I O N  

The financial statements of Power Corporation as at June 30, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with International 
Accounting Standard 34 – Interim Financial Reporting (IAS 34) using the same accounting policies as set out in Note 2 to 
the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended December 3 , 202  except as described in the 
section Change in Accounting Policies below.  

The financial statements include the accounts of Power Corporation and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis after 
elimination of intercompany transactions and balances and consolidation adjustments.  

The financial statements of Power Corporation include, on a consolidated basis, the results of Power Financial, a reporting 
issuer in all of the provinces and territories of Canada, and Lifeco and IGM Financial, which are both public companies. The 
amounts shown on the consolidated balance sheets (balance sheets), consolidated statements of earnings (statements of 
earnings), consolidated statements of comprehensive income (statements of comprehensive income), consolidated 
statements of changes in equity (statements of changes in equity) and consolidated statements of cash flows (statements 
of cash flows) are mainly derived from the publicly disclosed consolidated financial statements of Lifeco and IGM Financial, 
all as at and for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2022. Certain notes to Power Corporation’s financial 
statements are derived from the notes to the financial statements of Lifeco and IGM Financial. 

SUBSIDIARIES 
Subsidiaries, including controlled investment funds, are entities the Corporation controls when: (i) the Corporation has power 
over the entity; (ii) it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement; and (iii) it has the ability to affect those 
returns through its use of power over the entity. Subsidiaries of the Corporation are consolidated from the date of acquisition, 
being the date on which the Corporation obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date such control ceases. 
The Corporation reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate there are changes to one 
or more of the elements of control listed above. 

JOINTLY CONTROLLED CORPORATIONS AND ASSOCIATES 
Jointly controlled corporations are entities in which unanimous consent is required for decisions relating to relevant 
activities. Associates are entities in which the Corporation exercises significant influence over the entity’s operating and 
financial policies, without having control or joint control. Investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates are 
accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the Corporation recognizes its share of net earnings 
(losses) and other comprehensive income (loss) of the jointly controlled corporations and associates, and dividends received. 
In the case of investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates held by entities that meet the definition of a 
venture capital organization, the Corporation has elected to measure certain of its investments in jointly controlled 
corporations and associates at fair value through profit or loss. 
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NOTE 2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED CORPORATIONS AND ASSOCIATES 
The financial statements of Power Corporation include the operations of the following direct and indirect subsidiaries and 
investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates:  

  % equity interest

Corporation Classification Incorporated in Primary business operation
June , December 1,

1

Holding company  
Power Corporation of Canada Parent Canada Holding company

China Asset Management Co., Ltd. [1] Associate China Asset management company . .
Power Financial Corporation Subsidiary Canada Holding company 1 . 1 .

Publicly traded companies   
Great-West Lifeco Inc. [ ] Subsidiary Canada Financial services holding company .6 .

The Canada Life Assurance Company Subsidiary Canada Insurance and wealth management 1 . 1 .
Irish Life Group Limited Subsidiary Ireland Insurance and wealth management 1 . 1 .
Great-West Life & Annuity  

Insurance Company [ ] 
Subsidiary United States Financial services 1 . 1 .

Personal Capital Corporation Subsidiary United States Financial services 1 . 1 .
Putnam Investments, LLC [ ] Subsidiary United States Asset management company 96.9 96.

IGM Financial Inc. [ ] Subsidiary Canada Wealth and asset management  66.1 6 .6
IG Wealth Management Subsidiary Canada Financial services 1 . 1 .
Mackenzie Financial Corporation Subsidiary Canada Asset management company 1 . 1 .

Northleaf Capital Group Ltd. [6] Associate Canada Alternative asset manager . .
Parjointco SA  Joint control Belgium Holding company . .

Groupe Bruxelles Lambert [ ] Subsidiary Belgium Holding company 9. 9.1

Alternative asset investment platforms  
and other   

Power Sustainable Capital Inc. Subsidiary Canada Alternative asset manager 1 . 1 .
Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure 

Partnership [ ] Subsidiary Canada Renewable energy fund . .
Potentia Renewables Inc.  Subsidiary Canada Renewable energy 1 . 1 .
Nautilus Solar Energy, LLC Subsidiary United States Renewable energy 1 . 1 .

Sagard Holdings Inc. Subsidiary Canada Holding company 1 . 1 .
Sagard Holdings Management Inc. [9] Subsidiary Canada Alternative asset manager 9 .1 9 .9
Wealthsimple Financial Corp. [1 ] Subsidiary Canada Financial services . .
Portag  Ventures LP [11] Subsidiary Canada Venture capital fund 1 . 1 .
Portag  Ventures II LP [1 ] Subsidiary Canada Venture capital fund .9 .9
Portage Ventures III LP [1 ] Subsidiary Canada Venture capital fund 1 . 1 .6
Sagard Private Equity Canada [1 ] Subsidiary Canada Private equity fund 16. .
Sagard NewGen Subsidiary France Private equity fund .6 1.6

Standalone Businesses  
LMPG Inc. Subsidiary Canada Sustainable energy . .
Peak Achievement Athletics Inc.  Joint control Canada Manufacturer of sports equipment and 

apparel
.6 .6

The Lion Electric Co.  Associate Canada Manufacturer of zero-emission vehicles . .
 [1] Power Corporation and Mackenzie Investments each hold an equity interest of 3. % in ChinaAMC. 
 [ ] Power Financial holds a . % equity interest and IGM Financial holds a 4.0% equity interest in Lifeco ( .7% and 4.0%, respectively, at December 3 , 202 ). 
 [ ] Subsequent to the reporting date, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company changed its legal name to Empower Insurance Company of America. 
 [ ] Lifeco holds 00% of the voting shares and . % of the total outstanding shares ( .2% at December 3 , 202 ). 
 [ ] Power Financial holds a 2.2% equity interest and Canada Life holds a 3. % equity interest in IGM Financial ( .7% and 3. %, respectively, at December 3 , 

202 ). 
 [6] Represents a 4 . % non-controlling voting interest. Held through an acquisition vehicle 80% owned by Mackenzie Investments and 20% by Lifeco. 
 [ ] Parjointco has a 44.3% voting interest in GBL (44.2% at December 3 , 202 ).  
 [ ] Power Corporation holds a 40% equity interest and Lifeco holds a 5% equity interest in Power Sustainable Energy Infrastructure Partnership. 
 [9] Power Corporation and Lifeco hold an equity interest of 83. % and 7.0%, respectively, in Sagard Holdings Management Inc. (8 .3% and . %, respectively at 

December 3 , 202 ). 
[1 ] Power Financial, Portage I and IGM Financial hold an equity interest of 3. %, 0.8% and 30. %, respectively, in Wealthsimple ( 3.7%, 0. % and 30.2%, 

respectively, at December 3 , 202 ). 
[11] Power Financial holds a 3.0% equity interest and Lifeco and IGM Financial each hold an equity interest of 8.5% in Portage I. 
[1 ] Power Financial, Lifeco and IGM Financial each hold an equal equity interest of 7.7% and Sagard holds a 4.7% equity interest in Portage II. 
[1 ] Sagard, Lifeco and IGM Financial hold an equity interest of 2.4%, .0% and 4.0%, respectively, in Portage III (2.8%, 0.2% and 4. %, respectively, at 

December 3 , 202 ). 
[1 ] Sagard and Lifeco hold an equity interest of 3.8% and 2. %, respectively, in Sagard Private Equity Canada (7.5% and 25.0%, respectively, at December 3 , 

202 ). 
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NOTE 2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C H A N G E  I N  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S   

The Corporation adopted the amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, effective 
January , 2022, which specifies which costs should be included when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making. The 
adoption of this amendment did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.  

U S E  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  J U D G M E N T S ,  E S T I M A T E S  A N D  A S S U M P T I O N S  

In the preparation of the financial statements, management of the Corporation and management of its subsidiaries are 
required to make significant judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
net earnings, comprehensive income and related disclosures. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and areas where 
significant judgments have been made by the management of the Corporation and management of its subsidiaries are 
further described in the relevant accounting policies in the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements and notes 
thereto for the year ended December 3 , 202 . 

Impact of COVID-19 and the conflict between Russia and Ukraine on significant judgments, estimates and assumptions  
The COVID-  pandemic has continued to result in uncertainty in global financial markets and the economic environment 
in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries operate. The duration and impact of the COVID-  pandemic continues to be 
unknown at this time, as is the efficacy of the associated fiscal and monetary interventions by governments and central 
banks. 

Global financial markets continued to be volatile during 2022, in part due to Russia's military invasion of Ukraine and the 
related sanctions and economic fallout. The Corporation and its subsidiaries continue to monitor potential impacts of the 
conflict, including financial impacts, heightened cyber risks, and risks related to the global supply chain. 

The results of the Corporation reflect the judgments of the management of the Corporation and management of its 
subsidiaries regarding the impact of prevailing market conditions related to global credit, equities, investment properties, 
foreign exchange and inflation, as well as, with respect to Lifeco, prevailing health and mortality experience market 
conditions. 

The provision for future credit losses within Lifeco’s insurance contract liabilities relies upon investment credit ratings. In 
addition to its own credit assessments, Lifeco’s practice is to use third-party independent credit ratings where available. 
Management judgment is required when setting credit ratings for instruments that do not have a third-party credit rating. 
Given rapid market changes, third-party credit rating changes may lag developments in the current environment. 

The fair value of investments, the valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets, the valuation of insurance contract 
liabilities and the recoverability of deferred tax asset carrying values reflect the judgments of the managements of the 
Corporation and of its subsidiaries. 

Given the uncertainty surrounding the current environment, the actual financial results could differ from the estimates made 
in the preparation of these financial statements. 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022  A 83

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A83PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A83 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

NOTE 2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F U T U R E  A C C O U N T I N G  C H A N G E S   

The Corporation and its subsidiaries monitor changes in IFRS, both proposed and released, by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) and analyze the effect that changes in the standards may have on the consolidated financial 
statements when they become effective. The following sets out significant standards that will be adopted on January , 2023: 

Standard  Summary of future changes

IFRS 7 – 
Insurance Contracts 

IFRS 7, Insurance Contracts, will replace IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts effective January , 2023.
The adoption of IFRS 7 is a significant initiative for Lifeco supported by a formal governance framework and 
project plan, for which substantial resources are being dedicated. Lifeco continues to make progress in 
implementing its project plan, and will be compliant with the standard effective January , 2023. 
IFRS 7 sets out the requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of 
insurance contracts a company issues and reinsurance contracts it holds. 
The future profit for providing insurance coverage (including impacts of new business) is reflected on the 
initial recognition of insurance contract liabilities and then recognized in profit or loss over time as the 
insurance services are provided. As a result of the new valuation methodologies required under IFRS 7, Lifeco 
expects its insurance contract liabilities, including the contractual service margin, to increase upon adoption. 
The shareholders’ equity of the Corporation on January , 2022 is expected to decrease by 8% to 2% on the 
retroactive application of IFRS 7 on January , 2023, primarily due to the establishment of the contractual 
service margin. 
IFRS 7 will affect how Lifeco accounts for its insurance contracts and how the financial performance is 
reported in the statements of earnings, in particular the timing of earnings recognition for insurance 
contracts. The adoption of IFRS 7 will also have a significant impact on how insurance contract results are 
presented and disclosed in the financial statements and on regulatory and tax regimes that are dependent 
upon IFRS accounting values. Lifeco is also actively monitoring potential impacts on regulatory capital and 
the associated ratios and disclosures. OSFI has stated that it intends to maintain capital frameworks 
consistent with current capital policies and minimize potential industry-wide capital impacts. Lifeco 
continues to assess all these impacts through its global implementation plan; however, the change will not 
impact the economics of the affected businesses or Lifeco’s business model. 
 

IFRS  –  
Financial Instruments  
 

IFRS , Financial Instruments will replace IAS 3 , Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
effective January , 2023. The standard provides changes to financial instruments accounting for the 
following: 

classification and measurement of financial instruments based on a business model approach for
managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; 
impairment based on an expected loss model; and 
hedge accounting that incorporates the risk management practices of an entity. 

The disclosure for the measurement and classification of the Corporation’s investments provides most of the 
information required by IFRS . Upon adoption of IFRS  on January , 2023, the Corporation and its 
subsidiaries do not expect a material change in the level of investments. The Corporation and its subsidiaries 
anticipate electing the option of presenting comparative information about a financial asset as if the 
classification and measurement requirements of IFRS  had been applied to that financial asset in the 
comparative period, as permitted by an amendment to IFRS 7. The Corporation and its subsidiaries continue 
to evaluate the impact of the adoption of this standard with the adoption of IFRS 7. 
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NOTE 3 Business Acquisitions 

LIFECO 
Acquisition of Prudential retirement services business 
On April , 2022, Great-West Life & Annuity completed the purchase of the full-service retirement business of Prudential 
Financial, Inc. through a share purchase and a reinsurance transaction. The acquisition further solidifies Lifeco’s position as 
a leader in the U.S. retirement market. Lifeco assumed the economics and risks associated with the business, while 
Prudential continues to retain the obligation to the contract holders of the reinsured portion. Lifeco acquired the business 
for $4,350 million (US$3,480 million) of total value which includes purchase consideration of $2,744 million 
(US$2, 5 million) including the base purchase price, ceding commission and working capital adjustments, and 
$ , 0  million (US$ ,285 million) of required capital to support the business. The assets acquired, liabilities assumed and 
purchase consideration paid are subject to future adjustments. The transaction was funded with $ ,500 million 
(US$ , 3 million) of limited recourse capital notes and US$823 million of short-term debt, in addition to existing resources.  

The initial amounts assigned to the assets acquired, goodwill, intangible assets and liabilities assumed on April , 2022, and 
reported as at June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Assets acquired and goodwill  
Cash and cash equivalents  
Bonds  6,
Mortgage loans  , 9
Shares  1
Other assets  6
Intangible assets  
Goodwill  1,1 9
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders  9,
  1 6, 9
  
Liabilities assumed  
Insurance contract liabilities  , 1
Investment contract liabilities   69
Other liabilities  9
Investment and insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders  9,
  1 ,1
Net assets acquired  ,

Accounting for the acquisition is not finalized, and there remains some measurement uncertainty on the acquisition and 
June 30, 2022 balances, pending completion of a comprehensive evaluation of the net assets acquired. The financial 
statements at June 30, 2022 reflect Lifeco management’s current best estimate of the purchase price allocation. Lifeco has 
identified and allocated provisional amounts for intangible assets within the purchase price allocation, net of $ 3 million 
(US$ 0 million) of amortization. Final valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the completion of the 
purchase price allocation will occur by the end of the first quarter of 2023. 

As a result, the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, representing goodwill of $ , 0  million 
(US$887 million) as at June 30, 2022, will be adjusted in future periods. The goodwill represents the synergies or future 
economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that are not individually identified and separately recognized in the 
acquisition. These synergies represent meaningful expense and revenue opportunities which are expected to be accretive 
to earnings. The goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. 

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, Lifeco incurred transaction expenses of $ 7 million (US$52 million) 
and $  million (US$54 million), respectively, which are included within operating and administrative expenses in the 
statements of earnings. 
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NOTE 3 Business Acquisitions (continued) 

Lifeco completed the acquisition on April , 2022. From April 2, 2022 to June 30, 2022, Prudential contributed revenue of 
$ 2 million (US$75  million), net earnings of $8 million (US$  million) and an other comprehensive loss of $27 million 
(US$2  million). These amounts are included in the statements of earnings and the statements of comprehensive income 
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022. 

Supplemental pro forma revenue and net earnings for the combined entity, as though the acquisition date for this business 
combination had been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period, has not been included as it is impracticable as 
Prudential had a different financial reporting basis than Lifeco. 

Acquisition of Personal Capital  
On August 7, 2020, Great-West Life & Annuity completed the acquisition of 00% of the equity of Personal Capital, including 
the 24.8% interest held by IGM prior to the completion of the transaction (approximately 2 .7% after giving effect to the 
dilution). Upon completion of the purchase price allocation in the fourth quarter of 2020, a contingent consideration earn-
out provision of $22 million was recognized, representing Lifeco’s best estimate of growth in assets under management 
metrics defined in the Merger Agreement. The contingent consideration provision was increased by $87 million in 202  for 
a total contingent consideration provision of $ 0  million at December 3 , 202 . The increase in 202  was due to growth in 
net new assets above the amount assumed at the date of acquisition. 

The Merger Agreement allows for contingent consideration of up to $22  million (US$ 75 million) based on the achievement 
of growth in assets under management metrics, payable following measurements through December 3 , 202  and 
December 3 , 2022. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration measured in accordance with the Merger 
Agreement subsequent to the completion of the purchase price allocation are recognized in operating and administrative 
expenses in the statements of earnings. During the six-month period ended June 30, 2022, Lifeco made its first payment of 
US$5  million based on assets under management metrics achieved through December 3 , 202 . The remaining contingent 
consideration provision is $45 million at June 30, 2022. 

Acquisition of Ark Life Assurance Company 
On November , 202 , Irish Life completed the acquisition of Ark Life Assurance Company dac (Ark Life) from Phoenix Group 
Holdings plc for total cash consideration of $332 million (€230 million). Ark Life is closed to new business and manages a 
range of pensions, savings and protection policies for its customers in the Irish market.  

The initial amounts assigned to the assets acquired, goodwill and liabilities assumed on November , 202 , and reported as 
at June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Assets acquired and goodwill  
Cash and cash equivalents  1
Bonds  
Reinsurance assets  1,
Other assets  9
Goodwill  1
Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders  ,
  ,
  
Liabilities assumed  
Insurance contract liabilities  1,
Investment contract liabilities   
Other liabilities  66
Investment and insurance contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders  ,
  , 1
Net assets acquired  
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NOTE 3 Business Acquisitions (continued) 

As at June 30, 2022, the accounting for the acquisition is not finalized pending completion of a comprehensive valuation of 
the net assets acquired. The financial statements at June 30, 2022 reflect Lifeco’s current best estimate of the purchase price 
allocation. Lifeco expects the final valuation of these assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the completion of the 
purchase price allocation to occur during the second half of 2022. As at June 30, 2022, provisional amounts for intangible 
assets have not been separately identified and valued within the assets of the purchase price allocation pending completion 
of the valuation exercise by Lifeco. 

As a result, the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, representing goodwill of $2  million 
(€ 5 million) on the date of acquisition, will be adjusted in future periods. The goodwill represents the synergies or future 
economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that are not individually identified and separately recognized in the 
acquisition. These synergies represent meaningful expense and revenue opportunities which are expected to be accretive 
to earnings.  

NOTE 4 Investments 

CARRYING VALUES AND FAIR VALUES 
Carrying values and estimated fair values of investments are as follows: 

 June ,  December 1, 1

 
Carrying 

value
Fair 

value  
Carrying 

value 
Fair 

value

Bonds   
Designated as fair value through profit or loss  11 , 11 , 1 ,   1 ,
Classified as fair value through profit or loss  9 9 16   16
Available for sale 11, 11, 1 ,6   1 ,6
Loans and receivables , ,91 ,6 6  6, 1

 1 6, 9 1 ,66 1 ,9   1 ,
Mortgage and other loans   

Loans and receivables , , 1 1,   , 6
Designated as fair value through profit or loss  ,6 ,6 ,66   ,66
Classified as fair value through profit or loss – –   

 ,9 , , 66  ,1
Shares   

Designated as fair value through profit or loss 1 , 1 , 1 , 9  1 , 9
Classified as fair value through profit or loss 6 6 6 6  6 6
Available for sale [1] 1, 6 1, 6 1,   1,

 1 ,996 1 ,996 1 , 1   1 , 1
Investment properties , , , 6   , 6
Loans to policyholders , 96 , 96 , 19  , 19
 1, , 6,6   9,

[1] Fair value of certain shares available for sale cannot be reliably measured, therefore these investments are held at cost. 
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NOTE 5 Investments in Jointly Controlled Corporations and Associates 

The carrying values of the investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates are as follows: 

Jointly controlled corporations   Associates
June ,  Parjointco [1] Other [ ] ChinaAMC Lion Northleaf  Other [ ] Total

Carrying value, beginning of year , 1, 9  9 ,
Investments – – – –  6 9
Disposal – – – – –  ( ) ( )
Share of earnings (losses) (1 ) 9 1 1   (1)
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) (1, 1 ) ( ) ( 9) ( ) –  (1) (1, )
Dividends and distributions ( ) ( 6) (6 ) – –  – (1 )
Effects of changes in ownership and other – – – –    1

Carrying value, end of period , 16 9 1, 9 69  619 6, 6
 

Jointly controlled corporations   Associates
June , 1 Parjointco Other [ ] ChinaAMC Lion Northleaf  Other [ ] Total

Carrying value, beginning of year , 16 1, 6 –   6, 9
Investments – 6 – 1  1
Share of earnings (losses) 6   
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) 9 ( ) ( ) ( ) –  ( ) 6
Dividends and distributions ( 1) (1 ) ( ) – –  – (1 )
Effects of changes in ownership and other – – – –  (1 ) (9)

Carrying value, end of period , 1, 1 66   9 ,1

[1] Parjointco’s share of other comprehensive income (loss) includes $78  million of unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments and $237 million of 
unrealized losses on foreign currency translation. 

[ ] Includes investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates held by entities that meet the definition of venture capital organization, which are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

THE LION ELECTRIC CO.  
Power Sustainable holds call rights to acquire up to 2,270,8 5 shares from certain existing shareholders of Lion. The fair value 
of the call rights was estimated to be nil at June 30, 2022 ($8 million at December 3 , 202 ). During the six months ended 
June 30, 2022, a loss on the revaluation of the call rights of $8 million ($ 47 million for the six months ended June 30, 202 ) 
was recorded in net investment income on the statements of earnings. The Corporation held a 35.4% equity interest in Lion 
at June 30, 2022 (same at December 3 , 202 ). 

CHINAAMC 
On January 5, 2022, the Corporation announced that it had entered into an agreement to sell its 3. % equity interest in 
ChinaAMC to Mackenzie, a wholly owned subsidiary of IGM, for aggregate consideration of $ . 5 billion in cash. After the 
transaction, the Corporation will continue to hold a 27.8% equity interest in ChinaAMC. 

IGM has agreed to sell 5,200, 2 common shares of Lifeco to Power Financial, for aggregate consideration of $575 million, 
representing a price of $37.83 per share, which is equivalent to the 5-day volume-weighted average price of the Lifeco 
common shares as at the close of business on January 5, 2022.  

These transactions are expected to close in 2022. The closing of the sale of the ChinaAMC shares is subject to the approval 
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and of certain other Chinese regulatory authorities. The acquisition by the 
Corporation of the Lifeco common shares is conditional on the closing of the sale of the ChinaAMC shares. The transactions 
were reviewed and approved by the relevant related party and conduct review committees and will not have a significant 
impact on the statements of earnings and balance sheets. 
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NOTE 6 Segregated Funds 

The following presents details of the investments, determined in accordance with the relevant statutory reporting 
requirements of each region of Lifeco’s operations, on account of segregated fund policyholders: 

INVESTMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS 

 
June ,

[1]
December 1,

1[1]

Cash and cash equivalents 1 ,  1 ,
Bonds 66,6  6 ,6
Mortgage loans ,  ,
Shares and units in unit trusts 11 ,96  1 , 6
Mutual funds 16 ,  1 ,916
Investment properties  1 ,1  1 , 6
 ,  6,
Accrued income 9  
Other liabilities ( , 6) ( ,9 )
Non-controlling mutual fund interest ,6  ,1
 1,  , 19

[1] At June 30, 2022, $ 5,3 4 million of investments on account of segregated fund policyholders are reinsured by Lifeco on a modified co-insurance basis 
($83,754 million at December 3 , 202 ). Included in this amount are $ 3  million of cash and cash equivalents, $ 2, 5 million of bonds, $ 5 million of shares 
and units in unit trusts, $52,523 million of mutual funds, $8  million of accrued income and $2  million of other liabilities. 

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS 

 Six months ended June ,
 1

Balance, beginning of year , 19 ,
Additions (deductions):  

Policyholder deposits 1 ,1  1 ,
Net investment income 1,  966
Net realized capital gains on investments , 6 ,
Net unrealized capital gains (losses) on investments (61, 1) 1 ,66
Unrealized losses due to changes in foreign exchange rates ( ,1 9) ( , )
Policyholder withdrawals (1 ,169) ( ,1 )
Business acquisition [1] 9,  –
Change in segregated fund investment in General Fund 6  ( )
Change in General Fund investment in segregated fund (1 ) (1 )
Net transfer from General Fund 9 16
Non-controlling mutual fund interest  1,1

 1 ,  9,6
Balance, end of period 1,  ,6 9

[1] Insurance and investment contracts on account of segregated fund policyholders acquired through the Prudential acquisition (Note ).  
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NOTE 6 Segregated Funds (continued) 

INVESTMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF SEGREGATED FUND POLICYHOLDERS (by fair value hierarchy level) 

 June , 
 Level 1 Level Level Total

Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders [1] ,9 1 , 9 1 , , 6

[1] Excludes other liabilities, net of other assets, of $4,042 million. 
 
 December 1, 1
 Level 1 Level Level Total

Investments on account of segregated fund policyholders [1] 9, 96,  1 , 9,9

[1] Excludes other liabilities, net of other assets, of $2,52  million. 

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, certain foreign equity holdings valued at $ 20 million were transferred from 
Level 2 to Level  ($2, 37 million were transferred from Level 2 to Level  during the year ended December 3 , 202 ), primarily 
based on Lifeco’s change in use of inputs in addition to quoted prices in active markets for certain foreign equity holdings. 
Level 2 assets include the assets where fair value is not available from normal market pricing sources, where inputs are 
utilized in addition to quoted prices in active markets and where Lifeco does not have access to the underlying asset details 
within an investment fund.  

The following presents additional information about Lifeco’s investments on account of segregated fund policyholders for 
which Lifeco has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value: 

 
June , 

 
 
 

December 1,
1

Balance, beginning of year 1 ,   1 , 6
Total gains included in segregated fund investment income   1
Purchases   
Sales (1  ) ( )
Transfers into Level  –  
Transfers out of Level  –  ( )

Balance, end of period 1 ,  1 ,

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation methodologies. Transfers out of 
Level 3 are due primarily to increased observability of inputs in valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of 
market prices with multiple pricing vendors.  

NOTE 7 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities 

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 

 June , December 1, 1

 
Gross

liability
Reinsurance 

assets Net
Gross 

liability  
Reinsurance 

assets Net

Insurance contract liabilities 1, 1 , 6 1 ,9 6 ,   1, 1 , 6
Investment contract liabilities  1 , 6 1 ,6 1 ,   1 6 1 , 9
 , 1 ,66 6,619 ,   1,1 199,69
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NOTE 8 Power Corporation’s Debentures and Other Debt Instruments  

 
June , 

 
December 1, 

1

POWER CORPORATION  
  

Debentures - unsecured   
. % debentures due April , 9 1   1
. 1% debentures due January 1,  9  9
. % debentures due July ,    

Total Power Corporation 6   6
 
The Corporation has a line of credit of $500 million bearing interest at LIBOR plus 0.70%. At June 30, 2022, the Corporation 
was not using its line of credit (nil at December 3 , 202 ). 

CHANGES IN OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENTS  
The table below details changes in the other debt instruments arising from financing activities, including both cash and 
non-cash changes: 

 
June , 

 
June ,

1

Balance, beginning of the year 6  6
Decrease in other debt instruments – ( )
Changes in foreign exchange rates and other – ( )

Balance, end of period 6  6
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NOTE 9 Non-Recourse Debentures and Other Debt Instruments 

A) POWER FINANCIAL, LIFECO AND IGM 
The following table presents the debentures and other debt instruments issued by Power Financial, Lifeco and IGM. The 

. 0% debentures of Power Financial are direct obligations of Power Financial and are non-recourse to the Corporation. All 
debentures and other debt instruments of Lifeco and its subsidiaries are direct obligations of Lifeco or its subsidiaries, as 
applicable, and are non-recourse to the Corporation. All of the debentures of IGM are direct obligations of IGM and are non-
recourse to the Corporation. 

 
June , 

 
December 1, 

1

POWER FINANCIAL   
Debentures - unsecured   

6.9 % debentures due March 11,    

Total Power Financial   

LIFECO 
  

Debentures - unsecured   
. % debentures due April 1 ,  (€  million) [1] 6   

1. % debentures due December , 6 (€  million) [1] 6   1
. % debentures due February ,  9   9

6. % subordinated debentures due December 11, 1   1
. 9% debentures due May 1 ,  9   9

6. % debentures due November , 1 196  19
6.6 % debentures due March 1,  9   9

.99 % debentures due November 16, 9   

.9 1% debentures due July ,  9   9

. 9% capital trust debentures due June ,  (face value of $1 million) 1   1
 ,1 6  , 1
Other Debt Instruments - unsecured   

Commercial paper and other short-term debt instruments with interest rates 
from 1. % to 1. 1% ( .1 % to . % at December 1, 1) 1   1

Revolving credit facility with interest equal to LIBOR plus . % 
(US$  million at December 1, 1) –  6

Non-revolving credit facility with interest equal to a floating rate based on Adjusted Term SOFR 
(US$  million) 6   –

Revolving credit facility with interest equal to a floating rate based on Adjusted Term SOFR 
(US$  million) 16  –

.9 % senior notes due August 1 ,  (US$ million) 6   6
1. % senior notes due September 1 ,  (US$ million) 1   6

. % senior notes due May 1 ,  (US$  million)   9
1. 6% senior notes due March 1 , 1 (US$ million) 1   6

.1 % senior notes due June ,  (US$  million)   

. 1% senior notes due May 1 ,  (US$  million) 6 9  6 9

. % senior notes due September 1 , 1 (US$ million) 9   9
 ,6   , 91

Total Lifeco 9, 66  ,

[1] Designated by Lifeco as hedges of the net investment in foreign operations. 
 

LIFECO 
On March 30, 2022, Great-West Lifeco U.S. LLC, a subsidiary of Lifeco, established a 2-year US$500 million non-revolving 
credit facility with interest on the drawn balance equal to a floating rate based on Adjusted Term Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate (SOFR). The facility is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Lifeco. As at June 30, 2022, the facility was fully 
drawn, along with $4  million (US$323 million) from an existing revolving credit facility, to finance a portion of the 
Prudential retirement services business acquisition (Note 3). On July , 2022, Great-West Lifeco U.S. LLC made a payment of 
US$ 50 million on its revolving credit facility. 
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NOTE 9 Non-Recourse Debentures and Other Debt Instruments (continued) 

 
June , 

 
December 1, 

1

IGM FINANCIAL   
Debentures - unsecured   

. % debentures due January 6,    
6.6 % debentures due December 1 ,  1   1

. % debentures due May 9, 1 1   1

. % debentures due December 1,  1   1

.11% debentures due March ,  1   1
6. % debentures due December 1 ,    

. 6% debentures due January ,    

.11 % debentures due December 9,    

.1 % debentures due July 1 ,    

. 6% debentures due March 1,    
Debentures of IGM held by Lifeco as investments (  ) ( )

Total IGM , 1  
 

, 1

Total Power Financial, Lifeco and IGM  1 ,   11, 66
 

CHANGES IN DEBENTURES AND OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENTS – POWER FINANCIAL, LIFECO AND IGM  
The table below details changes in the debentures and other debt instruments arising from financing activities, including 
both cash and non-cash changes: 

 
June , 

 
June , 

1

Balance, beginning of the year 11, 66 11,9
Increase in other debt instruments 96  –
Decrease in other debt instruments (19) (1 )
Changes in foreign exchange rates and other 16 ( )

Balance, end of period 1 ,  11, 6
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NOTE 9 Non-Recourse Debentures and Other Debt Instruments (continued) 

B) ALTERNATIVE ASSET INVESTMENT PLATFORMS AND OTHER – PROJECT AND OTHER DEBT 
The following table presents the other debt instruments held by alternative asset investment platforms and other. All other 
debt instruments are credit or loan facilities that are direct obligations, and secured by the assets, of subsidiaries of the 
Corporation and are non-recourse to the Corporation. 

 
June , 

  
December 1, 

1 

OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENTS   
Investment Funds and other - secured   

Revolving credit facility up to $ million, with interest equal to prime rate plus .1 % 1   
Revolving credit facility up to US$  million, with interest equal to the U.S. base rate minus . % 

(US$  million)(US$1  million at December 1, 1)   1
Revolving loan facility up to $1 million, with interest equal to banker acceptance rate plus 1. % 

or LIBOR plus 1. % (US$  million)($  million and US$11 million at December 1, 1) 6  
Revolving credit facility up to $ million, with interest equal to prime rate minus . % 1   –
Senior loan due in June 9, with interest equal to Euribor plus 1% (€ million) [1] 6  –

Renewable Energy – Project debt - secured   
Construction loan facilities due from January  to August 6, bearing interest at various rates 

equal to LIBOR plus . %, U.S. base rate plus 1. %, prime rate plus 1. % or . % 
(US$11  million and $  million at June , )(US$  million and $  million at 
December 1, 1) 6   19

Loan facilities due from March  to December , bearing interest at various rates from 
. % to 6. % 1  9

Loan facilities due from January  to March 6, bearing interest at various rates from . % 
to 6. % or LIBOR plus margin between . % and . % (US$1  million and $  million at 
June , )(US$16  million and $  million at December 1, 1)   

Mezzanine loans due from January  to June , bearing interest at various rates 
from . 6% to . % 9   9

Standalone Businesses - secured   
Revolving credit facility and term loan facilities due in November , bearing interest at various 

rates equal to U.S. base rate or prime rate plus margin from 1. % to . % 9   9

Total alternative asset investment platforms and other 1,   1, 6

[1] Represents debt held by an entity controlled by an investment fund. 

 
RENEWABLE ENERGY 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, Potentia Renewables Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, 
entered into non-recourse construction loan facilities of $572 million ($332 million undrawn at June 30, 2022). The facilities 
have with a weighted average interest rate equal to 4.4 % and mature between September 2040 and September 2042. 

 
CHANGES IN OTHER DEBT INSTRUMENTS – ALTERNATIVE ASSET INVESTMENT PLATFORMS AND OTHER  
The table below details changes in the other debt instruments arising from financing activities, including both cash and 
non-cash changes: 

 
 

June , 
 

June , 
1

Balance, beginning of the year 1, 6  1,
Acquisition  11
Increase in other debt instruments 1  
Decrease in other debt instruments ( ) (1 )
Changes in foreign exchange rates and other ( ) (9)

Balance, end of period 1,  1,
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NOTE 10 Stated Capital 

AUTHORIZED 
The authorized capital of Power Corporation consists of an unlimited number of First Preferred Shares, issuable in series; an 
unlimited number of Participating Preferred Shares; and an unlimited number of Subordinate Voting Shares. 

ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING 

 June ,  December 1, 1

 
Number 
of shares

Stated 
capital  

Number 
of shares 

Stated 
capital

 $   $
Non-Participating Shares   
First Preferred Shares   

Cumulative Redeemable   
19 6 Series – – 6,1   

Non-cumulative Redeemable, fixed rate   
Series A 6, , 1 6, ,   1
Series B , , , ,   
Series C 6, , 1 6, ,   1
Series D 1 , , 1 , ,   
Series G , , , ,   

Total Non-Participating Shares 9   9

Participating Shares   
Participating Preferred Shares , 6 , 66 , 6 , 66  
Subordinate Voting Shares   

Balance, beginning of year 6 1, 6, 9, 6 , ,   9,
Issued under Stock Option Plan 1,6 , , 6, 6  1
Purchased for cancellation under Normal Course Issuer Bid ( , 6, ) (1 ) ( , 6 ,9  ) (61)

Balance, end of period 61 ,6 6, 66 9, 9 6 1, 6,   9,

Total Participating Shares 9,   9,6
 

Non-Participating Shares 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Corporation redeemed all 8 , 00 of its outstanding Cumulative 
Redeemable First Preferred Shares, 8  Series for $50.00 per share (37,400 shares for the six months ended June 30, 202 ). 
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NOTE 10 Stated Capital (continued) 

Participating Shares 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, , 77,278 Subordinate Voting Shares were issued under the Corporation’s 
Executive Stock Option Plan for a consideration of $47 million (2, 07,07  Subordinate Voting Shares issued for the six 
months ended June 30, 202  for a consideration of $7  million). 

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, dividends declared on the Corporation’s participating shares amounted to 
$0.  per share ($0.8 50 per share in 202 ).  

Normal Course Issuer Bid 
On February 25, 202 , the Corporation commenced a Normal Course Issuer Bid (NCIB) which was effective until February 24, 
2022. During the three months ended March 3 , 2022, the Corporation purchased for cancellation 703,700 Subordinate 
Voting Shares pursuant to this NCIB for a total of $2  million (3,325, 00 Subordinate Voting Shares for a total of $ 2  million 
during the six months ended June 30, 202  under this NCIB).  

On February 28, 2022, the Corporation commenced a new NCIB which is effective until the earlier of February 27, 2023 and 
the date on which the Corporation has purchased the maximum permitted number of Subordinate Voting Shares. Pursuant 
to this NCIB, the Corporation may purchase up to 30 million of its Subordinate Voting Shares outstanding (representing 
approximately 5.3% of the public float of Subordinate Voting Shares outstanding as at February 4, 2022) at market prices. 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Corporation purchased for cancellation 8,052,800 Subordinate Voting 
Shares pursuant to this NCIB for a total of $305 million. 

In the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Corporation’s share capital was reduced by the average carrying value of the 
shares repurchased for cancellation. The excess paid over the average carrying value of stated capital was $202 million and 
was recognized as a reduction to retained earnings ($7  million during the six months ended June 30, 202 ).  

In connection with its NCIB, the Corporation has entered into an automatic share purchase plan (ASPP) with a designated 
broker to allow for the purchase of Subordinate Voting Shares under the NCIB at times when the Corporation would 
ordinarily not be permitted to purchase shares due to regulatory restrictions or self-imposed blackout periods. This resulted 
in a liability of $40 million recognized at June 30, 2022, recorded through retained earnings and included in other liabilities 
on the balance sheets. Outside of these predetermined trading blackout periods, purchases under the Corporation’s NCIB 
will be completed at management’s discretion. The ASPP has been effective since February 28, 2022, the commencement 
date of the NCIB. 

Subsequent event 
Subsequent to quarter-end, the Corporation purchased, as of August 5, 2022, an additional 70 ,000 Subordinate Voting 
Shares pursuant to its current NCIB, for a total of $24 million. 
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NOTE 11 Share-Based Compensation 

STOCK OPTION PLAN 
On June 30, 2022, there were 2 ,37 ,004 Subordinate Voting Shares and 0, 02,5 3 Subordinate Voting Shares reserved for 
issuance under Power Corporation’s Executive Stock Option Plan and under Power Financial’s Employee Stock Option Plan, 
assumed by Power Corporation (Stock Option Plans).  

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s Stock Option Plans as at June 30, 2022 and 202 , and changes during the 
respective periods then ended, is as follows: 

 June ,  June , 1

 Options
Weighted-average 

exercise price  Options 
Weighted-average 

exercise price
 $   $
Outstanding, beginning of year , 6, 1. 1, ,   .

Granted 6 , . 6 , 6  .
Exercised or surrendered for cash ( ,6 , ) . ( , , 1  ) 6.

Outstanding, end of period , , 1. 6 , 9,6 1  1.

Options exercisable, end of period 1 , , 1 1.1 1 , 6 , 1   .69
 
The exercise price of the 25,574,573 outstanding options ranges from $27.30 to $42.45. 

Tandem share appreciation rights 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, tandem share appreciation rights (TSARs) were attached to 3, 2 , 0  options. 
The Corporation has reclassified the related options as cash-settled share-based payments and recognized a liability for the 
corresponding vested TSARs which is measured at fair value at each reporting period. The reclassification as cash-settled 
share-based payments resulted in a decrease to retained earnings and to the share-based compensation reserve of 
$54 million and $3  million, respectively. The fair value of the outstanding cash-settled liability was $48 million at June 30, 
2022 (nil at December 3 , 202 ). The intrinsic value of this liability at June 30, 2022 was $25 million (nil at December 3 , 202 ).  

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, 75,000 options were exercised to receive cash from the Corporation at an 
exercise price of $27.25 (TSARs were attached to ,230,234 options, of which , 50,234 were exercised to receive cash from 
the Corporation and 80,000 options were exercised to receive Subordinate Voting Shares at an average exercise price of 
$2 .83 during the six months ended June 30, 202 ).  

In the second quarter of 2022, the Corporation entered into a total return swap agreement to manage exposure to the 
volatility of a portion of its cash-settled share-based payments and related liability. The Corporation has not designated this 
instrument as a hedge for accounting purposes. For the six months ended June 30, 2022, a net gain of $ 7 million (nil in 
202 ) arising from the change in fair value of the liability, net of the loss on the remeasurement to fair value of the derivative 
instrument, was included in operating and administrative expenses in the statements of earnings.  

The fair value of the TSARs was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: 

 
June ,

Dividend yield . %
Expected volatility 1 . % – . %
Risk-free interest rate . % – . %
Expected life (years) .9 – 6.
Share price ($/share) .1
Weighted-average exercise price ($/option) 1.1
Weighted-average fair value ($/option) .
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NOTE 11 Share-Based Compensation (continued) 

Compensation expense 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, Power Corporation granted 70,304 options ( 52,48  options were granted for 
the six months ended June 30, 202 ) under its Executive Stock Option Plan. Options granted in the six months ended 
June 30, 2022 vest on the basis of [i] 50% six years from the date of grant and [ii] 50% four years from the date of grant. 

The fair value of these options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions: 

 
June ,

 
June ,

1

Dividend yield . % .9%
Expected volatility 1 . % 1 . %
Risk-free interest rate . % 1. %
Expected life (years) 9.  9.
Fair value ($/option) . 6 1.66
Weighted-average exercise price ($/option) .  .

The expected volatility has been estimated based on the historical volatility of the Corporation’s share price using the 
expected option life.  

Lifeco, IGM and Wealthsimple have also established stock option plans pursuant to which options may be granted to certain 
officers and employees. In addition, other subsidiaries of the Corporation have established share-based compensation plans. 
Compensation expense related to equity-settled stock option plans is recorded based on the fair value of the options or the 
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date, amortized over the vesting period. For the three months ended 
June 30, 2022, total compensation expense relating to the equity-settled stock options granted by the Corporation and its 
subsidiaries amounted to $23 million ($2  million in 202 ), and $5  million for the six months ended June 30, 2022 
($53 million in 202 ), and was recorded in operating and administrative expenses in the statements of earnings.  
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NOTE 12 Capital Management  

POWER CORPORATION 
As a holding company, Power Corporation’s objectives in managing its capital are to: 

provide attractive long-term returns to shareholders of the Corporation; 
provide sufficient financial flexibility to pursue its growth strategy to invest on a timely basis in its operating companies 
and other investments as opportunities arise;  
maintain a capital structure that matches the long-term nature of its investments by maximizing the use of permanent 
capital; 
maintain an appropriate credit rating to ensure stable access to the capital markets; and 
maintain cash and cash equivalents at a minimum of two times fixed charges. 

The Corporation manages its capital taking into consideration the risk characteristics and liquidity of its holdings. In order 
to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Corporation may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue capital. 

The capital structure of the Corporation consists of debentures, non-participating shares, participating shareholders’ equity 
and non-controlling interests. The Corporation views non-participating shares as a cost-effective source of permanent 
capital. The Corporation is a long-term investor and as such holds positions in long-term investments as well as cash and 
fixed income securities for liquidity purposes.  

The Board of Directors of the Corporation is responsible for capital management. Management of the Corporation is 
responsible for establishing capital management procedures and for implementing and monitoring its capital plans. The 
Board of Directors of the Corporation reviews and approves capital transactions such as the issuance, redemption and 
repurchase of participating shares, non-participating shares and debentures. The boards of directors of the Corporation’s 
subsidiaries, as well as those of Parjointco and GBL, oversee and have the responsibility for their respective company’s capital 
management. 

The Corporation itself is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements. However, Lifeco and certain of 
its main subsidiaries, IGM’s subsidiaries and certain of the Corporation’s other subsidiaries are subject to regulatory capital 
requirements and they manage their capital as described below.  

 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022  A 99

PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A99PCC_01_PCC_Eng_Q2_2022_08_05_CTv2.indd   A99 2022-08-05   1:40 PM2022-08-05   1:40 PM



P
A

R
T

 A
P

O
W

ER
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
C

A
N

A
D

A
POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA  

 

 

NOTE 12 Capital Management (continued) 

LIFECO 
Lifeco manages its capital on both a consolidated basis as well as at the individual operating subsidiary level. The primary 
objectives of Lifeco’s capital management strategy are: 

to maintain the capitalization of its regulated operating subsidiaries at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum 
regulatory capital requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate; 
to maintain strong credit and financial strength ratings of Lifeco ensuring stable access to capital markets; and 
to provide an efficient capital structure to maximize shareholder value in the context of Lifeco’s operational risks and 
strategic plans. 

Management of Lifeco is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring 
the capital plan. 

The target level of capitalization for Lifeco and its subsidiaries is assessed by considering various factors such as the 
probability of falling below the minimum regulatory capital requirements in the relevant operating jurisdiction, the views 
expressed by various credit rating agencies that provide financial strength and other ratings to Lifeco, and the desire to hold 
sufficient capital to be able to honour all policyholder and other obligations of Lifeco with a high degree of confidence. 

In Canada, OSFI has established a regulatory capital adequacy measurement for life insurance companies incorporated 
under the Insurance Companies Act (Canada) and their subsidiaries known as the Life Insurance Capital Adequacy Test 
(LICAT). The LICAT ratio compares the regulatory capital resources of a company to its required capital, defined by OSFI as 
the aggregate of all defined capital requirements multiplied by a scalar of .05. The total capital resources are provided by 
the sum of available capital, surplus allowance and eligible deposits. OSFI has established a supervisory target total ratio of 
00%, and a supervisory minimum total ratio of 0%. Canada Life’s consolidated LICAT ratio at June 30, 2022 was 7% ( 24% 

at December 3 , 202 ). 

Other foreign operations and foreign subsidiaries of Lifeco are required to comply with local capital or solvency requirements 
in their respective jurisdictions.  

 
IGM FINANCIAL 
IGM’s capital management objective is to maximize shareholder returns while ensuring that IGM is capitalized in a manner 
which appropriately supports regulatory capital requirements, working capital needs and business expansion. IGM’s capital 
management practices are focused on preserving the quality of its financial position by maintaining a solid capital base and 
a strong balance sheet. IGM regularly assesses its capital management practices in response to changing economic 
conditions. 

IGM’s capital is primarily used in its ongoing business operations to support working capital requirements, long-term 
investments made by IGM, business expansion and other strategic objectives. 

The IGM subsidiaries that are subject to regulatory capital requirements include investment dealers, mutual fund dealers, 
exempt market dealers, portfolio managers, investment fund managers and a trust company. These IGM subsidiaries are 
required to maintain minimum levels of capital based on either working capital, liquidity or shareholders’ equity. At June 30, 
2022, IGM subsidiaries have complied with all regulatory capital requirements.  

 
ALTERNATIVE ASSET INVESTMENT PLATFORMS AND OTHER 
Certain subsidiaries are subject to regulatory capital requirements, including portfolio managers, asset managers and an 
order-execution-only broker. These subsidiaries are required to maintain levels of capital based on their working capital, 
liquidity or shareholders’ equity. At June 30, 2022, these subsidiaries have complied with all regulatory capital requirements. 
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NOTE 13 Risk Management 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries have established policies, guidelines and procedures designed to identify, measure, 
monitor and mitigate risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are liquidity 
risk, credit risk and market risk. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation and its subsidiaries would not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations 
as they come due or be able to, in a timely manner, raise capital or monetize assets at normal market conditions.  
Credit risk is the potential for financial loss to the Corporation and its subsidiaries if a counterparty in a transaction fails 
to meet its payment obligations. Credit risk can be related to the default of a single debt issuer, the variation of credit 
spreads on tradable fixed income securities and also to counterparty risk relating to derivative products. 
Market risk is the risk that the market value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market factors. Market factors include three types of risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and equity 
risk. 

Foreign exchange risk relates to the Corporation, its subsidiaries and its jointly controlled corporations and associates 
operating in different currencies and converting non-Canadian investments and earnings at different points in time 
at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in foreign currency exchange rates occur.  
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate following changes in the interest 
rates.  
Equity risk is the potential loss associated with the sensitivity of the market price of a financial instrument arising from 
volatility in equity markets. 

Estimates of sensitivities and risk exposure measures are included for certain risks, such as the sensitivity due to specific 
changes in interest rate levels projected and market prices as at the valuation date. Actual results can differ significantly 
from these estimates for a variety of reasons, including: 

assessment of the circumstances that led to the scenario may lead to changes in (re)investment approaches and interest 
rate scenarios considered; 
changes in actuarial, investment return and future investment activity assumptions; 
actual experience differing from the assumptions; 
changes in business mix, effective tax rates and other market factors; 
interactions among these factors and assumptions when more than one changes; and  
the general limitations of internal models. 

For these reasons, the sensitivities should only be viewed as directional estimates of the underlying sensitivities for the 
respective factors based on the assumptions outlined above. Given the nature of these calculations, the Corporation cannot 
provide assurance that the actual impact on net earnings will be as indicated. 

The following is a summary of risks in respect to the Corporation and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments. In the first section 
below, the risk management policies and procedures of Power Corporation, Power Financial and the Corporation’s 
alternative asset investment platforms and other (other subsidiaries) are discussed. Risks related to Lifeco and IGM are 
discussed in subsequent sections. For a more detailed discussion, refer to Note 22 to the Corporation’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the year ended December 3 , 202 .  
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NOTE 13 Risk Management (continued) 

POWER CORPORATION, POWER FINANCIAL AND ALTERNATIVE ASSET INVESTMENT PLATFORMS AND OTHER 

a) Liquidity and funding 

As a holding company, the Corporation’s ability to pay dividends is dependent upon the Corporation receiving dividends 
from its principal operating subsidiaries and other investments. Lifeco and its subsidiaries are subject to restrictions set out 
in relevant corporate and insurance laws and regulations, which require that solvency and capital ratios be maintained. 
IGM’s subsidiaries are also subject to minimum capital requirements. Regulatory requirements may change from time to 
time, and thereby impact the ability of the operating subsidiaries to pay dividends. Regulators continue to monitor the 
impact of the pandemic to ensure that regulated companies maintain sufficient capital and liquidity. The declaration and 
payment of dividends by the Corporation in future periods remains at the discretion of its Board of Directors and is 
dependent on the operating performance, profitability, financial position and creditworthiness of its operating subsidiaries 
and other investments, as well as on their ability to pay dividends.  

Power Corporation and Power Financial believe their ongoing cash flows from operations, available cash balances and 
liquidity available through their lines of credit are sufficient to address their liquidity needs. 

b) Equity risk 

Other investments are reviewed periodically to determine whether there is objective evidence of an impairment in value. 
During the six months ended June 30, 2022, the Corporation recorded investment impairment charges on available-for-sale 
investments of $ 3 million (nil in 202 ). As at June 30, 2022, the impact of a 0% decrease in the value of other investments 
held by Power Corporation, Power Financial and other subsidiaries would have resulted in an approximate $ 04 million 
($ 0 million as at December 3 , 202 ) unrealized loss recorded in other comprehensive income related to investments 
classified as available for sale and $ 37 million ($ 28 million as at December 3 , 202 ) of loss recorded in net earnings related 
to investments classified as fair value through profit or loss and investments in jointly controlled corporations and associates 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

GBL holds a portfolio of investments which are classified as available for sale. Unrealized gains and losses on these 
investments are recorded in other comprehensive income until realized. These investments are reviewed periodically to 
determine whether there is objective evidence of an impairment in value. As at June 30, 2022, the impact of a 0% decline 
in equity markets would have resulted in an approximate $2 4 million ($3 5 million at December 3 , 202 ) unrealized loss 
to be recorded in other comprehensive income, representing the Corporation’s share of Parjointco’s unrealized losses. 

Power Corporation, Power Financial and other subsidiaries’ exposure and management of liquidity risk, credit risk and 
market risk have not changed materially since December 3 , 202 . 

 
LIFECO  
The risk committee of the board of directors of Lifeco is responsible for the oversight of Lifeco’s key risks. Lifeco has 
established policies and procedures designed to identify, measure, manage, monitor and report material risks associated 
with financial instruments. Lifeco’s approach to risk management has not changed significantly since December 3 , 202 . A 
summary of the risks is presented below. For a more detailed discussion of Lifeco’s risk governance structure and risk 
management approach, refer to the Risk Management note in the Corporation’s December 3 , 202  financial statements. 

Liquidity risk 
Lifeco has the following policies and procedures in place to manage liquidity risk: 

Lifeco closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities and forecasting earned 
and required yields, to ensure consistency between policyholder requirements and the yield of assets.  
Management of Lifeco closely monitors the solvency and capital positions of its principal subsidiaries opposite liquidity 
requirements at the holding company. Additional liquidity is available through established lines of credit or via capital 
market transactions. Lifeco maintains committed lines of credit with Canadian chartered banks. 
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NOTE 13 Risk Management (continued) 

Credit risk 
Concentrations of credit risk arise from exposures to a single debtor, a group of related debtors or groups of debtors that 
have similar credit risk characteristics in that they operate in the same geographic region or in similar industries. The 
characteristics are similar in that changes in economic or political environments may impact their ability to meet obligations 
as they come due. No significant changes have occurred from the year ended December 3 , 202 . 

Market risk 
a) Foreign exchange risk 

If the assets backing insurance and investment contract liabilities are not matched by currency, changes in foreign exchange 
rates can expose Lifeco to the risk of foreign exchange losses not offset by liability decreases.  

A 0% weakening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected to increase non-participating 
insurance and investment contract liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the same amount, resulting 
in an immaterial immediate change to net earnings.  
A 0% strengthening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected to decrease non-participating 
insurance and investment contract liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the same amount, resulting 
in an immaterial immediate change to net earnings. 

Lifeco has net investments in foreign operations. Lifeco’s debt obligations are denominated in Canadian dollars, euros and 
U.S. dollars. In accordance with IFRS, foreign currency translation gains and losses from net investments in foreign operations, 
net of related hedging activities and tax effects, are recorded in other comprehensive income. Strengthening or weakening 
of the Canadian dollar spot rate compared to the U.S. dollar, British pound and euro spot rates impacts Lifeco’s total equity. 
Correspondingly, Lifeco’s book value per share and capital ratios monitored by rating agencies are also impacted. 

b) Interest rate risk 

Projected cash flows from the current assets and liabilities are used in the CALM to determine insurance contract liabilities. 
Valuation assumptions have been made regarding rates of returns on supporting assets, fixed income, equity and inflation. 
The valuation assumptions use best estimates of future reinvestment rates and inflation assumptions with an assumed 
correlation together with margins for adverse deviation set in accordance with professional standards. These margins are 
necessary to provide for possibilities of misestimation and/or future deterioration in the best estimate assumptions and 
provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract liabilities cover a range of possible outcomes. Margins are reviewed 
periodically for continued appropriateness.  

Testing under a number of interest rate scenarios (including increasing, decreasing and fluctuating rates) is done to assess 
reinvestment risk because Lifeco’s sensitivity to interest rate movements varies at different terms.  

The total provision for interest rates is sufficient to cover a broader or more severe set of risks than the minimum arising from 
the current Canadian Institute of Actuaries-prescribed scenarios. The range of interest rates covered by these provisions is 
set in consideration of long-term historical results and is monitored quarterly, with a full review annually.  

The impact to the value of liabilities from an immediate parallel % increase or % decrease in the interest rates would be 
largely offset by changes in the value of assets supporting the liabilities. Actual movements in interest rates may produce 
different impacts on the value of liabilities, net of changes in the value of assets supporting liabilities, depending on the 
extent of the change in interest rates in different geographies and at different durations. An immediate % increase in 
interest rates in Canada could lead to an increase in the value of liabilities, net of changes in the value of assets supporting 
liabilities, and a decrease in net earnings, but the impact would not be expected to be material. 
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NOTE 13 Risk Management (continued) 

The following table provides information on the impact to the value of liabilities net of changes in the value of assets 
supporting liabilities of an immediate parallel % increase or % decrease in the interest rates as well as a corresponding 
parallel shift in the ultimate reinvestment rates, as defined in the actuarial standards. 

 June ,   December 1, 1
 1% increase 1% decrease [1] 1% increase 1% decrease[1]

Change in interest rates   
Increase (decrease) in non-participating insurance  

and investment contract liabilities (1 )   ( 19) 6
Increase (decrease) in net earnings 1 (  ) 19 ( )

[1] For the % decrease, initial risk-free yields are floored at zero, wherever risk-free yields are not currently negative.  

c) Equity risk 

Lifeco has investment policy guidelines in place that provide for prudent investment in equity markets with clearly defined 
limits to mitigate price risk. 

The risks associated with segregated fund guarantees on lifetime Guaranteed Minimum Withdrawal Benefits have been 
mitigated through a hedging program using equity futures, currency forwards, and interest rate derivatives.  

Some insurance and investment contract liabilities with long-tail cash flows are supported by publicly traded common 
shares and investments in other non-fixed income assets, primarily comprised of investment properties, real estate funds, 
private equities, and equity-release mortgages. The value of the liabilities may fluctuate with changes in the value of the 
supporting assets. The liabilities for other products such as segregated fund products with guarantees also fluctuate with 
equity values.  

There may be additional market and liability impacts as a result of changes in the value of publicly traded common shares 
and other non-fixed income assets that will cause the liabilities to fluctuate differently than the equity values. This means 
that there is a greater impact on net earnings from larger decreases in equity values, relative to the change in equity values. 
Decreases in equity values beyond those shown in the table below would have a greater impact on net earnings, relative to 
the change in equity values. 

The following table provides information on the expected impacts of an immediate 0% or 20% increase or decrease in the 
value of publicly traded common shares on insurance and investment contract liabilities and on the net earnings. The 
expected impacts take into account the expected changes in the value of assets supporting liabilities and hedge assets. 

 June , December 1, 1
 Increase Decrease Increase  Decrease
 %  1 % 1 % % % 1 %  1 % %

Change in publicly traded 
common share values     

Increase (decrease) in  
non-participating insurance and 
investment contract liabilities (  ) ( ) 1 ( 6) (16 ) 6

Increase (decrease) in net earnings 1  ( 6) (1 ) 1 1   (19) (66)

The following table provides information on the expected impacts of an immediate 5% or 0% increase or decrease in the 
value of other non-fixed income assets on insurance and investment contract liabilities and on the net earnings. The 
expected impacts take into account the expected changes in the value of assets supporting liabilities. 

 June , December 1, 1
 Increase Decrease Increase  Decrease
 1 %  % % 1 % 1 % %  % 1 %

Change in other non-fixed  
income asset values     

Increase (decrease) in  
non-participating insurance and 
investment contract liabilities (9  ) ( 9) 1 (9 ) ( 6 ) 1

Increase (decrease) in net earnings   ( ) (1 ) 9 9  ( ) (11 )
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NOTE 13 Risk Management (continued) 

The Canadian Institute of Actuaries Standards of Practice for the valuation of insurance contract liabilities establish limits on 
the investment return assumptions for publicly traded common shares and other non-fixed income assets which are 
generally based on historical returns on market indices. The sensitivities shown in the tables above allow for the impact of 
changes in these limits following market decreases. 

The best estimate return assumptions for publicly traded common shares and other non-fixed income assets are primarily 
based on long-term historical averages. The following provides information on the expected impacts of a % increase or a 
% decrease in the best estimate assumptions: 

 June ,   December 1, 1
 1% increase 1% decrease  1% increase 1% decrease

Change in best estimate return assumptions    
Increase (decrease) in non-participating insurance contract liabilities (69 ) 19  ( 1 ) 9
Increase (decrease) in net earnings 1 (6  ) 6 (6 9)

Lifeco sponsors a number of deferred compensation arrangements for employees where payments to participants are 
deferred and linked to the performance of the common shares of Lifeco. Lifeco hedges its exposure to the equity risk 
associated with its PSU plan through the use of total return swaps. 

 
IGM FINANCIAL  
The risk management policies and procedures of IGM are discussed in the IGM section of the Corporation’s Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (Part C) for the six months ended June 30, 2022 and in Note 22 to the Corporation’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the year ended December 3 , 202  and have not changed significantly since December 3 , 202 . 

a) Liquidity risk 

IGM’s liquidity management practices include:  

Maintaining liquid assets and lines of credit to satisfy near-term liquidity needs. 
Ensuring effective controls over liquidity management processes. 
Performing regular cash forecasts and stress testing. 
Regular assessment of capital market conditions and IGM’s ability to access bank and capital market funding. 
Ongoing efforts to diversify and expand long-term mortgage funding sources. 
Oversight of liquidity by management and by committees of the board of directors of IGM. 

A key liquidity requirement for IGM is the funding of advisor network compensation paid for the distribution of financial 
products and services. This compensation continues to be paid from operating cash flows. IGM also maintains sufficient 
liquidity to fund and temporarily hold mortgages pending sale or securitization to long-term funding sources and to manage 
any derivative collateral requirements. 

IGM believes its ongoing cash flows from operations, available cash balances and liquidity available through its lines of credit 
are sufficient to address its liquidity needs. 

b) Credit risk 

IGM manages credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents by adhering to its investment policy that outlines credit risk 
parameters and concentration limits. IGM regularly reviews the credit ratings of its counterparties. The maximum exposure 
to credit risk on these financial instruments is their carrying value.  

IGM’s allowance for credit losses was $  million at June 30, 2022, unchanged from December 3 , 202 , and is considered 
adequate by IGM’s management to absorb all credit-related losses in the mortgage portfolios based on: i) historical credit 
performance experience; ii) recent trends including increasing interest rates; iii) current portfolio credit metrics and other 
relevant characteristics; iv) its strong financial planning relationship with its clients; and v) stress testing of losses under 
adverse real estate market conditions. 

IGM’s exposure to and management of credit risk related to mortgage portfolios have not changed materially since 
December 3 , 202 .  
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NOTE 14 Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The pension plan and other post-employment benefits expense included in net earnings and other comprehensive income 
are as follows: 

 Three months ended June , Six months ended June ,
 1 1

Pension plans 
Service costs  6 6 1  1 6
Past service costs, plan amendments and curtailments (1) (1) ( ) –
Net interest cost 9  

 1 9 1 6

Post-employment benefits  
Service costs – 1 
Net interest cost  6

 6 9 9
  
Expense recognized in net earnings 9 16  1

Remeasurements  
Pension plans  

Actuarial (gains) losses  (1, 6 ) ( , 61) (6 )
Return on assets less (greater) than discount rate 9 6 ( ) 1,  (1 )
Change in the asset ceiling (1)  11

Post-employment benefits  
Actuarial (gains) losses ( ) (9 ) ( )

Income recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) ( 1 ) ( 1) ( 16) ( 91)
 
Total expense (income) (1 ) 9 (6 ) ( 6)

The discount rates increased between 2.0% and 2.2% during the six months ended June 30, 2022 (increased between 0.5% 
and 0.7% in the corresponding period in 202 ), primarily due to the increase in yields on high-quality corporate bonds.  
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NOTE 15 Income Taxes 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
The components of income tax expense (recovery) recognized in net earnings are: 

 Three months ended June , Six months ended June ,
 1 1

Current taxes 1 (1 ) 6  9
Deferred taxes ( ) 96 (1 ) 
 11 1 6  
 

EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE 
The effective income tax rate for the Corporation for the six months ended June 30, 2022 was .8%, which is comparable 
to 2. % for the year ended December 3 , 202  and 2. % for the six months ended June 30, 202 .  

The effective income tax rates are generally lower than the Corporation’s statutory income tax rate of 2 .5% due to non-
taxable investment income, lower tax in certain foreign jurisdictions and results from jointly controlled corporations and 
associates that are not taxable.  

NOTE 16 Other Comprehensive Income 

 
Items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to net earnings

Items that will not be 
reclassified to net earnings

Six months ended June ,  

Investment 
revaluation 

and cash 
flow hedges

Foreign
currency 

translation

Share of 
jointly 

controlled 
corporations 

and 
associates

Actuarial 
gains (losses) 

on defined 
benefit 

pension plans 
and other  

Share of 
jointly 

controlled 
corporations 

and 
associates Total

Balance, beginning of year 1,9 6 (  ) (1 ) , 9
Other comprehensive income (loss) ( 1) ( 91) (1, 9) 9  (1,16 )
Other – – 1 –  – 1

Balance, end of period ( ) 6 96 (  ) (1 ) 1, 6

 

 
Items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to net earnings

Items that will not be 
reclassified to net earnings

Six months ended June , 1 

Investment 
revaluation 

and cash 
flow hedges

Foreign
currency 

translation

Share of 
jointly 

controlled 
corporations 

and 
associates

Actuarial 
gains (losses) 

on defined 
benefit 

pension plans 
and other  

Share of 
jointly 

controlled 
corporations 

and 
associates Total

Balance, beginning of year 1, 1,9 (969 ) ( ) ,
Other comprehensive income (loss) ( 1 ) ( 6)   (1 )

Balance, end of period 1 6 , 11 ( 9  ) ( 1) , 6
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NOTE 17 Earnings Per Share 

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators used in the computations of earnings per share: 

Three months ended June , Six months ended June ,
1 1

Earnings  
Net earnings attributable to shareholders 1,  1, 1 1, 6
Dividends on non-participating shares  (1 ) (1 ) ( 6) ( 6)
Net earnings attributable to participating shareholders 99  1, 1,
Dilutive effect of subsidiaries’ outstanding stock options (1) (1) ( ) –
Effect of equity-settled method for TSARs (1 ) – (1 ) –
Net earnings adjusted for dilutive effect 9 99  9 6 1,
 
Number of participating shares [millions]  

 

Weighted average number of participating shares outstanding – Basic 6 .9 6 6.  6 . 6 6.9
Potential exercise of outstanding stock options . .  . .6

Weighted average number of participating shares outstanding – Diluted 6 .9 6 1.  6 .6 6 9.
 
Net earnings per participating share

 

Basic . 1.  1. 9 . 9
Diluted . 6 1. 6 1. 6 .
 
Options with TSARs are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. As these options can be exercised in exchange 
for subordinate voting shares or for cash, they are considered potentially dilutive and are included in the calculation of the 
diluted net earnings per share if they have a dilutive impact in the period. Net earnings in the period includes the impact of 
the remeasurement, net of the related hedge. The net earnings used in the diluted calculation is adjusted to reflect the 
expense had these options been classified as equity-settled. 

For the six months ended June 30, 2022, 0.7 million stock options (5.0 million in 202 ) were excluded from the computation 
of diluted earnings per share as they were anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 18 Fair Value Measurement 

The Corporation’s assets and liabilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the following fair value 
hierarchy: 

Level Definition Financial assets and liabilities 

Level  Utilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the 
ability to access.  

actively exchange-traded equity securities;
exchange-traded futures; 
mutual and segregated funds which have available 
prices in an active market with no redemption 
restrictions; 
open-end investment fund units and other liabilities 
in instances where there are quoted prices available 
from active markets.  

Level 2 Utilize other-than-quoted prices included in Level  that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets, and inputs other-than-quoted prices 
that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates 
and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted 
intervals.  
The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from  
a pricing service. The pricing service inputs include, but are not 
limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer 
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark 
securities, offers and reference data.  

assets and liabilities priced using a matrix which is 
based on credit quality and average life; 
government and agency securities; 
restricted shares; 
certain private bonds and investment funds; 
most investment-grade and high-yield corporate 
bonds; 
most asset-backed securities; 
most over-the-counter derivatives; 
most mortgage and other loans; 
deposits and certificates; 
most debentures and other debt instruments; 
most of the investment contracts that are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss; 
certain limited-life and redeemable fund units. 

Level 3 Utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based on 
observable market inputs and include situations where there  
is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.  
The values of the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained 
from single-broker quotes, internal pricing models, external 
appraisers or by discounting projected cash flows.  

certain bonds;
certain asset-backed securities; 
certain private equities; 
certain mortgage and other loans, including  
equity-release mortgages; 
investments in mutual and segregated funds where 
there are redemption restrictions; 
certain over-the-counter derivatives; 
investment properties; 
obligations to securitization entities; 
certain other debt instruments; 
certain limited-life and redeemable fund units. 
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NOTE 18 Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

The Corporation’s assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy using the 
valuation methods and assumptions described in the summary of significant accounting policies of the Corporation’s 
December 3 , 202  Consolidated Financial Statements and above, are presented below. Fair values represent management’s 
estimates and are generally calculated using market information at a specific point in time and may not reflect future fair 
values. The calculations are subjective in nature, and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment (Note 2). 

June ,  Level 1 Level   Level 
Total 

fair value

Assets  
Bonds  

Fair value through profit or loss – 11 , 6   9 11 , 6
Available for sale – 11,   – 11,

Mortgage and other loans   
Fair value through profit or loss – –  ,6 ,6

Shares   
Fair value through profit or loss 1 , 6 11  ,9 1 , 1
Available for sale 1   66 1,166

Investment properties – –  , ,
Funds held by ceding insurers 1 1 ,1   – 1 ,
Derivative instruments 1,6   6 1, 1
Reinsurance assets –   –
Other assets 1 9   6 ,1 6
 11,9 1 ,61   1 , 16 , 6

Liabilities    
Investment contract liabilities – 1 , 6   – 1 , 6
Derivative instruments  1 1,611  6 1,61
Limited-life and redeemable fund units 9   1,9 9 ,
Other liabilities 9 1   
 1 ,   , 1 ,1
 

December 1, 1 Level 1 Level   Level 
Total 

fair value

Assets  
Bonds  

Fair value through profit or loss – 1 ,6   1 1 ,
Available for sale – 1 ,6   – 1 ,6

Mortgage and other loans   
Fair value through profit or loss –   ,66 ,

Shares   
Fair value through profit or loss 11, 1 1   , 1 ,9
Available for sale 1   6 1,

Investment properties – –  , 6 , 6
Funds held by ceding insurers 6 1 ,66   – 1 ,999
Derivative instruments 1 1, 6  1 1, 9
Reinsurance assets – 1 6  – 1 6
Other assets 9 6  1 1, 9
 1 ,1 1 ,1   1 , 16 ,16

Liabilities    
Investment contract liabilities – 1 ,   – 1 ,
Derivative instruments 1,   6 1, 6
Limited-life and redeemable fund units – 911  1, 1,916
Other liabilities 6 9   
 9 1 , 1   1, 69 1 ,661
 
There were no significant transfers between Level  and Level 2 in these periods. 
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NOTE 18 Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Additional information about assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for which the Corporation and 
its subsidiaries have utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value for the six months ended June 30, 2022 and 202  is 
presented below.  

 Bonds

Mortgages
and 

other loans Shares    
Other
assets

(liabilities)
Six months ended 
June ,  

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss[ ]
Available

for sale
Investment 

properties  
Derivatives, 

net  [ ] Total

Balance, beginning of year 1 ,66 , 6 , 6 6  ( ) 1 , 9
Total gains (losses)   

In net earnings ( ) ( 99) 9 1 1   (16)
In other comprehensive income [1] ( ) (1 9) (1 ) ( 6) (1 ) ( 11)

Purchases – 1 1 –  6 1,6
Issues – – – – –  ( 1) 6
Sales – – (1 ) (11 ) ( ) –  ( ) ( )
Settlements – ( ) – – –   1 (6 )
Transfers into Level  – – – – – –  ( 6) ( 6)
Transfers out of Level  – – – – – –  ( ) ( )
Other – (1) ( ) (1 ) –  ( ) (1 )

Balance, end of period 9 ,6 ,9 66 ,   (1,1 ) 1 ,

[1] Amount of other comprehensive income for fair value through profit or loss bonds, mortgage and other loans, shares, investment properties and other assets 
and liabilities represents the unrealized gains (losses) on foreign exchange. 

[ ] Includes investments in mutual and segregated funds where there are redemption restrictions. The fair value is based on observable, quoted prices. 

[3] Includes limited-life and redeemable fund units. 
 

 Bonds

Mortgages
and 

other loans Shares    
Other
assets

(liabilities)
Six months ended 
June , 1 

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Fair value 
through 

profit or loss[ ]
Available

for sale
Investment 

properties  
Derivatives, 

net  [ ] Total

Balance, beginning of year , 9 1,6 9 6, 1  ( ) 1 ,1
Total gains (losses)   

In net earnings 1 (96) 1 1   (16 )
In other comprehensive income [1] ( ) ( 1) ( ) ( 1) ( 6) –  16 (1 )

Purchases – 6 9 1  1 1, 9
Issues – – – – –  ( 1) 6
Sales – – ( ) (1 ) (1 ) –  – (1 )
Settlements – ( ) – – –   1 6
Transfers into Level  – – – –  – 6
Transfers out of Level  – – ( ) – – (1  ) 6 ( 9 )
Other – ( ) (1) – – –  1 1

Balance, end of period , 1, 6 6, 66 (  ) ( 1) 11, 6

[1] Amount of other comprehensive income for fair value through profit or loss bonds, mortgage and other loans, shares, investment properties and other assets 
and liabilities represents the unrealized gains (losses) on foreign exchange. 

[ ] Includes investments in mutual and segregated funds where there are redemption restrictions. The fair value is based on observable, quoted prices.  

[3] Includes limited-life and redeemable fund units. 

Transfers into Level 3 are due primarily to decreased observability of inputs in valuation methodologies or the placement of 
redemption restrictions on investments in mutual and segregated funds. Transfers out of Level 3 are due primarily to 
increased observability of inputs in valuation methodologies as evidenced by corroboration of market prices with multiple 
pricing vendors or the lifting of redemption restrictions on investments in mutual and segregated funds. 
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NOTE 18 Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

On January , 202 , Canada Life lifted the temporary suspension on contributions to and transfers into its Canadian real 
estate investment funds, and on April , 202 , the temporary suspension on redemptions and transfers out was fully lifted, 
as confidence over the valuation of the underlying properties returned as a result of increased market activity. As a result of 
the lifting of these temporary suspensions, Lifeco's investment in these funds with a fair value of $457 million was transferred 
on April , 202  from Level 3 to Level . 

Significant unobservable inputs used at period-end in measuring assets categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy are 
presented below. 

Type of asset Valuation approach 
Significant  
unobservable input Input value

Inter-relationship between key 
unobservable inputs and fair 
value measurement

Investment properties 
 
 

Investment property valuations 
are generally determined using 
property valuation models 
based on expected 
capitalization rates and models 
that discount expected future 
net cash flows. The 
determination of the fair value 
of investment property requires 
the use of estimates such as 
future cash flows (such as future 
leasing assumptions,  
rental rates, capital and  
operating expenditures) and 
discount, reversionary and  
overall capitalization rates 
applicable to the asset based  
on current market rates. 

Discount rate Range of 3.3% – . % A decrease in the discount 
rate would result in an 
increase in fair value.  
An increase in the 
discount rate would result 
in a decrease in fair value. 
 

Reversionary rate Range of 3.5% – 0.0% A decrease in the 
reversionary rate would 
result in an increase in fair 
value.  
An increase in the 
reversionary rate would 
result in a decrease in fair 
value. 
 

Vacancy rate Weighted average of . % A decrease in the 
expected vacancy rate 
would generally result in 
an increase in fair value.  
An increase in the 
expected vacancy rate 
would generally result in  
a decrease in fair value. 
 

Mortgage and  
other loans – equity-
release mortgages 
(fair value through 
profit or loss) 
 

The valuation approach for 
equity-release mortgages is to 
use an internal valuation model 
to determine the projected 
asset cash flows, including the 
stochastically calculated cost of 
the no-negative-equity 
guarantee for each individual 
loan, to aggregate these across 
all loans and to discount those 
cash flows back to the valuation 
date. The projection is done 
monthly until expected 
redemption of the loan either 
voluntarily or on the 
death/entering into long-term 
care of the loanholders. 
 

Discount rate

 

Range of 4. % – .7% 

 

A decrease in the discount 
rate would result in an 
increase in fair value.  
An increase in the 
discount rate would result 
in a decrease in fair value. 
 

Shares The determination of the fair 
value of shares requires the use 
of estimates such as future cash 
flows, discount rates, projected 
earnings multiples, or recent 
transactions. 

Discount rate Various A decrease in the discount 
rate would result in an 
increase in fair value.  
An increase in the 
discount rate would result 
in a decrease in fair value. 
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information 

The Corporation is an international management and holding company. Its core holdings are leading insurance, retirement, 
wealth management and investment businesses, including a portfolio of alternative asset investment platforms.  

As a holding company, the Corporation evaluates the performance of each operating segment based on its contribution to 
earnings. The contribution to the earnings attributable to participating shareholders from Lifeco, IGM, GBL, and alternative 
asset investment platforms and other, including the effect of consolidation, represents the Corporation’s share of their net 
earnings. The Corporation also presents the holding company’s balance sheets with its investments in its consolidated 
publicly traded operating companies, Lifeco and IGM, as well as other controlled entities held within the investment 
platforms, using the equity method of accounting. These entities are consolidated in the Corporation’s consolidated balance 
sheets. As well, commonly held investments in Lifeco, IGM, and alternative asset investment platforms and other (inter-
segment investments) are presented in their respective segmented assets. 

The Corporation’s reportable segments include Lifeco, IGM Financial and GBL, which represent the Corporation’s 
investments in publicly traded operating companies. These reportable segments, in addition to the holding company and 
asset management activities through the investment platforms, reflect Power Corporation’s management structure and 
internal financial reporting. 

Lifeco is a financial services holding company with interests in life insurance, health insurance, retirement and investment 
management services, asset management and reinsurance businesses primarily in Canada, the U.S. and Europe.  
IGM FFinancial is a leading wealth and asset management company supporting financial advisors and the clients they 
serve in Canada, and institutional investors through North America, Europe and Asia.  
GBL is indirectly held through Parjointco. GBL is a Belgian holding company focused on long-term and sustainable value 
creation. Its portfolio is comprised of global industrial and services companies, leaders in their markets, in which GBL 
plays its role of professional shareholder. 

Alternative asset investment platforms and other are comprised of the results of: 
Alternative asset management businesses, Sagard and Power Sustainable; 
Entities managed by the alternative assets managers which are required to be consolidated under IFRS; and  
Standalone businesses representing a subsidiary, a jointly controlled corporation and associates which are managed 
to realize value over time. 

Holding company activities comprise the corporate activities of the Corporation and Power Financial, on a combined basis, 
and present the investment activities of the Corporation as a holding company. The segmented assets present the activities 
of the holding company, including its investments in consolidated entities, Lifeco and IGM, as well as other controlled 
entities, using the equity method of accounting. The holding company activities also present the corporate assets and 
liabilities managed, including the cash and non-participating shares. Holding company cash flows are primarily comprised 
of dividends received, income from investments and income (loss) from cash and cash equivalents, less operating expenses, 
financing charges, income taxes and non-participating and participating share dividends. 

Effect of consolidation includes the consolidation elimination entries.  
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

CONSOLIDATED NET EARNINGS 

Three months ended June ,  Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company  

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Revenues   
Total net premiums 16, – – – –  (6) 16, 99
Net investment income (loss) (9, 1) (1) – (6 )   (9, 6)
Fee income [1] 1,9 9 – 6 –  ( ) ,
Other revenues  – – – 1 –  – 1
Total revenues 9,16 – 1 6   ( 1) 1 ,1

Expenses   
Total paid or credited to policyholders , 6 – – – –  – , 6
Commissions 6 – – –  (1 ) 96
Operating and administrative expenses ,1 – 9   ( ) ,6
Financing charges 96 – 1   1 9
Total expenses , 6 – 1   ( ) 9, 19
Earnings before investments in jointly controlled 

corporations and associates, and income taxes 6 1 – ( 1) (11 ) 9
Share of earnings (losses) of investments in  

jointly controlled corporations and associates  ( ) 1   ( )
Earnings before income taxes  11 6 ( ) ( 9)   ( ) 96
Income taxes 1 9 – 9 (  ) 11
Net earnings 6 ( ) ( )   ( 1)

Attributable to   
Non-controlling interests  6 – ( 9)   ( 1) 1
Non-participating shareholders  – – – – 1   – 1
Participating shareholders [ ][ ] 1 ( ) ( 9) ( 9 ) –

 6 ( ) ( )   ( 1)

[1] Dealer compensation expenses at IGM are included in commission expenses. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and alternative asset investment platforms and other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the 
Corporation includes the effect of consolidation. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco and IGM includes an allocation for the results of investments under common control based on their respective interests.
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

CONSOLIDATED NET EARNINGS 

Three months ended June , 1 Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company  

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Revenues   
Total net premiums 11, 1 – – – –  ( ) 11, 6
Net investment income (loss) , 9 – 9   , 1
Fee income [1] 1, 6 – 69 –  ( ) ,69
Other revenues  – – – 1 –  – 1
Total revenues 1 ,9 9 –   ( 1) 19, 1

Expenses   
Total paid or credited to policyholders 1 , 1 – – – –  – 1 , 1
Commissions 6 – – –  (1 ) 9
Operating and administrative expenses 1, 6 – 66   ( 6) , 1
Financing charges 9 – 1   1 9
Total expenses 16, 6 – 91   ( ) 1 , 6
Earnings before investments in jointly controlled 

corporations and associates, and income taxes 1,1 9 – 1 1 ( 9 ) (6) 1,
Share of earnings (losses) of investments in  

jointly controlled corporations and associates  1 1 1 1 9 1   ( )
Earnings before income taxes  1,11 1 1 6 (  ) ( 6) 1,
Income taxes 1 6 69 – 16 (16 ) 1 1 6
Net earnings 1, 9 1 1 (1  ) ( ) 1,

Attributable to   
Non-controlling interests  9 96 – ( 6)   ( )
Non-participating shareholders  – – – – 1   – 1
Participating shareholders [ ][ ] 16 1 1 1 (6  ) – 99

 1, 9 1 1 (1  ) ( ) 1,

[1] Dealer compensation expenses at IGM are included in commission expenses. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and alternative asset investment platforms and other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the 
Corporation includes the effect of consolidation. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco and IGM includes an allocation for the results of investments under common control based on their respective interests.
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

CONSOLIDATED NET EARNINGS 

Six months ended June ,  Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company  

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Revenues   
Total net premiums , 6 – – – –  (11) ,
Net investment income (loss) (1 , 9 ) ( ) – (11 ) 1   1 (1 ,9 )
Fee income [1] , 1, – 1 –  ( 6) ,
Other revenues  – – – –  –
Total revenues 1 ,1 6 1, – 1   ( ) ,1

Expenses   
Total paid or credited to policyholders 11, 6 – – – –  – 11, 6
Commissions 1, 661 – – –  ( ) 1,9
Operating and administrative expenses ,9 6 – 9   (6 ) ,96
Financing charges 1 6 6 – 1   9 9
Total expenses 16, 6 1, 9 – 6   ( 1) 1 , 6
Earnings before investments in jointly controlled 

corporations and associates, and income taxes 1,66 – (1 ) (6  ) (6) 1,
Share of earnings (losses) of investments in  

jointly controlled corporations and associates  9 (1 ) 1   ( )
Earnings before income taxes  1,69 1 (1 ) (1 ) ( 9 ) ( ) 1,9
Income taxes 1 1 – – 1  1
Net earnings 1, 9 (1 ) (1 ) (  ) ( ) 1, 6

Attributable to   
Non-controlling interests  6 1 – ( ) 6   ( ) 6
Non-participating shareholders  – – – – 6  – 6
Participating shareholders [ ][ ] 9 6 1 (1 ) (116) (1  ) – 1,

 1, 9 (1 ) (1 ) (  ) ( ) 1, 6

[1] Dealer compensation expenses at IGM are included in commission expenses. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and alternative asset investment platforms and other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the 
Corporation includes the effect of consolidation. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco and IGM includes an allocation for the results of investments under common control based on their respective interests.
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

CONSOLIDATED NET EARNINGS 

Six months ended June , 1 Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company  

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Revenues   
Total net premiums ,9 – – – –  (1 ) , 9
Net investment income (loss) 9 6 – 6   19 1, 6
Fee income [1] , 1 1, 1 – 1 –  (9 ) , 1
Other revenues  – – – –  –
Total revenues , 1, 1 – 999   ( ) 1,

Expenses   

Total paid or credited to policyholders 1,9 – – – –  – 1,9
Commissions 1, 16 6 – – –  ( 6) 1,91
Operating and administrative expenses , – 9   (6 ) , 6
Financing charges 1 6 –   11 9
Total expenses 6,91 1, 9 – 9 6 1   ( ) 9,16
Earnings before investments in jointly controlled 

corporations and associates, and income taxes 1,9 6 9 – 1 (  ) (1) ,
Share of earnings (losses) of investments in  

jointly controlled corporations and associates  9 1 6   ( 6)
Earnings before income taxes  1,9 6 69 169 (  ) ( ) ,
Income taxes 16 1 9 – 16   
Net earnings 1, 1 ( 6 ) ( ) ,

Attributable to   

Non-controlling interests  6 – ( ) 6   ( ) 9
Non-participating shareholders  – – – – 6  – 6
Participating shareholders [ ][ ] 9 1 6 (1  ) – 1,

 1, 1 ( 6 ) ( ) ,

[1] Dealer compensation expenses at IGM are included in commission expenses. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco, IGM, GBL and alternative asset investment platforms and other to net earnings attributable to participating shareholders of the 
Corporation includes the effect of consolidation. 

[ ] The contribution from Lifeco and IGM includes an allocation for the results of investments under common control based on their respective interests.
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

TOTAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  

June ,  Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company 

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Cash and cash equivalents ,9 969 – 6 1, 9   ( 1) 1 ,6 9
Investments , 66 , – 1,   1,
Investments in Lifeco, IGM and alternative asset 

investment platforms and other 6 1,61 – – 1,9   ( , ) –
Investments in jointly controlled corporations  

and associates 1 1, 11 , 16 1,   ( ) 6, 6
Other assets  9,66 , 1 – ,169   ( 1 ) ,96
Goodwill and intangible assets 16,91 ,16 – 1,   (1) , 69
Investments on account of  

segregated fund policyholders 1, – – – –  – 1,
Total assets [1] 6 , 1 , 91 , 16 9, ,   ( ,6 ) , 91

Insurance and investment contract liabilities , – – – –  – ,
Obligation to securitization entities – ,661 – – –  – ,661
Power Corporation’s debentures and  

other debt instruments – – – – 6   – 6
Non-recourse debentures and  

other debt instruments 9, 66 ,1 – 1,   ( ) 1 , 9
Other liabilities 1 , , – ,96 1,   ( ) ,1 6
Insurance and investment contracts on account of 

segregated fund policyholders 1, – – – –  – 1,

Total liabilities 6 9, 11, 9 – , 1,9   ( 1 ) 6 ,

[1] Total assets of Lifeco and IGM operating segments include the allocation of goodwill and certain consolidation adjustments. 
 

December 1, 1 Lifeco IGM GBL

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company 

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Cash and cash equivalents 6, 1, 9 – 9 1,6   ( ) 9, 9
Investments 19 , 9 , – 1,9 6 6   1 6,6
Investments in Lifeco, IGM and alternative asset 

investment platforms and other 6 , – – 1, 6   ( , ) –
Investments in jointly controlled corporations  

and associates 1 9 1, , 1, 66  ( ) ,
Other assets  ,6 , 1 – ,   ( 1) 6 ,
Goodwill and intangible assets 1 , ,16 – 1,   – ,
Investments on account of  

segregated fund policyholders , 19 – – – –  – , 19
Total assets [1] 6 ,91 1 ,666 , 9,16 ,   ( , ) 661,6

Insurance and investment contract liabilities , – – – –  – ,
Obligation to securitization entities – , – – –  – ,
Power Corporation’s debentures and  

other debt instruments – – – – 6   – 6
Non-recourse debentures and  

other debt instruments , ,1 – 1, 6   ( ) 1 ,
Other liabilities 1 ,9 9 , – , 1, 9   ( ) 1, 1
Insurance and investment contracts on account of 

segregated fund policyholders , 19 – – – –  – , 19

Total liabilities 6 , 11,16 – , 1 1,9   ( 6 ) 61 ,9

[1] Total assets of Lifeco and IGM operating segments include the allocation of goodwill and certain consolidation adjustments. 
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NOTE 19 Segmented Information (continued) 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Six months ended June ,  Lifeco IGM

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company 

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Operating activities ,9 9   (9 ) ,1
Financing activities ( ) 1 (1,  ) ( 6 )
Investing activities ( , ) 1 6 (6 6) 1   (1 ) ( , 9)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on  

cash and cash equivalents (6 ) – ( ) –  (1 ) ( )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1, 9 ( ) (1 ) (1  ) (119) 1,1
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 6, 1, 9 9 1,6   ( ) 9, 9
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ,9 969 6 1, 9   ( 1) 1 ,6 9

 

Six months ended June , 1  Lifeco IGM

Alternative 
asset 

investment 
platforms 
and other

Holding 
company 

Effect of 
consolidation Total

Operating activities , 9 (1 ) 6 9  ( ) ,
Financing activities (1, 6) ( ) (  ) 1, ( 9 )
Investing activities ( ,9 ) 9 1 9   (1, ) ( , 6 )
Effect of changes in exchange rates on  

cash and cash equivalents (11 ) – (1 ) –  – (1 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1, ) 19 9 1   9 ( 1 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year ,9 6 1, 6  ( 9) 1 ,
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 6, 96 9 9 1,   ( 6) 9,6
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Please note that the bottom of each page in Part B contains two diff erent page 
numbers. A page number with the prefi x “B” refers to the number of such page in 
this document and the page number without any prefi x refers to the number of such 
page in the original document issued by Great-West Lifeco Inc.

The attached documents concerning Great-West Lifeco Inc. are documents prepared 
and publicly disclosed by such subsidiary. Certain statements in the attached 
documents, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements 
based on certain assumptions and refl ect the current expectations of the subsidiary 
as set forth therein. Forward-looking statements are provided for the purposes of 
assisting the reader in understanding the subsidiary’s fi nancial performance, fi nancial 
position and cash fl ows as at and for the periods ended on certain dates and to 
present information about the subsidiary’s management’s current expectations and 
plans relating to the future and the reader is cautioned that such statements may not 
be appropriate for other purposes. 

By its nature, forward-looking information is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties 
that may be general or specifi c and which give rise to the possibility that expectations, 
forecasts, predictions, projections or conclusions will not prove to be accurate, that 
assumptions may not be correct and that objectives, strategic goals and priorities 
will not be achieved. 

For further information provided by the subsidiary as to the material factors that 
could cause actual results to diff er materially from the content of forward-looking 
statements, the material factors and assumptions that were applied in making the 
forward-looking statements, and the subsidiary’s policy for updating the content 
of forward-looking statements, please see the attached documents, including the 
section entitled Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Information. The reader 
is cautioned to consider these factors and assumptions carefully and not to put undue 
reliance on forward-looking statements.

Great-West Lifeco Inc.

P A R T  B

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

P A G E  B  2

Financial Statements and Notes

P A G E  B  5 3
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Please note that the bottom of each page in Part C contains two different 
page numbers. A page number with the prefi x “C” refers to the number of such page 
in this document and the page number without any prefi x refers to the number of 
such page in the original document issued by IGM Financial Inc.

The attached documents concerning IGM Financial Inc. are documents prepared and 
publicly disclosed by such subsidiary. Certain statements in the attached documents, 
other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements based on 
certain assumptions and refl ect the current expectations of the subsidiary as set forth 
therein. Forward-looking statements are provided for the purposes of assisting the 
reader in understanding the subsidiary’s fi nancial performance, fi nancial position and 
cash fl ows as at and for the periods ended on certain dates and to present information 
about the subsidiary’s management’s current expectations and plans relating to the 
future and the reader is cautioned that such statements may not be appropriate for 
other purposes. 

By its nature, forward-looking information is subject to inherent risks and uncertainties 
that may be general or specifi c and which give rise to the possibility that expectations, 
forecasts, predictions, projections or conclusions will not prove to be accurate, that 
assumptions may not be correct and that objectives, strategic goals and priorities 
will not be achieved. 

For further information provided by the subsidiary as to the material factors that 
could cause actual results to diff er materially from the content of forward-looking 
statements, the material factors and assumptions that were applied in making the 
forward-looking statements, and the subsidiary’s policy for updating the content 
of forward-looking statements, please see the attached documents, including 
the section entitled Forward-Looking Statements. The reader is cautioned to 
consider these factors and assumptions carefully and not to put undue reliance on 
forward-looking statements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

P A G E  C  2

Financial Statements and Notes

P A G E  C  6 6

IGM Financial Inc.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) presents management’s view of the results of operations and financial condition 

in conjunction with the unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Interim Financial Statements) as well as the 
www.sedar.com. 

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies

Interim Financial Reporting (IFRS) and are presented in 
Canadian dollars (Note 2 of the Interim Financial Statements). 

Forward-looking Statements

are provided to assist the reader in understanding the Company’s 
financial position and results of operations as at and for the periods 

current expectations and plans relating to the future. Readers are 

that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or 

appropriate in the circumstances. While the Company considers these 

and could cause actual results to differ materially from current 
expectations of estimated or anticipated events or results. These factors 

changes in accounting policies and methods used to report financial 
condition (including uncertainties associated with critical accounting 

The reader is cautioned that the foregoing list is not exhaustive of 

statements. The reader is also cautioned to consider these and other 

statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which 

or otherwise.

www.sedar.com.
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Non-IFRS Financial Measures and Other Financial Measures 

and investment analysts with additional measures to assess earnings 
performance. 

and amortization after sales commissions” (EBITDA after sales 
commissions). These measures exclude other items which are items 

sales commissions excludes all sales commissions. EBITDA after sales 
commissions includes all sales commissions and highlights aggregate 
cash flows.

Ratio Numerator Denominator

Adjusted 
earnings 
per share 

Adjusted net 

to common 
shareholders

outstanding common 
shares on a diluted 

Return (Adjusted 
return) on equity 

ROE)

Net earnings 
(Adjusted net 

to common 
shareholders

Average shareholders’ 
equity excluding 

interest

ROE (Adjusted 
ROE) excluding 
the impact 
of fair value 
through other 
comprehensive 
income 
investments 

Net earnings 
(Adjusted net 

to common 
shareholders

Average shareholders’ 
equity excluding 

interest and the 
impact of fair value 
through other 
comprehensive 
income investments 
net of tax

• Assets under Management and Advisement (AUM&A) represents 
the consolidated AUM and AUA of IGM Financial. In the Wealth 

where the asset management segment is providing investment 

Wealth Management segment are eliminated in our reporting such 

• Assets under Advisement (AUA) are the key driver of the Wealth 
Management segment. AUA are savings and investment products held 
within client accounts of our Wealth Management segment operating 
companies.

• Assets under Management (AUM) are the key driver of the Asset 
Management segment. AUM are a secondary driver of revenues and 
expenses within the Wealth Management segment in relation to its 
investment management activities. AUM are client assets where we 

• Working Capital
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IGM Financial Inc.
Summary of Consolidated Operating Results

management company supporting financial advisors and 

manager Mackenzie Investments (Mackenzie). The Company 
also operates through wealth manager Investment Planning 

IGM Financial’s assets under management and advisement 

representing a decrease of 3.3% in earnings per share. 

excluding the impact of fair value through other comprehensive 

Measures and Other Financial Measures) for the six months 

China Asset Management Co., Ltd. (ChinaAMC) 

will reduce the Company’s equity interest in Lifeco from 4% to 

approvals. The sale of Lifeco shares is conditional on IGM 
Financial’s purchase of the ChinaAMC shares.

• Enhancing participation in the rapidly growing Chinese asset 

position in one of the leading asset managers in China.

• 

• Simplifying the IGM Financial and Power organization 

at Mackenzie.

• Providing a financially attractive outcome that is expected 
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Market Overview
Following an extended period of strong financial market returns 

• 

second quarter. 

• 

16.1% in the second quarter. 

• 

• 

• The FTSE TMX Canada Universe Bond total return Index 

the second quarter as interest rates increased. 

• 

IGM Financial’s assets under management and advisement 

Reportable Segments

Asset Management and Strategic Investments & Other 
and reflect the Company’s internal financial reporting and 

• Wealth Management – reflects the activities of operating 
companies that are principally focused on providing financial 
planning and related services to Canadian households. This 

and Investment Planning Counsel. These firms are retail 

and services. A majority of the revenues of this segment 

financial products and services to Canadian households. This 
segment also includes the investment management activities 

and discretionary portfolio management services.

• Asset Management – reflects the activities of operating 
companies primarily focused on providing investment 

Mackenzie Investments. Investment management services 
are provided to a suite of investment funds that are 

and through institutional advisory mandates to financial 

Table 1: Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Financial Measures

Three months ended Six months ended

2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

 2022 
Jun. 30

 

Net earnings available to common shareholders $ 207.1 $ $ 237.4 $ 426.4 $

Net earnings per share  available to common shareholders $ 0.87 $ $ $ 1.78 $ 1.84

Average outstanding shares – Diluted 239,242 240,215

EBITDA before sales commissions(2) $ 343.5 $ $ $ 703.5 $
(33.5) (42.7) (83.0)

EBITDA after sales commissions(2) 310.0 620.5 623.1
31.2 44.5 37.7 75.7

Amortization of capitalized sales commissions (18.9) (17.7) (13.6) (36.6) (25.7)
(26.1) (25.3) (25.5) (51.4)

Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes(2) 296.2 335.6 608.2 625.8
Interest expense(3) 28.4 28.1 28.5 56.5 56.6

Adjusted earnings before income taxes(2) 267.8 551.7
Income taxes 59.4 63.8 123.2

Net earnings $ 208.4 $ $ 237.8 $ 428.5 $
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Table 2: Consolidated Operating Results by Segment – Q2 2022 vs. Q2 2021

Wealth Management Asset Management
Strategic Investments 

& Other
Intersegment 

Eliminations Total

Three months ended  2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

Revenues
Wealth management $ 615.8 $ 632.4 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ (4.7) $ (4.8) $ 611.1 $ 627.6

Asset management – – 269.7 276.3 – – (28.1) 241.6 248.3
Dealer compensation 
expense – – (82.1) (87.4) – – 4.7 4.7 (77.4) (82.7)

Net asset management – – 187.6 – – (23.4) (23.3) 164.2 165.6

Net investment income 
and other (1.3) (1.1) 1.1 1.8 – – (0.6) 2.5
Proportionate share of 
associates’ earnings – – – – 50.0 48.2 – – 50.0 48.2

614.5 186.5 51.8 (28.1) (28.1) 824.7

Expenses

development 282.3 21.5 25.1 – – – – 303.8
Operations and support 116.0 88.4 2.0 1.3 – – 206.4

45.2 46.5 1.2 – – (28.1) 18.3

443.5 427.5 111.1 2.0 1.3 (28.1) 528.5

Adjusted earnings before  
interest and taxes 171.0 75.4 82.5 49.8 47.7 – 296.2 335.6
Interest expense(2) 22.5 22.5 5.9 – – – – 28.4 28.5

income taxes 148.5 69.5 76.5 49.8 47.7 – 267.8
Income taxes 39.7 48.7 18.2 1.3 0.2 59.4

Adjusted net earnings 108.8 134.3 51.3 56.5 48.5 (0.2) – 208.4 237.8
– – – – 1.3 – – 1.3

Adjusted net earnings 
available to common 
shareholders $ 108.8 $ 134.3 $ 51.3 $ 56.5 $ 47.2 $ 46.6 $ (0.2) $ – 207.1 237.4

Other items , net of tax – –

Net earnings available to 
common shareholders $ 207.1 $ 237.4

• Strategic Investments and Other – primarily represents the 

Investments are classified in this segment (as opposed to 

profiles or other unique characteristics. 

Assets under Management and Advisement (AUM&A) 
represents the consolidated AUM and AUA of IGM Financial. 

segment is providing investment management services or 

segment are eliminated in our reporting such that there 

Assets under Advisement (AUA) are the key driver of 
the Wealth Management segment. AUA are savings and 
investment products held within client accounts of our 

Assets under Management (AUM) are the key driver of the 
Asset Management segment. AUM are a secondary driver 
of revenues and expenses within the Wealth Management 
segment in relation to its investment management activities. 
AUM are client assets where we provide investment 
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Table 3: Consolidated Operating Results by Segment – Six Months Ended

Wealth Management Asset Management
Strategic Investments 

& Other
Intersegment

Eliminations Total

Six months ended  2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

Revenues
Wealth management $ 1,261.9 $ $ – $ – $ – $ – $ (9.6) $ $ 1,252.3 $

Asset management – – 554.5 536.2 – – (57.1) 497.4 481.3
Dealer compensation 
expense – – (173.2) (172.7) – – 9.6 (163.6) (163.4)

Net asset management – – 381.3 363.5 – – (47.5) (45.6) 333.8

Net investment income 
and other (1.3) 2.4 (3.7) 2.3 2.5 (0.1) (2.6) 5.6
Proportionate share of  
associates’ earnings – – – – 98.4 – – 98.4

1,260.6 377.6 365.8 100.9 (57.2) 1,681.9

Expenses

development 571.2 41.7 45.4 – – – – 612.9 575.1
Operations and support 237.1 181.5 3.4 2.4 (0.1) 421.9

93.3 2.7 3.6 – – (57.1) 38.9

901.6 858.2 225.9 3.4 2.4 (57.2) 1,073.7

Adjusted earnings before  
interest and taxes 359.0 384.6 151.7 152.8 97.5 88.4 – – 608.2 625.8
Interest expense(2) 44.8 44.8 11.7 11.8 – – – – 56.5 56.6

income taxes 314.2 140.0 97.5 88.4 – – 551.7
Income taxes 84.0 36.6 36.5 2.4 1.8 0.2 – 123.2

Adjusted net earnings 230.2 103.4 95.1 86.6 (0.2) – 428.5
– – – – 2.1 – – 2.1

Adjusted net  
earnings available to 
common shareholders $ 230.2 $ $ 103.4 $ $ 93.0 $ $ (0.2) $ – 426.4

Other items , net of tax – –

Net earnings available to  
common shareholders $ 426.4 $

Financial Presentation
The financial presentation includes revenues and expenses to 

• Wealth management revenue 

investment advisory and related financial services. Revenues 

revenue relating to mortgage lending activities.

• Asset management revenue 
Management segment related to investment management 
advisory and administrative services.

• Dealer compensation

segment.

• Advisory and business development expenses – expenses 
incurred on activities directly associated with providing 
financial planning services to clients of the Wealth 

POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022  C 7

PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D7PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D7 2022-08-05   9:59 AM2022-08-05   9:59 AM



P
A

R
T

 C
 

IG
M

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
IN

C
.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  |  IGM Financial Inc. 2022 Second Quarter Report |  11

Table 4: Consolidated Operating Results by Segment – Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022

Wealth Management Asset Management
Strategic Investments 

& Other
Intersegment

Eliminations Total

Three months ended  2022
Jun. 30 Mar. 31

2022
Jun. 30 Mar. 31

2022
Jun. 30 Mar. 31

2022
Jun. 30 Mar. 31

2022
Jun. 30 Mar. 31

Revenues
Wealth management $ 615.8 $ 646.1 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ (4.7) $ $ 611.1 $ 641.2

Asset management – – 269.7 284.8 – – (28.1) 241.6 255.8
Dealer compensation 
expense – – (82.1) – – 4.7 (77.4) (86.2)

Net asset management – – 187.6 – – (23.4) (24.1) 164.2

Net investment income 
and other (1.3) – (1.1) (2.6) 1.8 – (0.6)
Proportionate share of  
associates’ earnings – – – – 50.0 48.4 – – 50.0 48.4

614.5 646.1 186.5 51.8 (28.1) 824.7 857.2

Expenses

development 282.3 21.5 – – – – 303.8
Operations and support 116.0 121.1 88.4 2.0 1.4 – 206.4 215.5

45.2 48.1 1.2 1.5 – – (28.1) 18.3

443.5 458.1 111.1 114.8 2.0 1.4 (28.1) 528.5 545.2

Adjusted earnings before  
interest and taxes 171.0 75.4 76.3 49.8 47.7 – – 296.2
Interest expense(2) 22.5 22.3 5.9 5.8 – – – – 28.4 28.1

income taxes 148.5 165.7 69.5 49.8 47.7 – – 267.8
Income taxes 39.7 44.3 18.2 18.4 1.3 1.1 0.2 – 59.4 63.8

Adjusted net earnings 108.8 121.4 51.3 52.1 48.5 46.6 (0.2) – 208.4
– – – – 1.3 – – 1.3

Adjusted net  
earnings available to 
common shareholders $ 108.8 $ 121.4 $ 51.3 $ 52.1 $ 47.2 $ 45.8 $ (0.2) $ – 207.1

Other items , net of tax – –

Net earnings available to  
common shareholders $ 207.1 $

product & planning specialists; expenses associated with 

activities including direct marketing and advertising. A 
significant component of these expenses varies directly with 

• Operations and support expenses – expenses associated 

shelf management; corporate management and support 

technology and other service provider expenses.

• Sub-advisory expenses – reflects fees relating to investment 

party investment management organizations. These 

management. These fees include investment advisory 
services performed for the Wealth Management segment 
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Table 5: Effective Income Tax Rate

Three months ended Six months ended

2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

 2022 
Jun. 30

 

Income taxes at Canadian federal and provincial 
26.63 % 26.63 % 26.61 % 26.63 % 26.62 %

Proportionate share of associates’ earnings (4.44) (4.25) (3.73)
Other 0.01 (0.05)

22.20 % 22.45 % 22.58 % 22.33 % 22.67 %

Income taxes are reported in each segment. IGM Financial 
consolidated changes in the effective tax rates are detailed 

Tax planning may result in the Company recording lower 
levels of income taxes. Management monitors the status of its 
income tax filings and regularly assesses the overall adequacy 

income tax rates on foreign operations.

operations less meaningful. There were no Other items in the 

Total Assets Under 

Management segment.

including ChinaAMC and Northleaf. This AUM is not currently 
reported as the Company’s AUM&A. 

IGM Financial holds a 56% economic interest in Northleaf. 

Changes in assets under management for the Wealth 
Management and Asset Management segments are 
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Table 6: Assets Under Management and Advisement

Wealth Management Asset Management

Management
Investment  

Planning Counsel
Mackenzie 

Investments
Intercompany

Eliminations(2) Consolidated

 2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

Three months ended

Mutual fund gross sales(3)(4) $ 2,590 $ $ 153 $ 182 $ 1,735 $ $ – $ – $ 4,478 $
3,068 1,043 – – – – 4,111

Mutual fund net sales(3)(4) (99) (72) (758) – – (929)
ETF net creations(5) – – – – (61) 562 – – (61) 562

Investment fund net sales (99) (72) (819) – – (990)
Institutional SMA net sales(6) – – – – (133) 617 – – (133) 617
Mackenzie net sales through  
Wealth Management (6) 118 (17) 38 – – 23 (156) – –

IGM product net sales (105) (89) (22) (952) 23 (156) (1,123)
494 273 100 138 – – 2 1 596 412
389 11 116 (952) 25 (155) (527)

Six months ended

Mutual fund gross sales(3)(4) $ 6,492 $ $ 356 $ 412 $ 4,656 $ $ $ – $ 11,504 $
7,068 2,385 – – – 9,453

Mutual fund net sales(3)(4) 1,165 (134) (176) – 855
ETF net creations(5) – – – – 657 – 657

Investment fund net sales 1,165 (134) 481 – – 1,512
Institutional SMA net sales(6) – – – – (560) – – (560)
Mackenzie net sales through  
Wealth Management (1) 12 – – (11) (436) – –

IGM product net sales 1,164 (122) (63) (79) (11) (436) 952
691 575 293 – – 3 2 987 747

1,855 171 (79) (8) (434) 1,939
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Table 6: Assets Under Management and Advisement (continued)

Wealth Management Asset Management

Management
Investment  

Planning Counsel
Mackenzie 

Investments
Intercompany

Eliminations Consolidated

 2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

2022
Jun. 30

Assets under Management  
and Advisement

Wealth Management(2)

AUM $ 96,603 $ $ 4,635 $ $ – $ – $101,238 $
Mackenzie assets sold through  
Wealth Management 820 822 3,119 – – 3,939
Other AUA 8,051 20,938 (7) (11) 28,982

AUA 105,474 28,692 (7) (11) 134,159
Asset Management

Mutual funds $ 53,576 $ 53,576
ETFs 5,368 5,368

Investment funds 58,944 58,944

Institutional SMA 6,344 6,344
46,575 46,575

Total Institutional SMA 52,919 52,919

 
Wealth Management 111,863 111,863

72,855 72,855

Total AUM 184,718 184,718

ETFs
5,368 5,368

Held within IGM managed products 6,230 (6,230) – –

Total ETFs 11,598 (6,230) 5,368

Consolidated
AUM 96,603 4,635 184,718 (72,855) 213,101
Mackenzie assets sold through  
Wealth Management 820 822 3,119 – – (3,939) – –
Other AUA 8,051 20,938 – – (7) (11) 28,982

AUM&A 105,474 28,692 184,718 (76,801) 242,083

Summary of Quarterly Results

financial measures to net earnings in accordance with IFRS.

Changes in average daily investment fund assets under 

foreign markets and net sales of the Company. 
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Table 7: Summary of Quarterly Results

2022
Q2

      

Consolidated statements of earnings 
Revenues

Wealth management $ 611.1 $ 641.2 $ 667.5 $ $ 627.6 $ $  $ 571.6

Asset management 241.6 255.8 266.8 263.4 248.3 216.3
Dealer compensation expense (77.4) (86.2) (86.7) (82.7) (74.3) (71.3)

Net asset management 164.2 177.5 165.6 152.3 136.1

Net investment income and other (0.6) 3.8 2.5 2.5 3.1 3.2 2.2
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings 50.0 48.4 48.2 41.6 43.5

824.7 857.2 753.4

Expenses
303.8 283.1 252.6

Operations and support 206.4 215.5
18.3 21.1 18.3 18.5

Interest 28.4 28.1 28.6 28.7 28.5 28.1

556.9 573.3 564.1 536.8 538.4 518.3

267.8 262.1 261.2 272.5
Gain on sale of Personal Capital – – – – – – 37.2

– – – – – – 25.2 –
Proportionate share of associate’s adjustments – – – – – – 3.4 –
Restructuring and other – – – – – – – (74.5)

267.8 348.6 262.1 235.2
Income taxes 59.4 63.8 78.4 44.3

Net earnings 208.4 271.5 237.8
1.3 –

$ 207.1 $ $ 268.5 $ $ 237.4 $ $ $

(2) $ 207.1 $ $ $ $ 237.4 $ $ $ 214.2
Other items(2)

 
– – 7.7 – – – – 31.4

– – – – – – 21.4 –
Proportionate share of associate’s adjustments – – – – – – 3.4 –

– – – – – – – (54.7)

$ 207.1 $ $ 268.5 $ $ 237.4 $ $ $

Earnings per Share
Adjusted earnings per share(2)

– Basic $ 0.87 $ $ $  1.13 $ $ $ $
– Diluted 0.87  1.13 

Earnings per share
– Basic 0.87  1.12  1.13 
– Diluted 0.87  1.11  1.13 

Average outstanding shares – Diluted 239,242

Average assets under management and advisement 
Investment fund assets under management $ 169.3 $ $ $ 178.6 $ $ 162.7 $ $ 163.7
Total assets under management 225.2 238.4 238.3 227.8 217.6 177.6 171.4
Assets under management and advisement 255.3 267.4 255.4

Ending assets under management and advisement 
Investment fund assets under management $ 160.2 $ 178.5 $ 184.5 $ 176.8 $ 174.4 $ 165.5 $ $
Total assets under management 213.1 237.1 245.3 236.2 233.6 221.6 172.6
Assets under management and advisement 242.1 268.3 277.1 265.2 248.5

C  12  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D12PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D12 2022-08-05   9:59 AM2022-08-05   9:59 AM



P
A

R
T

 C
 

IG
M

 FIN
A

N
C

IA
L IN

C
.

IGM Financial Inc. 2022 Second Quarter Report  |  Management’s Discussion and Analysis16  |

Wealth Management

• Advisory fees are related to providing financial advice to 

and depend largely on the level and composition of assets 
under advisement. 

• Product and program fees are related to the management 

administration and other related fees and depend largely 

• Other financial planning revenues are fees related 
to providing clients other financial products including 

parties for investment management services provided to our 
investment products. Wealth Management is considered a 
client of the Asset Management segment and transfer pricing is 

Income taxes are also reported in each segment.

Review of the Business

personal financial planning and wealth management services 

with 684 financial advisors.

The Wealth Management segment provides a comprehensive 

 products 
and services.

of adjusted net earnings of the total segment.

2022 Developments

Taxpayer Portfolios (Portfolios) offer investors a comprehensive 
investment solution that help simplify tax reporting for 
Canadian residents who pay taxes in the U.S. The second 

investors who are seeking to invest in U.S. dollar investments. 
The new Funds will provide clients with comprehensive 
diversification for their U.S. dollars and the new Portfolios 

at Mackenzie and BlackRock Asset Management to deliver 
these suites of diversified investment solutions that will offer 
Canadians new and innovative ways to meet their financial goals.

confidence.

Canadians hold $6.5 trillion in discretionary financial assets 

financial planning solutions positions it well to compete and 
grow in these segments. 
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• Superior Advice – Acquiring a deep knowledge of Canadian 
investors and using those insights to shape everything we do.

• Segmented Client Experiences – Creating segmented 
experiences personalized throughout our clients’ lifetimes.

• Entrepreneurial Advisors – Inspiring our entrepreneurial 
advisors to constantly deliver an engaging experience and 

• Powerful Financial Solutions – Providing our clients with a 

and competitively priced solutions.

• 

• 

Delivering Gamma

Entrepreneurial Advisors, Superior Advice

communities throughout Canada. Our advisory services are 
most suited to individuals with complicated financial needs. 

in holding a credentialed financial planning designation. These 
designations are nationally recognized financial planning 
qualifications that require an individual to demonstrate 

Management advisor network into its significant components 

• 
reflect advisors with more than four years of experience. 

• 
advisors with less than four years of experience. 

• 

practices who provide financial planning services and advice 

• 

Our training curriculum is reviewed and refreshed each year to 

of focused educational programs. 

We also support advisors and clients through our network of 

and securities. These specialists help to ensure that we are 
providing comprehensive financial planning across all elements 

Dealers Association of Canada (MFDA) and Investment Industry 
Regulatory Organization of Canada (IIROC) licensed advisors 

Segmented Client Experiences

and attracting high net worth and mass affluent clients. 

IG Private Wealth Management which includes investment 

aspirations of Canadian families and individuals. The IG Living 

and uses predictive tools to determine planning strategies 
customized to the individual. 

clients located in communities throughout Canada.
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us to provide a tailored IG Living Plan that evolves over time. 

• Powerful financial solutions that include investment vehicles 
that match risk and investment performance to each client’s 
needs and requirements.

• Insurance products that include a variety of policy types 
from the leading insurers in Canada.

• 

• 

expense and complexity than setting up and administering 
their own private foundation.

requirements while allowing our advisor practices to focus 

Assets under advisement for clients with household assets 

advisement.

Assets under advisement for clients with household assets 

under advisement. 

Assets under advisement for clients with household assets 

Business Processes

serve clients more effectively. We look to enhance client 

that provides IG advisors access to a powerful investment 
analysis and proposal tool. Portfolio comparisons and product 
information is integrated with our Advisor Portal (Salesforce) 
to quickly and transparently deliver on demand analysis and 
generate compliant and compelling investment proposals to 
our clients. CapIntel also monitors daily investment funds and 
equities and notifies our advisors (through advisor portal) of 

advisors as well as new products on our investment dealer 
platform designed to support the high net worth segment 

A High-performing and Diverse Culture 

It is essential that we offer competitive compensation and 

Delivering Beta and Alpha

to a diverse range of investment products and solutions. 

activities are consistent with their investment philosophies and 

they advise.

Investments and other world class investment firms such as 

Putnam and JP Morgan Asset Management. 
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Powerful Financial Solutions

and competitively priced financial solutions. We regularly 
enhance the scope and diversity of our investment offering 

achieve their goals. 

• 

capitalization and sector.

• 
that a chosen mix of investments and risk and return is 

Risk Portfolios.

• ™  iProfile Portfolios are a suite of 
four managed solutions that provide comprehensive 
diversification and are designed to suit personal preferences 
for risk tolerance and investment goals. These portfolios 
provide exposure similar to the investments of the iProfile 

and iProfile account structures.

• ™  – iProfile Private Portfolios are 

and geographic regions. Recent enhancements include the 
launch of new discretionary model portfolios and six new 

Pool providing exposure through exchange traded funds 

• 
assets with the introduction of a Private Credit Mandate 
in the iProfile Fixed Income Private Pool. The pool has 
committed to three Northleaf Capital Partners’ private credit 
investments that focus on loans to middle market companies 

and Sagard. We have also introduced Private Investment 

Pool and the iProfile U.S. Equity Private Pool. Both of these 
mandates intend to provide investors with enhanced 

exposure to investments in privately held companies. The 

iProfile Canadian Equity Private Pool has currently made a 
commitment to the Northleaf Growth Fund and the iProfile 
U.S. Equity Private Pool has made a commitment to the 
Northleaf Capital Opportunities Fund. 

•  – The 

investments into a single account while providing all of 
our clients with a transparent advisory fee. IGAA accounts 
increase fee transparency and can hold most securities 

individual investors.

• 

guarantee features and estate planning efficiencies. 

• 
accounts).

Investment Association’s Canadian Investor Statement on 

the advisory fee that is charged directly to a client’s account 
from the fees charged to the underlying investment funds. 
This separation provides clients with greater transparency 

† fund 
ranking service is one of the rankings monitored when 
determining fund performance. 

† 

stars. This compared to the Morningstar† universe of 85.4% 

†
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Wealth Management Assets 

Assets under management and advisement are key 
performance indicators for the Wealth Management segment.

Wealth Management’s assets under advisement were 

Wealth Management’s assets under management were 

redemptions and investment returns.

Changes in Wealth Management assets under advisement 

Management and Advisement
Assets under advisement (AUA) are a key performance 

are held within our clients’ accounts. Advisory fees are 

majority of the fees earned from our clients. Our advisors’ 

and management for the periods under review are reflected 

Table 8: Change in Assets Under Advisement – Wealth Management
Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Gross client inflows $ 4,111 $ $ % (5.3)%
Gross client outflows 3,709 4.4

402 787 (75.3)
Investment returns (14,248) (128.2) N/M

Net change in assets (13,846) N/M
Beginning assets 148,005 8.1

Ending assets under advisement $ 134,159 $ $ % (6.4)%
105,474

Investment Planning Counsel 28,692

Average assets under advisement $ 140,997 $ $ % %
110,700 (4.8)

Investment Planning Counsel 30,306 (5.4)

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Gross client inflows $ 9,453 $ (1.3)%
Gross client outflows 7,424 (4.6)

2,029 13.1
Investment returns (20,493) N/M

Net change in assets (18,464) N/M
Beginning assets 152,623 15.1

Ending assets under advisement $ 134,159 $ (6.4)%
105,474

Investment Planning Counsel 28,692

Average assets under advisement $ 144,637 $ 5.2 %
113,484 5.5

Investment Planning Counsel 31,162 4.1
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Table 9: Change in Assets Under Management – Wealth Management

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Sales $ 2,743 $ $ (33.2)% (7.8)%
Redemptions 2,914 5.7

Net sales (redemptions) (171) N/M N/M
Investment returns (10,979) N/M

Net change in assets (11,150) N/M
Beginning assets 112,388 (3.3)

Ending assets under management $ 101,238 $ $ % (8.5)%
96,603 (8.2)

Investment Planning Counsel 4,635 (15.5)

Daily average mutual fund assets $ 106,737 $ $ (5.3)% (1.6)%
101,810 (5.2) (1.2)

Investment Planning Counsel 4,927 (7.3) (8.8)

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Sales $ 6,848 $ 4.4 %
Redemptions 5,817 (2.2)

Net sales (redemptions) 1,031 611 68.7
Investment returns (15,963) N/M

Net change in assets (14,932) N/M
Beginning assets 116,170 12.8

Ending assets under management $ 101,238 $ (8.5)%
96,603 (8.2)

Investment Planning Counsel 4,635 (15.5)

Daily average mutual fund assets $ 109,713 $ 2.8 %
104,594 3.2

Investment Planning Counsel 5,119 (4.7)

Changes in mutual fund assets under management for the 

Change in Assets Under Management 

Management mutual funds through its advisor network were 
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Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Gross client inflows $ 3,068 $ $ (23.3)% (4.7)%
Gross client outflows 2,679 5.7 5.1

389 (73.5)
Investment returns (11,196) (136.1) N/M

Net change in assets (10,807) N/M
Beginning assets 116,281 (2.7) 8.7

Ending assets $ 105,474 $ $ % %

Daily average assets under advisement $ 110,700 $ $ (4.8) % %

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Gross client inflows $ 7,068 $ 3.1 %
Gross client outflows 5,213

1,855
Investment returns (15,938) N/M

Net change in assets (14,083) N/M
Beginning assets 119,557 15.8

Ending assets $ 105,474 $ %

Average assets under advisement $ 113,484 $ 5.5 %

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Sales $ 2,590 $ $ (33.6) % (7.3) %
Redemptions 2,689

Net sales (redemptions) (99) N/M N/M
Investment returns (10,485) N/M

Net change in assets (10,584) N/M N/M
Beginning assets 107,187 6.4

Ending assets $ 96,603 $ $ % (8.2) %

Daily average assets under management $ 101,810 $ $ (5.2) % (1.2) %

Managed asset net sales
Investment fund net sales $ (99) $ $ N/M % N/M %
Mackenzie net sales through Wealth Management (6) 5 118 N/M N/M

$ (105) $ $ N/M % N/M %

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Sales $ 6,492 $ 5.6 %
Redemptions 5,327

Net sales (redemptions) 1,165
Investment returns (15,103) N/M

Net change in assets (13,938) N/M
Beginning assets 110,541 13.1

Ending assets $ 96,603 $ (8.2) %

Daily average assets under management $ 104,594 $ 3.2 %

Managed asset net sales
Investment fund net sales $ 1,165 $ %
Mackenzie net sales through Wealth Management (1) N/M

$ 1,164 $ %
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Investment Funds Institute of Canada (IFIC) of approximately 

Management mutual funds through its Consultant network 

Change in Assets Under Management 

Management mutual funds through its advisor network were 

 
Other Products and Services
Segregated Funds

the IG Series of Guaranteed Investment Funds (GIFs). Select 
GIF policies allow for a Lifetime Income Benefit (LIB) option to 
provide guaranteed retirement income for life. The investment 

Insurance

care coverage and group insurance. 

Securities Operations
Investors Group Securities Inc. is an investment dealer 
registered in all Canadian provinces and territories providing 
clients with securities services to complement their financial 

through Investors Group Securities Inc.

Mortgage and Banking Operations 

our clients and their advisors to develop mortgage and other 
lending strategies that meet the individual needs and goals of 
each client as part of their comprehensive financial plan. 

Management’s Solutions Banking†
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†. 

and through Solutions Banking† for the three and six months 

†

accounts originated for the three and six month periods ended 

†

credit associated with these accounts.

Management’s Solutions Banking†

†

Solutions Banking†

approach to delivering total financial solutions for our clients 

Solutions Banking† † 
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Review of Segment Operating Results
The Wealth Management segment’s adjusted net earnings are 

Management and Investment Planning Counsel.

prior quarter. 

2022 vs. 2021

Fee Income

Advisory fees include fees for providing financial advice to 

and depend largely on the level and composition of assets 

The decrease in advisory fees in the three months ending 

Table 12: Operating Results – Wealth Management

 Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Revenues
Wealth Management

Advisory fees $ 346.7 $ 358.2 $ (3.2)% %
Product and program fees 231.2 241.4 235.1 (4.2) (1.7)

577.9 584.2 (3.6) (1.1)
Redemption fees 1.1 1.4 2.7 (21.4)

36.8 45.1 45.5 (18.4)

Total Wealth Management 615.8 646.1 632.4 (4.7) (2.6)
Net investment income and other (1.3) – N/M N/M

614.5 646.1
Expenses

186.5 (4.6) 3.3
18.6 17.4 13.4 38.8

Other
Other product commissions 17.4 17.5
Business development 59.8 55.8 54.5 7.2

77.2 1.6 7.2

282.3 (2.3) 6.1
Operations and support 116.0 121.1 (4.2)

45.2 48.1 46.5 (2.8)

443.5 458.1 427.5 (3.2) 3.7

171.0 (16.8)
Interest expense 22.5 22.3 22.5 –

148.5 165.7
Income taxes 39.7 44.3 48.7 (18.5)

Adjusted net earnings $ 108.8 $ 121.4 $ 134.3 % %
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Table 12: Operating Results – Wealth Management (continued)

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Revenues
Wealth Management

Advisory fees $ 704.9 $ 682.1 3.3 %
Product and program fees 472.6 2.8

1,177.5 3.1
Redemption fees 2.5 6.5 (61.5)

81.9

Total Wealth Management 1,261.9 1.7
Net investment income and other (1.3) 2.4 N/M

1,260.6 1.4

Expenses

382.0 353.3 8.1
36.0 25.5 41.2

Other
Other product commissions 37.6 37.7
Business development 115.6 113.2 2.1

153.2 1.5

571.2 7.8
Operations and support 237.1 –

93.3

901.6 858.2 5.1

359.0 384.6 (6.7)
Interest expense 44.8 44.8 –

314.2 (7.5)
Income taxes 84.0 (7.4)

Adjusted net earnings $ 230.2 $ (7.6)%

was primarily due to the increase in average assets under 

in the advisory fee rate. The average advisory fee rate for the 

changes in product and client mix. 

Product and program fees depend largely on the level and 
composition of mutual fund assets under management. 

due to the decrease in average assets under management 

3.3% primarily due to the increase in average assets under 

product and program fee rate for the three and six month 

• 

• 
Services Inc.

• Securities trading services provided through Investors Group 
Securities Inc.

• Banking services provided through Solutions Banking†

six month periods were due to lower earnings from mortgage 
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Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Revenues
Wealth Management

Advisory fees $ 284.6 $ $ (2.6)% %
Product and program fees 218.5 227.8 (4.1) (1.1)

503.1 (3.3)
Redemption fees 1.1 1.4 2.7 (21.4)

31.1 (21.7)

Total Wealth Management 535.3 561.2 (4.6) (2.5)
Net investment income and other (1.3) (116.7) N/M

534.0 (4.7) (2.8)

Expenses

138.3 143.7 131.2 (3.8) 5.4
18.6 17.4 13.4 38.8

Other
Other product commissions 14.6 17.2 14.4 (15.1) 1.4
Business development 50.5 46.5 46.1 8.6

65.1 63.7 2.2 7.6

222.0 224.8 (1.2) 8.2
Operations and support 103.2 (5.1) 1.6

42.0 44.6 42.8 (5.8)

367.2 378.1 5.1

166.8 182.5 (8.6) (16.6)
Interest expense 22.4 22.1 22.4 1.4 –

144.4 177.6 (18.7)
Income taxes 38.7 42.8 47.2

Adjusted net earnings $ 105.7 $ 117.6 $ % % 
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Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Revenues
Wealth Management

Advisory fees $ 576.9 $ 556.3 3.7 %
Product and program fees 446.3 3.3

1,023.2 3.5
Redemption fees 2.5 6.4

70.8 (13.6)

Total Wealth Management 1,096.5
Net investment income and other (1.9) 1.8 N/M

1,094.6 1.5

Expenses

282.0 255.6
36.0 25.5 41.2

Other
Other product commissions 31.8 31.5
Business development 97.0 –

128.8 128.5

446.8
Operations and support 211.9 211.5

86.6 84.2

745.3 5.7

349.3 (6.4)
Interest expense 44.5 44.5 –

304.8 328.5 (7.2)
Income taxes 81.5 87.6

Adjusted net earnings $ 223.3 $ (7.3)% 

Net Investment Income and Other

Net investment income and other consists of unrealized losses 
on investments in proprietary funds in the three and six months 

the Strategic Investments and Other segment for the use of 
unallocated capital.

Expenses

development expenses that include compensation paid to our 
advisors. The majority of these costs vary directly with asset or 

development activities which do not vary directly with asset or 

planning specialist support and other costs incurred to support 

was primarily due to rate increases due to asset mix and 
increased average assets under advisement.
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Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Total mortgage banking income
Net interest income on securitized loans

Interest income $ 30.1 $ $ 37.7 (2.3)% %
Interest expense 23.5 24.1 27.4 (2.5) (14.2)

Net interest income 6.6 6.7 (1.5)
Losses on sales (2.8) N/M N/M
Fair value adjustments (0.4) N/M N/M
Other 1.1 1.3 266.7 (15.4)

$ 4.5 $ $ (56.3)% (62.2)%

Average mortgages serviced
Securitizations $ 4,711 $ $ (4.2)% %
Other 2,444 2.1 (4.8)

$ 7,155 $ $ (2.1)% (11.1)%

Mortgage sales to:(2)

Securitizations $ 252 $ 134 $ 88.1 % %
Other 132 224 (41.1)

$ 384 $ 358 $ 748 7.3 % (48.7)%

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Total mortgage banking income
Net interest income on securitized loans

Interest income $ 60.9 $ 78.3 (22.2)%
Interest expense 47.6 58.6 (18.8)

Net interest income 13.3 (32.5)
(Losses) gains on sales (3.5) 1.6 N/M
Fair value adjustments 3.6 N/M
Other 1.4 2.6 (46.2)

$ 14.8 $ (38.3)%

Average mortgages serviced
Securitizations $ 4,814 $ (14.6)%
Other 2,419 (6.1)

$ 7,233 $ %

Mortgage sales to:(2)

Securitizations $ 386 $ 875 %
Other 355 474 (25.1)

$ 741 $ (45.1)%
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Operations and support includes costs that support our wealth 
management and other general and administrative functions 

higher assets under management.

Interest Expense

Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022 

Fee Income

the first quarter. The decrease in advisory fees in the second 
quarter was primarily due to the decrease in average assets 

from one additional calendar day in the second quarter 
compared to the first quarter. The average advisory fee rate 

program fees was due to lower assets under management 

additional calendar day in the second quarter compared to the 
first quarter. The average product and program fee rate was 

points in the first quarter.

Net Investment Income and Other

first quarter. 

Expenses

compensation and other advisor programs. 

due to seasonality of expenses.

Investment Planning Counsel

2022 vs. 2021
Adjusted net earnings related to Investment Planning Counsel 

Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022 
Adjusted net earnings related to Investment Planning Counsel 

to the prior quarter. 
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Asset Management
The Asset Management segment includes Mackenzie 
Investments (Mackenzie).

• Net asset management fees – third party includes fees 
received from our mutual funds and fees from third parties 
for investment management services. Compensation paid 

• Asset management fees – Wealth Management includes 
fees received from the Wealth Management segment. Wealth 

Management is considered a client of the Asset Management 

sized asset management mandates.

Income taxes are also reported in each segment.

Review of the Business
Mackenzie Investments is a diversified asset management 

management and related services with a wide range of 

• 

• Fees earned from its mutual funds for administrative services.

• Redemption fees on deferred sales charge and low load units.

The largest component of Mackenzie’s revenues is management 
fees. The amount of management fees depends on the level 
and composition of assets under management. Management 

account type of the underlying assets under management. 

than fixed income mandates and retail mutual fund accounts 
have higher management fee rates than exchange traded 

Asset Management Strategy

• Win in retail in a segmented way

• 

• Deliver innovative investment solutions and performance

• 

• Continue to foster a high performance and diverse culture 

These strategies impact our strategic priorities and drive future 

to changing needs of financial advisors and investors with 

institutional quality in everything we do. 

distinct focuses and diverse styles. Our research and portfolio 

ownership interest in Northleaf enhances our investment 

and infrastructure investment solutions to our clients and our 
ownership interest in ChinaAMC offers our clients access to 
Chinese capital markets. We also supplement our investment 
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supporting the evolving financial needs of investors.

strategic alliances and institutional. 

comprehensive lineup of investment solutions covers all asset 

products and investment solutions designed to help advisors 
meet the evolving needs of their clients. We regularly introduce 
new funds and we may merge or streamline our fund offerings 
to provide enhanced investment solutions.

has specialty teams focused on strategic alliances and the 
institutional marketplace. 

companies. Strategic alliances with related parties include 

Investment Canada Ltd. (Primerica) where Mackenzie will serve 

relationships with pension and management consultants. 

Gross sales and redemption activity in strategic alliance and 

which may result in a significant change in the level of assets 
under management. 

investment excellence. 

Assets Under Management
The changes in total assets under management are 

managed for the Wealth Management segment are included in 
total assets under management.

year. Mackenzie’s total assets under management (excluding 

in Mackenzie’s assets under management is determined 

Change in Assets Under Management –  
2022 vs. 2021 

excluding ETFs held within IGM Financial’s managed products 

Mutual fund net redemptions for the three months ended 

last year. Investment fund net redemptions in the current 
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Table 15: Change in Total Assets Under Management – Asset Management

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Assets under management excluding sub-advisory to  
Canada Life and the Wealth Management Segment

Net sales (redemptions)
Mutual funds $ (758) $ 582 $ N/M % N/M %
ETF net creations(2) (61) 718 562 N/M N/M

Investment funds(3) (819) N/M N/M
(4) (133) (427) 617 N/M

Total net sales (redemptions) (952) 873 N/M N/M
Investment returns (6,989) (76.8) N/M
Net change in assets (7,941) (157.7) N/M
Beginning assets 73,229

Ending assets $ 65,288 $ $ % %

Consolidated assets under management
Mutual funds $ 53,576 $ $ (11.1)% (8.8)%
ETFs 5,368 (8.2)

Investment funds(3) 58,944 (7.4)
6,344 (22.3)

65,288
46,575 (8.8)

111,863
72,855 (7.5)

Consolidated assets under management $ 184,718 $ $ % (8.4)%

Average total assets under management(5)

$ 118,478 $ $ (5.7)% %
Consolidated 195,540 (4.8)

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Assets under management excluding sub-advisory to Canada Life and the Wealth Management Segment
Net sales (redemptions)

Mutual funds $ (176) $ N/M %
ETF net creations(2) 657 (32.1)

Investment funds(3) 481 (86.5)
(4) (560) N/M

Total net sales (redemptions) (79) N/M
Investment returns (10,943) N/M
Net change in assets (11,022) N/M
Beginning assets 76,310

Ending assets $ 65,288 $ %

Average total assets under management(5)

$ 121,939 $ 5.1 %
Consolidated 200,074 4.2
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Table 16: Change in Investment Fund Assets Under Management – Asset Management

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Sales $ 1,735 $ $ % %
Redemptions 2,493 6.6 37.3

Mutual fund net sales (redemptions)(2) (758) 582 N/M N/M
ETF net creations(3) (61) 718 562 N/M N/M

Investment fund net sales (redemptions)(4) (819) N/M N/M
Investment returns (6,376) N/M

Net change in assets (7,195) (223.7) N/M
Beginning assets 66,139 (3.3) 11.2

Ending assets $ 58,944 $ $ % (7.4)%

Consists of: 
Mutual funds $ 53,576 $ $ (11.1)% (8.8)%
ETFs 5,368 (8.2)

Investment funds $ 58,944 $ $ % (7.4)%

Daily average investment fund assets $ 62,527 $ $ (5.6)% 1.3 %

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Sales $ 4,656 $ %
Redemptions 4,832

Mutual fund net sales (redemptions)(2) (176) N/M
ETF net creations(3) 657 (32.1)

Investment fund net sales (redemptions)(4) 481 (86.5)
Investment returns (9,899) N/M

Net change in assets (9,418) N/M
Beginning assets 68,362 21.1

Ending assets $ 58,944 $ (7.4)%

Daily average investment fund assets $ 64,385 $ 7.7 %

 

Life and to the Wealth Management segment for the three 

mandates through our strategic partnership with China Asset 

Mutual fund net redemptions for the six months ended 

last year. Investment fund net sales in the current period 

fund allocation changes resulting in redemptions and net 
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month trailing redemption rate is comprised of the weighted 

deferred sales charge assets without redemption fees (matured 

and matured assets are higher than the redemption rates for 
deferred sales charge and low load assets with redemption fees.

and to the Wealth Management segment for the six months 

Wealth Management assets under management compared 

Change in Assets Under Management –  
Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022

quarter. Mackenzie’s annualized quarterly redemption rate 

compared to 15.4% in the first quarter. 

the first quarter. Excluding the Wealthsimple purchase of 

Investment fund net redemptions in the current quarter 

Wealth Management assets under management compared 
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Investment Management

to the Wealth Management segment. It has teams located in 

We continue to deliver our investment offerings through a 

which each have a distinct focus and investment approach. Our 

Oversight is conducted through a common process intended 

oversight process focuses on i) identifying and encouraging 

Mackenzie’s 56% ownership interest in Northleaf enhances its 

credit and infrastructure investment solutions to our clients.

Mackenzie FuturePath Funds designed to address the specific 
needs of Primerica advisors and their clients. 

• 

• Founding participant to Climate Engagement Canada

• 
Canadian Investor Statement on Climate Change.

Mackenzie mutual fund assets were rated in the top two 

for the three year time frame and 57.3% for the five year 
time frame. Mackenzie also monitors its fund performance 
relative to the ratings it receives on its mutual funds from the 
Morningstar†

† had a 

five stars. This compared to the Morningstar† universe of 85.4% 
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Products

enhanced investment solutions for financial advisors to offer their 

executed mutual fund mergers that were previously announced.

Mutual Funds
Mackenzie enhances its product shelf through new fund 

The Mackenzie FuturePath Funds are an exclusive offering of 
25 unique funds supporting a new partnership with Primerica 

family of funds will harness a wide selection of Mackenzie’s 

Alternative Funds

tenth fund in the alternatives space and its fourth product in 

part of its ongoing commitment to democratize alternative 
investments in Canada and expand retail investor access to 

• 
achieve long term capital appreciation primarily through 

market private equity investments.

Exchange Traded Funds
The addition of Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) has complemented 

new solutions to drive investor outcomes and achieve their 
personal goals. These ETFs offer investors another investment 

ranks Mackenzie in sixth place in the Canadian ETF industry for 
assets under management.
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Review of Segment Operating Results
The Asset Management segment includes revenue earned on 
advisory mandates to the Wealth Management segment and 

Wealth Management segment. 

The Asset Management segment adjusted net earnings are 

prior quarter. 

prior quarter.

2022 vs. 2021

Revenues
Asset management fees are classified as either Asset 
management fees – third party or Asset management fees – 
Wealth Management. 

• Net asset management fees – third party is comprised of 

 Asset management fees – third party consists of 
management and administration fees earned from our 
investment funds and management fees from our third 

The largest component is management fees from our 
investment funds. The amount of management fees 
depends on the level and composition of assets under 
management. Management fee rates vary depending 

Table 17: Operating Results – Asset Management

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Revenues
Asset management

Asset management fees – third party $ 240.9 $ 254.8 $ 247.2 (5.5)% (2.5)%
Redemption fees 0.7 1.1 (36.4)

241.6 255.8 248.3 (5.6) (2.7)

Dealer compensation expenses
(79.8) (86.1) (82.5) (7.3) (3.3)

(2.3) (53.1)

(82.1) (87.4) (6.1)

Net asset management fees – third party 159.5 164.7 (3.2)
Asset management fees – Wealth Management 28.1 (3.1)

Net asset management 187.6 (3.1)
Net investment income and other (1.1) (2.6) 1.1 57.7 N/M

186.5 (2.4) (1.8)
Expenses

21.5 25.1 6.4 (14.3)
Operations and support 88.4

1.2 1.5 (36.8)

111.1 114.8 (3.2) 3.3

75.4 76.3 82.5 (1.2) (8.6)
Interest expense 5.9 5.8 1.7 (1.7)

69.5 76.5 (1.4)
Income taxes 18.2 18.4 (1.1)

Adjusted net earnings $ 51.3 $ 52.1 $ 56.5 (1.5)% %
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Table 17: Operating Results – Asset Management (continued)

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Revenues
Asset management

Asset management fees – third party $ 495.7 $ 3.5 %
Redemption fees 1.7 2.2 (22.7)

497.4 481.3 3.3

Dealer compensation expenses
(165.9) 3.2

(7.3) (38.7)

(173.2) (172.7)

Net asset management fees – third party 324.2 5.1
Asset management fees – Wealth Management 57.1

Net asset management 381.3 363.5
Net investment income and other (3.7) 2.3 N/M

377.6 365.8 3.2
Expenses

41.7 45.4 (8.1)
Operations and support 181.5

2.7 3.6

225.9 6.1

151.7 152.8
Interest expense 11.7 11.8

140.0
Income taxes 36.6 36.5

Adjusted net earnings $ 103.4 $ (1.1)%

and retail mutual fund accounts have higher management 

majority of Mackenzie’s mutual fund assets are retail and 
sold through third party financial advisors.

 Redemption fees – consists of fees earned from the 
redemptions of mutual fund assets sold on a deferred 
sales charge purchase option and on a low load purchase 
option. Redemption fees charged for deferred sales charge 
assets range from 5.5% in the first year and decrease 
to zero after seven years. Redemption fees for low load 

the purchase option.

 

compensation represents trailing commissions paid to 
dealers on certain classes of retail mutual funds and are 
calculated as a percentage of mutual fund assets under 
management. These fees vary depending on the fund type 

compensation are paid to dealers on the sale of mutual 
funds under the deferred sales charge (DSC) purchase 
option and on a low load (LL) purchase option. Mackenzie 

• 
advisory fees earned from the Wealth Management segment. 

in net asset management fees – third party was primarily due 
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in management fees was primarily due to an increase in the 

average assets under management. Mackenzie’s management 

in management fees was due to an increase in the effective 

under management. Mackenzie’s management fee rate was 

Net investment income and other primarily includes investment 
returns related to Mackenzie’s investments in proprietary 
funds. These investments are generally made in the process 
of launching a fund and are sold as third party investors 

Expenses

these costs vary directly with assets or sales levels. Advisory 

Operations and support includes costs associated with 

technology and other service provider expenses. Operations 

Interest Expense

to Mackenzie.

Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022

Revenues

• 

• 

quarter. 

• There was one additional calendar day in the second quarter 

management of 3.4% from the first quarter. The management 

Expenses

seasonality of expenses. 
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Strategic Investments and Other
Review of Segment Operating Results 
The Strategic Investments and Other segment includes 

Earnings from the Strategic Investments and Other segment 
include the Company’s proportionate share of earnings of 

investment income on unallocated capital. 

in the Consolidated Financial Position section of this MD&A. 

Unallocated capital represents capital not allocated to any of 

other corporate purposes. This capital is invested in highly 

Strategic Investments and Other segment adjusted net 

2022 vs. 2021

as discussed in the Consolidated Financial Position section 
of this MD&A. The increase in the three month period was 
due to the increase in the proportionate share of Northleaf’s 

the increase in the proportionate share of Northleaf’s earnings 

Table 18: Total Assets – Strategic Investments and Other

Investments in associates
Lifeco $ 1,024.8 $
ChinaAMC 741.5 768.7
Northleaf 269.2 258.8

2,035.5

FVTOCI investments
Wealthsimple (direct investment only) 484.0
Portage and other investments 115.0

599.0
Unallocated capital and other 728.6 767.5

Total assets $ 3,363.1 $

$ 1,172.0 $
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Table 19: Operating Results – Strategic Investments and Other

Change

Three months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Mar. 31

  
Mar. 31

 

Revenues
Net investment income and other $ 1.8 $ $ 157.1 % %
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings

Investment in Lifeco 29.0 31.3 (5.5) (7.3)
Investment in ChinaAMC 14.8 13.5 15.1
Investment in Northleaf 6.2 4.2 1.8 47.6 244.4

50.0 48.4 48.2 3.3 3.7

51.8 5.5 5.7
Expenses

Operations and support 2.0 1.4 1.3 53.8

49.8 47.7 47.7 4.4 4.4
Income taxes 1.3 1.1 18.2 85.7

Adjusted net earnings 48.5 46.6 4.1 3.2
1.3 62.5

Adjusted net earnings available to common shareholders $ 47.2 $ 45.8 $ 46.6 3.1 % 1.3 %

Six months ended 2022 
Jun. 30

 
Change

Revenues
Net investment income and other $ 2.5 $ %
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings

Investment in Lifeco 59.7
Investment in ChinaAMC 28.3 27.6 2.5
Investment in Northleaf 10.4 2.8 271.4

98.4

100.9 11.1
Expenses

Operations and support 3.4 2.4 41.7

97.5 88.4
Income taxes 2.4 1.8 33.3

Adjusted net earnings 95.1 86.6
2.1

Adjusted net earnings available to common shareholders $ 93.0 $ 8.1 %

Q2 2022 vs. Q1 2022
The proportionate share of associates’ earnings was 

to an increase in the proportionate share of ChinaAMC 

proportionate share of Lifeco earnings. Net investment income 
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IGM Financial Inc.
Consolidated Financial Position

Other Investments
The composition of the Company’s securities holdings is 

Fair Value Through Other  
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Gains and losses on FVTOCI investments are recorded in 

Corporate Investments

Corporate investments is primarily comprised of the Company’s 

Ventures III LP (Portage) and are recorded at FVTOCI.

Wealthsimple is a financial company that provides simple digital 
tools for growing and managing your money.

The Company is the largest shareholder in Wealthsimple with 

consistent with the continued decline in stock markets and 

within the limited partnership structures holding the 

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
Securities classified as FVTPL include equity securities and 
proprietary investment funds. Gains and losses are recorded 
in Net investment income and other in the Consolidated 
Statements of Earnings.

Certain proprietary investment funds are consolidated where 
the Company has made the assessment that it controls the 
investment fund. The underlying securities of these funds are 
classified as FVTPL.

Loans 

Loans consisted of residential mortgages and represented 

Loans measured at amortized cost are primarily comprised 
of residential mortgages sold to securitization programs 

Table 20: Other Investments

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Corporate investments $ 235.8 $ 599.0 $ 226.2 $

Equity securities 1.2 1.4 1.2 1.6
Proprietary investment funds 149.3 145.9

150.5 147.3

$ 386.3 $ 746.3 $ 328.7 $
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Table 21: Loans

Amortized cost $ 5,104.9 $
0.6

5,104.3
Fair value through profit or loss – 57.4

$ 5,104.3 $

The Company holds loans pending sale or securitization. Loans 
measured at fair value through profit or loss are residential 

Loans held for securitization are carried at amortized cost. 

are funded primarily through sales to third parties on a fully 

Securitization Arrangements

mortgage planning specialists are sold to securitization trusts 

investors. The Company securitizes residential mortgages 
through the CMHC sponsored National Housing Act 

Mortgage Bond Program (CMB Program) and through Canadian 

certain elements of credit risk and prepayment risk associated 
with the transferred assets. The Company’s credit risk on its 
securitized mortgages is partially mitigated through the use 
of insurance. Derecognition of financial assets in accordance 

ownership. As the Company has retained prepayment risk and 
certain elements of credit risk associated with the Company’s 
securitization transactions through the CMB and ABCP 

Company records the transactions under these programs as 

on Canada Mortgage Bonds and receives investment returns 

program are carried at amortized cost.

including the Company’s hedges of related reinvestment and 

this MD&A and in Note 6 to the Interim Financial Statements.

Investment in Associates

Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco)

Corporation of Canada.

The equity method is used to account for IGM Financial’s 

Changes in the carrying value for the three and six months 

sale of Lifeco shares is conditional on IGM Financial’s purchase 

China Asset Management Co., Ltd. (ChinaAMC)

a position among the market leaders in China’s asset 
management industry. 
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Table 22: Investment in Associates

Lifeco ChinaAMC Northleaf Total Lifeco ChinaAMC Northleaf Total

Three months ended

Carrying value, April 1 $ 1,032.3 $ 743.7 $ 263.0 $ 2,039.0 $ $ $ $
Investment – – – – – –
Dividends (18.3) – – (18.3) (16.3) – – (16.3)

Earnings 29.0 14.8 6.2 (2) 50.0 31.3 15.1 1.8 (2) 48.2
Other comprehensive income (loss) 
and other adjustments (18.2) (17.0) – (35.2) 2.2 –

$ 1,024.8 $ 741.5 $ 269.2 $ 2,035.5 $ $ $ 251.7 $

Six months ended

Carrying value, January 1 $ 1,020.8 $ 768.7 $ 258.8 $ 2,048.3 $ $ $ 248.5 $
Investment – – – – – –
Dividends (36.6) (31.3) – (67.9) (32.7) (26.8) –

Earnings(2) 59.7 28.3 10.4 (2) 98.4 27.6 2.8 (2)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 
and other adjustments (19.1) (24.2) – (43.3) (3.3) (11.6) –

$ 1,024.8 $ 741.5 $ 269.2 $ 2,035.5 $ $ $ 251.7 $

Changes in the carrying value for the three and six months 

of Canada (Power) which will increase the Company’s equity 

Northleaf Capital Group Ltd. (Northleaf)

infrastructure fund manager headquartered in Toronto.

the remaining equity and voting interest in Northleaf 
commencing in approximately five years from the acquisition 
date and extending into future periods. The equity method 

interest as it exercises significant influence. Significant 

The Company controls the acquisition vehicle therefore it 

USD denominated assets. 

C 42  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D42PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D42 2022-08-05   9:59 AM2022-08-05   9:59 AM



P
A

R
T

 C
 

IG
M

 FIN
A

N
C

IA
L IN

C
.

IGM Financial Inc. 2022 Second Quarter Report  |  Management’s Discussion and Analysis46  |

Consolidated Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

clients within their investment accounts and with the offset 

• 

• 
operations.

• 

• Maintain liquidity requirements for regulated entities.

• Pay quarterly dividends on its outstanding common shares.

• Finance common share repurchases and retirement of 

• 

IGM Financial continues to generate significant cash flows from 

after sales commissions excludes the impact of commission 

Refer to the Financial Instruments Risk section of this MD&A 
for information related to other sources of liquidity and to 
the Company’s exposure to and management of liquidity and 
funding risk. 

Table 23: Deposit Operations – Financial Position

2022 
Jun. 30

 
Dec. 31

 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.3 $ 1.3 $
Client funds on deposit 2,786.5

0.4
Loans 11.0 11.6

Total assets $ 2,799.2 $ $

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
$ 2,770.0 $ $

18.4 11.7
Shareholders’ equity 10.8

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,799.2 $ $
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Table 24: Working Capital

2022 
Jun. 30

 
Dec. 31

 

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 969.1 $ $
Client funds on deposit 2,786.5

467.1
Current portion of securitized mortgages and other 1,120.3

5,343.0

Current liabilities
744.1 758.6

2,768.7
1,072.7

4,585.5

Working capital $ 757.5 $ $ 646.2

Table 25: Cash Flows

2022 Change 2022 Change

Operating activities
$ 267.8 $ (12.8) % $ 551.7 $ (3.1) %

Income taxes paid (64.7) (31.5) (225.3) (115.6)
Adjustments to determine net cash from operating activities 16.6 N/M (41.7) (175.2) 76.2

219.7 (7.3) 284.7 (1.7)
Financing activities (427.8) (355.1) (784.4) (823.6) 4.8
Investing activities (7.5) 427.1 N/M 176.4 (75.8)

Change in cash and cash equivalents (215.6) N/M (323.3) N/M
1,184.7 657.8 1,292.4 771.6 67.5

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 969.1 $ % $ 969.1 $ %

Cash Flows 

Statements of Cash Flows which forms part of the Interim 
Financial Statements for the three and six month periods 

 Cash and cash equivalents decreased 
 compared 

Adjustments to determine net cash from operating activities 

• 

commissions paid.

• 

• The deduction of investment in associates’ equity earnings 

• 

• 

• The deduction of restructuring provision cash payments.

• 

• 
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• The payment of regular common share dividends which 

• 

• 

• The payment of regular common share dividends which 

• 

proceeds on the disposition of a portion of IGM Financial’s 
investment in Wealthsimple.

• 

primarily related to residential mortgages in the Company’s 

• 

• 

primarily related to dispositions in the second quarter. 

• 

primarily related to residential mortgages in the Company’s 

• 

Accumulated Other 

Accumulated other comprehensive income totalled 

resulting in a gain through Other comprehensive income 

The loss related to Other investments relates primarily to 
changes in fair value of Wealthsimple which is consistent 

Table 26: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Employee 
Benefits

Other 
Investments

Investment 
in associates 

and other Total

2022

Balance, January 1 $ (95.7) $ 919.2 $ 59.6 $ 883.1
Other comprehensive income (loss) 85.3 (582.7) (45.6) (543.0)
Transfer out of fair value through other comprehensive income – (24.0) – (24.0)

Balance, June 30 $ (10.4) $ 312.5 $ 14.0 $ 316.1

$ $ $ $ 136.4
Other comprehensive income (loss) 84.5 (6.2) 881.5
Transfer out of fair value through other comprehensive income – –

$ (112.5) $ $ 33.7 $ 811.2
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The loss for Investments in associates relates to the Company’s 
portion of the associates’ Other comprehensive income which 

transferred from Accumulated other comprehensive income 

IGM Financial Inc. disposed of a portion of its investment in 

comprehensive income to Other retained earnings.

Capital Resources

shareholder returns while ensuring that the Company 
is capitalized in a manner which appropriately supports 

practices are focused on preserving the quality of its 

economic conditions. 

The Company’s capital is primarily utilized in its ongoing 

complied with all regulatory capital requirements.

any specified financial or operational covenants. 

Interim Financial Statements). The Company commenced a 

the dilutive effect of stock options issued under the Company’s 
stock option plan and for other capital management purposes. 

its common shares. The automatic securities purchase plan 
provides standard instructions regarding how IGM Financial’s 

Changes in common share capital are reflected in the interim 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. 

Standard & Poor’s (S&P) current rating on the Company’s 

DBRS Morningstar’s current rating on the Company’s senior 

Credit ratings are intended to provide investors with an 
independent measure of the credit quality of the securities of 
a company and are indicators of the likelihood of payment and 

the securities of the Company and do not address market price 

security for a particular investor. The ratings also may not 
reflect the potential impact of all risks on the value of securities 

rating organization.

The A rating assigned to IGM Financial’s senior unsecured 

The A (High) rating assigned to IGM Financial’s senior 

A (High) are of good credit quality and the capacity for the 
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Table 27: Financial Instruments

Carrying 
Value Fair Value

Carrying 
Value Fair Value

Financial assets recorded at fair value
Other investments

– Fair value through other comprehensive income $ 599.0 $ 599.0 $ $
147.3 147.3

Loans
– – 57.4 57.4

52.6 52.6 41.2 41.2
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost

Loans
– Amortized cost 5,104.2 4,843.8

Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
53.4 53.4 17.8 17.8

Financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
2,770.0 2,770.0
4,660.7 4,605.2
2,100.0 2,044.3

Financial Instruments 

approximation of fair value. These items include cash and cash 

Fair value is determined using the following methods and 

• Other investments and other financial assets and financial 

assumptions related to discount rates and the timing and 

market inputs are used in the valuation techniques.

• Loans classified as held for trading are valued using market 

financial institutions.

• 
the expected future cash flows at prevailing market yields.

• Valuation methods used for Other investments classified as 
FVOCI include comparison to market transactions with arm’s 

cash flow analysis. 

• 
discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing 

entities having similar terms and characteristics.

• 
contractual cash flows using market interest rates currently 
offered for deposits with similar terms and credit risks.

• 

• 

discounted cash flow analysis.

See Note 14 of the Interim Financial Statements which provides 
additional discussion on the determination of fair value of 
financial instruments.

a material impact on the financial condition of the Company for 
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Risk Management
IGM Financial is exposed to a variety of risks that are inherent 

is key to our ongoing success. The Company emphasizes a 
strong risk management culture and the implementation 
of an effective risk management approach. Our approach 
coordinates risk management across the organization and its 

risk management program is protecting and enhancing 

Risk Management Framework
The Company’s risk management approach is undertaken 
through our comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management 

Risk Governance
Our risk governance structure emphasizes ownership of 

Committee of the Board (Risk Committee) and ultimately to the 

Compliance and Internal Audit Departments.

The Risk Committee provides primary oversight and carries 
out its risk management mandate. The Risk Committee is 

the risk governance structure and risk management program of 

functioning effectively.

Other specific risks are managed with the support of the 

• The Audit Committee has specific risk oversight 

controls and the control environment as well as our 

• The Human Resource Committee oversees compensation 
policies and practices. 

• The Governance and Nominating Committee oversees 
corporate governance practices.

• The Related Party and Conduct Review Committee oversees 
conflicts of interest.

Management oversight for risk management resides with the 
Executive Risk Management Committee which is comprised 

Officer who chairs the Executive Risk Management Committee. 

the risk framework and policy; ii) defining the risk appetite; 
iii) ensuring our risk profile and processes are aligned with 

at the top” and reinforcing a strong culture of risk management.

The Chief Executive Officers of the operating companies have 

respective companies.

management functions and a Third Line (the Internal Audit 
function) providing assurance and validation of the design 

First Line of Defence

ongoing risk management associated with their respective 

Second Line of Defence

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Department provides 
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including the Financial Risk Management and Operational 
Risk Management committees. These committees perform 

Third Line of Defence

The Internal Audit Department is the third line of defence and 
provides independent assurance to senior management and 
the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the Company’s 

Risk Appetite and Risk Principles

appetite for different types of risk through the Risk Appetite 

activity of the Company. These appetite levels range from 
those where the Company has no appetite for risk and seeks 

accepts exposure while seeking to ensure that risks are well 
understood and managed. These appetite levels guide our 

transfer activities.

A Risk Appetite Statement and Risk Principles provide further 

risk management activities. The Risk Appetite Statement’s 
emphasis is to maintain the Company’s reputation and 

operational risk.

Risk Management Process

• Ongoing assessment of risks and tolerance in a changing 
operating environment.

• Appropriate identification and understanding of existing and 
emerging risks and risk response.

• 
changing circumstances.

through the Company’s ongoing risk management process.

We use a consistent methodology across our organizations 

the potential risk event after consideration of controls and any 
risk transfer activities. The results of these assessments are 
considered relative to risk appetite and tolerances and may 
result in action plans to adjust the risk profile. 

Risk assessments are monitored and reviewed on an 

including the ERM Department. The ERM Department 
promotes and coordinates communication and consultation 
to support effective risk management and escalation. The 
ERM Department regularly reports on the results of risk 
assessments and on the assessment process to the Risk 
Management Committee and to the Board Risk Committee.

Risk Management Culture

within the organization. The ERM Department engages 

awareness and facilitate incorporation of our risk framework 

reinforces our risk management culture. Our compensation 

are reflected within our Code of Conduct which applies to 

Key Risks of the Business

ongoing risk management process.

We use a consistent methodology across our organizations and 
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1) Financial Risk
Liquidity and Funding Risk

or anticipated commitments as they come due or arise. 

• Maintaining liquid assets and lines of credit to satisfy near 
term liquidity needs.

• Ensuring effective controls over liquidity management 
processes.

• Performing regular cash forecasts and stress testing.

• Regular assessment of capital market conditions and the 

• 
funding sources.

• 

A key funding requirement is the funding of advisor network 

operating cash flows. 

The Company also maintains sufficient liquidity to fund and 
temporarily hold mortgages pending sale or securitization 

sales to Canada Housing Trust under the CMB Program. 
The Company maintains committed capacity within certain 

sales under the CMB Program consists of participation in new 
CMB issues and reinvestment of principal repayments held in 
the Principal Reinvestment Accounts. The Company’s continued 

sponsored securitization trusts and NHA MBS is dependent on 
securitization market conditions and government regulations 

to change.

• Continued to assess additional funding sources for the 

• 
portion of the Company’s investment in Wealthsimple and 

utilizing its committed lines of credit or its uncommitted lines 
of credit. 

The actuarial valuation for funding purposes related to the 

The valuation determines the plan surplus or deficit on 

Table 28: Contractual Obligations

 
Demand

Less than  
1 Year 1–5 Years

After  
5 Years Total

Derivative financial instruments $ – $ 16.1 $ 37.3 $ – $ 53.4
Deposits and certificates 2,768.3 0.4 0.6 0.7 2,770.0

– 1,056.5 3,601.7 2.5 4,660.7
Leases – 31.2 94.1 122.9 248.2

– – 400.0 1,700.0 2,100.0
Pension funding(2) – 2.4 – – 2.4

Total contractual obligations $ 2,768.3 $ 1,106.6 $ 4,133.7 $ 1,826.1 $ 9,834.7
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the valuation date. A going concern valuation compares the 

return on plan assets. The registered pension plan had a going 

the previous valuation. The next required actuarial valuation 

funding policy. 

are sufficient to meet the Company’s liquidity needs. The 

declared dividends. The current practice of the Company is 
to declare and pay dividends to common shareholders on a 

market performance has on the Company’s fee income and 
commission and certain other expenses. The Company’s 
liquidity position and its management of liquidity and funding 

Credit Risk 

This is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty 

credit risk. The Company monitors its credit risk management 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Client Funds on Deposit

The Company manages credit risk related to cash and cash 

credit risk parameters and concentration limits. The Company 
regularly reviews the credit ratings of its counterparties. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial 
instruments is their carrying value. 

The Company’s exposure to and management of credit risk 
related to cash and cash equivalents and fixed income securities 

Mortgage Portfolio

The Company manages credit risk related to residential 

• Adhering to its lending policy and underwriting standards;

• 

• 

• Its practice of originating its mortgages exclusively through 
its own network of Mortgage Planning Specialists and 
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• 

irrespective of whether such payments were received 

• 

rights to future net interest income are not reflected on 

The Company also retains certain elements of credit risk on 
mortgage loans sold to the IG Mackenzie Mortgage and Short 
Term Income Fund through an agreement to repurchase 

and rewards of ownership associated with these loans.

The Company regularly reviews the credit quality of the 
mortgages and the adequacy of the allowance for expected 
credit losses.

The Company’s allowance for expected credit losses was 

testing of losses under adverse real estate market conditions.

The Company’s exposure to and management of credit risk 
related to mortgage portfolios have not changed materially 

Derivatives

The Company is exposed to credit risk through derivative 

securitization transactions and to hedge market risk related 

derivatives are discussed more fully under the Market Risk 
section of this MD&A. 

To the extent that the fair value of the derivatives is in 

The Company’s derivative activities are managed in 

counterparty limits and other parameters to manage 
counterparty risk. The aggregate credit risk exposure related 

netting agreements or collateral arrangements. The exposure 

arrangements and including rights to future net interest 

that the Company’s overall credit risk related to derivatives 

risk related to derivatives has not changed materially since 

Additional information related to the Company’s securitization 

23 to the Annual Financial Statements.

Market Risk 

This is the risk of loss arising from changes in the values of the 
Company’s financial instruments due to changes in interest 

Interest Rate Risk

IGM Financial is exposed to interest rate risk on its mortgage 
portfolio and on certain of the derivative financial instruments 

The Company manages interest rate risk associated with its 

• The Company has in certain instances funded floating rate 
mortgages with fixed rate Canada Mortgage Bonds as part 
of the securitization transactions under the CMB Program. 
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investment returns on reinvested mortgage principal 

that the interest rates earned on floating rate mortgages 
and reinvestment returns decline. The fair value of these 

• The Company is exposed to the impact that changes 
in interest rates may have on the value of mortgages 

term funding sources. The Company enters into interest 
rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk related to funding 

or securitization. Hedge accounting is applied to the cost 
of funds on certain securitization activities. The effective 
portion of fair value changes of the associated interest 
rate swaps are initially recognized in Other comprehensive 

securitization entities. The fair value of these swaps was 

management of interest rate risk have not changed materially 

Equity Price Risk

IGM Financial is exposed to equity price risk on our equity 
investments which are classified as either fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or 
loss or investments in associates. The fair value of the equity 

arrangements for employees where payments to participants 
are deferred and linked to the performance of the common 
shares of IGM Financial Inc. The Company hedges its exposure 
to this risk through the use of forward agreements and total 
return swaps.

Foreign Exchange Risk

IGM Financial is exposed to foreign exchange risk on its 
investment in ChinaAMC. Changes to the carrying value due 
to changes in foreign exchange rates are recognized in Other 

(depreciation) in Canadian currency relative to foreign 
currencies would decrease (increase) the aggregate carrying 

recorded in Proportionate share of associates’ earnings in 

Table 29: IGM Financial Assets Under Management – Asset and Currency Mix

Investment 
Funds Total

Cash 1.8 % 1.5 %
3.8 3.9

Other fixed income 23.3 23.2
Domestic equity 20.6 26.1
Foreign equity 47.5 43.0
Real Property 3.0 2.3

100.0 % 100.0 %

CAD 53.5 % 58.1 %
USD 31.9 29.3
Other 14.6 12.6

100.0 % 100.0 %
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appreciation (depreciation) in Canadian currency relative to 
foreign currencies would decrease (increase) the Company’s 

Risks Related to Assets Under Management and Advisement 

The Company’s primary sources of revenues are advisory fees 
and asset management fees which are applied as an annual 
percentage of the level of assets under management and 

risks that affect the value of assets under management and 

and credit exposures from other counterparties within our 
client portfolios. 

Changing financial market conditions may also lead to a change 
in the composition of the Company’s assets under management 

result in lower revenues depending upon the management fee 
rates associated with different asset classes and mandates.

to the Company’s results and consistent with stakeholder 

activities such as hedging in relation to these exposures.

The Company’s exposure to the value of assets under 
management and advisement aligns it with the experience of 

team and style. The Company regularly reviews the sensitivity 

flow to changes in financial markets.

2) Operational Risk 

regulatory actions resulting from inadequate or failed internal 

ERM framework. 

inadequate application of internal control processes. 

Operational risks relating to people and processes are 
mitigated through policies and process controls. Oversight of 
risks and ongoing evaluation of the effectiveness of controls 

Department and Internal Audit Department.

The Company has an insurance review process where it 
assesses and determines the nature and extent of insurance 
that is appropriate to provide adequate protection against 

or contractual agreements.

separately identified. 

The Company’s risk management framework emphasizes 
operational risk management and internal control. The 
Company has a very low appetite for risk in this area.

operational risk.

The Company has a crisis response plan which outlines crisis 
response coordination policies and procedures in the event 
of a crisis that could significantly impact the organization’s 

has a crisis assessment team comprised of senior leadership 

provide client service with minimal disruptions.

Technology and Cyber Risk

operations and the client and financial advisor experience. 
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software attacks. The volume of these activities in our society 

could compromise confidential information of the Company 

regulatory scrutiny or reputational damage. To remain resilient 

of work from home programs introduces increased need to 
mitigate risk of potential data loss.

Third Party Risk

We regularly engage third parties to provide expertise and 
efficiencies that support our operational activities. Our 
exposure to third party service provider risk could include 

third party service provider risk. We perform due diligence 

processes to support third party risk management.

Model Risk

assumptions or other factors affecting the models could have 
an adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
position and reputation.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance Risk

agreements or regulatory requirements. These risks relate 

in Canada which regulate the Company and its activities. 

of their activities. They include regulations related to the 

it operates. Regulatory standards affecting the Company and 
the financial services industry are significant and continually 

adverse reputational or financial effect on the Company. 
The Company manages legal and regulatory compliance risk 
through its efforts to promote a strong culture of compliance. 
The monitoring of regulatory developments and their impact 

Counsel. The Company also continues to develop and maintain 

and issues.

IGM Financial promotes a strong culture of ethics and integrity 

of Conduct references many policies relating to the conduct 

the Code of Conduct attest annually that they understand the 
requirements and have complied with its provisions.

compliance activities. The Internal Audit Department also 
provides oversight concerning regulatory compliance matters. 
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Privacy Risk

personal information that is necessary to provide our products 

information and protect it through contracts that commit the 

to ours. 

and our operating companies have supporting privacy policies 

companies also have comprehensive procedures and controls 
to safeguard personal information and prevent privacy 

companies have policies and procedures to mitigate risks and 

and the federal and/or provincial Privacy Commissioner where 

Our Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) leads and oversees our 

privacy matters. Employees and advisors are required 

and annually thereafter. The training includes our privacy 

information requests. 

Contingencies

class action was filed in the Ontario Superior Court against 
Mackenzie which alleges that the company should not have 
paid mutual fund trailing commissions to order execution 
only dealers. Although it is difficult to predict the outcome 

consolidated financial position.

3) Strategic Risk 
This is the risk of potential adverse impacts resulting 

developments and strategy. 

Directors directly and through its five committees. The 
Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer has overall 

Corporation and Investment Planning Counsel Inc. – each of 

The Company also has a strategy execution oversight function 
and committee that reviews and approves strategic initiative 

opportunities and risks and with a view to the Company’s 

plans. A portion of each Board meeting is dedicated to 
discussion of strategic matters including receiving updates 

Regulatory Development Risk

requirements that may have an adverse impact on the 

regulation that could have an adverse impact on the Company. 
Particular regulatory initiatives may have the effect of making 

less competitive than the products of other financial service 
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Regulatory differences that may impact the competitiveness 

or application of regulation. Regulatory developments may 

treatment of financial products or services is limited.

guidance and communications.

Acquisition Risk

The Company is exposed to risks related to its acquisitions 
and strategic investments. The Company undertakes thorough 

is no assurance that the Company will achieve the expected 

environment and other unanticipated factors may affect the 

expense reductions. The success of an acquisition and of the 

acquired company. 

4) Business Risk
General Business Conditions 

IGM Financial resulting from competitive or other external 
factors relating to the marketplace.

conditions in markets in which the Company operates. These 
environments could result in reduced sales of IGM Financial’s 
products and services and/or result in investors redeeming 

their investments. These factors may also affect the level and 
volatility of financial markets and the value of the Company’s 

the importance of financial planning across economic cycles. 
The Company and the industry continue to take steps to 

Wealth Management advisors and independent financial 
advisors play a key role in assisting investors in maintaining 

Catastrophic Events or Loss

Catastrophic events or loss refers to the risk that events such 

could adversely affect the Company’s financial performance.

decisions. This could affect the level and volatility of financial 
markets and the level of the Company’s assets under 
management and advisement. 

Product/Service Offering

IGM Financial resulting from inadequate product or service 

Table 30: Twelve Month Trailing Redemption Rate for Long-term Funds
2022 

Jun. 30
 

IGM Financial Inc.

9.1 % %

Mackenzie 14.3 % 15.4 %

Counsel 19.0 % 23.4 %
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could have an adverse impact upon the Company’s financial 
position and operating results. Please refer to The Competitive 
Landscape section of this MD&A for further discussion.

review their respective product and service offering and 

We strive to deliver strong investment performance on our 

the level of assets under management and sales and asset 

reputation. Meaningful and/or sustained underperformance 

investment processes and disciplines that give us a competitive 

Business/Client relationships 

derives all of its mutual fund sales through its advisor network. 

with clients which can lead to a strong and personal client 

advisor. The market for financial advisors is extremely 

could lead to the loss of client accounts which could have 

and on responding to the complex financial needs of its 

in the Wealth Management Review of the Business section of 

– Mackenzie derives the majority of its mutual 
fund sales through third party financial advisors. Financial 
advisors generally offer their clients investment products in 

derives sales of its investment products and services from its 

strategic alliance and institutional clients. Due to the nature 

products is highly dependent on continued access to these 

prospects. Mackenzie is well positioned to manage this risk and 

and service support has made Mackenzie one of Canada’s 
leading investment management companies. These factors 
are discussed further in the Asset Management Review of the 
Business section of this MD&A.

People Risk 

personnel succession or transition.

experience for employees and clients that supports our 

We also have a Wellness Strategy to support our employees’ 

financially secure.

• Implementing a work at home strategy to maintain the 

social distancing.

• 
advisors to continue to operate effectively from home.

C 58  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D58PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D58 2022-08-05   9:59 AM2022-08-05   9:59 AM



P
A

R
T

 C
 

IG
M

 FIN
A

N
C

IA
L IN

C
.

IGM Financial Inc. 2022 Second Quarter Report  |  Management’s Discussion and Analysis62  |

• Providing various wellness programs including Employee 

• Developing a return to office strategy including the 

5)  Environmental and Social Risk  
(Including Climate Change)

impacts resulting from environmental or social (E&S) issues 

within our operations or impact stakeholders along our supply 

community impacts.

The Company’s Executive Risk Management Committee is 

including E&S and climate change risks. Other management 
committees provide oversight of specific risks including the 

through various mechanisms. These include our Code of 

Supplier Code of Conduct; our Workplace Harassment and 
Discrimination Prevention Policy; our Diversity Policy; our 
Environmental Policy; and other related policies.

formally commit to incorporate ESG issues into their 

investment decision making and active ownership processes. In 

Investment Policies outlining the practices at each company. 

IGM Financial reports annually on ESG management and 

strong ESG performance through positions earned on the 

corporate disclosures on greenhouse gas emissions and 
climate change management including setting and monitoring 

climate disclosures. 

in response to investor demand for enhanced information on 

operating companies support the TCFD recommendations 

stakeholders. 

TCFD Disclosure

The TCFD recommends that organizations disclose information 

Governance

matters. The Board meets with management at least annually 
to discuss plans and emerging ESG issues. Through its Risk 

climate risk and opportunity management associated with their 
respective activities. IGM Financial’s Risk Management and 

Chief Risk Officer oversees implementation of the Corporate 
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TCFD Working Group of senior leaders to lead the planning 
and implementation of the TCFD recommendations. This 
working group is focused on enhancing our knowledge and 

related policies; approval and oversight for investment 
stewardship priorities including climate; approval and 
monitoring for targets related to climate change; and evaluation 

Strategy

Through IGM Financial’s wealth and asset management 

detailed its climate commitments in a position statement on 

1.  – Our 
investment processes and products give us the opportunity 
to manage climate risks and create innovative solutions to 
our ongoing climate issues.

2.  – 

participating in industry and policy advancements.

3.  – We 
will hold ourselves to a similar standard that we expect from 
the companies we invest in and empower our employees to 

Our operating companies are active participants in 

(PCAF) to support our journey to measure and disclose the 

grouped into the physical impacts of climate change and the 

Risks

Our climate risks relate primarily to the potential for physical 

harm our reputation; create market risks through shifts in 

within and across our investment portfolios aids in managing 

to the impact of extreme weather events on our corporate 

investing programs and policies that include a focus on climate 
risk. We provide data and tools for our investment teams to 

we integrate material climate risks into our investment and 

As part of the hiring process and ongoing assessment of 

strategy and governance are influenced. As we continue to 

organizations.

Opportunities

investing and the opportunity to invest in the transition to 

educating and communicating with clients and advisors on 

focus to ESG and climate across the organization. Mackenzie 
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invests in companies making a positive impact on the people 

which aim to provide clients with the opportunity to support 

Scenarios

We have implemented a tool for our investment funds to 

at the investee company and portfolio levels. This system 

emissions reductions over time in meeting the goals of the 
Paris Agreement. We are exploring scenario analysis tools 

Risk Management

integrated into our ERM framework. We use a consistent 

focused on defining the relationship of climate risk to other 
material risks.

integration of climate risks into their investment and active 
ownership practice.

Engagement

specialist where climate change is a priority engagement 

regular due diligence and oversight.

Mackenzie Investments is a founding participant in Climate 
Engagement Canada and participates in CERES’ Investor 
Network on Climate Risk. Both Mackenzie and IG joined Climate 

Investor Statement on Climate Change. 

Metrics and Targets

our real assets in the IG Real Property Fund. We are working to 
expand the measurement and reporting of emissions related to 

Through IGM Financial’s Climate Position Statement launched 

commit to setting interim targets for investment portfolios 

interim investment target in line with the attainment of net zero 
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The Financial Services Environment
Canadians held $6.5 trillion in discretionary financial assets with 

recent report from Investor Economics. The nature of holdings 

for retirement purposes. Approximately 64% ($4.1 trillion) 
of these financial assets are held within the context of a 

advisors as they work with clients to plan for and achieve their 
financial goals. Multiple sources of emerging research show 

financial advisors compared to those who do not. We actively 
promote the value of financial advice and the importance of a 
relationship with an advisor to develop and remain focused on 

Approximately 41% of Canadian discretionary financial assets 

Canadians. Other asset types include deposit products and 

investment funds are likely to remain the preferred savings 

most investor requirements and preferences.

service providers strive to offer comprehensive financial 

financial planning and investment management services.

mutual fund managers and affiliated firms represented 47% of 

organizations.

• 
prime savings and retirement years continues to increase. 

• 

• Continued importance of the role of the financial advisor.

• 

• Changes in the regulatory environment.

• A highly competitive landscape.

• Advancing and changing technology.

The Competitive Landscape

classes for a share of Canadians’ investment assets. 

policy discussions and develop product and service responses 
as appropriate. 

IGM Financial continues to focus on our commitment to provide 
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modernize our digital platforms and technology infrastructure 

on future growth opportunities. 

• 

financial planning.

• 

• 

• 

Broad and Diversified Distribution
In addition to owning two of Canada’s largest financial planning 

entities to provide investment management services.

Broad Product Capabilities

products and strategic investment planning tools to assist 

Enduring Client Relationships
IGM Financial enjoys significant advantages as a result of the 
enduring relationships that advisors have developed with 

Part of the Power Corporation  
Group of Companies 
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies
Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates
There were no changes to the Company’s assumptions related 
to critical accounting estimates from those reported at 

• – The Company completed 
its annual impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite life 

and determined there was no impairment in the value of 
those assets.

The Company tests the fair value of goodwill and indefinite 

An impairment loss is recognized if the amount of the 

less costs of disposal and its value in use. For the purposes 

are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not 

These tests involve the use of estimates and assumptions 
appropriate in the circumstances. In assessing the 

include discounted cash flow analysis and application of 
capitalization multiples to financial and operating metrics 

future changes in assets under management resulting from 

• 

plans for certain executive officers (SERPs) and an unfunded 

Discount rates have increased significantly since 

The International Financial Reporting Interpretation 
Committee’s 

 (IFRIC 14) requires 

Changes in Accounting Policies
IGM Financial has not adopted any changes in accounting 

Future Accounting Changes
The Company continuously monitors the potential changes 

(IASB) and analyzes the effect that changes in the standards 
may have on the Company’s operations.

will result in changes to existing IFRS standards that may affect 
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

changes in the Company’s internal control over financial 

 

Other Information
Transactions with Related Parties
There were no changes to the types of related party 

Financial Statements.

Outstanding Share Data

SEDAR

the Company’s most recent financial statements and 
www.sedar.com.
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Interim Condensed  
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(unaudited) 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues
Wealth management (Note 3) $  611,066 $  627,638 $  1,252,271 $  1,231,089 

Asset management  241,585  248,312  497,415  481,302 
Dealer compensation expense  (77,421)  (82,701)  (163,612)  (163,410)

Net asset management (Note 3)  164,164  165,611  333,803  317,892 

Net investment income and other  (540)  2,475  (2,558)  5,609 
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings (Note 7)  50,033  48,153  98,433  89,742 

 824,723  843,877  1,681,949  1,644,332 

Expenses
Advisory and business development  303,828  291,124  612,936  575,150 
Operations and support  206,426  196,685  421,854  403,224 
Sub-advisory  18,311  20,472  38,949  40,201 
Interest  28,386  28,496  56,519  56,616 

 556,951  536,777  1,130,258  1,075,191 

Earnings before income taxes  267,772  307,100  551,691  569,141 
Income taxes  59,441  69,354  123,195  129,025 

Net earnings  208,331  237,746  428,496  440,116 
Non-controlling interest (Note 7)  (1,230)  (357)  (2,079)  (547)

Net earnings available to common shareholders $  207,101 $  237,389 $  426,417 $  439,569 

Earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 15)
– Basic $  0.87 $  0.99 $  1.78 $  1.84 
– Diluted $  0.87 $  0.99 $  1.78 $  1.84 

(See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(unaudited) 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2022 2021 2022 2021

Net earnings $  208,331 $  237,746 $  428,496 $  440,116 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Fair value through other comprehensive income investments
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 4), net of tax of $60,546, $(325), $91,564 
and $(125,359)  (383,919)  2,080  (582,664)  803,225 

Net actuarial gains (losses), net of tax of $(5,737), $(497), $(31,508) and $(31,237)  15,607  1,349  85,295  84,464 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of nil  11,123  17,437  11,005  22,030 

Investment in associates and other
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of $4,657, $(1,373), $5,994 and $(1,142)  (48,050)  (10,601)  (56,607)  (28,206)

 (405,239)  10,265  (542,971)  881,513 

Total comprehensive income (loss) $  (196,908) $  248,011 $  (114,475) $  1,321,629 

(See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(unaudited) 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

 
2022 2021 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $  969,107 $  1,292,446 
Other investments (Note 4)  746,319  1,398,023 
Client funds on deposit  2,786,470  2,238,624 
Accounts and other receivables  375,966  387,157 
Income taxes recoverable  25,357  17,344 
Loans (Note 5)  5,104,277  5,353,842 
Derivative financial instruments  52,594  41,172 
Other assets  136,902  54,298 
Investment in associates (Note 7)  2,035,555  2,048,255 
Capital assets  325,969  315,964 
Capitalized sales commissions  364,906  325,424 
Deferred income taxes  1,866  29,269 
Intangible assets  1,356,405  1,356,704 
Goodwill  2,802,173  2,802,066 

$  17,083,866 $  17,660,588 

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $  500,912 $  553,429 
Income taxes payable  4,879  104,113 
Derivative financial instruments  53,444  17,773 
Deposits and certificates  2,769,975  2,220,274 
Other liabilities  331,623  382,466 
Obligations to securitization entities (Note 6)  4,660,686  5,057,917 
Lease obligations  193,691  197,969 
Deferred income taxes  433,990  525,476 
Long-term debt  2,100,000  2,100,000 

 11,049,200  11,159,417 

Share capital
Common shares  1,672,382  1,658,680 

Contributed surplus  51,559  51,069 
Retained earnings  3,941,223  3,856,996 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  316,080  883,083 
Non-controlling interest  53,422  51,343 

 6,034,666  6,501,171 

$  17,083,866 $  17,660,588 

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on August 4, 2022.

(See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements)
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(unaudited) 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Share capital 
– Common 

shares Contributed 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income (loss) 

Non- 
controlling 

interest

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity

2022

Balance, beginning of period $  1,658,680 $  51,069 $  3,856,996 $  883,083 $  51,343 $  6,501,171 

Net earnings  –  –  428,496  –  –  428,496 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax  –  –  –  (542,971)  –  (542,971)

Total comprehensive income  –  –  428,496  (542,971)  –  (114,475)

Common shares
Issued under stock option plan  34,012  –  –  –  –  34,012 
Purchased for cancellation  (20,310)  –  –  –  –  (20,310)

Stock options
Current period expense  –  2,346  –  –  –  2,346 
Exercised  –  (1,856)  –  –  –  (1,856)

Common share dividends  –  –  (268,699)  –  –  (268,699)
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (2,079)  –  2,079  – 
Common share cancellation excess and other  –  –  (97,523)  –  –  (97,523)
Transfer out of fair value through other 
comprehensive income (Note 4)  –  –  24,032  (24,032)  –  – 

Balance, end of period $  1,672,382 $  51,559 $  3,941,223 $  316,080 $  53,422 $  6,034,666 

2021

Balance, beginning of period $  1,598,381 $  51,663 $  3,207,469 $  136,364 $  48,913 $  5,042,790 

Net earnings  –  –  440,116  –  –  440,116 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax  –  –  –  881,513  –  881,513 

Total comprehensive income  –  –  440,116  881,513  –  1,321,629 

Common shares
Issued under stock option plan  22,791  –  –  –  –  22,791 

Stock options
Current period expense  –  1,832  –  –  –  1,832 
Exercised  –  (1,265)  –  –  –  (1,265)

Common share dividends  –  –  (268,457)  –  –  (268,457)
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (547)  –  1,041  494 
Transfer out of fair value through other 
comprehensive income (Note 4)  –  –  206,650  (206,650)  –  – 

Balance, end of period $  1,621,172 $  52,230 $  3,585,231 $  811,227 $ 49,954 $  6,119,814 

 (See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements.)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited) 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars) 2022 2021

Operating activities
Earnings before income taxes $  551,691 $  569,141 
Income taxes paid  (225,308)  (104,576)
Adjustments to determine net cash from operating activities

Capitalized sales commission amortization  36,649  25,710 
Capitalized sales commissions paid  (75,745)  (77,876)
Amortization of capital, intangible and other assets  51,350  49,557 
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings, net of dividends received  (30,524)  (30,157)

 1,783  9,239 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities and other  (18,255)  (107,461)

Cash from operating activites before restructuring provision payments  291,641  333,577 
Restructuring provision cash payments  (6,960)  (44,116)

 284,681  289,461 

Financing activities
 (8)  (3,716)

Increase in obligations to securitization entities  327,669  844,878 
Repayments of obligations to securitization entities and other  (746,025)  (1,405,948)
Repayment of lease obligations  (12,749)  (12,151)
Issue of common shares  32,156  21,525 
Common shares purchased for cancellation  (115,667) –
Common share dividends paid  (269,833)  (268,139)

 (784,457)  (823,551)

Investing activities
Purchase of other investments  (105,880)  (56,696)
Proceeds from the sale of other investments  77,650  302,231 
Increase in loans  (768,585)  (970,888)
Repayment of loans and other  1,029,118  1,499,252 
Net additions to capital assets  (25,350)  (8,316)
Net cash used in additions to intangible assets  (30,516)  (36,264)

 176,437  729,319 

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (323,339)  195,229 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  1,292,446  771,585 

$  969,107 $  966,814 

Cash $  347,018 $  186,821 
Cash equivalents  622,089  779,993 

$  969,107 $  966,814 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information related to operating activities
Interest and dividends received $  132,668 $  139,932 
Interest paid $  101,358 $  113,715 

 (See accompanying notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements.)
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
 (unaudited) (In thousands of Canadian dollars, except shares and per share amounts)

Note 1. Corporate information

IGM Financial Inc. (the Company) is a publicly listed company (TSX: IGM), incorporated and domiciled in Canada. The registered address 
of the Company is 447 Portage Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada. The Company is controlled by Power Corporation of Canada.

IGM Financial Inc. is a wealth and asset management company which serves the financial needs of Canadians through its principal 
subsidiaries, each operating distinctly within the advice segment of the financial services market. The Company’s wholly-owned 
principal subsidiaries are Investors Group Inc. and Mackenzie Financial Corporation (Mackenzie).

Note 2.

The unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company (Interim Financial Statements) have been 
prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial Reporting, using the accounting policies as set 

should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2021 IGM Financial Inc. Annual Report.

Future accounting changes

The Company continuously monitors the potential changes proposed by the IASB and analyzes the effect that changes in the 
standards may have on the Company’s operations.

Note 3. Revenues from contracts with customers 

2022 2021 2022 2021

Advisory fees $  341,957 $  344,223 $  695,290 $  672,683 
Product and program fees  231,246  235,136  472,556  459,944 

 573,203  579,359  1,167,846  1,132,627 
Redemption fees  1,042  2,692  2,501  6,452 
Other financial planning revenues  36,821  45,587  81,924  92,010 

Wealth management  611,066  627,638  1,252,271  1,231,089 
Asset management  241,585  248,312  497,415  481,302 
Dealer compensation expense  (77,421)  (82,701)  (163,612)  (163,410)

Net asset management  164,164  165,611  333,803  317,892 

Net revenues from contracts with customers $  775,230 $  793,249 $  1,586,074 $  1,548,981 

Wealth management revenue is earned by providing financial planning, investment advisory and related financial services. Advisory 
fees, related to financial planning, are associated with assets under management and advisement. Product and program fees, related 
to investment management and administration services, are associated with assets under management. Other financial planning 
revenues include insurance, banking products and services, and mortgage lending activities. 

Asset management revenue, related to investment management advisory and administrative services, depends on the level and 
composition of assets under management.
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Note 4.  Other investments

Cost  Fair value Cost Fair value

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Corporate investments $  235,771 $  598,975 $  226,220 $  1,291,434 

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity securities  1,232  1,401  1,173  1,552 
Proprietary investment funds  149,335  145,943  101,327  105,037 

 150,567  147,344  102,500  106,589 

$  386,338 $  746,319 $  328,720 $  1,398,023 

Wealthsimple Financial Corp. (Wealthsimple) is a financial company that provides simple digital tools for growing and managing your 
money. The Company’s investment in Wealthsimple is held through a limited partnership controlled by Power Corporation of Canada. 
The investment is classified at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income. IGM Financial Inc. holds directly and indirectly a 

continued decline in stock markets and public market peer valuations, and Wealthsimple focusing on its core business lines and 
revising revenue expectations.

from Accumulated other comprehensive income to Other retained earnings. In the second quarter of 2021, IGM Financial Inc. 

from Accumulated other comprehensive income to Other retained earnings.

Note 5. Loans 

Contractual maturity

1 year 
or less

1 – 5 
years

Over 
5 years

 
2022 
Total

2021 
Total

Amortized cost
Residential mortgages  $  1,106,924 $  3,979,962 $  18,039 $  5,104,925 $  5,297,054 

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  648  648 

 5,104,277  5,296,406 
 –  57,436 

$  5,104,277 $  5,353,842 

The change in the allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:
Balance, beginning of period $  648 $  778 
Write-offs, net of recoveries  (164)  (407)
Expected credit losses  164  277 

Balance, end of period $  648 $  648 

mortgage banking related items including portfolio insurance, issue costs, and other items.
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Note 6. Securitizations

The Company securitizes residential mortgages through the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) sponsored 
National Housing Act Mortgage-Backed Securities (NHA MBS) Program and Canada Mortgage Bond (CMB) Program and through 
Canadian bank-sponsored asset-backed commercial paper (ABCP) programs. These transactions do not meet the requirements for 
derecognition as the Company retains prepayment risk and certain elements of credit risk. Accordingly, the Company has retained 
these mortgages on its balance sheets and has recorded offsetting liabilities for the net proceeds received as Obligations to 
securitization entities which are recorded at amortized cost.

The Company earns interest on the mortgages and pays interest on the obligations to securitization entities. As part of the CMB 
transactions, the Company enters into a swap transaction whereby the Company pays coupons on CMBs and receives investment 
returns on the NHA MBS and the reinvestment of repaid mortgage principal. A component of this swap, related to the obligation to 
pay CMB coupons and receive investment returns on repaid mortgage principal, and the hedging swap used to manage exposure 

All mortgages securitized under the NHA MBS and CMB Program are insured by CMHC or another approved insurer under the 
program. As part of the ABCP transactions, the Company has provided cash reserves for credit enhancement which are recorded 
at cost. Credit risk is limited to these cash reserves and future net interest income as the ABCP Trusts have no recourse to the 
Company’s other assets for failure to make payments when due. 

Securitized  
mortgages

Obligations to 
securitization 

entities Net

Carrying value
NHA MBS and CMB Program $  2,576,915 $  2,558,594 $  18,321 
Bank sponsored ABCP  2,057,469  2,102,092  (44,623)

Total $  4,634,384 $ 4,660,686 $  (26,302)

Fair value $  4,526,043 $ 4,605,151 $ (79,108)

Carrying value
NHA MBS and CMB Program $  2,653,682 $ 2,651,293 $ 2,389 
Bank sponsored ABCP  2,371,320  2,406,624  (35,304)

Total $ 5,025,002 $ 5,057,917 $ (32,915)

Fair value $ 5,083,991 $ 5,146,420 $ (62,429)

The carrying value of Obligations to securitization entities, which is recorded net of issue costs, includes principal payments received 
on securitized mortgages that are not due to be settled until after the reporting period. Issue costs are amortized over the life of the 
obligation on an effective interest rate basis.
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Note 7. Investment in associates

Lifeco ChinaAMC Northleaf Total

Balance, beginning of period $  1,020,700 $ 768,724 $ 258,831 $  2,048,255 
Dividends  (36,590)  (31,319)  –  (67,909)
Proportionate share of:

Earnings  59,692  28,348  10,393  98,433 
Other comprehensive income (loss) and other adjustments  (18,953)  (24,271)  –  (43,224)

Balance, end of period  $ 1,024,849 $ 741,482 $  269,224 $ 2,035,555 

Balance, beginning of period  $ 962,388 $ 720,282 $  248,498 $ 1,931,168 
Additions  –  –  466  466 
Dividends  (32,708)  (26,877)  –  (59,585)
Proportionate share of:

Earnings  59,410  27,598  2,734  89,742 
Other comprehensive income (loss) and other adjustments  (3,237)  (11,536)  –  (14,773)

Balance, end of period  $ 985,853 $ 709,467 $ 251,698 $ 1,947,018 

respectively (2021 – $1,427 and $2,187). 

The Company uses the equity method to account for its investments in Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco), China Asset Management Co., 
Ltd. (ChinaAMC) and Northleaf Capital Group Ltd. (Northleaf) as it exercises significant influence. 

On January 5, 2022, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire an additional 13.9% interest in ChinaAMC for cash 

ChinaAMC from 13.9% to 27.8%. To partially fund the transaction, the Company will sell 15,200,662 common shares of Lifeco to 

transactions are expected to close in 2022, subject to customary closing conditions, including Chinese regulatory approvals. The 

Note 8.

result of the increase the defined pension plan is in a surplus position.

The net accrued benefit asset (liability) recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are:

Defined 
benefit 

pension plan 

Supplementary 
executive 

retirement plans

Other post-
employment 

benefits 
Defined benefit 

pension plan 

Supplementary 
executive 

retirement plans

Other post-
employment 

benefits 

Accrued benefit assets $ 74,318 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – 
Accrued benefit liabilities  –  (59,268)  (25,762)  (21,624)  (71,557)  (32,551)

Balance, end of period $ 74,318 $ (59,268) $ (25,762) $ (21,624) $ (71,557) $ (32,551)

The International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee’s The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements, and 
their Interaction (IFRIC 14) requires a company to limit the defined benefit asset, when a defined benefit plan is in a net asset position, 
to the future economic benefit received through future contribution reductions (asset ceiling).

C 74  POWER CORPORATION OF CANADA —�SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2022 

PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D74PCC_03_IGM_Eng_Q2_2022_08_04_CTv1.indd   D74 2022-08-05   9:59 AM2022-08-05   9:59 AM



P
A

R
T

 C
 

IG
M

 FIN
A

N
C

IA
L IN

C
.

IGM Financial Inc. 2022 Second Quarter Report  |  Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements78  |

The changes in the unrecognized amount due to the asset ceiling is as follows:

Balance, beginning of period $ – $ –
Change in unrecognized amount due to asset ceiling  17,492 –

Balance, end of period $ 17,492 $ –

Note 9. Share capital

Authorized

 Unlimited number of: 
  First preferred shares, issuable in series 
  Second preferred shares, issuable in series 
  Class 1 non-voting shares 
  Common shares, no par value

Issued and outstanding

Shares Stated value Shares Stated value

Common shares:
Balance, beginning of period  239,679,043 $  1,658,680  238,308,284 $  1,598,381 
Issued under Stock Option Plan  867,578  34,012  566,760  22,791 
Purchased for cancellation  (2,890,000)  (20,310) – –

Balance, end of period  237,656,621 $  1,672,382  238,875,044 $ 1,621,172 

Normal course issuer bid

The Company commenced a normal course issuer bid on March 1, 2022 which is effective until the earlier of February 28, 2023 and 
the date on which the Company has purchased the maximum number of common shares permitted under the normal course issuer 

February 15, 2022. 

shares in excess of the stated value was charged to Retained earnings.

In connection with its normal course issuer bid, the Company has established an automatic securities purchase plan for its common 
shares. The automatic securities purchase plan provides standard instructions regarding how the Company’s common shares 
are to be purchased under its normal course issuer bid during certain pre-determined trading blackout periods. Outside of these 
pre-determined trading blackout periods, purchases under the Company’s normal course issuer bid will be completed based upon 
management’s discretion.

Note 10. Capital management

The capital management policies, procedures and activities of the Company are discussed in the Capital Resources section of the 
Company’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis contained in the Second Quarter 2022 Report to Shareholders and in Note 19 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2021 IGM Financial Inc. Annual Report and have not changed significantly since 
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Note 11. Share-based payments

Stock option plan

Common share options

 – Outstanding  11,875,525  11,712,164 

 – Exercisable  6,513,982  6,179,244 

2022, the Company granted 1,429,775 options to employees (2021 – 1,615,650). The weighted-average fair value of options granted 

pricing model. The weighted-average closing share price at the grant dates was $44.48. 

Other assumptions used in these valuation models include:

2022 2021

Exercise price  $45.14  $35.08 
Risk-free interest rate 1.97% 1.29%
Expected option life 7 years 7 years
Expected volatility 23.00% 23.00%
Expected dividend yield 5.06% 6.44%

Expected volatility has been estimated based on the historic volatility of the Company’s share price over seven years which is 
reflective of the expected option life. Options vest over a period of up to 7.5 years from the grant date and are exercisable no later 
than 10 years after the grant date.

Note 12. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Employee  
benefits

Other  
investments

Investment  
in associates  

and other Total

Balance, beginning of period $  (95,666) $  919,152 $  59,597 $  883,083 
Other comprehensive income (loss)  85,295  (582,664)  (45,602)  (542,971)
Transfer out of FVTOCI –  (24,032)  –  (24,032)

Balance, end of period $ (10,371) $  312,456 $  $13,995 $  316,080 

Balance, beginning of period $ (196,949) $  293,448 $  39,865 $  136,364 
Other comprehensive income (loss)  84,464  803,225  (6,176)  881,513 
Transfer out of FVTOCI –  (206,650) –  (206,650)

Balance, end of period $ (112,485) $  890,023 $  33,689 $  811,227 

Amounts are recorded net of tax.

Note 13. Risk management

The risk management policies and procedures of the Company are discussed in the Financial Instruments Risk section of the 
Company’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis contained in the Second Quarter 2022 Report to Shareholders and in Note 22 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2021 IGM Financial Inc. Annual Report and have not changed significantly since 
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Note 14.

Fair values are management’s estimates and are calculated using market conditions at a specific point in time and may not reflect 
future fair values. The calculations are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and are matters of significant judgment.

All financial instruments measured at fair value and those for which fair value is disclosed are classified into one of three levels that 
distinguish fair value measurements by the significance of the inputs used for valuation.

Fair value is determined based on the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the most advantageous 
market, utilizing a hierarchy of three different valuation techniques, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety.

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 –  Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices 
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable or corroborated by observable market data; and

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. Valuation techniques are primarily model-based.

Markets are considered inactive when transactions are not occurring with sufficient regularity. Inactive markets may be characterized 
by a significant decline in the volume and level of observed trading activity or through large or erratic bid/offer spreads. In those 
instances where traded markets are not considered sufficiently active, fair value is measured using valuation models which may utilize 
predominantly observable market inputs (Level 2) or may utilize predominantly non-observable market inputs (Level 3). Management 
considers all reasonably available information including indicative broker quotations, any available pricing for similar instruments, 
recent arm’s length market transactions, any relevant observable market inputs, and internal model-based estimates. Management 
exercises judgment in determining the most appropriate inputs and the weighting ascribed to each input as well as in the selection 

Fair value is determined using the following methods and assumptions:

Other investments and other financial assets and financial liabilities are valued using quoted prices from active markets, when 
available. When a quoted market price is not readily available, valuation techniques are used that require assumptions related 
to discount rates and the timing and amount of future cash flows. Wherever possible, observable market inputs are used in the 
valuation techniques.

Loans classified as Level 2 are valued using market interest rates for loans with similar credit risk and maturity.

Loans classified as Level 3 are valued by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing market yields. 

Valuation methods used for Other investments classified as Level 3 include comparison to market transactions with arm’s length 
third parties, use of market multiples, and discounted cash flow analysis.

Obligations to securitization entities are valued by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing market yields for 
securities issued by these securitization entities having similar terms and characteristics.

Deposits and certificates are valued by discounting the contractual cash flows using market interest rates currently offered for 
deposits with similar terms and credit risks.

Long-term debt is valued using quoted prices for each debenture available in the market.

Derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted market prices, where available, prevailing market rates for 
instruments with similar characteristics and maturities, or discounted cash flow analysis.

Level 1 financial instruments include exchange-traded equity investments and open-end investment fund units and other financial 
liabilities in instances where there are quoted prices available from active markets.

Level 2 assets and liabilities include fixed income securities, loans, derivative financial instruments, deposits and certificates and 
long-term debt. The fair value of fixed income securities is determined using quoted market prices or independent dealer price 
quotes. The fair value of derivative financial instruments and deposits and certificates are determined using valuation models, 
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discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques using primarily observable market inputs. The fair value of long-term 

Level 3 assets and liabilities include investments with little or no trading activity valued using broker-dealer quotes, loans, other 
financial assets, obligations to securitization entities and derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments consist 
of principal reinvestment account swaps which represent the component of a swap entered into under the CMB Program whereby 
the Company pays coupons on Canada Mortgage Bonds and receives investment returns on the reinvestment of repaid mortgage 
principal. Fair value is determined by discounting the projected cashflows of the swaps. The notional amount, which is an input used 
to determine the fair value of the swap, is determined using an average unobservable prepayment rate of 15% which is based on 
historical prepayment patterns. An increase (decrease) in the assumed mortgage prepayment rate increases (decreases) the notional 

investments’ securities, where available, discounted cash flows, and other valuation metrics, including revenue multiples, used in the 
valuation of comparable public companies. A 5% increase (decrease) to discounted cash flows or revenue multiples would result in 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in 
the fair value hierarchy. The table distinguishes between those financial instruments recorded at fair value and those recorded at 
amortized cost. The table also excludes fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if 
the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. These items include cash and cash equivalents, accounts and other 
receivables, certain other financial assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and certain other financial liabilities.

Fair value

Carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial assets recorded at fair value
Other investments

– FVTOCI $  598,975 $ – $ – $ 598,975 $ 598,975 
– FVTPL  147,344  147,344  –  –  147,344 

 52,594  –  26,235  26,359  52,594 
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost

Loans
– Amortized cost  5,104,227  –  317,779  4,526,043  4,843,822 

Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
 53,444  –  47,332  6,112  53,444 

Financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
 2,769,975  –  2,770,023  –  2,770,023 

Obligations to securitization entities  4,660,686  –  –  4,605,151  4,605,151 
Long-term debt  2,100,000  –  2,044,294  –  2,044,294 

Financial assets recorded at fair value
Other investments

– FVTOCI $  1,291,434 $  – $  – $  1,291,434 $  1,291,434 
– FVTPL  106,589  104,658  1,931  –  106,589 

Loans
– FVTPL  57,436  –  57,436  –  57,436 

 41,172  –  34,074  7,098  41,172 
Financial assets recorded at amortized cost

Loans
– Amortized cost  5,296,406  –  270,156  5,083,991  5,354,147 

Financial liabilities recorded at fair value
 17,773  –  11,635  6,138  17,773 

Financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost
 2,220,274  –  2,220,530  –  2,220,530 

Obligations to securitization entities  5,057,917  –  –  5,146,420  5,146,420 
Long-term debt  2,100,000  –  2,544,380  –  2,544,380 

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 in 2022 and 2021.
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The following table provides a summary of changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Balance  
Gains (losses) 

included in Net 
earnings

Gains (losses) 
included 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income

Purchases and 
issuances Settlements

Transfers  
in (out)

Balance  

Other investments
– FVTOCI $  1,291,434 $ – $  (674,228) $  29,206 $  47,437 $ – $  598,975 

Derivative financial 
instruments, net  960  16,351 –  342  (2,594) –  20,247 

Other investments
– FVTOCI $  593,273 $ – $  928,584 $  8,721 $ – $  (275,428)(2) $  1,255,150 
– FVTPL  279  50 – – – –  329 

Derivative financial 
instruments, net  (21,103)  7,425 –  1,358  (4,208) –  (8,112)
(1) Included in Wealth management revenue or Net investment income and other in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Note 15. Earnings per common share

 

2022 2021 2022 2021 

Earnings
Net earnings $  208,331 $  237,746 $ 428,496 $  440,116 
Non-controlling interest  (1,230)  (357)  (2,079)  (547)

Net earnings available to common shareholders $  207,101 $  237,389 $ 426,417 $  439,569 

Number of common shares (in thousands)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding  238,822  238,625  239,290  238,475 
Add: Potential exercise of outstanding stock options  420  1,196  925  573 

Average number of common shares outstanding – diluted basis  239,242  239,821  240,215  239,048 

Earnings per common share (in dollars)
– Basic $  0.87 $  0.99 $ 1.78 $  1.84 
– Diluted $  0.87 $  0.99 $ 1.78 $  1.84 
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Note 16. Segmented information 

The Company’s reportable segments are:

• Wealth Management

• Asset Management

• Strategic Investments and Other

These segments reflect the Company’s internal financial reporting and performance measurement. 

• Wealth Management – reflects the activities of operating companies that are principally focused on providing financial planning 
and related services to Canadian households. This segment includes the activities of IG Wealth Management and Investment 
Planning Counsel. These firms are retail distribution organizations who serve Canadian households through their securities 
dealers, mutual fund dealers and other subsidiaries licensed to distribute financial products and services. A majority of the 
revenues of this segment are derived from providing financial advice and distributing financial products and services to Canadian 
households. This segment also includes the investment management activities of these organizations, including mutual fund 
management and discretionary portfolio management services.

• Asset Management – reflects the activities of operating companies primarily focused on providing investment management 
services, and represents the operations of Mackenzie Investments. Investment management services are provided to a suite of 
investment funds that are distributed through third party dealers and financial advisors, and also through institutional advisory 
mandates to financial institutions, pensions and other institutional investors.

• Strategic Investments and Other – primarily represents the key strategic investments made by the Company, including China 
Asset Management Co., Ltd., Great-West Lifeco Inc., Northleaf Capital Group Ltd., Wealthsimple Financial Corp., and Portage 
Ventures LPs. Unallocated capital is also included within this segment.
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Wealth 
Management

Asset  
Management

Strategic 
Investments  

and Other Intersegment Total 

Revenues
Wealth management  $  615,737  $  –  $  –  $  (4,671)  $  611,066 

Asset management  –  269,699  –  (28,114)  241,585 
Dealer compensation  –  (82,088)  –  4,667  (77,421)

Net asset management  –  187,611  –  (23,447)  164,164 

Net investment income and other  (1,276)  (986)  1,794  (72)  (540)
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings  –  –  50,033  –  50,033 

 614,461  186,625  51,827  (28,190)  824,723 

Expenses
Advisory and business development  282,268  21,563  –  (3)  303,828 
Operations and support  116,021  88,450  2,027  (72)  206,426 
Sub-advisory  45,246  1,180  –  (28,115)  18,311 

 443,535  111,193  2,027  (28,190)  528,565 

 170,926  75,432  49,800  –  296,158 
Interest expense  22,504  5,882  –  –  28,386 

Earnings before income taxes  148,422  69,550  49,800  –  267,772 
Income taxes  39,662  18,214  1,393  172  59,441 

 108,760  51,336  48,407  (172)  208,331 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (1,230)  –  (1,230)

Net earnings available to common shareholders  $  108,760  $  51,336  $  47,177  $  (172) $  207,101 

Wealth 
Management

Asset  
Management

Strategic 
Investments  

and Other Intersegment Total 

Revenues
Wealth management  $  632,438  $  –  $  –  $  (4,800)  $  627,638 

Asset management  –  276,278  –  (27,966)  248,312 
Dealer compensation  –  (87,496)  –  4,795  (82,701)

Net asset management  –  188,782  –  (23,171)  165,611 

Net investment income and other  673  1,169  697  (64)  2,475 
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings  –  –  48,153  –  48,153 

 633,111  189,951  48,850  (28,035)  843,877 

Expenses
Advisory and business development  266,036  25,093  –  (5)  291,124 
Operations and support  114,967  80,585  1,197  (64)  196,685 
Sub-advisory  46,542  1,896  –  (27,966)  20,472 

 427,545  107,574  1,197  (28,035)  508,281 
 205,566  82,377  47,653  –  335,596 

Interest expense  22,586  5,910  –  –  28,496 

Earnings before income taxes  182,980  76,467  47,653  –  307,100 
Income taxes  48,633  19,950  771  –  69,354 

 134,347  56,517  46,882  –  237,746 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (357)  –  (357)

Net earnings available to common shareholders  $  134,347  $  56,517  $  46,525  $  – $  237,389 
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Wealth 
Management

Asset  
Management

Strategic 
Investments  

and Other Intersegment Total 

Revenues
Wealth management  $  1,261,868  $  –  $  –  $  (9,597)  $  1,252,271 

Asset management  –  554,532  –  (57,117)  497,415 
Dealer compensation  –  (173,204)  –  9,592  (163,612)

Net asset management  –  381,328  –  (47,525)  333,803 

Net investment income and other  (1,293)  (3,602)  2,482  (145)  (2,558)
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings  –  –  98,433  –  98,433 

 1,260,575  377,726  100,915  (57,267)  1,681,949 

Expenses
Advisory and business development  571,235  41,706  –  (5)  612,936 
Operations and support  237,052  181,516  3,431  (145)  421,854 
Sub-advisory  93,382  2,684  –  (57,117)  38,949 

 901,669  225,906  3,431  (57,267)  1,073,739 

 358,906  151,820  97,484  –  608,210 
Interest expense  44,795  11,724  –  –  56,519 

Earnings before income taxes  314,111  140,096  97,484  –  551,691 
Income taxes  83,957  36,619  2,447  172  123,195 

 230,154  103,477  95,037  (172)  428,496 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (2,079)  –  (2,079)

Net earnings available to common shareholders  $  230,154  $  103,477  $  92,958  $  (172) $  426,417 

Identifiable assets  $  9,642,072  $  1,276,511  $  3,363,110  $  –  $  14,281,693 
Goodwill  1,491,687  1,310,486  –  –  2,802,173 

Total assets  $  11,133,759  $  2,586,997  $  3,363,110  $  – $  17,083,866 
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Wealth 
Management

Asset  
Management

Strategic 
Investments  

and Other Intersegment Total 

Revenues
Wealth management  $  1,240,435  $  –  $  –  $  (9,346)  $  1,231,089 

Asset management  –  536,181  –  (54,879)  481,302 
Dealer compensation  –  (172,749)  –  9,339  (163,410)

Net asset management  –  363,432  –  (45,540)  317,892 

Net investment income and other  2,420  2,364  949  (124)  5,609 
Proportionate share of associates’ earnings  –  –  89,742  –  89,742 

 1,242,855  365,796  90,691  (55,010)  1,644,332 

Expenses
Advisory and business development  529,751  45,406  –  (7)  575,150 
Operations and support  236,955  164,033  2,362  (126)  403,224 
Sub-advisory  91,475  3,603  –  (54,877)  40,201 

 858,181  213,042  2,362  (55,010)  1,018,575 

 384,674  152,754  88,329  –  625,757 
Interest expense  44,845  11,771  –  –  56,616 

Earnings before income taxes  339,829  140,983  88,329  –  569,141 
Income taxes  90,711  36,475  1,839  –  129,025 

 249,118  104,508  86,490  –  440,116 
Non-controlling interest  –  –  (547)  –  (547)

Net earnings available to common shareholders  $  249,118  $  104,508  $  85,943  $  – $  439,569 

Identifiable assets  $  8,880,546  $  1,429,072  $  3,784,969  $  –  $  14,094,587 
Goodwill  1,491,687  1,310,379  –  –  2,802,066 

Total assets  $  10,372,233  $  2,739,451  $  3,784,969  $  – $  16,896,653 
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Power Corporation of Canada is a certified 
Imagine Canada Caring Company, 
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To learn more about the organizations we support, visit  

www.PowerCorporationCommunity.com 

Power Corporation of Canada

751 Victoria Square 

Montréal, Québec, Canada H2Y 2J3 

514-286-7400 

1-800-890-7440 
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